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($ in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

For the Period

Revenues $ 340,352 $ 343,567 $ 421,571 $ 464,440 $ 379,852
Funds from Operations (FFO) 129,409 1,637 101,192 215,460 177,931
Net (Loss) Income Available to Common Shareholders (509) (55,429) 342,102 180,449 197,250
Per Share
FFO - Diluted® $ 2.09 $ 0.02 $ 175 S 3.79 S 3.61
FFO - Basic® $ 2.09 $ 0.02 $ 176 $ 3.82 $ 3.63
Net (Loss) income - Diluted $  (o.01) $ (1.19) $ 719 S 3.91 $ 5.1
Net (Loss) Income - Basic $  (0.01) $ (119) $ 726 $ 3.94 $ 5.16
Dividends® S 0.70 $ 175 $ 1329 $ 2.72 $ 2.70
At Year End
Total Market Capitalization (in millions)® S 2,779 $ 2,44 $ 3,163 $ 5,387 $ 5,242
Total Long-Term Liabilities S 1,704 $ 1,762 $ 1,642 $ 2,398 S 2,494
Shares and Units Outstanding (in thousands) 74,529 57,407 57,269 56,724 55,729
Market Price of Common Shares $ 1.73 $ 8.33 $ 2263 $ 46.88 S 4198
Real Estate Portfolio
Number of Operating Properties 156 192 200 223 261
Multifamily - Apartment Homes 33,524 34,598 36,314 38,11 44,337
Commercial - Leasable Square Feet (in millions)® 1.0 21.7 23.9 275 30.6
Real Estate Before Accumulated Depreciation (in millions)  $ 3,512 $ 3,379 $ 3,216 $ 4,418 S 4,544

(1) Funds from operations (FFO) is a supplemental non-GAAP financial measure used to measure the operating performance of equity REITs. A discussion of
FFO and a reconciliation of FFO to net income available to common shareholders is included in Item 7, Funds from Operations, of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 26, 2010. FFO per share is calculated
by dividing FFO by the weighted-average shares and units outstanding for the period.

(2) Dividends in 2007 include special distributions of $10.75 per share.

(3) Consists of all outstanding indebtedness, the liquidation preference of the preferred shares, and the market price of our common shares and operating
partnership units at year end.

(4) Represents apartment homes in which the company owns or maintains a partial ownership interest.

(s) Represents commercial leasable square feet in which the company owns or maintains a partial ownership interest.

Apartment Homes by Major Market®

Charlotte, NC 4,865
Dallas/Fort Worth, TX 4,480
Atlanta, GA 3,282
Austin, TX 2,608
Raleigh, NC 1,964
Orlando, FL 1,756
Richmond, VA 1,700
Charleston, SC 1,578
Savannah, GA 1,437
Birmingham, AL 1,262

(1) Represents the company’s wholly-owned apartment homes
in its top 10 markets.
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Explanatory Note

This Form 10-K includes information with respect to both Colonial Properties Trust (the “Trust”) and Colonial
Realty Limited Partnership (“CRLP”), of which the Trust is the sole general partner and in which the Trust owned
an 89.1% limited partner interest as of December 31, 2009. The Trust conducts all of its business and owns all of its
properties through CRLP and CRLP’s various subsidiaries. Separate financial statements and accompanying notes
are provided for each of the Trust and CRLP. Except as specifically noted otherwise, “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” is presented as a single discussion with respect to
both the Trust and CRLP since the Trust conducts all of its business and owns all of its properties through CRLP
and CRLP’s various subsidiaries.



Documents Incorporated by Reference

Portions of the proxy statement for the annual shareholders meeting to be held on April 28, 2010 are
incorporated by reference into Part IIT of this report. We expect to file our proxy statement within 120 days after
December 31, 2009.

PART1I

This annual report on Form 10-K contains certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “may,” “will,” “should,”
“expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” or the negative of these terms or comparable
terminology. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors
that may cause our and our affiliates, or the industry’s actual results, performance, achievements or transactions to
be materially different from any future results, performance, achievements or transactions expressed or implied by
such forward-looking statements including, but not limited to, the risks described herein. Such factors include,
among others, the following:

. the deterioration of the economy and high unemployment in the U.S., together with the downturh in
the overall U.S. housing market resulting in weakness in the multifamily market;

*  national and local economic, business and real estate conditions generally, including, but not limited
to, the effect on demand for multifamily units and commercial rental space or the creation of new
multifamily and commercial developments, the extent, strength and duration of the current recession
or recovery, the availability and creditworthiness of tenants, the level of lease rents, and the
availability of financing for both tenants and us;

. adverse changes in real estate markets, including, but not limited to, the extent of tenant
bankruptcies, financial difficulties and defaults, the extent of future demand for multifamily units
and commercial space in our core markets and barriers of entry into new markets which we may
seek to enter in the future, the extent of decreases in rental rates, competition, our ability to identify
and consummate attractive acquisitions on favorable terms, our ability to consummate any planned
dispositions in a timely manner on acceptable terms, and our ability to reinvest sale proceeds in a
manner that generates favorable returns;

e exposure, as a multifamily focused real estate investment trust (“REIT”), to risks inherent in
investments in a single industry;

*  risks associated with having to perform under various financial guarantees that we have provided
with respect to certain of our joint ventures and developments;

*  ability to obtain financing at reasonable rates, if at all;

*  actions, strategies and performance of affiliates that we may not control or companies, including
joint ventures, in which we have made investments;

*  changes in operating costs, including real estate taxes, utilities, and insurance;
*  higher than expected construction costs;

e  uncertainties associated with our ability to sell our existing inventory of condominium and for-sale
residential assets, including timing, volume and terms of sales;

*  uncertainties associated with the timing and amount of real estate dispositions and the resulting
gains/losses associated with such dispositions;

*  legislative or other regulatory decisions, including tax legislation, government approvals, actions
and initiatives, including the need for compliance with environmental and safety requirements, and
changes in laws and regulations or the interpretation thereof;



o the Trust’s ability to continue to satisfy complex rules in order for it to maintain its status as a REIT
for federal income tax purposes, the ability of CRLP to satisfy the rules to maintain its status as a
partnership for federal income tax purposes, the ability of certain of our subsidiaries to maintain
their status as taxable REIT subsidiaries for federal income tax purposes, and our ability and the
ability of our subsidiaries to operate effectively within the limitations imposed by these rules;

e price volatility, dislocations and liquidity disruptions in the financial markets and the resulting
impact on availability of financing;

«  effect of any rating agency actions on the cost and availability of new debt financing;
e level and volatility of interest or capitalization rates or capital market conditions;
. effect of any terrorist activity or other heightened geopolitical crisis; and

. other risks identified in this annual report on Form 10-K and, from time to time, in other reports we
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) or in other documents that we
publicly disseminate.

We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise these forward-looking statements to reflect events,-:
circumstances or changes in expectations after the date of this report.

Item 1. Business.

As used herein, the term the “Trust” refers to Colonial Properties Trust, and the term “CRLP” refers to
Colonial Realty Limited Partnership, of which the Trust is the sole general partner and in which the Trust owned an
89.1% limited partner interest as of December 31, 2009. The Trust conducts all of its business and owns all of its
properties through CRLP and CRLP's various subsidiaries. Except as otherwise required by the context, the
“Company,” “Colonial,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to the Trust and CRLP together, as well as CRLP’s
subsidiaries, including Colonial Properties Services Limited Partnership (“CPSLP”), Colonial Properties Services,
Inc. (“CPSI”) and CLNL Acquisition Sub, LLC.

We are a multifamily-focused self-administered equity REIT that owns, operates and develops multifamily
communities primarily located in the Sunbelt region of the United States. Also, we create additional value for our -
shareholders by managing commercial assets, primarily through joint venture investments, and pursuing
development opportunities. We are a fully-integrated real estate company, which means that we are engaged in the
acquisition, development, ownership, management and leasing of multifamily communities and other commercial
real estate properties. Our activities include full or partial ownership and operation of 156 properties as of December
31, 2009, located in Alabama, Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Nevada, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee,
Texas, and Virginia, development of new properties, acquisition of existing properties, build-to-suit development
and the provision of management, leasing and brokerage services for commercial real estate.

As of December 31, 2009, we owned or maintained a partial ownership in 111 multifamily apartment
communities containing a total of 33,520 apartment units (including 105 consolidated properties, of which 104 are
wholly-owned and one is partially-owned and six properties partially-owned through unconsolidated joint venture
entities aggregating 31,520 and 2,004 units, respectively) (the “multifamily apartment communities™), 45
commercial properties containing a total of approximately 12.8 million square feet (consisting of nine wholly-owned
consolidated properties and 36 properties partially-owned through unconsolidated joint-venture entities aggregating
3.2 million and 9.6 million square feet, respectively) (the “commercial properties”) and certain parcels of land
adjacent to or near certain of these properties (the “land”). The multifamily apartment communities, the commercial
properties and the land are referred to herein collectively as the “properties.” As of December 31, 2009, consolidated
multifamily and commercial properties that had achieved stabilized occupancy (which we have defined as having
occurred once the property has attained 93% physical occupancy) were 94.7% and 89.9% leased, respectively.

The Trust is the direct general partner of, and as of December 31, 2009, held approximately 89.1% of the
interests in CRLP. We conduct all of our business through CRLP, CPSLP, which provides management services for
our properties, and CPSI, which provides management services for properties owned by third parties, including one
consolidated and certain other unconsolidated joint venture entities. We perform the majority of our for-sale
residential and condominium conversion activities through CPSL.



As a lessor, the majority of our revenue is derived from residents under existing leases at our properties.
Therefore, our operating cash flow is dependent upon the rents that we are able to charge to our residents, and the
ability of these residents to make their rental payments. We also receive third-party management fees related to
management of properties.

The Trust was formed in Maryland on July 9, 1993. The Trust was reorganized as an Alabama real estate
investment trust in 1995. Our executive offices are located at 2101 Sixth Avenue North, Suite 750, Birmingham,
Alabama, 35203 and our telephone number is (205) 250-8700.

Business Strategy'

As a result of the transactions executed in 2007, we implemented our strategic initiative to become a
multifamily focused REIT, which included two significant joint venture transactions whereby the majority of our
wholly-owned office and retail properties were transferred into separate joint ventures. Simplifying our business
plan has allowed us to concentrate the majority of our resources primarily on our multifamily business.

The United States economy is believed to have entered a recession sometime during 2008. In addition, the
United States stock and credit markets have experienced significant price volatility, dislocations and liquidity
disruptions, which have caused market prices of many stocks to fluctuate substantially and the spreads on
prospective debt financings to widen considerably. As a result of this economic downturn and the related credit
crisis experienced in 2008 and 2009, in 2009, our priorities were strengthening the balance sheet, improving
liquidity, addressing near term debt maturities, operating our portfolio efficiently and reducing overhead and
postponing/phasing development activities. Despite the challenging environment, we executed our strategic
initiatives during 2009 through the following activities:

Strengthening the Balance Sheet

e From April 2009 through October 2009, we raised net proceeds of $42.6 million through the issuance of

4,802,971 of the Trust’s common shares under our $50.0 million continuous equity offering program,
which was terminated following our October 2009 public offering.

«  In October 2009, we completed a public offering of 12,109,500 of the Trust’s common shares
generating net proceeds to us of $109.8 million.

»  During 2009, we sold assets for aggregate proceeds of approximately $157.7 million.

Improving Liquidity

¢ . During 2009, we closed on two 10-year secured credit facilities totaling $506.4 million with a weighted
average interest rate of 5.81%, both of which are with Fannie Mae.

¢ With respect to the final three quarters of 2009, the Trust’s Board of Trustees declared reduced
quarterly cash dividends on the Trust’s common shares and CRLP’s partnership units of $0.15 per
common share and per partnership unit, compared to $0.25 for the first quarter 2009.

Addressing Near Term Maturities

¢ During 2009, we repurchased an aggregate of $579.2 million of our outstanding unsecured notes and
recognized aggregate net gains of approximately $54.7 million.

¢ During 2009, we exited seven existing joint venture arrangements including 37 properties and
eliminated $231.1 million of our pro-rata portion of property specific mortgage debt exposure.
Reducing Overhead

¢ Since October 2008, we have eliminated a total of 177 employee positions, which equals approximately
10% of the workforce, and have generated anticipated annualized cost reductions of approximately
$20.7 million.



Postponing/Phasing Developments

J Following our decision in January 2009 to postpone future development activities until the economic
environment sufficiently improves, we preserved capital by reducing development spending, recording
an aggregate of approximately $46.1 million during 2009.

We believe that the steps that we have made to achieve our 2009 initiatives have positioned us to be able to
continue to work through this challenging economic environment. During 2010, we expect to continue to focus our
business efforts on strengthening our balance sheet, including, if the market conditions permit, through preferred
share and bond repurchases, asset sales and potential additional equity offerings, simplifying our business through
additional dispositions of joint venture interests, improving operating margins by controlling expenses and
opportunistically pursuing development and acquisition opportunities to grow long-term shareholder value. Any
continuing or prolonged downturn in the financial markets may require us, however, to adjust our business plan.

For additional discussion regarding- management’s assessment of the current economic environment, see
“Business Strategy and Outlook” in Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fmancral Condmon and
Results of Operations” of this Form 10-K.

Operating Strategy

Our general business objective as a multrfarnrly focused REIT is to generate stable and i mcreasmg cash flow and
portfolio value for our shareholders through a strategy of:

*  realizing growth in income from our existing portfolio of properties;

o selectively acquiring and developing multifamily properties to grow our core portfolio and improve the age
and quality of our multifamily apartment communities in growth markets located in the Sunbelt region of
the United States;

. employing a comprehensive capital maintenance program to maintain properties in first-class condition,
including recycling capital by selectively disposing of assets and reinvesting the proceeds into opportunities
with more perceived growth potential,

*  managing our own properties, including our assets through joint venture arrangements, which enables us to
better control our operating expenses and establish and maintain long-term relationships with our
commercial tenants; maintaining our third-party property management business, which increases cash flow
through management fee income stream and establishes additional relationships with investors and tenants;
and

¢ executing our plan to dispose of our for-sale residential assets and land held for future sale.

Financing Strategy
We seek to maintain a well-balanced, conservative and flexible capital structure by:

*  pursuing long-term debt financings and reﬁnancmgs on.a secured or unsecured basis subject to market
conditions;

*  borrowing primarily at fixed rates;
¢ extending and sequencing the maturity dates of our debt; and
e targeting appropriate debt service and fixed charge coverage.

We believe that these strategies have enabled, and should continue to enable, us to access the debt and equity
capital markets to fund debt refinancings and the acquisition and development of additional properties consistent
with our 2010 business objectives. As further discussed under “Liquidity and Capital Resources” in Item 7 -—
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationis” of this Form 10-K, we
expect that our availability under our existing unsecured credit facility, minimal debt maturities in 2010, the number
of unencumbered propertles in our multifamily portfolio and the additional financing through secured agency
financing obtained in 2009 and anticipated in 2010 will provide sufficient liquidity to execute our business plan.
This liquidity, along with our projected asset sales is expected to allow us to execute our plan in the short-term. See
Item 1A — “Risk Factors — Risks Associated with Our Indebtedness and Financing Activities — A downgrade in
our credit ratings could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.”



During 2008 and 2009, certain long-term unsecured senior notes issued by CRLP traded at a discount to the
current debt amount. In 2008, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized up to $550 million in repurchases of
outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP, including up to $500 million in repurchases through a repurchase
program that ran through December 31, 2009. During 2009, we repurchased an aggregate of $181.0 million of our
outstanding unsecured senior notes in separate transactions at a weighted-average discount of 25.4% to par value,
which represents a 12.5% yield to maturity.

In addition, during 2009, we completed two cash tender offers for unsecured senior notes of CRLP. In April
2009, we completed a cash tender offer for $250 million in aggregate principal amount of outstanding notes
maturing in 2010 and 2011. In September 2009, we completed an additional cash tender offer for $148.2 million in
aggregate principal amount of outstanding notes maturing in 2014, 2015 and 2016.

In total, during 2009, we repurchased an aggregate of $579.2 million of outstanding unsecured senior notes
of CRLP at an aggregate average of 10.6% discount to par value, which represents an 8.1% yield to maturity.

On January 27, 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized a new unsecured notes repurchase program
which allows us to repurchase up to $100 million of outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP. This new
repurchase program runs through December 31, 2010. We will continue to selectively repurchase the unsecured debt
of our operating partnership as funds are available and as current market conditions permit.

We may modify our borrowing policy and may increase or decrease our ratio of debt to gross asset value in
the future. To the extent that the Trust’s Board of Trustees determines to seck additional capital, we may raise such
capital through additional asset dispositions, equity offerings, secured financings, debt financings or retention of
cash flow (subject to provisions in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, requiring the distribution by a
REIT of a certain percentage of taxable income and taking into account taxes that would be imposed on
undistributed taxable income) or a combination of these methods.

Property Management

We are experienced in management and leasing of multifamily and comumercial properties and believe that
the management and leasing of our own portfolio has helped maintain consistent income growth and has resulted in
reduced operating expenses from the properties.

Operational Structure and Segments

Prior to December 31, 2008, we had four operating segments: multifamily, office, retail and for-sale
residential. Since January 1, 2009, we have managed our business based on the performance of two operating
segments: multifamily and commercial. See Note 10 — “Segment Information” in our Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for information on our segments
and the reconciliation of total segment revenues to total revenues, total segment net operating income to income
from continuing operations and noncontrolling interest for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, and
total segment assets to total assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. Information regarding our segments
contained in such Note 10 — “Segment Information™ in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust
and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K is incorporated by reference herein.

Additional information with respect to each operating segment is set forth below as of December 31, 2009:

Multifamily Operations — Multifamily management is responsible for all aspects of multifamily operations,
including day-to-day management and leasing of our 111 multifamily apartment communities (including 105
consolidated properties, of which 104 are wholly-owned and one is partially-owned and six of which are partially-
owned through unconsolidated joint venture entities), as well as providing third-party management services for
apartment communities in which we do not have an ownership interest or have a non-controlling ownership interest.
Multifamily management is also responsible for all aspects of our for-sale residential disposition activities. As of
December 31, 2009, we had three for-sale properties remaining, two of which are residential and one of which is a
lot development project. During 2009, we disposed of the remaining units at Regents Park, located in Atlanta,
Georgia; Azur at Metrowest and Capri and Hunters Creek, located in Orlando, Florida; Murano, located in Delray
Beach, Florida; Portofino, located in Jensen Beach, Florida, The Grander, located in Gulf Shores, Alabama and
Regatta located in Charleston, South Carolina.



Commercial Operations — Commercial management is responsible for all aspects of our commercial
property operations, including the management and leasing services for our 45 commercial properties (nine of which
are wholly-owned properties and 36 of which are partially-owned through unconsolidated joint venture entities), as
well as third-party management services for commercial properties in which we do not have an ownership interest
and for brokerage services in other commercial property transactions.

Developments

The following table summarizes our developments that were completed in 2009. For the purposes of the
following table and throughout this Form 10-K, multifamily properties are measured by the number of units and
commercial properties are measured in square feet. Project development costs, including land acquisition costs, were
funded through our unsecured credit facility.

Total Units/ Total
Square Feet (1) Cost
(unaudited) in th

n Creek:

Colomal Grand at Ashton Qalgg i
d at Desert Vista®

w\%ﬂ\?

3 ercial Developmer
Colonial Promenade Tannehill 2) Birmingham, AL 84 2,964

r— SR o LR R OB e
. Total Completed Developments:. | -

(1)  Square footage is presented in thousands. Square footage for commercial assets excludes anchor-owned
square footage.

(2)  Total cost and development costs for this completed development, including the portion of the project placed
into service during 2008, was 346.9 million, net of $4.5 million, which is expected to be received from local
municipalities as reimbursement for infrastructure costs.

In addition, we completed one unconsolidated commercial development, Colonial Pinnacle Turkey Creek 111,
a joint venture in which we own a 50% interest. This property is a 166,000 square foot development located in
Knoxville, Tennessee. Our portion of the project development costs, including land acquisition costs, was $12.4
million and was funded primarily through a secured construction loan.

All of the new multifamily communities listed above will have numerous amenities, including a cyber café, a
fitness center, a resort style swimming pool and a resident business center.



Ongoing Development Activity

In January 2009, we decided to postpone future development : activities (including the future development
activity identified below) until we determine that the current economic environment has sufficiently improved. The
following table summarizes the project under construction as of December 31, 2009. This development is expected
to be funded through our unsecured credit facility (discussed in this Form 10-K below under the heading
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity and Capital Resources”):

Total ) Costs
Square Estimated Capitalized
Feet (1) Estimated Total Costs to Date
naudi i i j

AAAAAAAAAAAA

Gulf Shores AL

$

Colonial Promenade raft Farms (2)

(1)  Square footage is presented in thousands and excludes anchor-owned square footage.

(2)  As part of our agreement to transfer our remaining interest in Colonial Promenade Craft Farms, we
commenced development of an additional 67,700-square foot phase of a commercial shopping center (See
Note 9 — “Investment in Partially-Owned Entities and Other Arrangements” in our Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K).

Future Development Activity

As discussed above, in 2009, we made a strategic decision to accelerate our plan to dispose of our for-sale
residential assets and land held for future sale and for-sale residential and mixed-use developments and postpone
future development activities (including the future development activities identified below). We plan to complete the
development project described above but do not intend to start any new developments until we determine that the
current economic environment has sufficiently improved.

Of the developments listed below, in 2010, we expect to resume development on the first phase of the
Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac commercial development, located in Covington, Louisiana. Our intention is to
develop a power center in phases over time, as opposed to our original lifestyle center plan.

_ The remaining projects listed below are the ‘consolidated development projects that we had planned to
pursue, but that we have suspended indefinitely. While we currently anticipate developing the other projects in the
future, given the current economic uncertainties, we can give no assurance that we will pursue any of these
particular development projects in the future.



Total Units/ Capitalized

Square Feet (1) to Date
. , Locanon _ (unayditqd) in
Multifamily Projects: = = o L
Colonlal Grand at Sweetwater Phoenlx AZ
‘Grandat T . Phoenix, AZ
Orlando, FL
- ,Tampa,EL . ! . 1447
Colomal Grand at South End - - ~ Charlotte, NC 353 12,084
Colonial GrandatAzure . LasVegas NV 188 1851
Colonial Grand at Cityway Austin, TX 320

Commercial Projects:
Colonial Promenade Huntsville
Colomal Promenade Nord du Lac (3)

Huntsville, AL
: Covmgton LA

Other Pro;ects and Undeveloped Land k

Multifamily .. .
Commercial :
For-Sale Residential (4)

Consolidated Construction in Progre

(1) Square footage is presented in thousands and excludes anchor-owned square footage.
(2)  This project is part of a mixed-use development.

(3)  Costs capitalized to date are net of a $6.5 million impairment charge recorded during 2009 and a $19. 3
million impairment charge recorded during 2008. Total square feet is yet undetermined, however, Colonial
Promenade Nord du Lac Phase I'will consist of approximately 100,000 square-feet, excluding anchor-owned

square feet.

(4)  These costs are presented net of a $23.2 million non-cash impairment charge recorded on one of projects in
2007.

Dispositions

During 2009, we sold assets for aggregate proceeds of approximately $157.7 million, $117.4 million from
consolidated assets, $40.3 million from unconsolidated assets, which amount represents our pro-rata share of the
proceeds, as well as $55.7 million in gross proceeds from condominium conversion and for-sale residential assets
and $10.8 million from land sales. These transactions are described below.



Percent Total Units/ Gain on Sales
Property Location Owned Square Feet(] ) _Sales Price of Propertv

Consolidated Dispositions
Commermal Properties

Fultondale, AL

_Orlando, FL

-Bumingh 15.00%

s

CMS/ Colonlal J01nt Venture )
II (CV at Rocky Rldge) Birmingham, AL 15.00% 226
MS Florida (e vV at P

darasotd, b

CMS Tennessee (CG at
Brentwood) Nashville, TN 25.00% 254

Austin, TX

gham, AL

. Commercial Properties o .
Colomal Pinnacle Craft Farms Gulf Shores AL ,
0O Aultiple Locations
_Atlanta, GA
“Mnltlp‘

(1)  Square footage is presented in thousands and excludes anchor-owned square footage.

(2)  These four multifamily properties were included in a joint venture with CMS and were sold in one
transaction. Of total proceeds, $15.3 million was our pro-rata share of associated mortgage debt.

(3)  Oftotal proceeds, $2.8 million was our pro-rata share of associated mortgage debt.
(4)  Of'total proceeds, 31.6 million was our pro-rata share of associated morigage debt.

(5)  In April 2009, we transferred our remaining 15% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colonial Pinnacle
Craft Farms to the majority joint venture partner. As a result of this transaction and the resulting valuation,
we recorded an impairment of approximately 30.7 million with respect to our remaining equity interest in the

Jjoint venture.

(6)  In December 2009, we transferred our entire 17.1% noncontrolling joint venture interest in OZ/CLP Retail,
LLC (OZRE) to OZRE’s majority partner, made a cash payment of $45.1 million that was used by OZRE to
repay $38.0 million of mortgage debt and related fees and expenses, and $7.1 million of which was used for
the discharge of deferred purchase price owed by OZRE to former unitholders who elected to redeem their
units in OZRE in June 2008. The total cash payment by us was made through borrowings under our
unsecured line of credit. In exchange, we received 100% ownership of one of the OZRE assets, Colonial
Promenade Alabaster, a 612,000-square-foot retail center located in Birmingham, Alabama.

(7)  Oftotal proceeds, $13.9 million was our pro-rata share of associated mortgage debt.

(8)  In November 2009, we transferred our entire 15% noncontrolling joint venture interest in the DRA/CRT joint
venture, a 17-asset office joint venture (“DRA/CRT”). Pursuant to the transaction, we transferred our
membership interest back to DRA/CRT. As part of this transaction, we acquired 100% ownership in one of
the DRA/CRT properties, Three Ravinia, an 813,000-square-foot, Class A office building located in Atlanta,
Georgia and made a cash payment of $24.7 million. We retained management of the other assets in this
portfolio that we were managing prior this transaction.
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In addition, throughout 2009, we sold various parcels of land for an aggregate sales price of approximately
$10.7 million (excluding $0.1 million of sales proceeds from unconsolidated land sales). In connection with the sale
of one land parcel, we extended $5.0 million of seller-financing with a term of six months and an interest rate of
7.5%. We recognized an aggregate gain of approximately $0.3 million on the sale of these parcels of land. The
proceeds from the 2009 dispositions were used to repay a portion of the borrowings under our unsecured credit
facility and for general corporate purposes.

For-Sale Projects

During 2009, we completed the sale of the following condominium conversion and for-sale residential
projects:

Units Sold Gross Proceeds(l)

(in mfll j rfs)

Condominium Conversion (2)
Azur at Metrowest

e e Orlando FL
Capriat Hunters Creek -~ =

 Otlando, FL
Murano Delray Beach, FL
Portofino Jensen Beach, FL.

For-Sale Res1dent1a1

 RegentsPark (3) Atlanta, G. 63

Grander (3) ’ & Gulf Shores, AL 14 33
 Regatta(3) R Ohelesten [ SE T T -

Metropolitan Charlotte, NC

Southgate Charlotte, NC .

370 $557

(1) Our portion of the proceeds from these dispositions was used to reduce the outstanding balance on our
unsecured credit facility.

(2) As of December 31, 2009, we had sold all remaining units at these condominium conversion properties.
(3) As of December 31, 2009, we had sold all remaining units at these for-sale residential projects.

During 2009, “Gains from sales of property” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss) included $1.0 million ($0.9 million net of income taxes) from these condominium conversion and
for-sale residential sales. A summary of the revenues and costs from these sales of for-sale projects are set forth in
the table below.

Year Ended
December 31,
2009

Condominium conversion revenues
Condomlnlum conversion costs
Gains on condominium conversion sals, before noncontrolling in

For-sale residential revenues
For-sale residential costs ‘ A e 8.161)
Gains on for-sale remden‘ual sales before noncontrolhng interest and income taxes 678

Noncontrolling interest =
Provision for income taxes
Gains on condammmm canverswn and for—sale resmicntzal sales *net o :

income taxes | . :

The net gains on condominium unit sales are classified in discontinued operations if the related condominium
property was previously operated as an apartment community. For 2009, 2008 and 2007, gains on condominium unit
sales, net of income taxes, of $0.2 million, $0.1 million and $9.3 million, respectively, are included in discontinued
operations. Completed for-sale residential projects of approximately $65.0 million are reflected in real estate assets
held for sale as of December 31, 2009.

11



For cash flow statement purposes, we classify capital expenditures for newly developed for-sale residential
communities and for other condominium conversion communities in investing activities. Likewise, the proceeds
from the sales of condominium units and for-sale residential sales are also included in investing activities.

Impairment

During 2009, we recorded impairment charges totaling $12.4 million. Of the $10.4 million presented in
“Impairment and other losses” in continuing operations on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss), $10.3 million relates to a reduction of the carrying value of certain of our for-sale
residential assets, one retail development and certain land parcels. The $2.0 million presented in “Income (loss) from
discontinued operations” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
relates to the sale of the remaining units at two of our condominium conversion properties. The remaining amount in
continuing operations, $0.1 million, was recorded as the result of fire damage at one of our multifamily apartment
communities. In addition to these impairment charges, we determined that it was probable that we will have to fund
the $3.5 million partial loan repayment guarantee provided on the original construction loan for Colonial Grand at
Traditions, a joint venture asset in which CRLP has a 35% noncontrolling interest, and recognized a charge to
earnings. This charge is reflected in “(Zoss) income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities” on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss).

See Item 1A — “Risk Factors — Risks Associated with Our Operations — Our ability to dispose of our
existing inventory of condominium and for-sale residential assets could adversely affect our results of operations.”

Recent Events
Unsecured Notes and Preferred Securities Repurchase Programs

On December 31, 2009, our previously announced unsecured notes repurchase program expired. On January
27, 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized a new unsecured notes repurchase program which allows us to
repurchase up to $100 million of outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP. This new repurchase program runs
through December 31, 2010. Under the new repurchase program, senior unsecured notes may be repurchased from
time to time in open market transactions or privately negotiated transactions, subject to applicable legal
requirements, market conditions and other factors. The repurchase program does not obligate the repurchase of any
specific amounts of senior notes, and repurchases pursuant to the program may be suspended or resumed at any time
from time to time without further notice or announcement. We will continue to monitor the debt markets and
repurchase certain senior notes that meet our required criteria, as funds are available. We anticipate funding
potential repurchases from borrowings under our existing credit facility, proceeds from property sales and/or other
available funds. In February 2010, we repurchased $8.7 million in unsecured senior notes, at a minimal discount to
par value, which represents a 6.51% yield to maturity and resulted in the recognition of immaterial net gains.

Additionally, on January 27, 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized a new preferred securities
repurchase program which allows us to repurchase up to $25 million of the Trust’s outstanding 8 1/8 percent Series
D preferred depositary shares. The preferred shares may be repurchased from time to time over the next 12 months
in open market purchases or privately negotiated transactions, subject to applicable legal requirements, market
conditions and other factors. This repurchase program does not obligate us to repurchase any specific amounts of
preferred shares, and repurchases pursuant to the program may be suspended or resumed at any time from time to
time without further notice or announcement. We will continue to monitor the equity markets and repurchase certain
preferred shares that meet our required criteria, as funds are available. In connection with the repurchase of the
Series D preferred depositary shares, the Board of Trustees of the Trust, as general partner of CRLP, also authorized
the repurchase of a corresponding amount of Series D Preferred Units of CRLP.

Continuous Equity Offering Program

On February 22, 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees approved the issuance of up to $50.0 million of
common shares of the Trust under an at-the-market continuous equity offering program.
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Distribution

During January 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees declared a cash distribution to our shareholders and the
partners of CRLP in the amount of $0.15 per share and per partnership unit, totaling approximately $11.2 million.
The distribution was made to shareholders and partners of record as of February 8, 2010 and was paid on February
16, 2010. The Trust’s Board of Trustees reviews the dividend quarterly and there can be no assurance as to the
manner in which future dividends will be paid or that the current dividend level will be maintained in future periods.

Competition

The ownership, development, operation and leasing of multifamily, office and retail properties are highly
competitive. We compete with domestic and foreign financial institutions, other REITs, life insurance companies,
pension trusts, trust funds, partnerships and individual investors for the acquisition of properties. See Item 1A —
“Risk Factors — Risks Associated with Our Operations — Competition for acquisitions could reduce the number of
acquisition opportunities available to us and result in increased prices for properties, which could adversely affect
our return on properties we purchase” in this Form 10-K for further discussion. In addition, we compete for tenants
in our markets primarily on the basis of property location, rent charged, services provided and the design and
condition of improvements. With respect to our multifamily business, we also compete with other quality apartment
and for-sale (condominium) projects owned by public and private companies. The number of competitive
multifamily properties in a particular market could adversely affect our ability to lease our multifamily properties
and develop and lease or sell new properties, as well as the rents we are able to charge. In addition, other forms of
residential properties, including single family housing and town homes, provide housing alternatives to potential
residents of quality apartment communities or potential purchasers of for-sale (condominiumy units. With respect to
the multifamily business we compete for residents in our apartment communities based on our high level of resident
service, the quality of our apartment communities (including our landscaping and amenity offerings) and the
desirability of our locations. Resident leases at our apartment communities are priced competitively based on market
conditions, supply and demand characteristics, and the quality and resident service offerings of its communities. We
do not seek to compete on the basis of providing a low-cost solution for all residents.

Environmental Matters

We believe that our properties are in material compliance in all material respects with all federal, state and
local ordinances and regulations regarding hazardous or toxic substances. We are not aware of any environmental
condition that we believe would have a material adverse effect on our capital expenditures, earnings or competitive
position (before consideration of any potential insurance coverage). Nevertheless, it is possible that there are
material environmental conditions and liabilities of which we are unaware. Moreover, no assurances can be given
that (i) future laws, ordinances or regulations or future interpretations of existing requirements will not impose any
material environmental liability or (ii) the current environmental condition of our properties has not been or will not
be affected by tenants and occupants of our properties, by the condition of properties in the vicinity of our properties
or by third parties unrelated to us. See “Risk Factors—Risks Associated with Our Operations—We could incur
significant costs related to environmental issues which could adversely affect our results of operations through
increased compliance costs or our financial condition if we become subject to a significant liability” in this
Form 10-K for further discussion.

Insurance

We carry comprehensive liability, fire, extended coverage and rental loss insurance on all of our majority-
owned properties. We believe the policy specifications, insured limits of these policies and self insurance reserves
are adequate and appropriate. There are, however, certain types of losses, such as lease and other contract claims,
which generally are not insured. We anticipate that we will review our insurance coverage and policies from time to
time to determine the appropriate levels of coverage, but we cannot predict at this time if we will be able to obtain or
maintain full coverage at reasonable costs in the future. In addition, as of December 31, 2009, we are self insured up
to $0.8 million, $1.0 million and $1.8 million for general liability, workers’ compensation and property insurance,
respectively. We are also self insured for health insurance and responsible for amounts up to $135,000 per claim and
up to $1.0 million per person. Our policy for all self insured risk is to accrue for expected losses on reported claims
and for estimated losses related to claims incurred but not reported as of the end of the reporting period. See “Risk
Factors — Risks Associated with Our Operations — Uninsured or underinsured losses could adversely affect our
financial condition.”
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Employees

As of December 31, 2009, CRLP employed 1,037 persons, including on-site property employees who
provide services for the properties that we own and/or manage. The Trust employs all employees through CRLP and
its subsidiaries.

Tax Status

We are considered a corporation for federal income tax purposes. We qualify as a REIT and generally will
not be subject to federal income tax to the extent we distribute our REIT taxable income to our shareholders. REITs
are subject to a number of organizational and operational requirements. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable
year, we will be subject to federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates. We may be subject to
certain state and local taxes on our income and property. Distributions to shareholders are generally partially taxable
as ordinary income and long-term capital gains, and partially non-taxable as return of capital. During 2009, our total
common distributions had the following overall characteristics: ' ‘

Distribution Per

0.00%

In addition, our financial statements include the operations of a taxable REIT subsidiary, CPSI, which is not
entitled to a dividends paid deduction and is subject to federal, state and local income taxes. CPSI provides property
management, construction management and development services for joint ventures and third party owned
properties and administrative services to us. In addition, we perform all of our for-sale residential and condominium
conversion activities through CPSI. We generally reimburse CPSI for payroll and other costs incurred in providing
services to us. All inter-company transactions are eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
We recognized an income tax expense (benefit) of $(7.9) million, $0.8 million and $(7.4) million in 2009, 2008 and
2007, respectively, related to the taxable income of CPSI.

Available Information

Our website address is www.colonialprop.com. The information contained on our website is not incorporated
by reference into this report and such information should not be considered a part of this report. You can obtain on
our website in the “Investors” section, free of charge, a copy of our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to these reports as soon as reasonably practicable after
such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC. Also available on our website, free of charge, are
our corporate governance guidelines, the charters of the governance, audit and executive compensation committees
of the Trust’s Board of Trustees and our code of ethics (which applies to all trustees and employees, including our
principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer). If you are not able to access
our website, the information is available in print form to any shareholder who should request the information
directly from us at 1-800-645-3917.
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Executive Officers of the Company
The following is a biographical summary of our executive officers:

Thomas H. Lowder, 60, was re-appointed Chief Executive Officer effective December 30, 2008.
Mr. Lowder has served as Chairman of the Trust’s Board of Trustees since the Company’s formation in July 1993.
Additionally he served as President and Chief Executive Officer from July 1993 until April 2006. Mr. Lowder
became President and Chief Executive Officer of Colonial Properties, Inc., the Company’s predecessor, in 1976, and
has been actively engaged in the acquisition, development, management, leasing and sale of multifamily, office and
retail properties for the Company and its predecessors. He presently serves as a member of the Board of the
following organizations: Birmingham-Southern College, Crippled Children’s Foundation, Children’s Hospital of
Alabama, the University of Alabama Health Services Foundation and the National Association of Real Estate
Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”). Mr. Lowder is a past board member of The Community Foundation of Greater
Birmingham, past chairman of the Birmingham Area Chapter of the American Red Cross, past chairman of
Children’s Hospital of Alabama and he served as chairman of the 2001 United Way Campaign for Central Alabama
and Chairman of the Board in 2007. He graduated with honors from Auburn University with a Bachelor of Science
Degree. Mr. Lowder holds an honorary Doctorate of Humanities from University of Alabama at Birmingham and a
honorary Doctorate of Law from Birmingham Southern College. Mr. Lowder is the brother of James K. Lowder, one
of the Company’s trustees.

C. Reynolds Thompson, I11, 46, has served as President and Chief Financial Officer since December 30,
2008. Mr. Thompson previously served in the following additional positions within the company since being hired
in February 1997: Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Investment Officer, Executive Vice
President, Office Division, Senior Vice President, Office Acquisitions, and Trustee. Responsibilities within these
positions included overseeing management, leasing, acquisitions, and development within operating divisions;
investment strategies; market research; due diligence; merger and acquisitions; joint venture development and cross-
divisional acquisitions. Prior to joining Colonial Properties Trust, Mr. Thompson worked for CarrAmerica Realty
Corporation, a then-publicly traded office REIT, in office building acquisitions and due diligence. Mr. Thompson
serves on the Board of Visitors for the University of Alabama Culverhouse College of Commerce and Business
Administration, the Board of Directors of Birmingham Business Alliance, and the Board of Directors of United Way
of Central Alabama. Mr. Thompson holds a Bachelor of Science Degree from Washington and Lee University.

Paul F. Earle, 52, has been our Chief Operating Officer since January 2008, and is responsible for all
operations of the properties owned and/or managed by the Company. From May 1997 to January 2008, Mr. Earle
served as Executive Vice President-Multifamily Division and was responsible for management of all multifamily
properties owned and/or managed by us. He joined us in 1991 and has previously served as Vice President —
Acquisitions, as well as Senior Vice President — Multifamily Division. Mr. Earle is past Chairman of the Alabama
Multifamily Council and is an active member of the National Apartment Association. He also is a board member
and is on the Executive Committee of the National Multifamily Housing Council. He is past President and current
Board member of Big Brothers/Big Sisters. Before joining us, Mr. Earle was the President and Chief Operating
Officer of American Residential Management, Inc., Executive Vice President of Great Atlantic Management, Inc.
and Senior Vice President of Balcor Property Management, Inc.

John P. Rigrish, 61, has been our Chief Administrative Officer since August 1998 and is responsible for the
supervision of Corporate Governance, Information Technology, Human Resources and Employee Services. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Rigrish worked for BellSouth Corporation in Corporate Administration and Services.

Mr. Rigrish holds a Bachelor’s degree from Samford University and did his postgraduate study at Birmingham-
Southern College. He previously served on the Board of Directors of Senior Citizens, Inc. in Nashville, Tennessee.
Mr. Rigrish is a current member and previous Chairman of the American Red Cross Board of Directors-Alabama
Chapter. He also serves on the City of Hoover Veteran’s Committee, John Carroll Educational Foundation Board of
Directors, and the Edward Lee Norton Board of Advisors at Birmingham-Southern College.

Jerry A. Brewer, 38, has been our Executive Vice President, Finance since January 2008, and is responsible
for all Corporate Finance and Investor Relations activities of the Company. Mr. Brewer previously served as our
Senior Vice President — Corporate Treasury since September 2004. Mr. Brewer joined the Company in February
1999 and served as Vice President of Financial Reporting for the Company until September 2004 and was
responsible for overseeing all of the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and internal
and external consolidated financial reporting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Brewer worked for Arthur
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Andersen LLP, serving on independent audits of public and private entity financial statements, mergers and
acquisitions due diligence, business risk assessment and registration statement work for public debt and stock
offerings. Mr. Brewer is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Alabama State
Board of Public Accountancy and Auburn University School of Accountancy Advisory Council. He is a Certified
Public Accountant, and holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from Auburn University and a Masters of
Business Administration from the University of Alabama at Birmingham.

Bradley P. Sandidge, 40, was appointed Executive Vice President, Accounting effective January 30, 2009,
and is responsible for all accounting operations of the Company to include Internal Control functions, compliance
with generally accepted accounting principles, SEC financial reporting, regulatory agency compliance and reporting
and management reporting. Mr. Sandidge previously served as our Senior Vice President, Multifamily Accounting
and Finance, since joining the Company in 2004, and was responsible for overseeing the accounting operations of
the Company’s multifamily operations. Mr. Sandidge is a Certified Public Accountant with over 15 years of real
estate experience. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Sandidge served as Tax Manager for the North American and
Asian portfolios of Archon Group, L.P. / Goldman Sachs from January 2001 through June 2004, and worked in the
tax real estate practice of Deloitte & Touche LLP from January 1994 through October 1999. Mr. Sandidge holds a
Bachelor’s degree in accounting and a Master’s degree in tax accounting from the University of Alabama.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, set forth
below are cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause actual events or results to differ
materially from any forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of us, whether oral or written. We wish to
ensure that any forward-looking statements are accompanied by meaningful cautionary statements in order to
maximize to the fullest extent possible the protections of the safe harbor established in the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Accordingly, any such statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to, and
are accompanied by, the following important factors that could cause actual events or results to differ materially
from our forward-looking statements. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition
or results of operations could be negatively affected, and the trading price of the Trust ’s common shares could
decline.

These forward-looking statements are based on management’s present expectations and beliefs about future
events. As with any projection or forecast, these statements are inherently susceptible to uncertainty and changes in
circumstances. There may be additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem
immaterial that also may impair our business operations. You should not consider this list to be a complete
statement of all potential risks or uncertainties.

Risks Associated with Real Estate

Recession in the United States and the related downturn in the housing and real estate markets have
adversely affected and may continue to adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

The United States economyis believed to have entered a recession sometime during 2008. The trends in both
the real estate industry and the broader United States economy continue to be unfavorable and. continue to adversely
affect our revenues. The downturn in the U.S. economy and related reduction in spending, falling home prices and
high unemployment, together with the price volatility, dislocations and liquidity disruptions in the financial and
credit markets could, among other things, impede the ability of our residents at our multifamily properties and our
tenants at our commercial properties and other parties with which we conduct business to perform their contractual
obligations, which could lead to an increase in defaults by our residents, tenants and other contracting parties, which
could adversely affect our revenues. Furthermore, our ability to lease our properties at favorable rates, or at all, is
adversely affected by the increase in supply and deterioration in the multifamily market stemming from ongoing
recession and is dependent upon the overall level of spending in the economy, which is adversely affected by,
among other things, job losses and unemployment levéls, recession, personal debt levels, the downturn in the
housing market, stock market volatility and uncertainty about the future. With regard to our ability to lease our
multifamily properties, the increasing rental of excess for-sale condominiums, which increases the supply of
multifamily units and housing alternatives, may further reduce our ability to lease our multifamily units and further
depress rental rates in certain markets. With regard to for-sale residential properties, the market for our for-sale
residential properties depends on an active demand for new for-sale housing and high consumer confidence.
Continuing decline in demand, exacerbated by tighter credit standards for home buyers and foreclosures, has further
contributed to an oversupply of housing alternatives adversely affecting the timing of sales and price at which we
are able to sell our for-sale residential properties and thereby adversely affecting our profits from for-sale residential
properties. We cannot predict how long demand and other factors in the real estate market will remain unfavorable,
but if the markets remain weak or deteriorate further, our ability to lease our properties, our ability to increase or
maintain rental rates in certain markets and the pace of condominium sales and closings and/or the related sales
prices may continue to weaken during 2010.

We face numerous risks associated with the real estate industry that could adversely affect our results of
operations through. decreased revenues or increased costs.

As a real estate company, we are subject to various changes in real estate conditions, particularly in the
Sunbelt region where our properties are concentrated, and any negative trends in such real estate conditions may
adversely affect our results of operations through decreased revenues or increased costs. These conditions include:

«  worsening of national and regional economic conditions, such as those we are currently experiencing as a
result of the ongoing recession as described above, as well as the deteriorating local economic conditions in
our principal market areas;

e - availability of financing;
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* the inability of residents and tenants to pay rent;

J the existence and quality of the competition, such as the attractiveness of our propetty as compared to our
competitors’ properties based on considerations such as convenience of location, rental rates, amenities and
safety record;

. increased operating costs, including increased real property taxes, maintenance, insurance and utilities
costs;

*  weather conditions that may increase or decrease energy costs and other weather-related expenses;

*  oversupply of multifamily, commercial space or single-family housing or a reduction in demand for real
estate in the markets in which our properties are located;

*  afavorable interest rate environment that may result in a significant number of potential residents of our
multifamily apartment communities deciding to purchase homes instead of renting;

*  rent control or stabilization laws, or other laws regulating rental housing, which could prevent us from
raising rents to offset increases in operating costs; and

o changing trends in the demand by consumers for merchandise offered by retailers conducting business at
our retail properties.

Moreover, other factors may affect our results of operations adversely, including changes in government
regulations and other laws, rules and regulations governing real estate, zoning or taxes, changes in interest rate
levels, the availability of financing and potential liability under environmental and other laws and other unforeseen
events, most of which are discussed elsewhere in the following risk factors. Any or all of these factors could
materially adversely affect our results of operations through decreased revenues or increased costs.

Increased competition and increased affordability of residential homes could limit our ability to retain our
residents, lease apartment homes or increase or maintain rents.

Our multifamily apartment communities compete with numerous housing alternatives in attracting residents,
including other multifamily apartment communities and single-family rental homes, as well as owner occupied
single- and multi-family homes. Competitive housing in a particular area and an increase in the affordability of
owner occupied single and multi-family homes due to, among other things, declining housing prices, mortgage
interest rates and tax incentives and government programs to promote home ownership, could adversely affect our
ability to retain residents, lease apartment homes and increase or maintain rents.

We are subject to significant regulations, which could adversely affect our results of operations through
increased costs and/or an inability to pursue business opportunities.

Local zoning and use laws, environmental statutes and other governmental requirements may restrict our
development, expansion, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities. These regulations may prevent or delay us from
taking advantage of economic opportunities. Failure to comply with these requirements could result in the
imposition of fines, awards to private litigants of damages against us, substantial litigation costs and substantial
costs of remediation or compliance. In addition, we cannot predict what requirements may be enacted in the future
or that such a requirement will not increase our costs of regulatory compliance or prohibit us from pursuing business
opportunities that could be profitable to us.

Real estate investments are illiquid, and therefore, we may not be able to sell our Dproperties in response to
economic changes which could adversely affect our results of operations or financial condition.

Real estate investments are relatively illiquid generally, and may become even more illiquid during periods
of economic downturn. As a result, we may not be able to sell a property or properties quickly or on favorable terms
in response to changes in the economy or other conditions when it otherwise may be prudent to do so. This inability
to respond quickly to changes in the performance of our properties could adversely affect our results of operations if
we cannot sell an unprofitable property. In the case of our for-sale residential properties, our inability to sell units in
a timely manner could adversely affect our financial condition, among other things, by causing us to hold properties
for a longer period than is otherwise desirable and requiring us to record impairment charges in connection with the
properties (see Note 4 — “Impairment” to our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP
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“included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K). Our financial condition could also be adversely affected if we were,
for example, unable to sell one or more of our properties in order to meet our debt obligations upon maturity. In
addition, the tax laws applicable to REITSs require that we hold our properties for investment, rather than primarily
for sale in the ordinary course of business, which may cause us to forego or defer sales of properties that otherwise
would be in our best interest. Therefore, we may be unable to vary our portfolio promptly in response to market
conditions, which may adversely affect our financial position.

Compliance or failure to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Fair Housing Act could
result in substantial costs.

Under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, or ADA, and the Fair Housing Amendment Act of 1988,
or FHAA, and various state and local laws, all public accommodations and commercial facilities must meet certain
federal requirements related to access and use by disabled persons. Compliance with these requirements could
involve removal of structural barriers from certain disabled persons’ entrances. Other federal, state and local laws
may require modifications to or restrict further renovations of our properties with respect to such means of access.
Noncompliance with the ADA, FHAA or related laws or regulations could result in the imposition of fines by
government authorities, awards to private litigants of damages against us, substantial litigation costs and the
incurrence of additional costs associated with bringing the properties into compliance.

Risks Associated with Our Operations

Our revenues are significantly influenced by demand for multifamily properties generally, and a decrease
in such demand will likely have a greater adverse effect on our revenues than if we owned a more diversified real
estate portfolio.

Our portfolio is focused predominately on multifamily properties. As a result, we are subject to risks inherent
in investments in a single industry. A decrease in the demand for multifamily properties would likely have a greater
adverse effect on our rental revenues than if we owned a more diversified real estate portfolio. Resident demand at
multifamily properties has been and could continue to be adversely affected by the downturn in the U.S. economy
and the related reduction in spending, reduced home prices and high unemployment, together with the price
volatility, dislocations and liquidity disruptions the in financial and credit markets, as well as the rate of household
formation or population growth in our markets, changes in interest rates or changes in supply of, or demand for,
similar or competing multifamily properties in an area. To the extent that any of these conditions occur and continue
to occur, they are likely to affect occupancy and market rents at multifamily properties, which could cause a
decrease in our rental revenue. Any such decrease could impair our ability to satisfy our substantial debt service
obligations or make distributions to our shareholders.

Our ability to dispose of our existing inventory of condominium and for-sale residential assets could
adversely affect our results of operations.

To help implement our plans to strengthen the balance sheet and deleverage the company, in January 2009,
the Trust’s Board of Trustees decided to accelerate plans to dispose of our for-sale residential assets inciuding
condominium conversions and land held for future for-sale residential and mixed-use developments until we
determine that the current economic environment has sufficiently improved. As of December 31, 2009, we have 52
for sale-residential units remaining and 223 residential lots for sale. Exiting these markets may expose us to the
following risks:

«  local real estate market conditions, such as oversupply or reduction in demand, may result in reduced or
fluctuating sales;

o for-sale properties acquired for development usually generate little or no cash flow until completion of
development and sale of a significant number of homes or condominium units and may experience
operating deficits after the date of completion and until such homes or condominium units are sold;

e we may abandon development or conversion opportunities that we have already begun to explore, and we
may fail to recover expenses already incurred in connection with exploring any such opportunities;

e we may be unable to close on sales of individual units under contract;
«  buyers may be unable to qualify for financing;

o sales prices may be lower than anticipated;
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*  competition from other condominiums and other types of residential housing may result in reduced or
fluctuating sales; :

* . - we could be subject to liability claims from condominium associations or others asserting that construction
performed was defective, resulting in litigation and/or settlement discussions; and

*  we may be unable to attract sales prices with respect to our for-sale assets that compensate us for our costs
(which may result in impairment charges).

After reevaluating our operating strategy in light of the ongoing downturn in the U.S. economy and credit
crisis, we recorded a non cash impairment charge of $116.9 million in the fourth quarter of 2008 largely attributable
to our condominium and for-sale residential assets. In addition, during 2009, we recorded $12.3 million of non-cash
impairment charges related to certain for-sale residential units, 2 commercial development and certain land parcels.
See Item 1, “Impairment,” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information regarding this impairment
charge. If market conditions do not improve or if there is further market deterioration, it may impact the number of
projects we can sell, the timing of the sales and/or the prices at which we can sell them. If we are unable to sell
projects, we may incur additional impairment charges on projects previously impaired as well as on projects not
currently impaired but for which indicators of impairment may exist, which would decrease the value of our assets
as reflected on our balance sheet and adversely affect our shareholders’ equity. There can be no assurances of the
amount or pace of future for-sale residential sales and closings, particularly given current market conditions.

Our properties may not generate sufficient rental income to pay our expenses if we are unable to lease our
new properties or renew leases or re-lease space at our existing properties as leases expire, which may adversely
affect our operating results.

“We derive the majority of our income from residents and tenants who lease space from us at our properties.
A number of factors may adversely affect our ability to attract residents and tenants at favorable rental rates and
generate sufficient income, including:

. local conditions such as an oversupply of, or reduction in demand for, multifamily or commercial
properties; ‘

* the attractiveness of our properties to residents, shoppers and tenants;
*  decreases in market rental rates; and
e our ability to collect rent from our residents and tenants.

If we cannot generate sufficient income to pay our expenses, maintain our properties and service our debt as a result
of any of these factors, our operating results may be adversely affected. Furthermore, the ongoing deterioration of
the U:S. economy and the related reduction in spending, falling home prices and high unemployment, together with
the price volatility, dislocations and liquidity distuptions in the financial and credit markets could, among other
things, impede the ability of our residents or tenants to perform their contractual obligations, which could lead to an
increase in defaults by residents and tenants. ,

The residents at our multifamily properties generally enter into leases with an initial term ranging from six
months to one year. Tenants at our office properties generally enter into leases with an initial term ranging from
three to ten years and tenants at our retail properties generally enter into leases with an initial term ranging from one
to ten years. As leases expire at our existing properties, residents and tenants may elect not to renew them. Even if
our residents and tenants do renew or if we can re-lease the space, the terms of renewal or re-leasing, including the
cost of required renovations may be less favorable than current lease terms. In addition, for new properties, we may
be unable to attract enough residents and tenants and the occupancy rates and rents may not be sufficient to make the
property profitable. If we are unable to renew the leases or re-lease the space at our existing properties promptly
and/or lease the space at our new properties, or if the rental rates upon renewal or re-leasing at existing properties
are significantly lower than expected rates, or if there is an increase in tenant defaults, our operating results will be
negatively affected. '
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We may not be able to control our operating costs or our expenses may remain constant or increase, even
if our revenues decrease, causing our results of operations to be adversely affected.

Factors that may adversely affect our ability to control operating costs include:

« the need to pay for insurance and other operating costs, including real estate taxes, which could increase
over time; .

o the need periodically to repair, renovate and re-lease space;

« the cost of compliance with governmental regulation, including zoning and tax laws;
o the potential for liability under applicable laws;

o interest rate levels; and

* the availability of financing.

If our operating costs increase as a result of any of the foregoing factors, our results of operations may be adversely
affected.

The expense of owning and operating a property is not necessarily reduced when circumstances such as
market factors and competition cause a reduction in income from the property. As a result, if revenues drop, we may
not be able to reduce our expenses accordingly. Costs associated with real estate investments, such as real estate
taxes, loan payments and maintenance generally will not be reduced even if a property is not fully occupied or other
circumstances cause our revenues to decrease. If a property is mortgaged and we are unable to meet the mortgage
payments, the lender could foreclose on the mortgage and take the property, resulting in a further reduction in net
income.

We are subject to increased exposure to economic and other factors due to the concentration of our
properties in the Sunbelt region, and economic downturns, natural disasters or acts of terrorism in the Sunbelt
region could adversely affect our results of operations or financial condition.

Substantially all of our properties are located in the Sunbelt region of the United States. In particular; we
derived approximately 84.3% of our net operating income in 2009 from top quartile cities located in the Sunbelt
region. We are therefore subject to increased exposure to economic and other factors specific to these geographic
areas. If the Sunbelt region of the United States, and in particular the areas of or near Birmingham, AL; Atlanta, GA;
Orlando, FL; Charlotte, NC and Dallas/Fort Worth, TX, experiences a recession or other slowdown in the economy,
a natural disaster or an act of terrorism, our results of operations and financial condition may be negatively affected
as a result of decreased revenues, increased costs or damage or loss of assets.

Tenant bankruptcies and downturns in tenants’ businesses may adversely affect our operating results by
decreasing our revenues. ' ‘

At any time, a tenant may experience a downturn in its business that may weaken its financial condition.
Additionally, the ongoing deterioration in the U.S. economy and related reduction in spending, reduced home prices
and high unemployment, together with the price volatility, dislocations and liquidity disruptions in the financial and
credit markets could, among other things, adversely affect our tenants financially and impede their ability to perform
their contractual obligations. As a result, our tenants may delay lease commencement, cease or defer making rental
payments or declare bankruptcy. A bankruptcy filing by or relating to one of our tenants would bar all efforts by us
to collect pre-bankruptcy debts from that tenant, or their property, unless we receive an order permitting us to do so

~ from the bankruptcy court. A tenant bankruptcy could delay our efforts to collect past due balances under the
relevant leases, and could ultimately preclude collection of these sums. If a lease is assumed by the tenant in
bankruptcy, all pre-bankruptcy balances due under the lease must be paid to us in full. However, if a lease is rejected

by a tenant in bankruptcy, we would have only a general unsecured claim for damages. Any unsecured claim we
hold may be paid only to the extent that funds are available and only in the same percentage as is paid to all other
holders of unsecured claims, and there are restrictions under bankruptcy laws that limit the amount of the claim we
can make if a lease is rejected. As a result, it is likely that we will recover substantially less than the full value of any
unsecured claims we hold from a bankrupt tenant. The bankruptcy or financial difficulties of any of our tenants may
negatively affect our operating results by decreasing our revenues.
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Risks associated with the property management, leasing and brokerage businesses could adversely affect
our results of operations by decreasing our revenues. : '

In addition to the risks we face as a result of our ownership of real estate, we face risks relating to the
property management, leasing and brokerage businesses of CPSI, including risks that:

. management contracts or service agreements with third-party owners will be terminated and lost to
competitors;
. contracts will not be renewed upon expiration or will not be available for renewal on terms consistent

with current terms; and
. leasing and brokerage activity generally may decline.
Each of these developments could adversely affect our results of operations by decreasing our revenues.

We could incur significant costs related to environmental issues which could adversely affect our results
of operations through increased compliance costs or our financial condition if we become subject to a significant
liability.

Under federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment, a current or
previous owner or operator of real property, and parties that generate or transport hazardous substances that are
disposed of on real property, may be liable for the costs of investigating and remediating hazardous substances on or
under or released from the property and for damages to natural resources. The federal Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation & Liability Act, and similar state laws, generally impose liability on a joint
and several basis, regardless of whether the owner, operator or other responsible party knew of or was at fault for the
release or presence of hazardous substances. In connection with the ownership or operation of our properties, we
could be liable in the future for costs associated with investigation and remediation of hazardous substances released
at or from such properties. The costs of any required remediation and related liability as to any property could be
substantial under these laws and could exceed the value of the property and/or our assets. The presence of hazardous
substances or the failure to properly remediate those substances may result in our being liable for damages suffered
by a third party for personal injury, property damage, cleanup costs, or otherwise and may adversely affect our
ability to sell or rent a property or to borrow funds using the property as collateral. In addition, environmental laws
may impose restrictions on the manner in which we use our properties or operate our business, and these restrictions
may require expenditures for compliance. The restrictions themselves may change from time to time, and these
changes may result in additional expenditures in order to achieve compliance. We cannot assure you that a material
environmental claim or compliance obligation will not arise in the future. The costs of defending against any claims
of liability, of remediating a contaminated property, or of complying with future environmental requirements could
be substantial and affect our operating results. In addition, if a judgment is obtained against us or we otherwise
become subject to a significant environmental liability, our financial condition may be adversely affected.

During 2007, we engaged in the expansion of our Wal-Mart center at Colonial Promenade Winter Haven in
Orlando, Florida. We received notice that the property that was purchased for the expansion contained
environmental contamination that required remediation. We agreed to pay $0.9 million towards the remediation,
which was paid during 2007. The expansion was completed in 2008, but we are still awaiting a “no further action”
letter from the relevant regulatory agency. In 2009, we disposed of Colonial Promenade Winter Haven, but remain
equally responsible with Wal-Mart for obtaining a “no further action” letter on the Wal-Mart parcel. In addition, we
are obligated, using reasonable commercial efforts, to obtain a “no further action” letter for the two adjoining parcels
on either side of the Wal-Mart parcel. '

Costs associated with addressing indoor air quality issues, moisture infiltration and resulting mold
remediation may be costly.

As a general matter, concern about indoor exposure to mold or other air contaminants has been increasing as
such exposure has been alleged to have a variety of adverse effects on health. As a result, there have been a number
of lawsuits in our industry against owners and managers of apartment communities relating to indoor air quality,
moisture infiltration and resulting mold. The terms of our property and general liability policies generally exclude
certain mold-related claims. Should an uninsured loss arise against us, we would be required to use our funds to
resolve the issue, including litigation costs. We make no assurance that liabilities resulting from indoor air quality,
moisture infiltration and the presence of or exposure to mold will not have a future impact on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

22



As the owner or operator of real property, we could become subject to liability for asbestos-containing
building materials in the buildings on our properties.

Some of our properties may contain asbestos-containing materials. Environmental laws typically require that
owners or operators of buildings with asbestos-containing building materials properly manage and maintain these
materials, adequately inform or train those who may come in contact with asbestos and undertake special
precautions, including removal or other abatement, in the event that asbestos is disturbed during building renovation
or demolition. These laws may impose fines and penalties on building owners or operators for failure to comply with
these requirements. In addition, third parties may be entitled to seek recovery from owners or operators for personal
injury associated with exposure to asbestos-containing building materials.

Uninsured or underinsured losses could adversely affect our financial condition.

As of December 31, 2009, we are self insured up to $0.8 million, $1.0 million and $1.8 million for general
liability, workers’ compensation and property insurance, respectively. We are also self insured for health insurance
and responsible for amounts-up to $135,000 per claim and up to $1.0 million per person, according to plan policy
limits. If the actual costs incurred to cover such uninsured claims are significantly greater than our budgeted costs,
our financial condition will be adversely affected.

We carry comprehensive liability, fire, extended coverage and rental loss insurance in amounts that we
believe are in line with coverage customarily obtained by owners of similar properties and appropriate given the
relative risk of loss and the cost of the coverage. There are, however, certain types of losses, such as lease and other
contract claims, acts of war or terrorism, acts of God, and in some cases, earthquakes, hurricanes and flooding that
generally are not insured because such coverage is not available or it is not available at commercially reasonable
rates. Should an uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insured limits occur, we could lose all or a portion of the capital
we have invested in the damaged property, as well as the anticipated future revenue from the property. The costs
associated with property and casualty renewals may be higher than anticipated. We cannot predict at this time if in
the future we will be able to obtain full coverage at a reasonable cost. Inflation, changes in building codes and
ordinances, environmental considerations, and other factors also might make it impractical or undesirable to use
insurance proceeds to replace a property after it has been damaged or destroyed. In addition, if the damaged
properties are subject to recourse indebtedness, we would continue to be liable for the indebtedness, even if these
properties were irreparably damaged.

We may be unable to develop new properties or redevelop existing properties successfully, which could
adversely affect our results of operations due to unexpected costs, delays and other contingencies.

Our operating strategy historically has included development of new properties, as well as expansion and/or
redevelopment of existing properties. Even though we decided in January 2009 to postpone future development
activities (including previously identified future development projects) until we determine that the current economic
environment has sufficiently improved, we have completed all but one of our developments that were in process
during 2009 and expect to reengage in the development of our Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac development
during 2010. Development activity may be conducted through wholly-owned affiliates or through joint ventures.
However, there are significant risks associated with such development activities in addition to those generally
associated with the ownership and operation of developed properties. These risks include the following:

e we may be unable to obtain, or face delays in obtaining, necessary zoning, land-use, building,
occupancy, and other required governmental permits and authorizations, which could result in increased
development costs and/or lower than expected leases;

e local real estate market conditions, such as oversupply or reduction in demand, may result in reduced or
fluctuating rental rates;

«  we may incur development costs for a property that exceed original estimates due to increased
materials, labor or other costs, changes in development plans or unforeseen environmental conditions,
which could make completion of the property more costly or uneconomical;

+  land, insurance and construction costs continue to increase in our markets and may continue to increase
in the future and we may be unable to attract rents that compensate for these increases in costs;

23



*  we may abandon development opportunities that we have already begun to explore, and we may fail to
recover expenses already incurred in connection with exploring any such opportunities;

*  rental rates and occupancy levels may be lower than anticipated;

*  changes in applicable zoning and land use laws may require us to abandon projects prior to their
completion, resulting in the loss of development costs incurred up to the time of abandonment; and

. we may expetience late completion because of construction delays, delays in the receipt of zoning,
occupancy and other approvals or other factors outside of our control.

In addition, if a project is delayed, certain residents and tenants may have the right to terminate their leases.
Furthermore, from time to time we may utilize tax-exempt bond financing through the issuance of community
development and special assessment district bonds to fund development costs. Under the terms of such bond
financings, we may be responsible for paying assessments on the underlying property to meet debt service
obligations on the bonds until the underlying property is sold. Accordingly, if we are unable to complete or sell a
development property subject to such bond financing and we are forced to hold the property longer than we
originally projected, we may be obligated to continue to pay assessments to meet debt service obligations under the
bonds. If we are unable to pay the assessments, a default will occur under the bonds and the property could be
foreclosed upon. Any one or more of these risks may cause us to incur unexpected development costs, which would
negatively affect our results of operations.

Our joint venture investments could be adversely affected by our lack of sole decision-making authority,
our reliance on our joint venture partners’ financial condition, any disputes that may arise between us. and our
Joint venture partners and our exposure to potential losses from the actions of our joint venture partners.

As of December 31, 2009, we had $17.4 million of equity invested in joint ventures. See Note 9 —
“Investment in Partially-Owned Entities and Other Arrangements” in our Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. Our investments in these joint ventures
involve risks not customarily associated with our wholly-owned properties, including the following:

*  we share decision-making authority with some of our joint venture partners regarding major decisions
affecting the ownership or operation of the joint venture and the joint venture properties, such as the _
acquisition of properties, the sale of the properties or the making of-additional capital contributions for the
benefit of the properties, which may prevent us from taking actions that are opposed by those joint venture
partners;

»  prior consent of our joint venture partners is required for a sale or transfer to a third party of our interests in
the joint venture, which restricts our ability to dispose of our interest in the joint venture;

e . our joint venture partners might become bankrupt or fail to fund their share of required capital
contributions, which may delay construction or development of a joint venture property or increase our
financial commitment to the joint venture;

*  our joint venture partners may have business interests or goals with respect to the joint venture properties
that conflict with our business interests and goals, which could increase the likelihood of disputes regarding
the ownership, management or disposition of such properties;

U disputes may develop with our joint venture partners over decisions affecting the joint venture properties or
the joint venture, which may result in litigation or arbitration that would increase our expenses and distract
our officers and/or trustees from focusing their time and effort on our business, and possibly disrupt the
day-to-day operations of the property such as by delaying the implementation of important decisions until
the conflict or dispute is resolved (see, for example, the discussion under Note 19 — “Commitments,
Contingencies, Guarantees and Other Arrangements” to our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Trust and CRLP included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K);

*  ourjoint venture partners may be unsuccessful in refinancing or replacing existing mortgage indebtedness,
or may choose not to do so, which could adversely affect the value of our joint venture interest;
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e we may suffer losses as a result of the actions of our joint venture partners with respect to our joint venture
investments; and

s our joint venture partner may elect to sell or transfer its interests in the joint venture to a third party, which
may result in our loss of management and leasing responsibilities and fees that we currently receive from
the joint venture properties.

During 2009, certain of our unconsolidated joint ventures exercised options to extend an aggregate of
approximately $48.5 million of outstanding mortgage debt from 2009 to 2010. In addition, one of our
unconsolidated joint ventures disposed of its only property, a 280-unit multifamily apartment community, a portion
of the proceeds of which were used to repay an outstanding collateralized $14.0 million mortgage loan on the
property (of which our pro rata share was $2.8 million). We intend to cooperate with our joint venture partners in
connection with their efforts to refinance and/or replace any outstanding joint venture indebtedness (which may also
include, for example, property dispositions), which cooperation may include additional capital contributions from
time to time. There can be no assurance that our joint ventures will be successful in refinancing and/or replacing
such existing debt at maturity or otherwise. The failure to refinance and/or restructure such debt could materially
adversely affect the value of our joint venture interests and therefore the value of our joint venture investments,
which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our results of operations could be adversely affected if we are required to perform under various financial
guarantees that we have provided with respect to certain of our joint ventures and retail developments.

From time to time, we guarantee portions of the indebtedness of certain of our unconsolidated joint ventures.
See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Guarantees and Other Arrangements” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, for a description of the guarantees that
we have provided with respect to the indebtedness of certain of our joint ventures as of December 31, 2009. From
time to time, in connection with certain retail developments, we receive funding from municipalities for
infrastructure costs through the issuance of bonds that are repaid primarily from sales tax revenues generated from
the tenants at each respective development. In some instances, we guarantee the shortfall, if any, of tax revenues to
the debt service requirements on these bonds. If we are required to fund any amounts related to any of these
guarantees, our results of operations and cash flows could be adversely affected. In addition, we may not be able to
ultimately recover funded amounts.

 Competition for acquisitions could reduce the number of acquisition opportunities available to us and
result in increased prices for properties, which could adversely affect our return on properties we purchase.

We compete with other major real estate investors with significant capital for attractive investment
opportunities in multifamily and commercial properties. These competitors include publicly traded REITs, private
REITs, domestic and foreign financial institutions, life insurance companies, pension trusts, trust funds, investment
banking firms, private institutional investment funds and national, regional and local real estate investors. This
competition could increase the demand for multifamily properties, and therefore reduce the number of suitable
acquisition opportunities available to us and increase the prices paid for such acquisition properties. As a result, our
expected return from investment in these properties would deteriorate.

Acquired properties may expose us to unknown liability.

We may acquire properties subject to liabilities and without any recourse, or with only limited recourse,
against the prior owners or other third parties with respect to unknown liabilities that were not discovered during due
diligence. As a result, if a liability were asserted against us based upon ownership of those properties, we might have
to pay substantial sums to settle or contest it, which could adversely affect our results of operations and cash flow.
Unknown liabilities with respect to acquired properties might include:

« liabilities for clean-up of undisclosed environmental contamination;
«  claims by tenants, vendors or other persons against the former owners of the properties;
. liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business; and

o claims for indemnification by general partners, directors, officers and others indemnified by the former
owners of the properties.
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We may not be able to achieve the anticipated financial and operating results from our acquisitions, which
would adversely affect our operating results.

We will acquire multifamily properties only if they meet our criteria and we believe that they will enhance
our future financial performance and the value of our portfolio. Our belief, however, is based on and is subject to
risks, uncertainties and other factors, many of which are forward-looking and are uncertain in nature or are beyond
our control. In addition, some of these properties may have unknown characteristics or deficiencies or may not
complement our portfolio of existing properties. As a result, some properties may be worth less or may generate less
revenue than, or simply not perform as well as, we believed at the time of the acquisition, thereby negatively
affecting our operating results.

Failure to succeed in new markets may limit our growth.

We may from time to time commence development activities or make acquisitions outside of our existing
market areas if economic conditions warrant and appropriate opportunities arise. Our historical experience in our
existing markets does not ensure that we will be able to operate successfully in new markets. We may be exposed to
a variety of risks if we choose to enter new markets. These risks include, among others: ’

*  aninability to evaluate accurately local apartment or for-sale residential housing market conditions and
local economies;

*  aninability to obtain land for development or to identify appropriate acquisition opportunities;
*  aninability to hire and retain key personnel; and

. lack of familiarity with local governmental and permitting procedures.

Risks Associated with Our Indebtedness and Financing Activities

We have substantial indebtedness and our cash flow may not be sufficient to make required payments on
our indebtedness or repay our indebtedness as it matures.

We rely on debt financing for our business. As of December 31, 2009, the amount of our total debt was
approximately $1.9 billion, consisting of $1.7 billion of consolidated debt and $0.2 billion of our pro rata share of
joint venture debt. In addition, as of December 31, 2009, a significant amount of our indebtedness was secured by
our real estate assets. Due to our high level of debt, we may be required to dedicate a substantial portion of our funds
from operations to servicing our debt and our cash flow may be insufficient to meet required payments of principal
and interest.

If a property is mortgaged to secure payment of indebtedness and we are unable to meet mortgage payments,
the mortgagee could foreclose upon that property, appoint a receiver and receive an assignment of rents and leases
or pursue other remedies.

In addition, if principal payments due at maturity cannot be refinanced, extended or paid with proceeds of
other capital transactions, such as new equity capital, our cash flow will not be sufficient in all years to repay all
maturing debt. Most of our indebtedness does not require significant principal payments prior to maturity. However,
we will need to raise additional equity capital, obtain collateralized or unsecured debt financing, issue private or
public debt, or sell some of our assets to either refinance or repay our indebtedness as it matures. We cannot assure
you that these sources of financing or refinancing will be available to us at reasonable terms or at all. Our inability to
obtain financing or refinancing to repay our maturing indebtedness, and our inability to refinance existing
indebtedness on reasonable terms, may require us to make higher interest and principal payments, issue additional
equity securities, or sell some of our assets on disadvantageous terms, all or any of which may result in foreclosure
of properties, partial or complete loss on our investment and otherwise adversely affect our financial conditions and
results of operation. Also see Item 1A — “Risk Factors — Risks Associated with Our Operations — Our joint venture
investments could be adversely affected by our lack of sole decision-making authority, our reliance on our Jjoint
venture partners’ financial condition, any disputes that may arise between us and our joint venture partners and our
exposure to potential losses from the actions of our joint venture partners.”
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Our degree of leverage could limit our ability to obtain additional financing and have other adverse effects
which would negatively impact our results of operation and financial condition. :

As of December 31, 2009, our consolidated borrowings and pro rata share of unconsolidated borrowings
totaled approximately $1.7 billion of consolidated borrowings and $0.2 billion of unconsolidated borrowings. Our
organizational documents do not contain any limitation on the incurrence of debt. Our leverage and any future
increases in our leverage could place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less
debt, make us more vulnerable to economic and industry downturns, reduce our flexibility in responding to changing
business and economic conditions, and adversely affect our ability to obtain additional financing in the future for
working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, development or other general corporate purposes which would
negatively impact our results of operation and financial condition.

Due to the amount of our variable rate debt, rising interest rates would adversely affect our results of
operation.

As of December 31, 2009, we had approximately $384.6 million of variable rate debt outstanding, consisting
of $323.9 million of our consolidated debt and $60.7 million of our pro rata share of variable rate unconsolidated
joint venture debt. While we have sought to refinance our variable rate debt with fixed rate debt or cap our exposure
to interest rate fluctuations by using interest rate swap agreements where appropriate, failure to hedge effectively
against interest rate changes may adversely affect our results of operations. Furthermore, interest rate swap
agreements and other hedging arrangements may expose us to additional risks, including a risk that a counterparty to
a hedging arrangement may fail to honor its obligations. Developing an effective interest rate risk strategy is
complex and no strategy can completely insulate us from risks associated with interest rate fluctuations. There can
be no assurance that our hedging activities will have the desired beneficial impact on our results of operations or
financial condition. In addition, as opportunities arise, we may borrow additional money with variable interest rates
in the future. As a result, a significant increase in interest rates would adversely affect our results of operations.

We have entered into debt agreements with covenants that restrict our operating activities, which could
adversely affect our results of operations, and violation of these restrictive covenants could adversely affect our
financial condition through debt defaults or acceleration.

Our unsecured credit facility contains numerous customary restrictions, requirements and other limitations on
our ability to incur debt, including the following financial ratios:

. collateralized debt to total asset value ratio;

fixed charge coverage ratio;

total liabilities to total asset value ratio;
o total permitted investments to total asset value ratio; and
e unencumbered leverage ratio.

The indenture under which our senior unsecured debt is issued also contains financial and operating
covenants including coverage ratios. Our indenture also limits our ability to:

. incur collateralized and unsecured indebtedness;
»  sell all or substantially all or our assets; and
»  engage in mergers, consolidations and acquisitions.

Also, certain of our mortgage indebtedness contains customary covenants which, among other things, limit
our ability, without the prior consent of the lender, to further mortgage the property, to enter into new leases or
materially modify existing leases, and to discontinue insurance coverage.

These restrictions, as well as any additional restrictions which we may become subject to in connection with
additional financings or refinancings, will continue to hinder our operational flexibility through limitations on our
ability to incur additional indebtedness, pursue certain business initiatives or make other changes to our business.
These limitations could adversely affect our results of operations. In addition, violations of these covenants could
cause the declaration of defaults and any related acceleration of indebtedness, which would result in adverse
consequences to our financial condition. As of December 31, 2009, we were in compliance with all of the financial
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and operating covenants under our existing credit facility and indenture, and we believe that we will continue to
remain in compliance with these covenants. However, given the deterioration in the U.S. economy and continued
uncertainty in the credit markets, there can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain compliance with these
ratios and other debt covenants in the future, particularly if conditions were to worsen.

Our inability to obtain sufficient third party financing could adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition because we depend on third party financing for our capital needs, including development,
expansion, acquisition and other activities.

To qualify as a REIT, we must distribute to our shareholders each year at least 90% of our REIT taxable
income, excluding any net capital gain. Because of these distribution requirements, it is not likely that we will be
able to fund all future capital needs from income from operations. As a result, when we engage in the development
or acquisition of new properties or expansion or redevelopment of existing properties, we will continue to rely on
third-party sources of capital, including lines of credit, collateralized or unsecured debt (both construction financing
and permanent debt), and equity issuances. These sources, however, may not be available on favorable terms or at
all. Our access to third-party sources of capital depends on a number of factors, including the market’s perception of
our growth potential and our current and potential future earnings. Moreover, additional equity offerings may result
in substantial dilution of our shareholders’ interests, and additional debt financing may substantially increase our
leverage. There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain the financing necessary to fund our current or new
development or project expansions or our acquisition activities on terms favorable to us or at all. If we are unable to
obtain a sufficient level of third party financing to fund our capital needs, our results of operations and financial
condition may be adversely affected.

Disruptions in the financial markets could adversely affect our ability to obtain sufficient third party
financing for our capital needs, including development, expansion, acquisition and other activities, on
reasonable terms or at all and could have other adverse effects on us and the market price of the Trust’s common
shares.

During 2009, the United States credit markets experienced significant dislocations and liquidity disruptions,
which have caused the spreads on prospective debt financings to widen considerably. These circumstances have
materially impacted liquidity in the financial markets, making terms for certain financings less attractive, and in
some cases have resulted in the unavailability of financing, even for companies who are otherwise qualified to
obtain financing. Continued uncertainty in the credit markets may negatively impact our ability to access additional
financing for our capital needs, including development, expansion, acquisition activities and other purposes at
reasonable terms or at all, which may negatively affect our business. Additionally, due to this uncertainty, we may
be unable to refinance or extend our existing indebtedness or the terms of any refinancing may not be as favorable as
the terms of our existing indebtedness. If we are not successful in refinancing this debt when it becomes due, we
may be forced to dispose of properties on disadvantageous terms, which might adversely affect our ability to service
other debt and to meet our other obligations. In addition, we may be unable to obtain permanent financing on
development projects we financed with construction loans or mezzanine debt. Our inability to obtain such
permanent financing on favorable terms, if at all, could cause us to incur additional capital costs in connection with
completing such projects, of which could have an adverse affect on our business. A prolonged downturn in the
financial markets may cause us to seek alternative sources of potentially less attractive financing, and may require us
to further adjust our business plan accordingly. These events also may make it more difficult or costly for us to raise
capital through the issuance of the Trust’s common shares, preferred shares or subordinated notes. The disruptions
in the financial markets have had and may continue to have a material adverse effect on the market value of the
Trust’s common shares and other adverse effects on us and our business.

Our senior notes do not have an established trading market, therefore, holders of our notes may not be
able to sell their notes.

Each series of CRLP’s senior notes is a new issue of securities with no established trading market. We do not
intend to apply for listing of any series of notes on any national securities exchange. The underwriters in an offering
of senior notes may advise us that they intend to make a market in the notes, but they are not obligated to do so and
may discontinue market makmg at any time without notice. We can give no assurance as to the liquidity of or any
trading market for any series of our notes.

28



A downgrade in our credtt ratings could have a material adverse effect on our business, fi nancml
condition and results of operations.

During 2009, Moody’s Investors Service lowered the credit rating on our senior unsecured debt to Bal from
Baa3. Additionally, Standard & Poor’s lowered the credit rating on our-senior unsecured debt to BB+ from BBB-
and the rating on our preferred shares to B+ from BB. While the downgrades by both Moody’s Investors Service and
Standard & Poor’s do not affect our ability to draw proceeds under our unsecured line of credit, the pricing on the
credit facility has adjusted from LIBOR plus 75 basis points to LIBOR plus 105 basis points. The downgrade had
the effect of increasing our borrowing costs, and furthér downgrades, while not impacting our borrowing costs,
could shorten borrowing periods, thereby adversely impacting our ability to borrow secured and unsecured debt and
otherwise limiting our access to capital, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Risks Associated with Our Organization and Structure

Some of our trustees and officers have conflicts of interest and could exercise mﬂuence in a manner
inconsistent with the interests of our shareholders.

As aresult of thelr substantial ownership of common shares and units, Messrs. Thomas Lowder, our
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, James Lowder and Harold Ripps, each of whom is a trustee, could seek to
exert influence over our decisions as to sales or re-financings of particular properties we own. Any such exercise of
influence could produce decisions that are not in the best interest of all of the holders of interests in us.

The Lowder family and their affiliates hold interests in a company that has performed insurance brokerage
services with respect to our properties. This comnpany may perform similar services for us in the future. As a result,
the Lowder family may realize benefits from transactions between this company and us that are not realized by other
holders of interests in us. In addition, given their positions with us, Thomas Lowder, as our Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, and James Lowder, as a trustee, may be in a position to influence us to do business with
companies in which the Lowder family has a financial interest.

Other than a specific procedure fof reviewing and approving related party construction activities, we have not
adopted a formal policy for the review and approval of conflict of interest transactions generally. Pursuant to our
charter, our audit committee reviéws and discusses with management and our independent registered public
accounting firm any such transaction if deemed material and relevant to an understanding of our financial
statements. Our policies and practices may not be suecessful in eliminating the influence of conflicts. Moreover,
transactions with companies controlled by the Lowder family, if any, may not-be on terms as favorable to us as we
could obtain in an arms-length transaction with a third party.

- Restrictions on the acquisition and change in control of the Company may have adverse effects on the
value of the Trust’s common shares and CRLP’s partnership units.

Various provisions of the Trust’s Declaration of Trust restrict the possibility for acquisition or change in
control of us, even if the acquisition or change in ¢ontrol were in the shareholders’ interest. As a result, the value of
the Trust’s common shares and CRLP’s partnership units may be less than they would otherwise be in the absence
of such restrictions.

The Trust’s Declaration of Trust contains ownership limits and restrictions on transferability. The Trust’s
Declaration of Trust contains certain restrictions on the number of common shares and preferred shares that
individual shareholders may own, which is intended to ensure that we maintain our qualification as a REIT. In order
for us to qualify as a REIT, no more than 50% of the value of our outstanding shares may be owned, directly or
indirectly, by five or fewer individuals (as defined in the Code to include certain entities) during the last half of a
taxable year and the shares must be beneficially owned by 100 or more persons during at least 335 days of a taxable
year of 12 months or during 4 proportionate part of a shorter taxable year. To help avoid violating these
requirements, the Trust’s Declaration of Trust coritains provisions restricting the ownership and transfer of shares in
certain circumstances. These ownership limitations provide that no person may beneficially own, or be deemed to
own by virtue of the attribution provisions of the Code, more than:

e 9.8%, in either number of shares or value (whlchever is more restnctlve) of any class of our outstandmg
shares;
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* 5% in number or value (whichever is more restrictive), of our outstanding common shares and any
outstanding excess shares; and

¢ - inthe case of certain excluded holders related to the Lowder family: 29% by one individual; 34% by two
individuals; 39% by three individuals; or 44% by four individuals.

These ownership limitations may be waived by the Trust’s Board of Trustees if it receives representations and
undertakings of certain facts for the protection of our REIT status, and if requested, an IRS ruling or opinion of
counsel.

The Trust’s Declaration of Trust permits the Trust’s Board of Trustees to issue preferred shares with terms
that may discourage a thivd party from acquiring us. The Trust’s Declaration of Trust permits the Board of Trustees
of the Trust to issue up to 20,000,000 preferred shares, having those preferences, conversion or other rights, voting
powers, restrictions, limitations as to distributions, qualifications, or terms or conditions of redemption as
determined by the Board of Trustees. Thus, the Board of Trustees of the Trust could authorize the issuance of
preferred shares with terms and conditions that could have the effect of discouraging a takeover or other transaction
in which some or a majority of shareholders might receive a premium for their shares over the then-prevailing
market price of shares.

The Trust’s Declaration of Trust and Bylaws contain other possible anti-takeover provisions. The Trust’s
Declaration of Trust and Bylaws contain other provisions that may have the effect of delaying, deferring or
preventing an acquisition or change in control of the Company, and, as a result could prevent our shareholders from
being paid a premium for their common shares over the then-prevailing market prices. These provisions include:

o a prohibition on shareholder action by written consent;

*  the ability to remove trustees only at a meeting of shareholders called for that purpose, by the affirmative
vote of the holders of not less than two-thirds of the shares then outstanding and entitled to vote in the
election of trustees;

« the limitation that a special meeting of shareholders can be called only by the president or chairman of the
board or upon the written request of shareholders holding outstanding shares representing at least 25% of
all votes entitled to be cast at the special meeting;

*  the advance written notice requirement for shareholders to nominate a trustee or submit other business
before a meeting of shareholders; and

. the requirement that the amendment of certain provisions of the Declaration of Trust relating to the removal
of trustees, the termination of the Company and any provision that would have the effect of amending these
provisions, require the affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds of the shares then outstanding.

We may change our business policies in the future, which could adversely affect our financial condition or
results of operations.

Our major policies, including our policies with respect to development, acquisitions, financing, growth,
operations, debt capitalization and distributions, are determined by the Trust’s Board of Trustees. A change in these
policies could adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations, including our ability to service debt.
For example, in January 2009, we decided to accelerate our plan to dispose of our for-sale residential assets and land
held for future for-sale residential and mixed-use developments and postpone future development activities
(including previously identified future development projects) until we determine that the current economic
environment has sufficiently improved. As a result of this decision, in the fourth quarter of 2008, we recorded a non-
cash impairment charge of $116.9 million, $4.4 million of abandoned pursuit costs and $1.0 million of restructuring
charges related to a reduction in our development staff and other overhead personnel. In 2009, we recorded non-cash
impairment charges of $12.3 million, $2.0 million of abandoned pursuit costs and $1.4 million of restructuring
charges related to a reduction in our development staff and other overhead personnel. The Trust’s Board of Trustees
may amend or revise these and other policies from time to time in the future, and no assurance can be given that
additional amendments or revisions to these or other policies will not result in additional charges or otherwise
materially adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations.
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Risk_s Related to the Trust’s Shares

Market interest rates and low trading volume may have an adverse effect on the market value of the
Trust’s common shares.

The market price of shares of a REIT may be affected by the distribution rate on those shares, as a percentage
of the price of the shares, relative to market interest rates. If market interest rates increase, prospective purchasers of
the Trust’s shares may expect a higher annual distribution rate. Higher interest rates would not, however, result in
more funds for us to distribute and, in fact, would likely increase our borrowing costs and potentially decrease funds
available for distribution. This could cause the market price of the Trust’s common shares to go down. In addition,
although the Trust’s common shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange, the daily trading volume of the
Trust’s shares may be lower than the trading volume for other industries. As a result, our investors who desire to
liquidate substantial holdings may find that they are unable to dispose of their shares in the market without causing a
substantial decline in the market value of the shares.

A large number of shares available for future sale could adversely affect the market price of the Trust’s
common shares and may be dilutive to current shareholders.

The sales of a substantial number of common shares, or the perception that such sales could occur, could
adversely affect prevailing market prices for the Trust’s common shares. In addition to issuances of shares pursuant
to share option and share purchase plans, as of December 31, 2009, we may issue up to 8,162,845 common shares of
the Trust upon redemption of currently outstanding units of CRLP. In addition, the Trust has filed a registration
statement with the SEC allowing us to offer, from time to time, equity securities of the Trust (including common or
preferred shares) for an aggregate initial public offering price of up to $500 million on an as-needed basis and
subject to our ability to affect offerings on satisfactory terms based on prevailing conditions. As of December 31,
2009, the Trust had issued 4,802,971 of its common shares, at a weighted average issue price of $9.07 per share,
~under a continuous equity issuance program and 12,109,500 of its common shares, at an aggregate public offering
price of $115,040,250, in an underwritten public offering. The continuous equity issuance program was terminated
by the Trust in October 2009 following the completion of the underwritten public offering. Pursuant to the CRLP
partnership agreement, each time the Trust issues common shares CRLP issues to the Trust an equal number of units
for the same price at which the common shares were sold. Accordingly, CRLP issued 4,802,971 common units to
the Trust, at a weighted average issue price of $9.07 per share, in connection with the continuous equity issuance
program and 12,109,500 common units to the Trust, at $9.50 per unit, with respect to the common shares issued by
the Trust in the underwritten equity offering. Additionally, the Trust’s Board of Trustees can authorize the issuance
of additional securities without shareholder approval. Our ability to execute our business strategy depends on our
access to an appropriate blend of debt financing, including unsecured lines of credit and other forms of secured and
unsecured debt, and equity financing, including issuances of common and preferred equity. No prediction can be
made about the effect that future distribution or sales of common shares of the Trust will have on the market price of
the Trust’s common shares. '

We may change our dividend policy.

The Trust intends to continue to declare quarterly distributions on its common shares. Future distributions
will be declared and paid at the discretion of the Trust’s Board of Trustees and the amount and timing of
distributions will depend upon cash generated by operating activities, our financial condition, capital requirements,
annual distribution requirements under the REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, and such other factors as
the Trust’s Board of Trustees deem relevant. The Trust’s Board of Trustees reviews the dividend quarterly and there
can be no assurance as to the manner in which future dividends will be paid or that the current dividend Ievel will be
maintained in future periods.

Changes in market conditions or a failure to meet the market’s expectations with regard to our earnings
and cash distributions could adversely affect the market price of the Trust’s common shares.

We believe that the market value of a REIT’s equity securities is based primarily upon the market’s
perception of the REIT’s growth potential and its current and potential future cash distributions, and is secondarily
based upon the real estate market value of the underlying assets. For that reason, our shares may trade at prices that
are higher or lower than the net asset value per share. To the extent we retain operating cash flow for investment
purposes, working capital reserves or other purposes, these retained funds, while increasing the value of our
underlying assets, may not correspondingly increase the market price of the Trust’s common shares. In addition, we
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are subject to the risk that our cash flow will be insufficient to meet the required payments on our preferred shares
and the Operating Partnership’s preferred units. Our failure to meet the market’s expectations with regard to future
earnings and cash distributions would likely adversely affect the market price of our shares.

The stock markets, including The New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”), on which the Trust lists its common
shares, have experienced significant price and volume fluctuations. As a result, the market price of the Trust’s
common shares could be similarly volatile, and investors in the Trust’s common shares may experience a decrease
in the value of their shares, including decreases unrelated to our operating performance or prospects. Among the
market conditions that may affect the market price of our publicly traded securities are the following:

*  our financial condition and operating performance and the performance of other similar companies;
*  actual or anticipated differences in our quarterly operating results;

*  changes in our revenues or earnings estimates or recommendations by securities analysts;

*  publication of research reports about us or our industry by securities analysts;

e additions and departures of key personnel;

. strategic decisions by us or our competitors, such as acquisitions, divestments, spin-offs, joint ventures,
strategic investments or changes in business strategy;

* the reputation of REITs generally and the reputation of REITs with portfolios similar to ours;

*  the attractiveness of the securities of REITs in comparison to securities issued by other entities (including
securities issued by other real estate companies);

*  anincrease in market interest rates, which may lead prospective investors to demand a higher distribution
rate in relation to the price paid for our shares;

*  the passage of legislation or other regulatory developments that adversely affect us or our industry;
. speculation in the press or investment community;

*  actions by institutional shareholders or hedge funds;

*  changes in accounting principles;

. terrorist acts; and

¢ general market conditions, including factors unrelated to our performance.

In the past, securities class action litigation has often been instituted against companies following periods of
volatility in their stock price. This type of litigation could result in substantial costs and divert our management’s
attention and resources. :

Risks Associated with Income Tax Laws

The Trust’s failure to qualify as a REIT would decrease the funds available for distribution to its
shareholders and adversely affect the market price of the Trust’s common shares.

We believe that the Trust has qualified for taxation as a REIT for federal income tax purposes commencing
with its taxable year ended December 31, 1993. The Trust intends to continue to meet the requirements for taxation
as a REIT, but it cannot assure shareholders that the Trust will qualify as a REIT. The Trust has not requested and
does not plan to request a ruling from the IRS that the Trust qualifies as a REIT, and the statements in this
Form 10-K are not binding on the IRS or any court. As a REIT, the Trust generally will not be subject to federal
income tax on its income that it distributes currently to its shareholders. Many of the REIT requirements are highly
technical and complex. The determination that the Trust is a REIT requires an analysis of various factual matters and
circumstances that may not be totally within its control. For example, to qualify as a REIT, at least 95% of our gross
income must come from sources that are itemized in the REIT tax laws. The Trust generally is prohibited from
owning more than 10% of the voting securities or more than 10% of the value of the outstanding securities of any
one issuer, subject to certain exceptions, including an exception with respect to certain debt instruments and
corporations electing to be “taxable REIT subsidiaries.” The Trust is also required to distribute to its shareholders at
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least 90% of its REIT taxable income (excluding capital gains). The fact that the Trust holds most of its assets
through the CRLP further complicates the application of the REIT requirements. Evena technical or inadvertent
mistake could jeopardize the Trust’s REIT status. Furthermore, Congress or the Internal Revenue Service might
make changes to the tax laws and regulations, or the courts might issue new rulings that make it more difficult, or
impossible, for the Trust to remain qualified as a REIT.

If the Trust fails to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, and is unable to avail itself of certain
savings provisions set forth in the Internal Revenue Code (“IRS”), the Trust would be subject to federal income tax
at regular corporate rates. As a taxable corporation, the Trust would not be allowed to take a deduction for
distributions to shareholders in computing its taxable income or pass through long term capital gains to individual
shareholders at favorable rates. The Trust also could be subject to the federal alternative minimum tax and possibly
increased state and local taxes. The Trust would not be able to elect to be taxed as a REIT for four years following
the year it first failed to qualify unless the TRS were to grant it relief under certain statutory provisions. If the Trust
failed to qualify as a REIT, it would have to pay significant income taxes, which would reduce its net earnings
available for investment or distribution to its shareholders. This likely would have a significant adverse effect on the
Trust’s earnings and the value of the Trust’s common shares and CRLP’s partnership units. In addition, the Trust
would no longer be required to pay any distributions to shareholders. If the Trust fails to qualify as a REIT for
federal income tax purposes and is able to avail itself of one or more of the statutory savings provisions in order to
maintain our REIT status, the Trust would nevertheless be required to pay penalty taxes of at least $50,000 or more
for each such failure. Moreover, the Trust’s failure to qualify as a REIT also would cause an event of default under
its credit facility and may adversely affect the Trust’s ability to raise capital and to service its debt.

Even if the Trust qualifies as a REIT, it will be required to pay some taxes (particularly related to the
Trust’s taxable REIT subsidiary). . :

Even if the Trust qualifies as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, the Trust will be required to pay
certain federal, state and local taxes on its income and property. For example, the Trust will be subject to income tax
to the extent we distribute less than 100% of its REIT taxable income (including capital gains). Moreover, if the
Trust has net income from “prohibited transactions,” that income will be subject to a 100% tax. In general,
prohibited transactions are sales or other dispositions of property held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary
course of business. The determination as to whether a particular sale is a prohibited transaction depends on the facts
and circumstances related to that sale. However, the Trust will not be treated as a dealer in real property with respect
to a property that it sells for the purposes of the 100% tax if (i) the Trust has held the property for at least two years
for the production of rental income prior to the sale, (i) capitalized expenditures on the property in the two years
preceding the sale are less than 30% of the net selling price of the property, and (iii) the Trust either (a) has seven or
fewer sales of property (excluding certain property obtained through foreclosure) for the year of sale or (b) the
aggregate tax basis of property sold during the year of sale is 10% or less of the aggregate tax basis of all of the
Trust’s assets as of the beginning of the taxable year or (c) the fair market value of the property sold during the year
of sale is 10% or less of the aggregate fair market value of all of the Trust’s assets as of the beginning of the taxable
year and in the case of (b) or (c), substantially all of the marketing and development expenditures with respect to the
property sold are made through an independent contractor from whom the Trust derives no income. The sale of more
than one property to one buyer as part of one transaction constitutes one sale for purposes of this “safe harbor.” The
Trust intends to hold its properties, and CRLP intends to hold its properties, for investment with a view to long-term
appreciation, to engage in the business of acquiring, developing, owning and operating properties, and to make
occasional sales of properties as are consistent with our investment objectives. However, not all of the Trust’s sales
will satisfy the “safe harbor” requirements described above. Furthermore, there are certain interpretive issues related
to the application of the “safe harbor” that are not free from doubt under the federal income tax law. While we
acquire and hold our properties with an investment objective and do not believe they constitute dealer property, we
cannot provide any assurance that the IRS might not contend that one or more of these sales are subject to the 100%
penalty tax or that the IRS would not challenge our interpretation of, or any reliance on, the “safe harbor”
provisions.

In addition, any net taxable income carned directly by the Trust’s taxable REIT subsidiaries, or through
entities that are disregarded for federal income tax purposes as entities separate from the Trust’s taxable REIT
subsidiaries, will be subject to federal and possibly state corporate income tax. The Trust has elected to treat CPSI as
a taxable REIT subsidiary, and it may elect to treat other subsidiaries as taxable REIT subsidiaries in the future. In
this regard, several provisions of the laws applicable to REITs and their subsidiaries ensure that a taxable REIT
subsidiary will be subject to an appropriate level of federal income taxation. For example, a taxable REIT subsidiary .
is limited in its ability to deduct interest payments made to an affiliated REIT. In addition, the REIT has to pay a
100% penalty tax on some payments that it receives or on some deductions taken by the taxable REIT subsidiaries if
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the economic arrangements between the REIT, the REIT’s tenants, and the taxable REIT subsidiary are not
comparable to similar arrangements between unrelated parties. Finally, some state and local Jurisdictions may tax
some of the Trust’s income even though as a REIT it is not subject to federal income tax on that income because not
all states and localities treat REITs the same as they are treated for federal income tax purposes. To the extent that
the Trust and its affiliates are required to pay federal, state and local taxes, the Trust will have less cash available for
distributions to the Trust’s shareholders.

REIT Distribution requirements may increase our indebtedness.

The Trust may be required from timie to time, under certain circumstances, to accrue as income for tax
purposes interest and rent earned but not yet received. In such event, or upon the Trust’s repayment of principal on
debt, it could have taxable income without sufficient cash to enable us to meet the distribution requirements of a
REIT. Accordingly, we could be required to borrow funds or liquidate investments on adverse terms in order to meet
these distribution requirements.

Tax elections regarding distributions may impact our future liquidity.

Under certain circumstances, the Trust may make a tax election to treat future distributions to shareholders as
distributions in the current year. This election may allow the Trust to avoid increasing its dividends or paying
additional income taxes in the current year. However, this could result in a constraint on the Trust’s ability to
decrease its dividends in future years without creating risk of either violating the REIT distribution requirements or
generating additional income tax liability.

We may in the future choose to pay dividends in our own common shares, in which case shareholders may
be required to pay income taxes in excess of the cash dividends they receive.

accumulated earnings and profits for U.S. federal income tax purposes, regardless of whether such shareholder
receives cash, REIT shares or a combingtion of cash and REIT shares. As a result, a shareholder may be required to

certain non-U.S. stockholders, we may be required to withhold U.S. federal income tax with respect to dividends
paid in our common shares. In addition, if a significant number of our shareholders determine to sell shares of our
common shares in order to pay taxes owed on dividends, it may put downward pressure on the trading price of our
common shares.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.
General

As of December 31, 2009, our consolidated real estate portfolio consisted of 114 consolidated operating
properties. In addition, we maintain non-controlling partial interests ranging from 10% to 20% in an additional 42
properties held through unconsolidated joint ventures. These 156 properties, including consolidated and
unconsolidated properties, are located in 10 states in the'Sunbelt region of the United States.

Multifamily Properties

Our multifamily segment is comprised of 111 multifamily apartment communities, including those properties
in lease-up, including 105 consolidated properties, of which 104 are wholly-owned and one is partially-owned and
six properties held through unconsolidated joint ventures, which properties contain, in the aggregate, a total of
33,524 garden-style apartments and range in size from 80 to 586 units. Each of the multifamily properties is
established in its local market and provides residents with numerous amenities, which may include a swimming
pool, exercise room, jacuzzi, clubhouse, laundry room, tennis court(s) and/or a playground. We manage all of the
multifamily properties.

The following table sets forth certain additional information relating to the consolidated multifamily
properties as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009,
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Consolidated Multifamily Properties

Average
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(1) All properties are 100% owned by us, including the one property that is in lease-up. In the listing of
multifamily property names, CG has been used as an abbreviation for Colonial Grand and CV as an
abbreviation for Colonial Village.

(2)  Represents year initially completed or, where applicable, Yyear(s) in which additional phases were completed at
the property.

(3)  Units (in this table only) refer to multifamily apartment units. Number of units includes all apartment units
occupied or available for occupancy at December 31, 2009.

(4)  Represents weighted average rental rate per unit of the 105 consolidated multifamily properties, excluding the
one property in lease-up, at December 31, 2009.

(5)  This property is currently in lease-up and is not included in the Percent Occupied and Average Rental Rate per
Unit Totals. ’

(6) During the third quarter 2009, the Company contributed preferred equity to the joint venture thus resulting in
consolidation of the property.
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The following table sets forth certain additional information relating to the unconsolidated multifamily
properties as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Unconsolidated Multifamily Properties

Average
Number Approximate Rental
Year of Rentable Area Percent
Completgd (2) _Units (3) Occupied
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(1) We hold between a 10% — 20% non-controlling interest in the unconsolidated joint venture that owns these
properties. In the listing of multifamily property names, CG has been used as an abbreviation for Colonial

‘ Grand and CV as an abbreviation for Colonial Village.
(2) - Represents year initially completed or, where applicable, year(s) in which additional phases were completed at
" the property.
(3) For the purposes of this table, units refer to multifamily apartment units. Number of units includes all
apartment units occupied or available for occupancy at December 31, 2009.

(4) Represents weighted average rental rate per unit of the six unconsolidated multifamily properties not in lease-
up at December 31, 2009.

The following table sets forth the total number of multifamily units, percent leased and average base rental
rate per unit as of the end of each of the last five years for our consolidated multifamily properties:

Average Base

Number Percent Rental Rate
of Units  _Leased (1) Per Unit (1)

December 31?2008

R

2006
05

30353 94.1% 784

32715

(1) Represents weighted average occupancy of the multifamily properties that had achieved stabilized occupancy
at the end of the respective period (excluding one property in lease-up at December 31, 2009). :
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The following table sets forth the total number of multifamily units, percent leased and average base rental
rate per unit as of the end of each of the last five years for our unconsolidated multifamily properties:

Average Base

Number Percent Rental Rate
__Year-End _Leased (1) _Per Unit (1)
December 31,2009 80 S0
December 31, 2008 92.3% 800
December 31,2007 e
December 31, 2006 94.6% 746
0511% 1 e

December 31,2005

(1) Represents weighted average occupancy of the multifdmily properties that had achieved stabilized occupancy
at the end of the respective period.

For-Sale Residential

As of December 31, 2009, we had three consolidated for-sale developments, including one lot development.
During 2009, the Company sold the remaining units in three of the for-sale developments. As of December 31,
2009, we had approximately $22.3 million of capital cost, net of $26.6 million of non-cash impairment charges
(based on book value, including pre-development and land costs) invested in these three consolidated projects. See
Note 6 — “For-Sale Activities” in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained
in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional discussion.

Commercial Properties

Our commercial segment is comprised of 45 properties, consisting of nine wholly-owned consolidated
properties and 36 properties held through unconsolidated joint ventures, which properties contain, in the aggregate, a
total of approximately 12.8 million net rentable square feet. The commercial properties range in size from
approximately 38,000 square feet to 922,000 square feet. All of the commercial properties are managed by us,
~ except Parkway Place and Metropolitan Midtown — Retail, which are managed by other affiliated third parties.

The following table sets forth certain additional information relating to our consolidated commercial
properties as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009:

Consolidated Commercial Properties

Average Base
Net Rentable Anchor Total Rent Per
Year Area Owned Percent Annualized Leased
Location _Completed (2)  Square Feet (3) Squar . Leased (5) Base Rent (6) Square Foot (7)
n/a  1000% $ 83,528
o a0

wood Village Center (8)

nial Brookwood Village . BEm 1973091 . ' . .
nial Promenade Tanneh ] 3irmi 432,717 127,000 94.7% 1,554,986
nial Promenade Alabisies 0 irming s ese . 392868 agwy 128735
nial('C‘e;pgtcr quokgvood Vi irmi 169,965 n/a 100.0% 4,960,195
totakAlabama 1 ) 58l 50% . DRy

a:
6. 18139633
18,139,633

. 8B CoBa
813,145 34.

 irsea

Center Town Park 4

_ Subtotal Florida = @

340% 1220063

North Carolina: ) o

Metropolitan Midfown Retail: . Charlotte 2008 . L seY 655007

Metropolitan Midtown Office Charlotte ... 2008 170,401 77.0% 3,799,208

- Subtotal-North Carolina ; . L T B . T65% . A0
TOTAL 3,228,671 751,821 82.2% $ 36,380,868

(1) At December 31, 2009, the nine properties listed above are 100% owned by us.

(2)  Represents year initially completed or, where applicable, the most recent year in which the property was
substantially renovated or in which an additional Phase of the property was completed,
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(3)  Net Rentable Area for Retail properties includes leasable area and space owned by anchor tenants.
(4)  Represents space owned by anchor tenants.
(5)  Percent leased excludes anchor-owned space.

(6)  Total Annualized Base Rent includes all base rents at our wholly-owned propefties for leases in place at
December 31, 2009.

(7)  Average Base Rent per Leased Square Foot excludes Retail anchor tenants over 10,000 square feet.

(8)  This property includes an aggregate of 88,158 square-feet. However, only 4,708 square-feet is currently
being leased due to redevelopment plans.

The following table sets forth certain additional information relating to the unconsolidated commercial
properties as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Unconsolidated Commercial Properties

Average Base
Net Rentable Anchor Total Rent Per
Year Area Owned Percent Annualized Leased
__ Completed (2) _ ) et Square Feet (4) __Leased(5)  Base Rent (6)
A \ - B R e
b LT L i 100.0% $ 899,7¢
Golon: Atanasierin ]
Colonial Promenade Hoover

Center Blue Lalge i . 2,6]5,459

Coloitial Center Colonnade | | e Biminehai . i 38 9% 8520908
Riverchase Center ) - Birmingham 2,8
LandTieBide fin

a ,ﬁ@ \‘&
Colonial Plaza
Paikal Plase -

& i i g
Colonial Center Lakesidg

Colonial Center Researth Pak

Colonial Center Research Place

DRSBuildme 0 sl
Regions Center Huntsville
Perimeter Cofporatg Patk e

ss Center

908%  190L102
2% JATR0T

RIBISTIOEI99/2000/2001
i 2004

.

1984/1986

s s
81.5% 6,275,125
099 602618 |

(1)  We hold between a 5% -50% noncontrolling interests in the unconsolidated joint ventures that own these
properties.

(2)  Represents year initially completed or, where applicable, most recent year in which the property was
substantially renovated or in which an additional phase of the property was completed.

(3)  Net Rentable Area for Retail properties includes leasable area and space owned by anchor tenants.

(4)  Represents space owned by anchor tenants.
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(5)  Percent leased excludes anchor-owned space.

(6)  Total Annualized Base Rent includes all base rents at our partially-owned properties for leases in place at
December 31, 2009.

(7)  Average Base Rent per Leased Square Foot excludes Retail anchor tenants over 10,000 square feet.

(8)  This property is currently in lea&e—up and is not included in the Percent Leased and Average Base Rent per
Leased Square Foot property fotals.

The following table sets out a schédule of the lease expirations for leases in place as of December 31, 2009,
for our consolidated commercial properties: :

Net Rentable Annualized Percent of Total

Year of ) Number of -+ " Area Of Base Rent of Annual Base Rent
Tenants with Expiring Leases Expiring Represented by

g Leases Square Feet) (1)} Expiring Leasgs (1

1.939.002

(1) Excludes approximately 537,848 square feet of space not leased as of December 31, 2009,
(2)  Annualized base rent is calculated using base rents as of December 31, 2009.

The following table sets out a schedule of the lease expirations for leases in place as of December 31, 2009,
for our unconsolidated commercial properties:

Net Rentable * Annualized Percent of Total
Year of Number of Area Of Base Rent of Annual Base Rent
Lease k Tenants with Expiring Leases Expiring Represented by

Expiration Expiring Leases

___(Square Feet) (1)

Leases (1)(2) Expiring Leases (1

SIS T T T0%
21,064,222 15.3%

31759928

035,899

253,828

10059807
353308
$ 137.525.647 100.0%

(1) Excludes approximately 1,093,155 square feet of space not leased as of December 31, 2009.
(2)  Annualized base rent is calculated using base rents as of December 31, 2009.

The following table sets forth the net rentable area, total percent leased and average base rent per leased
square foot for each of the last five years for our consolidated commercial properties:

Average Base

' Rentable Area Total Rent Per Leased
__Year-BEnd (Square Feet) P t Leased (1) Square Foot(1)(2)
ember 31, 2 BT 00% | T i8%ss T

2,270,880

24.87
1,249,600

224

December 31, 2007
December 31 , 200

D

(1) Total Percent Leased and Average Base Rent Per Leased Square Foot is calculated excluding two properties
in lease-up at December 31, 2009.
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(2)  Average Base Rent per Leased Square Foot excludes retail anchor tenants over 10,000 square feet.

The following table sets forth the net rentable area, total percent leased and average base rent per leased
square foot for each of the last five years for our unconsolidated commercial properties:

Average Base
Total Rent Per Leased
_ Percentwge;ased 1) .

Rentable Area

n ,:2007
Pecgglb}gr 31, 2006

SN R e

(1)  Total Percent Leased and Average Base Rent Per Leased Square Foot is calculated excluding one property in
lease-up at December 31, 2009.

(2) Average Base Rent per Leased Square Foot excludes Retail anchor tenants over 10,000 square feet.

Undeveloped Land

We currently own various parcels of land that are held for future developments. Land adjacent to multifamily
properties typically would be considered for potential development of another phase of an existing multifamily
property if we determine that the particular market can absorb additional apartment units. For expansions at office
and retail properties, we own parcels both contiguous to the boundaries of the properties, which would
accommodate additional office buildings and expansion of shopping centers, and outparcels which are suitable for
restaurants, financial institutions, hotels, or free standing retailers. However, as previously discussed, we have
postponed future development activities (including previously identified future development projects) and
conversion projects in the near term and we have decided to accelerate plans to dispose of our for-sale residential
assets and land held for future for-sale residential and mixed-use developments.

Prdperty Markets
' The table below sets forth certain information with respect to the geographic concentration of our
consolidated properties as of December 31, 2009.

Geographic Concentration of Consolidated Properties
Units (Multifamily)
1

~ Arizona

Virginia

(1), Units (in this table only) refer to multifamily apartment units.

(2)  NRA refers to net rentable area of commercial space, which includes gross leasable area and space owned
by anchor tenants.

" Qur primary markets are Birmingham, Alabama; Orlando, Florida; Atlanta and Savannah, Georgia; Charlotte
and Raleigh, North Carolina; Austin and Dallas/Fort Worth, Texas; and Richmond, Virginia. We believe that our
markets in these states are characterized by stable and increasing populations. However, as a result of the downturn
in the U.S. economy, the markets in which our properties are located have experienced reduced spending, falling
home prices and high unemployment. Although the weakening economy and high unemployment in the U.sS.,

together with the downturn in the overall U.S. housing market have resulted in increased supply and led to

deterioration in the multifamily market generally, we believe that in the long run these markets should continue to
provide a steady demand for multifamily and commercial properties.

41



Mortgage Financing

As of December 31, 2009, we had approximately $1.7 billion of collateralized and unsecured indebtedness
-outstanding with a weighted average interest rate of 5.1% and a weighted average maturity of 5.7 years. Of this
amount, approximately $624.7 million was collateralized mortgage financing and $1.1 billion was unsecured debt.
Our mortgaged indebtedness was collateralized by 33 of our consolidated properties and carried a weighted average
interest rate of 5.7% and a weighted average maturity of 9.1 years. The following table sets forth our collateralized
and unsecured indebtedness in more detail.

(dollars in thousands)

Anticipated
Principal Annual Debt
Interest Balance (as of Service (1/1/10 - Maturity Balance Due
; ) g

.
at Beverly Crest (2)

G at Crabtree Vi
CG at Edgewater I (3)
cG Stat

4 Al

CG at Heathrow (2)
~ CG at Huntersville 3)

CG at Liberty Park (2)
CG at Madison' 3y

CG at Mallard Creek (2)

~ CGatMallard 1ake (2)
__CG at McGinnis Ferry (2)
- CG at Mount Vernon (2)

CG at Patterson Place (2)
G at River Oaks (3) =

022719

CG at Round Rock (2) ~02/27/19
~ CG at Seven Oaks (3) gy
CG at Shiloh (2) 02/27/19

°G at Town Park (Lake Mary) (3)
G at Trinity Commons
sat Wilmington,

. bemins
04/01/18
04/01/15

SR aTINE

CV at Greystone (3) 13,532 06/01/19
VatMatthews .. . la0 0329/ 1
V at Oakbend (2) 20,305 225 02/27/19
VatQuamy Oaks @) 20,45 0 - 0227119
at Shoal Creek (2) 21,373 02/27/19
atSierra Vista (2) © 02 C0202TY
CV at Timber Crest 13,371 08/15/15

at WestEnd(2)
at Willow Creek (2)

erdebt:. 0 0 e e

ecured Credit Facility (5) 280%(4) 310,546

- Medium Term Notes (6) 1~ - 20006
_Medium Term Notes

. Medium Term Notes
Medium Term Notes

~ Senior Unsecured Notes |
_Senior Unsecured Notes )

* Senior Unsecured Notes ' =
__Senior Unsecured Notes

- Senior Unsecured Notes (6)

24,768

022719

06/15/12
oo
03/15/10
12
122410
0

__Seni ed Not 00% 10,633 , N
. Seni ¢d Not L Sk L
TOTAL CONSOLIDATED DEBT 5.094% $§ 1.714.343 85,533 1,692.846

Footnotes on following page
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(1)  Certain of the properties were developed in phases and separate mortgage indebtedness may encumber each
of the various phases. In the listing of property names, CG has been used as an abbreviation for Colonial
Grand and CV as an abbreviation for Colonial Village.

(2)  These properties are cross-collateralized under the same secured credit facility and bear a weighted average
interest rate of 6.04%.

(3)  These properties are cross-collateralized under the same secured credit facility and bear a weighted average
interest rate of 5.31%. , , ‘

(4)  Represents variable rate debt.

(5)  This unsecured credit facility bears interest at a variable rate, based on LIBOR plus a spread of 105 basis
points. The facility also includes a competitive bid feature that allows us to convert up to $337.5 million
under the unsecured credit facility to a fixed rate, for a fixed term not to exceed 90 days. At December 31,
2009, we had no amounts outstanding under the competitive bid feature.

(6)  These notes matured subsequent to December 31, 2009, and thus were paid in full with borrowings from the
Company’s unsecured credit facility.

In addition to our consolidated debt, the majority of our unconsolidated joint venture properties are also
subject to mortgage loans. Under these unconsolidated joint venture non-recourse mortgage loans, we could, under
certain circumstances, be responsible for portions of the mortgage indebtedness in connection with certain
customary non-recourse carve-out provisions, such as environmental conditions, misuse of funds, and material
misrepresentations. Our pro-rata share of such indebtedness as of December 31, 2009 was $239.1 million. We intend
to cooperate with our joint venture partners in connection with their efforts to refinance and/or replace other
outstanding joint venture indebtedness (which may also include, for example, property dispositions), which
cooperation may include additional capital contributions from time to time. See Item 1A — “Risk Factors — Risks
Associated with Our Operations — Qur joint venture investments could be adversely affected by our lack of sole
decision-making authority, our reliance on our joint venture partners’ financial condition, any disputes that may
arise between us and our joint venture partners and our exposure to potential losses from the actions of our joint
venture partners.”

In addition, we have made certain guarantees in connection with our investment in unconsolidated joint
ventures (see Note 19 — “Commitments, Contingencies, Guarantees and Other Arrangements” to our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K).

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are involved in various lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of business, many of which are
expected to be covered by liability insurance. In the opinion of management, although the outcomes of these normal
course suits and claims are uncertain, in the aggregate they should not have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition, neither we nor any of our properties are
presently subject to any material litigation arising out of the ordinary course of business. For additional information
regarding legal disputes, see Note 19 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP
contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No Matters were submitted to a vote of our shareholders during the fourth quarter of 2009.
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PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities. o :

The Trust’s common shares are traded on the NYSE under the symbol “CLP”. The following sets forth the
high and low sale prices for the common shares for each quarter in the two-year period ended December 31, 2009,
- as reported by the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape, and the distributions paid by us with respect to each
such period. '

&

3025

b
$ 34

On February 24, 2010, the last reported sale price of the Trust’s common shares on the NYSE was $11.89.
On February 8, 2010, the Trust had approximately 3,479 shareholders of record.

There is no established public trading market for CRLP’s common units. The common unitholders of CRLP
received quarterly distributions in same amounts as the common shareholders of the Trust (as set forth in the table
above) during the two years ended December 31, 2009. On February 8, 2010, CRLP had 70 holders of record of
common units and 8,153,899 common units outstanding, excluding the 66,769,120 common units owned by the
Trust. C ’

Issuance of Unregistered Equity Securities

In November 2009, the Trust issued 23,000 common shares in exchange for common units of CRLP. In
addition, in August 2009, the Trust issued 10,000 common shares in exchange for common units of CRLP. The units
were tendered for redemption by limited partners of CRLP in accordance with the terms of CRLP’s Third Amended
and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership, as amended (the “CRLP Partnership Agreement”). These common
shares were issued in private placement transactions exempt from registration pursuant to Section 4(2) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, based on an exchange ratio of one common share for each common unit of
CRLP.

The Trust from time to time issues common shares pursuant to its Direct Investment Program, its 2008
Omnibus Incentive Plan and its Employee Share Option and Restricted Share Plan (which expired during 2008), in
transactions that are registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”). Pursuant to the CRLP
Partnership Agreement, each time the Trust issues common shares pursuant to the foregoing plans, CRLP issues to
the Trust, its general partner, an equal number of units for the same price at which the common shares were sold, in
transactions that are not registered under the Act in reliance on Section 4(2) of the Act due to the fact that units were
issued only to the Trust and therefore, did not involve a public offering. During the quarter ended December 31,
2009, CRLP issued 39,260 common units to the Trust for direct investments and other issuances under these plans
for an aggregate of approximately $0.4 million.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, the Trust issued 12,109,500 common shares in the
underwritten equity offering referenced in Item 7, which common shares are registered under the Act. Pursuant to
the CRLP Partnership Agreement, CRLP issued to the Trust an equal number of units for the same price at which
the common shares were sold, in a transaction that was not registered under the Act in reliance on Section 4(2) of
the Act due to the fact that the units were issued only to the Trust and therefore, did not involve a public offering.
Accordingly, during the quarter ended December 31, 2009, CRLP issued 12,109,500 common units to the Trust for
shares issued under the Trust’s equity offering for an aggregate of approximately $115.0 million.
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Dividend Policy

The Trust intends to continue to declare quarterly distributions on the Trust’s common shares. In order to
maintain its qualification as a REIT, the Trust must make annual distributions to shareholders of at least 90% of our
taxable income. Future distributions will be declared and paid at the discretion of our Board of Trustees of the Trust
and the amount and timing of distributions will depend upon cash generated by operating activities, our financial
condition, capital requirements, annual distribution requirements under the REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue
Code, and such other factors as our Board of Trustees of the Trust deem relevant. The Board of Trustees of the Trust
reviews the dividend quarterly and there can be no assurance as to the manner in which future dividends will be paid
or that the current dividend level will be maintained in future periods.

The CRLP partnership agreement requires CRLP to distribute at least quarterly 100% of our available cash
(as defined in the partnership agreement) to holders of CRLP partnership units. Consistent with the partnership
agreement, we intend to continue to distribute quarterly an amount of our available cash sufficient to enable the
Trust to pay quarterly dividends to its shareholders in an amount necessary to satlsfy the requirements applicable to
REITs under the Internal Revenue Code and to eliminate federal income and excise tax liability.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

A summary of our repurchases of the Trust’s common shares for the three months ended December 31, 2009
is as follows:

Shares Purchased as Maximum Number of
Part of Publicly Shares that may yet be
Total Number of Shares  Average Price Paid  Announced Plans or  Purchased Under the

Purchased (1)

(1) Represents the number of shares acquired by us from employees as payment of applicable statutory minimum
withholding taxes owed upon vesting of restricted stock granted under our Third Amended and Restated
Stock Option Plan and Restricted Stock Plan and our 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following tables set forth selected financial and operating information on a historical basis for each of
the five years ended December 31, 2009 for the Trust and CRLP. The following information should be read together
with the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and CRLP and notes thereto included in Item 8 of this
Form 10-K. Our historical results may not be indicative of future results due, among other things, to our strategic
initiative of being a multifamily-focused REIT and our decision to accelerate the disposal of our for-sale residential
assets and land held for future for-sale residential and mixed-use developments and to postpone future development
activities (including previously identified future development projects) until we determine that the current economic
environment has sufficiently improved, as discussed further under Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Business Strategy and Outlook.”
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COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2009 2008 2007

117,190

Interest expense

. ﬁ@é%@? i

basic:

175§ 1329  $ 272§ 2.70

$2, 755 644 $2, 665 700  $2,394,589 $3 562,954
: ‘ 9,830 4431,77?;::»*: 4,
1,602,523 2,397,906
L 5 -

1, 704 343 1, 762 019

129400 8§ 1637 § |

ash ow prov1ded by

Operating activities 109,259 117,659 120796

Investmg activities , (167 131) (167 497) 657 456 135418
- Financing activities - e * 1,1 250,182y (133974
Total properties (at end of year) 156 223 261

* Footnotes on Jollowing page
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For 2008, includes a $116.9 million non-cash impairment charge attributable to certain of our for-sale
residential properties, land held for future development and one retail development property.

All periods have been adjusted to reflect the adoption of ASC 260, Earnings per Share.

For 2007, includes a special distribution paid of $10.75 per share during the second quarter of 2007 as a
result of our office and retail joint venture strategic transactions in which we sold 85% of our interests in 26
commercial assets into the DRA/CLP joint venture and 11 of our commercial assets into the OZRE joint
venture. We disposed of our interests in these joint ventures in late 2009 (see Item I — Business —
Dispositions).

Funds from Operations (FFO), as defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts
(NAREIT), means income (loss) before noncontrolling interest (determined in accordance with GAAP),
excluding sales of depreciated property, plus real estate depreciation and after adjustments for
unconsolidated parterships and joint ventures. FFO is presented to assist investors in analyzing our
performance. We believe that FFO is useful to investors because it provides an additional indicator of our
financial and operating performance. This is because, by excluding the effect of real estate depreciation and
gains (or losses) from sales of properties (all of which are based on historical costs which may be of limited
relevance in evaluating current performance), FFO can facilitate comparison of operating performance
among equity REITs. FFO is a widely recognized measure in the company’s industry. We believe that the line
on its consolidated statements of operations entitled “net income available to common shareholders” is the
most directly comparable GAAP measure to FFO. Historical cost accounting for real estate assets implicitly
assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate values instead
have historically risen or fallen with market conditions, many industry investors and analysts have considered
presentation of operating results for real estate companies that use historical cost accounting to be
insufficient by themselves. Thus, NAREIT created FFO as a supplemental measure of REIT operating
performance that excludes historical cost depreciation, among other items, from GAAP net income.
Management believes that the use of FFO, combined with the required primary GAAP presentations, has been
fundamentally beneficial, improving the understanding of operating results of REITs among the investing
public and making comparisons of REIT operating results more meaningful. In addition to company
management evaluating the operating performance of its reportable segments based on FFO results,
management uses FFO and FFO per share, along with other measures, to assess performance in connection
with evaluating and granting incentive compensation to key employees. Our method of calculating FFO may
be different from methods used by other REITs and, accordingly, may not be comparable to such other REITs.
FFO should not be considered (4) as an alternative to net income (determined in accordance with GAAP), (B)
as an indicator of financial performance, (C) as cash flow from operating activities (determined in
accordance with GAAP) or (D) as a measure of liquidity nor is it indicative of sufficient cash flow fo fund all
of the company’s needs, including our ability to make distributions.

Non-GAAP financial measure. See Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations — Funds from Operations” for reconciliation.
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COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Total revenue . § 340,352 $ 343567 $ 421,571 § 464,440 $

143,549
1,600
222,552

Income from discontinued operatxons 0.05 0.44 ‘ 1.73 2.86 446

Distributions per unit (3) $ 070 $ .75  § 275  § 272 % 2.70

1,704,343 762,019 641.8 397906  2.494.350

Total propertles (at end of year) 156 192 200 223 N 261

(1)  For 2008, includes a $116.9 million non-cash impairment charge attributable to certain of our for-sale
residential properties, land held for future development and one retail development property.

(2)  All periods have been adjusted in accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations and to reflect the
adoption of ASC 260, Earnings per Share.

()  Includes a special distribution paid of $0.21 per unit during the second quarter of 2007 as a result of our
office and retail joint venture strategic transactions in which we sold 85% of our interests in 26 commercial
assets into the DRA/CLP joint venture and 11 of our commercial assets into the OZRE joint venture. We
disposed of our interests in these joint ventures in late 2009 (see Item | — Business — Dispositions).
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion analyzes the financial condition and results of operations of both Colonial
Properties Trust, or “the Trust”, and Colonial Realty Limited Partnership, or “CRLP”, of which the Trust is the
sole general partner and in which the Trust owned an 89.1% limited partner interest as of December 31, 2009. The
Trust conducts all of its business and owns all of its properties through CRLP and CRLP’s various subsidiaries.
Except as otherwise required by the context, the “Company,” “Colonial,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to the Trust
and CRLP together, as well as CRLP’s subsidiaries, including Colonial Properties Services Limited Partnership
(“CPSLP”), Colonial Properties Services, Inc. (“CPSI”’) and CLNL Acquisition Sub, LLC.

The following discussion and analysis of the consolidated financial condition and consolidated results of
operations should be read together, except as otherwise noted, with the consolidated financial statements of the Trust
and CRLP and the notes thereto contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

General

As of December 31, 2009, we owned or maintained a partial ownership in 111 multifamily apartment
communities containing a total of 33,524 apartment units (including 105 consolidated properties, of which 104 are
wholly-owned and one is partially-owned and six properties partially-owned through unconsolidated joint venture
entities aggregating 31,520 and 2,004 units, respectively), 45 commercial properties (the “commercial properties”),
containing a total of approximately 12.8 million square feet (consisting of nine wholly-owned consolidated
properties and 36 properties partially-owned through unconsolidated joint-venture entities aggregating 3.2 million
and 9.6 million square feet, respectively) and certain parcels of land adjacent to or near certain of these properties
(the “land”). The multifamily apartment communities, commercial properties and the land are referred to herein
collectively as the “properties.” As of December 31, 2009, consolidated multifamily and commercial properties that
had achieved stabilized occupancy (which occurs once a property has attained 93% physical occupancy) were 94.7%
and 89.9% leased, respectively.

The Trust is the direct general partner of, and as of December 31, 2009, held approximately 89.1% of the
interests in, CRLP. We conduct all of our business through CRLP, CPSLP, which provides management services for
our properties, and CPSI, which provides management services for properties owned by third parties, including
unconsolidated joint venture entities. We perform the majority of our for-sale residential and condominium
conversion activities through CPSI.

As a lessor, the majority of our revenue is derived from residents and tenants under existing leases at our
properties. Therefore, our operating cash flow is dependent upon the rents that we are able to charge to our residents
and tenants, and the ability of these residents and tenants to make their rental payments. We also receive third-party
management fees generated from third-party management agreements related to management of properties held in
joint ventures.

Business Strategy and OQutlook

Since mid-2008, we have experienced a global financial and economic crisis, which included, among other
things, significant reductions and disruptions in available capital and liquidity from banks and other providers of
credit, substantial reductions and/or volatility in equity values worldwide and concerns that the weakening U.S. and
worldwide economies could enter into a prolonged recessionary period. These circumstances have materially
impacted liquidity in the financial markets making terms for certain financings less attractive, and in some cases,
resulted in the unavailability of financing even for companies who were otherwise qualified to obtain financing. In
addition, the weakening economy and mounting job losses in the U.S., and the slowdown in the overall U.S. housing
market, resulting in increased supply, led to deterioration in the multifamily market. The turmoil in the credit and
capital markets, high unemployment, the increased housing supply and our expectation that the economy would
continue to remain weak caused us to recalibrate our business plan at the beginning of 2009.

As a result of the economic decline, our focus for 2009 was on our outlined priorities of strengthening the
balance sheet, improving liquidity, addressing our near term debt maturities, managing our existing properties and
operating our portfolio efficiently, including reducing our overhead and postponing or phasing future development
activities. We made significant progress in implementing this business strategy during 2009 as outlined below.
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Strengthening the Balance Sheet

Despite a challenging transaction environment, we sold assets, including consolidated and unconsolidated
assets, for aggregate proceeds of approximately $157.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2009, including
the following significant transactions:

e Colonial Promenade Fultondale, a retail asset that we developed, for $30.7 million (including $16.9
million of seller-financing), recognizing a gain of $4.5 million, net of income taxes;

¢ Colonial Promenade Winter Haven, a retail asset, for $20.8 million, recognizing a gain of $1.7
million;

. 132 units at five of our for-sale residential communities for $38.8 million, which included the
remaining units at three of the communities; and

¢ The remaining 238 units at our condominium conversion projects for $16.9 million, which included
the sale of Portofino at Jensen Beach and Murano at Delray Beach.

During 2009, the Trust issued 4,802,971 common shares under its $50.0 million continuous equity offering
program, at a weighted average issue price of $9.07 per share, raising net proceeds of approximately $42.6 million,
after deducting commissions and other offering expenses payable by the Company. The proceeds from the offering
were used to repay a portion of the outstanding balance under our unsecured revolving credit facility. Upon
commencement of the public underwritten equity offering noted below, we terminated this program. Pursuant to the
CRLP partnership agreement, each time the Trust issues common shares CRLP issues to the Company an equal
number of units for the same price at which the common shares were sold. Accordingly, during 2009, CRLP issued .
4,802,971 common units to the Trust, at a weighted average issue price of $9.07 per share, in connection with the
continuous equity issuance program.

In October 2009, the Trust completed an equity offering of 12,109,500 common shares, including shares
issued to cover over-allotments, at $9.50 per share. Total net proceeds from this offering were approximately $109.8
million, after deducting the underwriting discount and other offering expenses payable by the Company. These
proceeds were used to pay down a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the Company’s unsecured credit
facility and for general corporate purposes. In accordance with the CRLP partnership agreement, CRLP issued
12,109,500 common units to the Trust, at $9.50 per unit, for the common shares issued by the Trust in the equity
offering.

- -In addition to the equity offerings discussed above, we also repurchased an aggregate of $774.2 million of
outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP as more fully discussed under “Addressing Near-Term Maturities”.

Improving Liquidity

As the economic uncertainty continues, ensuring adequate liquidity remains critical. During the year ended
December 31, 2009, we closed on a 10-year, $350.0 million collateralized facility, with a weighted-average fixed
interest rate of 6.04%, and on an additional 10-year, $156.4 million collateralized facility, with a weighted-average
fixed interest rate of 5.31%, both with Fannie Mae (NYSE: FNM). The proceeds from these facilities were used to
repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under our $675.0 million unsecured credit facility, as discussed
further under “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

Beginning in the first quarter 2009, the Trust’s Board of Trustees declared a reduced quarterly cash dividend
on the Trust’s common shares and the partnership units of CRLP of $0.15 per common share and per partnership
unit, compared with $0.25 for the fourth quarter 2008. The $1.05 per share/unit reduction in the aggregate annual
dividend amount from prior year has enabled us to retain approximately $80.0 million of cash.

Additionally, in February 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized management to issue up to $50
million of common shares of the Trust under a continuous equity issuance program, which we expect to put in place
during the first quarter of 2010. These actions were intended to help us further improve our liquidity position,
enhance our ability to take advantage of opportunities and help protect against uncertainties in the capital markets.
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Addressing Near-Term Maturities

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we focused on addressing our near term maturities through
repurchases of outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP as we continued to see significant discounts. Since
inception of our repurchase efforts in 2008, which included a $550 million repurchase program announced during
2008, a $250 million tender offer and an additional $148.2 million tender offer, we have repurchased an aggregate of
$774.2 million of outstanding unsecured senior notes, recognizing aggregate net gains of approximately $70.3
million. Of this amount, we repurchased $579.2 million in unsecured senior notes during the year ended December
31, 2009, at an average discount of 10.6% to par value, which represents an 8.1% yield to maturity and resulted in
the recognition of net gains of $54.7 million. As a result of these repurchases, at December 31, 2009, we have only
$44.2 million of unsecured notes maturing in 2010. In January 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized a new
$100 million unsecured notes repurchase program (the prior repurchase program expired at the end of 2009) and a
new $25.0 million Series D preferred share repurchase program. We will continue to monitor the bond market in
2010 and take advantage of favorable conditions to repurchase outstanding CRLP notes and/or Trust preferred
shares.

In addition to our successful unsecured note repurchase program, we made significant progress in simplifying
our business during the fourth quarter of 2009, which included addressing our unconsolidated debt maturities
associated with certain joint ventures. During 2009, we exited seven of our joint ventures including 37 properties
and eliminated $231.1 million of our pro-rata share of property-specific mortgage debt exposure. In particular,
during the fourth quarter of 2009, we eliminated $191.1 million of near-term debt maturity exposure through the
disposition of our 15% interest in the 17-asset DRA/CRT office joint venture with DRA Advisors LLC and through
the disposition of our 17.1% interest in the 11-asset OZ/CLP Retail LLC joint venture. These joint venture
dispositions not only helped us to address near-term debt maturities, but also reduced our overall leverage and
further strengthened the balance sheet (See Note 9 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust
and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional details).

As of December 31, 2009, we had $364.5 million available on our unsecured credit facility, with $3-5 million
in development spending remaining on active projects, no debt secured by consolidated properties maturing in 2010
and $68.9 million of joint venture debt maturing in 2010 (of which $5.9 million is available to be extended by the
joint venture). Therefore, we believe, based on our current strategy, that we have adequate liquidity in order to
address our capital needs through 2011, including the remaining $44.2 million of unsecured consolidated debt
maturing in 2010.

Reducing Overhead

Since October 2008, we have aggressively cut overhead costs, primarily through the elimination of 177
employee positions (many of which were construction, development and leasing personnel). These actions resulted
in us incurring $1.4 million and $1.0 million in termination benefits and severance related charges in 2009 and 2008,
respectively. With the staff reductions in 2009, we have now reduced the size of our total workforce by more than
10% compared to the workforce size as of October 2008. With these reductions, we expect to generate
approximately $20.7 million in annualized savings. Throughout 2010, we intend to continue focusing on controlling
costs, which will, in turn, help preserve capital and improve liquidity.

Postponing/Phasing Developments

_As previously disclosed, in January 2009, we decided to postpone/phase future development activities until
we determined that the current economic environment had sufficiently improved. Our development expenditures for
the year ended December 31, 2009 were $46.1 million, and we anticipate total expenditures for 2010 to be
approximately $25 to $30 million. Expenditures for 2010 include completing one commercial development project
and Phase I of the development at our Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac property. Postponing/phasing future
development activities has helped us preserve capital during this uncertain economic environment.

We believe that the steps that we have made to achieve our 2009 objectives have positioned us to be able to
continue to work through this challenging economic environment. Looking ahead to 2010, we will continue to
simplify the business by looking for opportunities to exit additional joint ventures. We expect that property level
margins will continue to be under pressure for the majority of 2010, but we will look to improve our overall
corporate operating margins through the disposition of our non-income producing assets and through controlling
expenses. We will look to further strengthen the balance sheet and grow the Company through debt repurchases and
the funding of new acquisitions through existing availability under our unsecured credit facility and the issuance of
common equity.
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Executive Summary of Results of Operations

The following discussion of results of operations should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated
Statements of Operations of the Trust and CRLP and the Operating Results Summary included below.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Trust reported a net loss to common shareholders of $0.5 million,
compared with a net loss to common shareholders of $55.4 million for the comparable prior year period. For the
year ended December 31, 2009, CRLP reported a net loss to common unitholders of $0.6 million, compared with a
net loss to common unitholders of $66.7 million for the comparable prior year period.

The principal factors that influenced our operating results for 2009 are as follows:

* A weak economy and high unemployment in the U.S., as well as the downturn in the overall U.S. housing
market, has resulted in increased supply and led to deterioration in the multifamily market. For 2009, we
experienced greater rental rate pricing pressure, resulting in a $12.5 million decrease in minimum rent at
our multifamily apartment communities that were stabilized during both periods. In addition, property
operating expenses at these stabilized properties increased $6.8 million, including $3.7 million attributable
to cable expenses associated with the ongoing rollout of our bulk cable program;

e Werecognized net gains of $54.7 million from the repurchase of $579.2 of unsecured senior notes at an
average discount of 10.6% to par value;

J We recognized $7.6 million of gains, net of income taxes, from the disposition of assets described above in
our Business Strategy and Outlook section;

. We recorded a $7.9 million income tax benefit as a result of the new net operating loss (“NOL”) carryback
rules under the Worker, Homeownership and Business Assistance Act of 2009;

¢ Werecorded $12.4 million of impairment charges and other losses, which includes $10.3 million related to
a reduction of the carrying value of certain of our for-sale residential assets, one retail development and
certain land parcels, and $2.0 million related to the sale of the remaining units at two of our condominium
conversion properties;

*  Werecognized $1.4 million in restructuring charges related to the elimination of 72 employee positions
during 2009; and

*  Werecognized a $3.5 million charge related to our potential funding of a partial loan repayment guarantee
provided on the original construction loan for Colonial Grand at Traditions, a property in which we have a
35% noncontrolling interest.

Additionally, our multifamily portfolio physical occupancy for consolidated properties was 94.7%, 94.1% and
96.0% for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.

Operating Results Summary

The following operating results summary is provided for reference purposes and is intended to be read in
conjunction with the narrative discussion. This information is presented to correspond with the manner in which we
analyze our operating results.
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Operating Results — 2009 compared to 2008

Minimum rent

Minimum rent for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $279.5 million, an increase of $3.1 million from
the comparable prior year period. The change in minimum rent was primarily attributable to $17.3 million from
multifamily and commercial developments placed into service since the fourth quarter of 2008, partially offset by a
$12.5 million decrease in minimum rent at our multifamily apartment communities that were stabilized during both
periods and a $2.0 million decrease in minimum rent due to the sale of Colonial Promenade Fultondale in the first
quarter of 2009. We defined “stabilized” communities as those that have attained 93% physical occupancy.

Other property related revenue

Other property related revenue for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $41.4 million, an increase of $6.9
million from the comparable prior year period primarily as the result of the ongoing roll-out of our bulk cable
program at our multifamily apartment communities. As of December 31, 2009, we had 97 multifamily apartment
communities fully subscribed, with the remaining three communities in our bulk cable program expected to be fully

subscribed by the end of the first quarter 2010.
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Construction activities

Revenues and expenses from construction activities for the year ended December 31, 2009 decreased
approximately $10.1 million and $9.5 million, respectively, from the comparable prior year period as a result of our
decision to delay most construction activity in 2009.

Other non-property related revenues

Other non-property related revenues, which consist primarily of management fees, development fees, and
other miscellaneous fees, decreased $3.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 as compared to the same
period in 2008. The decline is primarily the result of the lost management fees associated with the joint ventures we
exited in 2008 and 2009. Due to us exiting certain joint ventures, we anticipate a further decline in management fees
in 2010.

Property operating expenses

Property operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $95.4 million, an increase of $11.3
million from the comparable prior year period. Of the increase, $6.8 million of expenses is attributable to
communities that were stabilized during both periods. This $6.8 million increase includes $3.7 million which is
attributable to cable expenses associated with the ongoing rollout of our bulk cable program. The remaining increase
is due to expenses from development properties placed into service since the fourth quarter 2008.

Taxes, licenses and insurance

Taxes, licenses and insurance expenses for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $39.9 million, an
increase of $1.6 million from the comparable prior year period. The increase was primarily attributable to
developments placed into service since the fourth quarter of 2008, partially offset by our annual expense adjustment
of self insurance reserves, which is based on an actuarial study of claims history.

Property management expenses

Property management expenses consist of regional supervision and accounting costs related to property
operations. These expenses for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $7.7 million, a decrease of $0.7 million
from the comparable prior year period. The decrease was primarily due to reduced overhead, including through
employee terminations and a reduction in other various expenses.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $17.9 million, a decrease of
$5.2 million from the comparable prior year period. The decrease was primarily due to a reduction in salary
expenses as a result of reduced overhead.

Management fee and other expenses

Management fee and other expenses consist of property management and other services provided to third
parties. These expenses for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $14.2 million, a decrease of $1.0 million from
the comparable prior year period. The decrease was primarily due to reduced overhead, including employee
terminations and a reduction in other various expenses, as well as reduced expenses as a result of exiting certain
joint ventures during 2009.

Restructuring charges

The restructuring charges for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $1.4 million, which is primarily
comprised of termination and severance costs attributable to our overall continued effort to reduce overhead. See
Note 3 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form
10-K for additional details.

Investment and development

Investment and development expense for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $2.0 million, a decrease of
$2.4 million from the comparable prior year period. The decrease from 2008 was the result of our decision in the
fourth quarter 2008 to abandon pursuit of certain future development opportunities which resulted in the write-off of
previously capitalized expenses. Investment and development expenses incurred during 2009 are the result of the
write-off of costs related to a change in the strategic direction with respect to our Colonial Promenade Nord Du Lac
development, as well as costs associated with the acquisition of properties from unconsolidated joint ventures.

54



Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $117.2 million, an
increase of $12.5 million from the comparable prior year period, of which $11.5 million is attributable to
developments placed into service since the third quarter of 2008 and $1.0 million is attributable to the acquisition of
Three Ravinia and the consolidation of Colonial Grand at Canyon Creek during 2009.

Impairment and other losses

Impairment charges for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $12.5 million ($10.4 million presented in
continuing operations and $2.1 million presented in discontinued operations, which appears in “(Loss) Income from
discontinued operations”). See Note 4 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP
contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional details.

Interest expense and debt cost amortization

Interest expense and debt cost amortization for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $92.0 million, an
increase of $16.8 million from the comparable prior year period. The increase is primarily a result of a reduction in
capitalized interest of approximately $21.2 million due to no longer capitalizing interest on assets held for future
developments, which was partially offset by a decrease in interest expense related to our unsecured credit facility
resulting from a lower weighted average interest rate and average monthly balance when compared to the prior year
period.

Gain (losses) on retirement of debt

Gains on retirement of debt for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $56.4 million, compared with $16.0
million for the comparable prior year period. In 2009, we recognized gains on the repurchase of $579.2 million of
outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP at an average of 10.6% discount to par value. In 2008, we recognized
gains on the repurchase of $195.0 million of outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP at an average of 9.1%
discount to par value.

Interest income

Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $1.4 million, a decrease of $1.3 million from the
comparable prior year period. The decrease is attributable to loan payoffs in 2008, partially offset by new loans
extended during 2009 for the sale of a commercial development and a land parcel.

(Loss) income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities

(Loss) income from unconsolidated entities for the year ended December 31, 2009 was a loss of $1.2 million,
compared to income of $12.5 million for the comparable prior year period. The $1.2 million loss includes a $3.5
million charge due to our determination that it was probable that we would have to fund the partial loan repayment
guarantee provided on the original construction loan for Colonial Grand at Traditions, a property in which we have a
35% noncontrolling interest, partially offset by a $2.7 million gain from the sale of our interest in the Colonial
Center Mansell joint venture. During 2008, we recognized an aggregate gain of $16.2 million from the sale of our
interest in the GPT/Colonial Retail Joint Venture and the sale of a portion of our interest in the Huntsville TIC joint
venture.

(Loss) gains on hedging activities

Losses on hedging activities for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $1.7 million, compared to a loss of
$0.4 million for the comparable prior year period. We recognized a loss on hedging activities in 2009 and 2008 as a
result of a reclassification of amounts in “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss” as a result of our repurchases of
CRLP senior notes under our bond repurchase program. See Note 11 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional details.

Gain on sale of property

Gain on sale of property for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $5.9 million, a decrease of $0.9 million
from the comparable prior year period. The gains recognized during 2009 are primarily attributable to the
disposition of Colonial Promenade Fultondale, a retail development. The gains recognized during 2008 are primarily
attributable to the sale of outparcels and for-sale residential units.
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Income taxes and other

Income taxes and other income for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $10.1 million, compared to
income of $1.0 million from the comparable prior year period. The income tax benefit presented in “Income taxes
and other” for 2009 is primarily attributable to an income tax benefit of $7.9 million as a result of the new net
operating loss carryback rules. Refunds are anticipated to be collected in 2010. The additional tax benefit presented
in 2009 is partially offset by income taxes recorded on the sale of Colonial Promenade Fultondale presented in
“Gain on Sale of Property, net of income taxes”. For 2008, “Income taxes and other” includes $1.0 million received
as a result of forfeited earnest money.

Income from discontinued operations

Income from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $2.2 million, a decrease of
$22.2 million from the comparable prior year period. At December 31, 2009, we did not have any properties
classified as held for sale. The operating property sales that occurred in the twelve months ended December 31,
2009 and 2008, which resulted in gains on disposal of $1.7 million (net of income taxes of $0.1 million) and $43.1
million (net of income taxes of $1.1 million), respectively, are classified as discontinued operations (see Note 5 in
Item 8 of this Form 10-K for the Trust and CRLP). Gains on dispositions in 2009 are primarily attributable to the
sale of one commercial asset. Gains on dispositions in 2008 include the sale of six multifamily apartment
communities and one commercial asset. Income from discontinued operations also includes $2.1 million and $25.5
million of impairment charges recorded during 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Operating Results — 2008 compared to 2007
Minimum rent

Minimum rent for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $276.4 million, a decrease of $44.2 million from
the comparable prior year period. The decline in minimum rent was attributable to a decrease of approximately
$58.0 million due to a reduced number of consolidated office and retail properties in 2008 resulting from the office
and retail joint venture transactions that closed during 2007. This decrease was offset by increases in multifamily
rental revenues of $14.6 million, of which $7.0 million is due to development projects placed into service, $4.7
million due to new property acquisitions and approximately $1.5 million as a result of increased rental revenues
related to condominium projects placed into the rental pool, which were previously for-sale residential development
properties.

Tenant recoveries

Tenant recoveries for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $4.2 million, a decrease of $7.2 million from
the comparable prior year period as a result of a decrease in the number of consolidated office and retail properties
in 2008 resulting from the office and retail joint venture transactions that closed during 2007.

Other property related revenue

Other property related revenue for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $34.5 million, an increase of $2.8
million from the comparable prior year period as a result of an increase in multifamily cable revenue of $2.5 million
and other ancillary income of $3.2 million. This increase was partially offset by approximately $3.5 million due to a
reduced number of consolidated office and retail properties in 2008 resulting from the office and retail joint venture
transactions that closed during 2007.

Construction activities

Revenues and expenses from construction activities for the year ended December 31, 2008 decreased
approximately $28.3 million and $25.0 million, respectively, from the comparable prior year period as a result of a
decrease in construction activity year over year.

Other non-property related revenues

Other non-property related revenues, which consist primarily of management fees, development fees, and
other miscellaneous fees decreased $1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 as compared to the same
period in 2007. Management and development fees increased $0.5 million in 2008 as we began to recognize fees in
the third quarter of 2007 following the office and retail joint venture transactions that closed in June 2007. The
increase in fees was offset by a $1.5 million reserve related to a note receivable.
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Property operating expenses

Property operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $84.1 million, a decrease of $8.3
million from the comparable prior year period. The decline in property operating expenses was attributable to a
decrease of approximately $15.0 million as a result of the office and retail joint venture dispositions in 2007, offset
by increased multifamily property operating expenses of approximately $5.9 million primarily related to
condominium projects placed into the rental pool, development projects placed into service and increases in cable
television expenses related to our cable ancillary income program. In addition, operating expenses increased
approximately $1.0 million related new property acquisitions. ‘

Taxes, licenses and insurance

Taxes, licenses and insurance expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $38.4 million, a decrease
of $5.5 million from the comparable prior year period. The decline was attributable to a decrease of approximately
$6.8 million as a result of the disposition of the office and retail joint venture transactions that closed during 2007,
partially offset by increased multifamily property tax expenses of $1.4 million primarily related to condominium
projects placed into the rental pool and development projects placed into service.

Property management expenses

Property management expenses consist of regional supervision and accounting costs related to property
operations. These expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $8.4 million, a decrease of $3.8 million
from the comparable prior year period. The decrease was primarily due to an overall decrease in management
compensation following completion of our 2007 strategic transactions.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $23.2 million, a decrease of
$2.5 million from the comparable prior year period. The decrease was primarily due to a $1.4 million charge
associated with the termination of our pension plan recorded during 2007 and a reduction in salary expenses as a
result of our 2007 strategic transactions.

Management fee and other expenses

Management fee and other expenses consist of property management and other services provided to third
parties. These expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $15.2 million, a decrease of $0.5 million from
the comparable prior year period. This decrease is related to a reduction in salary expense and commissions in 2008
offset with an increase in legal fees associated with various contingencies discussed in Note 19 in our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Restructuring charges

The restructuring charges for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $1.0 million associated with our plan
to downsize construction and development personnel in light of the then-current market conditions and our decision
to delay future development projects, which we communicated in October 2008. The restructuring charges recorded
in the year ended December 31, 2007 were comprised of termination benefits and severance costs recorded in the
second and fourth quarters of 2007 associated with our strategic initiative to become a multifamily focused REIT.
See Note 3 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this
Form 10-K for additional details.

Investment and development

Investment and development expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $4.4 million, an increase
of $2.8 million from the comparable prior year period. The increase in 2008 was the result of the decision in the
fourth quarter 2008 to abandon pursuit of certain future development opportunities which resulted in the write-off of
previously capitalized expenses.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $104.7 million, a decrease
of $14.5 million from the comparable prior year period. This decrease is primarily related to the office and retail
joint venture transactions that closed in June 2007. ’
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Impairment and other losses

Impairment charges and other losses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $118.6 million ($93.1
million presented in continuing operations and $25.5 million in discontinued operations, which appears in “(Loss)
Income from discontinued operations™). See Note 4 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust
and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional details.

Interest expense and debt cost amortization

Interest expense and debt cost amortization for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $75.2 million, a
decrease of $17.3 million from the comparable prior year period. The decrease is primarily a result of the pay down
of debt associated with proceeds received from the joint venture transactions in June 2007 and the outright
multifamily and retail asset sales in 2007 and 2008.

Gain (losses) on retirement of debt

Gains (losses) on retirement of debt for the year ended December 31, 2008 was a gain of $16.0 million,
compared to a loss of $10.4 million for the comparable prior year period. In 2008, we recognized gains of
approximately $16.0 million on the repurchase of $195.0 million of outstanding unsecured senior notes. In 2007, we
recognized losses of $29.2 million in prepayment penalties associated with the repayment of $409.0 million of
collateralized mortgage loans, which were partially offset by the write-off of $16.7 million of mark-to-market debt
intangibles during 2007.

Interest income

Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $2.8 million, a decrease of $5.6 million for the
Trust and $4.8 million for CRLP, from the comparable prior year period. This decrease is attributable to interest
income earned on mezzanine loans outstanding in 2007 and additional cash generated by our 2007 strategic
transactions.

(Loss) income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities

Income from unconsolidated entities for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $12.5 million, an increase of
$1.3 million from the comparable prior year period, due primarily to an increase in gains on the sale of our joint
venture ownership interest year over year. We recognized an aggregate gain of $18.2 million from the sale of our
interest in the GPT/Colonial Retail Joint Venture and the sale of a portion of our interest in the Huntsville TIC joint
venture during 2008 compared to a gain of $17.5 million from the sale of our interest in Colonial Grand at Bayshore,
Las Olas Centre (a DRA/CRT JV property) and Colonial Village at Hendersonville during the year ended 2007. The
remaining increase is attributable to the gains recognized from the sale of our interest in seven multifamily
apartment communities and one office asset during 2008.

Gains (losses) from hedging activities

Losses on hedging activities for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $0.4 million, compared to a gain of
$0.3 million for the comparable prior year period. In 2008, we recognized a loss on hedging activities as a result of a
reclassification of amounts in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss in connection with the conclusion that it is
probable that we will not make interest payments associated with previously hedged debt as a result of repurchases
under our senior note repurchase program.

Gains from sales of property — Trust

Gains from sales of property for the Trust for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $6.8 million, a decrease
of $307.5 million from the comparable prior year period. The decrease was primarily the result of a reduction in
property sales in 2008 compared to 2007 (see below). In particularly, we recognized net gains of approximately
$276.5 million in 2007 in connection with the sale of our 69.8% interest in the DRA/CLP JV and our 69.8% interest
in the OZRE JV during June 2007 as a part of our 2007 strategic transactions.

Gains from sales of property- CRLP

Gains from sales of property for CRLP for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $6.8 million, a decrease of
$22.8 million from the comparable prior year period due to fewer asset sales in 2008. During 2008, we sold six
multifamily apartment communities and one office asset. During 2007, we sold 12 multifamily apartment
communities, 15 retail assets (11 of which were sold for no gain) and our 90% interest in Village on the Parkway. In
addition, we sold our interest in three retail development properties including the sale of 85% of Colonial Pinnacle
Craft Farms I and the sale of 95% of each of Colonial Promenade Alabaster Il and Colonial Pinnacle Tutwiler II
during 2007.
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Transaction costs-CRLP

Transaction costs for CRLP were $11.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, as a result of the
office and retail joint venture transactions that occurred during June 2007.

Income taxes and other

Income taxes and other income for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $1.0 million, a decrease of $14.7
million from the comparable prior year period. The decrease was the result of a $16.5 million income tax benefit
associated with the $43.3 million non-cash impairment charge related to our for-sale residential business recorded
during 2007.

Income from discontinued operations

Income from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $24.4 million, a decrease of
$77.3 million from the comparable prior year period. Included in the income of $24.4 million, is a $25.5 million
impairment charge related to condominium conversion properties. The operating property sales that occurred in the
twelve months ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, which resulted in gains on disposal of $43.1 million (net of
income taxes of $1.1 million) and $91.1 million (net of income taxes of $1.8 million), respectively, are classified as
discontinued operations (see Note 5 in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for the Trust and CRLP). Gains on dispositions in
2008 include the sale of six multifamily apartment communities and one commercial asset. Gains on dispositions in
2007 include the sale of 12 multifamily apartment communities and 16 commercial assets.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following discussion relates to changes in cash due to operating, investing and financing activities,
which are presented in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of
this Form 10-K.

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2009 decreased $9.1 million from
the comparable prior year period for the Trust, to $108.6 million from $117.7 million, and decreased $9.5 million
from the comparable prior year period for CRLP, to $108.6 million from $118.1 million. The decrease in cash
provided was due to the decline in operating performance of our fully stabilized communities. In 2010, we expect
cash flows from operating activities to be consistent with or slightly less than 2009 primarily driven by the
challenging economic environment and a projected decrease in our core multifamily operations.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2009 decreased $1.0 million to $166.5
million from $167.5 million for the comparable prior year period for the Trust and CRLP. The change was primarily
due to reduced development expenditures and a decline in property sales during 2009, which was offset by the
acquisitions of Three Ravinia and Colonial Promenade Alabaster, as well as the purchase of the Colonial Promenade
Nord du Lac community development district bonds. In 2010, we expect cash used in investing activities to be
consistent or slightly less than 2009 levels as we continue to strengthen the balance sheet by disposing of non-core
assets and reducing expenditures attributable to our development pipeline, while continuing to pursue valuable
acquisition opportunities.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $53.3 million compared
to net cash used in financing activities in the comparable prior year period of $34.0 million for the Trust. Net cash
provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $53.3 million compared to net cash used
in financing activities in the comparable prior year period of $34.3 million for CRLP. The change in 2009 was
primarily the result of our successful equity offerings, generating $151.9 million of net cash proceeds. For 2010, our
focus continues to be on our balance sheet as our Board of Trustees recently approved an additional $100.0 million
unsecured senior note repurchase program as well as a $25.0 million Series D preferred repurchase program. We
believe that our business strategy, the availability of borrowings under our credit facilities and limited debt
maturities in 2010 has us positioned well to work through this challenging economic environment including the
volatile capital and credit markets.
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Short-Term Liquidity Needs

Our short-term liquidity requirements consist primarily of funds necessary to pay for operating expenses
directly associated with our portfolio of properties (including regular maintenance items), capital expenditures
incurred to lease our space (e.g., tenant improvements and leasing commissions), interest expense and scheduled
principal payments on our outstanding debt, and quarterly distributions that we pay to the Trust’s common and
preferred shareholders and holders of partnership units in CRLP. In the past, we have primarily satisfied these
requirements through cash generated from operations and borrowings under our unsecured credit facility.

The majority of our revenue is derived from residents and tenants under existing leases, primarily at our
multifamily properties. Therefore, our operating cash flow is dependent upon the rents that we are able to charge to
our residents and tenants, and the ability of these residents and tenants to make their rental payments. The weak
economy and job market in the U.S., has resulted in deterioration in the multifamily market generally, and has
adversely affected our ability to lease our multifamily properties as well as the rents we are able to charge and
thereby adversely affected our revenues.

We believe that cash generated from operations, dispositions of assets and borrowings under our credit
facility will be sufficient to meet our short-term liquidity requirements. However, factors described below and
elsewhere herein may have a material adverse effect on our future cash flow.

We have made an election to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), commencing with our taxable year ending December 31, 1993. If we
qualify for taxation as a REIT, we generally will not be subject to Federal income tax to the extent we distribute at
least 90% of our REIT taxable income to our shareholders. Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be
subject to certain state and local taxes on our income and property and to federal income and excise taxes on our
undistributed income.

Long-Term Liquidity Needs

Our long-term liquidity requirements consist primarily of funds necessary to pay the principal amount of our
long-term debt as it matures, significant capital expenditures that need to be made at our properties, development
projects that we undertake and costs associated with acquisitions of properties that we pursue. Historically, we have
satisfied these requirements principally through the most advantageous source of capital at that time, which has
included the incurrence of new debt through borrowings (through public offerings of unsecured debt and private
incurrence of collateralized and unsecured debt), sales of common and preferred shares, capital raised through the
disposition of assets and joint venture capital transactions.

The Trust has filed a registration statement with the SEC allowing us to offer, from time to time, equity
securities of the Trust (including common or preferred shares) for an aggregate initial public offering price of up to
$500 million on an as- needed basis subject to our ability to affect offerings on satisfactory terms based on
prevailing conditions. As described above in the Business Strategy and Outlook section, we issued 4,802,971
common shares of the Trust through our continuous equity offering program and 12,109,500 common shares of the
Trust through a separate public offering generating aggregate net proceeds of $152.4 million. The proceeds were
used to repay a portion of our unsecured credit facility and for general corporate purposes. Pursuant to the CRLP’s
Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership, each time the Trust issues common shares pursuant
to the foregoing program, CRLP issues to the Trust, its general partner, an equal number of units for the same price
at which the common shares were sold.

Our ability to raise funds through sales of common shares and preferred shares in the future is dependent on,
among other things, general market conditions for REITs, market perceptions about our company and the current
trading price of our shares. The financial and economic crisis and deterioration in the stock and credit markets over
the past year and a half have resulted in significant price volatility, which have caused market prices of many stocks,
including the price of the Trust’s common shares, to fluctuate substantially. With respect to both debt and equity, a
prolonged downturn in the financial markets may cause us to seek alternative sources of potentially less attractive
financing, and may require us to adjust our business plan accordingly. These events also may make it more difficult
or costly for us to raise capital through the issuance of the Trust’s common shares, preferred shares or subordinated
notes or through private financings. We will continue to analyze which source of capital is most advantageous to us
at any particular point in time, but the equity and credit markets may not be consistently available on terms that are
attractive.
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Our ability to incur additional debt is dependent upon a number of factors, including our credit ratings, the
value of our assets, our degree of leverage and borrowing restrictions imposed by our current lenders. As discussed
below in “Credit Ratings,” earlier this year, we received credit rating downgrades, making it less favorable and less
likely, that we will access the unsecured public debt market in the foreseeable future. In light of the credit
downgrades, during 2009 we were able to obtain secured financing of $506.4 million, for a 10-year term, through
Fannie Mae. The proceeds from those financings were used to repay a portion of our unsecured credit facility. In
2010, we intend to continue to access secured borrowings through Fannie Mae and/or Freddie Mac, as market
conditions permit.

Our ability to generate cash from asset sales is limited by market conditions and certain rules applicable to
REITs. In the current market, our ability to sell properties to raise cash is challenging. For example, we may not be
able to sell a property or properties as quickly as we have in the past or on terms as favorable as we have previously
received. During 2009, we sold assets for aggregate proceeds of approximately $157.7 million ($117.4 million from
consolidated assets, $40.3 million from unconsolidated assets, which represents our pro-rata share of the proceeds,
$55.7 million from condominium conversion and for-sale residential assets and $10.8 million from land sales,
including $0.1 million which is our pro-rata share from an unconsolidated land parcel).

At December 31, 2009, our total outstanding debt balance was $1.7 billion. The outstanding balance includes
fixed-rate debt of $1.38 billion, or 80.9% of the total debt balance, and floating-rate debt of $323.9 million, or
19.1% of the total debt balance. Our total market capitalization as of December 31, 2009 was $3.0 billion, which
includes joint venture debt. As further discussed below, at December 31, 2009, we had an unsecured revolving credit
facility providing for total borrowings of up to $675.0 million and a cash management line providing for borrowings
up to $35.0 million.

Distributions

The dividend on the Trust’s common shares and CRLP’s partnership units was $0.25 per share and per
partnership unit per quarter for the first quarter of 2009 and $0.15 per share and per partnership unit for the last three
quarters of 2009, or $0.70 per share and per partnership unit during 2009. This reduced dividend (compared to the
dividend level during 2008) has allowed us to improve our liquidity position, further enhance our ability to take
advantage of opportunities, and protect against uncertainties in the capital markets. We also pay regular quarterly
distributions on preferred shares in the Trust and on preferred units in CRLP. The maintenance of these distributions
is subject to various factors, including the discretion of the Trust’s Board of Trustees, the Trust’s ability to pay
dividends under Alabama law, the availability of cash to make the necessary dividend payments and the effect of
REIT distribution requirements, which require at least 90% of the Trust’s taxable income to be distributed to the
Trust’s shareholders (excluding net capital gains).

Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility

As of December 31, 2009, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, has a $675 million unsecured revolving credit
facility (the “Credit Facility”) with Wachovia Bank, National Association, a subsidiary of Wells Fargo & Company
(“Wachovia”), as Agent for the lenders, Bank of America, N.A. as Syndication Agent, Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association (“Wells Fargo™), Citicorp North America, Inc. and Regions Bank, as Co-Documentation Agents, and
U.S. Bank National Association and PNC Bank, National Association, as Co-Senior Managing Agents and other
lenders named therein. The Credit Facility has a maturity date of June 21, 2012. In addition to the Credit Facility, we
have a $35.0 million cash management line provided by Wachovia that will expire on June 21, 2012. The cash
management line had an outstanding balance of $18.5 million as of December 31, 2009.

Base rate loans and revolving loans are available under the Credit Facility. The Credit Facility also includes a
competitive bid feature that allows us to convert up to $337.5 million under the Credit Facility to a fixed rate and for
a fixed term not to exceed 90 days. Generally, base rate loans bear interest at Wachovia’s designated base rate, plus
a base rate margin ranging up to 0.25% based on our unsecured debt ratings from time to time. Revolving loans bear
interest at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 0.325% to 1.05% based on our unsecured debt ratings. Competitive
bid loans bear interest at LIBOR plus a margin, as specified by the participating lenders. Based on CRLP’s
unsecured debt rating downgrade, the revolving loans currently bear interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 105 basis
points.
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The Credit Facility and cash management line, which are primarily used to finance property acquisitions and
developments and more recently to also fund repurchases of CRLP senior notes, had an aggregate outstanding
balance at December 31, 2009 of $310.5 million. The interest rate of the Credit Facility (including the cash
management line) was 1.28% and 2.04% at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Credit Facility contains various ratios and covenants that are more fully described in Note 11 to the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. The
ongoing recession and continued uncertainty in the stock and credit markets may negatively impact our ability to
generate earnings sufficient to maintain compliance with these ratios and other debt covenants in the future. We
expect to be able to comply with these ratios and covenants in 2010, but no assurance can be given that we will be
able to maintain compliance with these ratios and other debt covenants, particularly if economic conditions worsen.

As described above, many of the recent disruptions in the financial markets have been brought about in large
part by failures in the U.S. banking system. If any of the financial institutions that have extended credit
commitments to us under the Credit Facility or otherwise are adversely affected by the conditions of the financial
markets, they may become unable to fund borrowings under their credit commitments to us under the Credit
Facility, the cash management line or otherwise. If our lenders become unable to fund our borrowings pursuant to
their commitments to us, we may need to obtain replacement financing, and such financing, if available, may not be
available on commercially attractive terms.

Collateralized Credit Facilities

In the first quarter of 2009, we, through a wholly-owned special purpose subsidiary of CRLP, closed on a
$350 million collateralized credit facility (the “First FNM facility”) originated by PNC ARCS LLC for repurchase
by Fannie Mae. Of the $350 million, $259 million bears interest at a fixed interest rate equal to 6.07% and $91
million bears interest at a fixed interest rate of 5.96%. The weighted average interest rate for the First FNM facility
is 6.04%. The First FNM facility matures on March 1, 2019 and requires accrued interest to be paid monthly with no
scheduled principal payments required prior to the maturity date. The First FNM facility is collateralized by 19 of
CRLP’s multifamily apartment communities totaling 6,565 units. The entire First FNM facility amount was drawn
on February 27, 2009. The proceeds from the First FNM facility were used to repay a portion of the outstanding
borrowings under our $675.0 million Credit Facility.

In the second quarter of 2009, we, through a wholly-owned special purpose subsidiary of CRLP, closed on a
$156.4 million collateralized credit facility (the “Second FNM facility”) originated by Grandbridge Real Estate
Capital LLC for repurchase by Fannie Mae. Of the $156.4 million, $145.2 million bears interest at a fixed interest
rate equal to 5.27% and $11.2 million bears interest at a fixed interest rate of 5.57%. The weighted average interest
rate for the Second FNM facility is 5.31%. The Second FNM facility matures on June 1, 2019 and requires accrued
interest to be paid monthly with no scheduled principal payments required to the maturity.date. The Second FNM
facility is collateralized by eight of CRLP’s multifamily apartment communities totaling 2,816 units. The proceeds
from the Second FNM facility were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under our $675.0 million
Credit Facility.

Mortgage Refinancing

During March 2008, we refinanced mortgages associated with two of our multifamily apartment
communities, Colonial Grand at Trinity Commons, a 462-unit apartment community located in Raleigh, North
Carolina, and Colonial Grand at Wilmington, a 390-unit apartment community located in Wilmington, North
Carolina. We financed an aggregate of $57.6 million, at a weighted average interest rate of 5.4%. The loan proceeds
were used to repay the mortgages of $29.0 million and the balance was used to pay down our unsecured line of
credit.

During September 2008, we refinanced a mortgage associated with Colonial Village at Timber Crest, a 282-
unit apartment community located in Charlotte, North Carolina. Loan proceeds were $13.7 million, with a floating
rate of LIBOR plus 292 basis points, which was 3.4% at December 31, 2008. The proceeds, along with additional
borrowings of $0.6 million from our Credit Facility, were used to repay the $14.3 million outstanding mortgage. As
of December 31, 2009, the outstanding loan balance is $13.4 million with an interest rate of 3.2%.
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During September 2009, the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek (which we began consolidating beginning with the
third quarter of 2009) joint venture refinanced the existing construction loan with a new $15.6 million, 10-year loan
collateralized by Colonial Grand Canyon Creek with an interest rate of 5.64%.

Equity Repurchases

In January 2008, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized the repurchase of up to $25.0 million of our 8
1/8% Series D preferred depositary shares in a limited number of separate, privately negotiated transactions. Each
Series D preferred depositary share represents 1/10 of a share of the Trust’s 8 1/8% Series D Cumulative
Redeemable Preferred Shares of Beneficial Interest, par value $0.01 per share. During 2008, the Trust repurchased
988,750 shares of the Trust’s outstanding 8 1/8% Series D preferred depositary shares in privately negotiated
transactions for an aggregate purchase price of $24.0 million, at an average price of $24.17 per depositary share. The
Trust received a discount to the liquidation preference price of $25.00 per depositary share, of approximately $0.8
million on the repurchase and wrote off approximately $0.9 million of issuance costs.

In October, 2008, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized a repurchase program which allowed the Trust to
repurchase up to an additional $25.0 million of its outstanding 8 1/8% Series D preferred depositary shares over a 12
month period. The Board of Trustees of the Trust, as general partner of CRLP, also authorized the repurchase of a
corresponding amount of Series D Preferred Units of CRLP.

During 2009, the Trust repurchased 6,515 shares of its outstanding 8 1/8% Series D preferred depositary
shares (and CRLP repurchased a corresponding amount of Series D Preferred Units) in open market transactions for
a purchase price of $126,761, or $19.46 per depositary share. The Trust received a 22.2% discount on the repurchase
to the liquidation preference price of $25.00 per depositary share and wrote off a nominal amount of issuance costs.

In aggregate, the Trust repurchased $24.1 million of its outstanding Series D preferred depositary shares (and
CRLP has repurchased a corresponding amount of Series D Preferred Units) under this program, which expired in
late October 2009. On January 27, 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized a new preferred securities
repurchase program which allows the Trust to repurchase up to $25 million of the Trust’s outstanding 8 1/8 percent
Series D preferred depositary shares and a corresponding amount of Series D Preferred Units of CRLP. The
preferred shares may be repurchased from time to time over the next 12 months in open market purchases or
privately negotiated transactions, subject to applicable legal requirements, market conditions and other factors. This
repurchase program does not obligate the Trust to repurchase any specific amounts of preferred shares, and
repurchases pursuant to the program may be suspended or resumed at any time from time to time without further
notice or announcement.

Unsecured Senior Note Repurchases

In January 2008, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized the Trust to repurchase up to $50.0 million of
outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP. During 2008, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized a senior note
repurchase program to allow us to repurchase up to an additional $500.0 million of outstanding unsecured senior
notes of CRLP from time to time through December 31, 2009. During 2008, we repurchased an aggregate of $195.0
million of our outstanding unsecured senior notes in separate transactions at an average 9.1% discount to par value,
which represents an 8.5% yield to maturity. As a result of the repurchases, we recognized an aggregate gain of $16.0
million, which is included in “Gains (losses) on retirement of debt” on our Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Comprehensive Income (Loss). '

During 2009, we repurchased an aggregate of $181.0 million of our outstanding unsecured senior notes under
the repurchase program described above in separate transactions. In addition, during 2009, we completed two
separate cash tender offers for outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP. In April 2009, we completed a cash
tender offer for $250 million in aggregate principal amount of outstanding notes maturing in 2010 and 2011, and in
September 2009, we completed an additional cash tender offer for $148.2 million in aggregate principal amount of
outstanding notes maturing in 2014, 2015 and 2016. As a result, during 2009, we repurchased an aggregate of '
$579.2 million of our outstanding unsecured senior notes at an aggregate average of 10.6% discount to par value,
which represents an 8.1% yield to maturity. As a result of the repurchases, during 2009, we recognized net gains of
approximately $54.7 million, which is included in “Gains on retirement of debt”” on our Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss). We will continue to monitor the debt markets and repurchase certain
senior notes, as funds are available to take advantage of favorable conditions to repurchase outstanding CRLP
bonds.
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On January 27, 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized a new unsecured notes repurchase program
which allows us to repurchase up to $100 million of outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP. This new
repurchase program runs through December 31, 2010. The senior notes may be repurchased from time to time in
open market transactions or privately negotiated transactions, subject to applicable legal requirements, market
conditions and other factors. The repurchase program does not obligate us to repurchase any specific amounts of
senior notes, and repurchases pursuant to the program may be suspended or resumed at any time without further
notice or announcement.

Investing Activities

In November 2009, we disposed of our 15% ownership interest in the DRA/CRT office joint and acquired
100% ownership of one of the joint venture’s properties, Three Ravinia. In connection with this transaction, we
made aggregate payments of $127.2 million ($102.5 million of which was used to repay existing indebtedness
secured by Three Ravinia). In December 2009, we disposed of our 17.1% ownership interest in the OZ/CLP Retail
joint venture and made a cash payment of $45.1 million to the joint venture partner. As part of the transaction, we
received 100% ownership of one of the joint venture assets, Colonial Promenade Alabaster. Also during 2009, we
completed the development of three wholly-owned multifamily apartment communities, adding 1,042 units to our
multifamily portfolio, for $118.4 million. Also, we completed the development of two commercial assets, consisting
of the final phase of one wholly-owned retail development and one partially-owned retail development, totaling 0.3
million square feet, for an aggregate cost of $15.4 million.

During 2008, we acquired the remaining 75% interest in one multifamily apartment community containing
270 units for an aggregate cost of $18.4 million, which consisted of the assumption of $14.7 million of existing
mortgage debt ($3.7 million of which was previously unconsolidated as a 25% partner) and $7.4 million of cash. We
completed the development of seven wholly-owned multifamily apartment communities and one partially-owned
multifamily apartment community for $188.0 million, which represents our cost for the seven wholly-owned
developments and our portion of the cost for the partially-owned development. Also, we completed the development
of five commercial assets, consisting of two wholly-owned office assets, totaling 0.3 million square feet, and two
wholly-owned retail assets and one partially-owned retail asset, totaling 0.5 million square feet, excluding anchor-
owned square feet, for an aggregate cost of $139.8 million. In addition, we completed the development of three for-
sale residential assets and one residential lot development, containing 150 units and 59 lots, respectively, for an
aggregate cost of $85.1 million.

We regularly incur significant expenditures in connection with the leasing of our commercial space,
principally in the form of tenant improvements and leasing commissions. The amounts of these expenditures can
vary significantly, depending on the particular market and the negotiations with tenants. We also incur expenditures
for certain recurring capital expenses. During 2009, we incurred approximately $1.3 million related to tenant
improvements and leasing commissions, and approximately $25.6 million of recurring capital expenditures. We
expect to pay for future leasing and recurring capital expenditures out of cash from operations.

Credit Ratings

Our current corporate credit ratings are as follows:

Uaast update

(1) Ratings outlook is “stable”.

(2) Ratings outlook is “negative”.

In March 2009, Moody’s Investors Service lowered the credit rating on CRLP’s senior unsecured debt to Bal from
Baa3 and Standard & Poor’s lowered the credit rating on CRLP’s senior unsecured debt to BB+ from BBB-. While
the downgrades by both Moody’s Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s do not affect our ability to draw proceeds

under our unsecured line of credit, the pricing on the credit facility was adjusted from LIBOR plus 75 basis points to
LIBOR plus 105 basis points as a result of those downgrades. In addition, on May 13, 2009, Fitch Ratings lowered
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the credit rating on CLP to BB+ from BBB- and on CRLP’s unsecured revolving credit facility and senior unsecured
notes to BB+ from BBB-. Fitch also revised its Rating Outlook from Negative to Stable. Fitch had previously
revised its Rating Outlook from Stable to Negative in March 2009. The previous downgrade by Fitch does not affect
our ability to draw proceeds under our unsecured line of credit or otherwise result in any pricing or other changes
under our unsecured credit facility. See Item 1A — “Risk Factors — Risks Associated with Our Indebtedness and
Financing Activities — A downgrade in our credit ratings could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.”

If we experience a credit downgrade, we may be limited in our access to capital in the unsecured debt market,
which we have historically utilized to fund our investment activities. In addition, as previously discussed, our spread
on our unsecured credit facility would increase.

Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are exposed to the effect of interest rate changes that could affect our
results of operations and financial condition or cash flow. We limit these risks by following established risk
management policies and procedures, including the use of derivative instruments to manage or hedge interest rate
risk. However, interest rate swap agreements and other hedging arrangements may expose us to additional risks,
including a risk that a counterparty to a hedging arrangement may fail to honor its obligations. Developing an
effective interest rate risk strategy is complex and no strategy can completely insulate us from risks associated with
interest rate fluctuations. There can be no assurance that our hedging activities will have the desired beneficial
impact on our results of operations or financial condition. The table below presents the principal amounts, weighted
average interest rates, fair values and other terms required by year of expected maturity to evaluate the expected
cash flows and sensitivity to interest rate changes at December 31, 2009.

(in thousands)

Estimated
Fair
2011 2012 2013 2014 Thereafter Total Value
xed Rate Debt 7,085 S 79,7268 9943 200229 % 3804 352952
Average interest rate at
December 31, 2009 8.1% 4.8% 6.9% 6.2% 6.3% 5.7% 5.9%
Ly e S e S AT I s s
Average interest rate at
December 31, 2009 N/A N/A 1.3% N/A N/A 3.2% N/A

The table incorporates only those exposures that exist as of December 31, 2009. It does not consider those
exposures or positions, which could arise after that date. Moreover, because firm commitments are not presented in
the table above, the information presented therein has limited predictive value. As a result, our ultimate realized gain
or loss with respect to interest rate fluctuations will depend on the exposures that arise during the period, our
hedging strategies at that time, and interest rates.

As of December 31, 2009, we had approximately $323.9 million of outstanding floating rate debt. We do not
believe that the interest rate risk represented by our floating rate debt is material in relation to our $1.7 billion of
outstanding total debt and our $3.2 billion of total assets as of December 31, 2009.

Tf market rates of interest on our variable rate debt increase by 1%, the increase in annual interest expense on
our variable rate debt would decrease annual future earnings and cash flows by approximately $3.2 million. If
market rates of interest on our variable rate debt decrease by 1%, the decrease in interest expense on our variable
rate debt would increase future earnings and cash flows by approximately $3.2 million. This assumes that the
amount outstanding under our variable rate debt remains approximately $323.9 million, the balance as of
December 31, 2009.

Our objective in using derivatives is to add stability to interest expense and to manage our eXposure to
interest rate movements or other identified risks. To accomplish this objective, we primarily use interest rate swaps
(including forward starting interest rate swaps) and caps as part of our cash flow hedging strategy. Interest rate
swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts in exchange for fixed-rate
payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying principal amount. As of December 31,
2009, we had no outstanding interest rate swap agreements.
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At December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, there were no derivatives included in other assets. There was no
change in net unrealized gains/(losses) in 2009 or 2008. The change in net unrealized gains/(losses) of ($0.5) million
in 2007 for derivatives designated as cash flow hedges is separately disclosed in the statements of changes in
shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss). At December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, there were no
derivatives that were not designated as hedges. There was no hedge ineffectiveness during 2009, 2008 and 2007. As
of December 31, 2009, all of our hedges are designated as cash flow hedges, and we do not enter into derivative
transactions for speculative or trading purposes.

Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss related to derivatives will be reclassified to
“Interest expense and debt cost amortization” as interest payments are made on our hedged debt or to “Gains
(losses) on hedging activities” at such time that the interest payments on the hedged debt become no longer probable
to occur as originally specified. A portion of the interest payments on the hedged debt became no longer probable to
occur as a result of our bond repurchase program (See Note 11 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional details). The changes in accumulated other
comprehensive loss for reclassifications to “Interest expense and debt cost amortization” tied to interest payments
made on the hedged debt was $0.5 million, $0.5 million and $0.6 million during 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
The changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss for reclassification to “Gains (losses) on hedging activities™
related to interest payments on the hedged debt that have been deemed no longer probable to occur as a result of
repurchases under our senior note repurchase program were losses of $1.7 million and $0.3 million durlng 2009 and
2008, respectively, with no impact during 2007.

During May 2007, we settled a $100.0 million interest rate swap and received a payment of approximately
$0.6 million. This interest rate swap was in place to convert a portion of the floating rate payments on our Credit
Facility to a fixed rate. This derivative originally qualified for hedge accounting, however, in May of 2007, due to
our 2007 office and retail joint venture transactions and the expected resulting pay down of our then-outstanding
term loan and Credit Facility, this derivative no longer qualified for hedge accounting which resulted in a gain of
approximately $0.4 million.

Further, we have a policy of only entering into contracts with major financial institutions based upon their
credit ratings and other factors. When viewed in conjunction with the underlying and offsetting exposure that the
derivatives are designed to hedge, we have not sustained a material loss from those instruments nor does it anticipate
any material adverse effect on its net income or financial position in the future from the use of derivatives.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments

The following tables summarize the material aspects of our future contractual obligations and commercial
commitments as of December 31, 2009:

Contractual Obligations

Payments Due in Fiscal )
2010 2011 2013 2014 Thereafter

i N\\\ ¢ s 3 5 3 o ‘ S < ﬁ\i 9 S *\/k ;:
Total $2,523,216 $208, 154 $147,807 $477 952 $181,345 $380,355 $1,127 603

(1) Amounts due in 2012 include our unsecured line of credit, which matures on June 15, 2012.

(2) Represents our pro-rata share of principal maturities (excluding net premiums and discounts) and interest.

66



Other Commercial Commitments

(in thousands)

Total Amounts
Cqmmigd ?010 _ ] _ 201§ 2914 Thereafter

e i

mmercial Commitments $6,403

e

b

Commitments and Contingencies

We are involved in a contract dispute with a general contractor in connection with construction costs and cost
overruns with respect to certain of our for-sale projects, which are being developed in a joint venture in which we
are a majority owner. The contractor is affiliated with our joint venture partner.

«  In connection with the dispute, in January 2008, the contractor filed a lawsuit against us alleging,
among other things, breach of contract, enforcement of a lien against real property,
misrepresentation, conversion, declaratory judgment and an accounting of costs, and is seeking
$10.3 million in damages, plus consequential and punitive damages.

e Certain of the subcontractors, vendors and other parties, involved in the projects, including
purchasers of units, have also made claims in the form of lien claims, general claims or lawsuits. We
have been sued by purchasers of certain condominium units alleging breach of contract, fraud,
construction deficiencies and misleading sales practices. Both compensatory and punitive damages
are sought in these actions. Some of these claims have been resolved by negotiations and
mediations, and others may also be similarly resolved. Some of these claims will likely be arbitrated
or litigated to conclusion. '

We are continuing to evaluate our options and investigate certain of these claims, including possible claims
against the contractor and other parties. We intend to vigorously defend ourselves against these claims. However, no
prediction of the likelihood, or amount, of any resulting loss or recovery can be made at this time and no assurance
can be given that the matter will be resolved favorably. .

In connection with certain retail developments, we have received funding from municipalities for
infrastructure costs. In most cases, the municipalities issue bonds that are repaid primarily from sales tax revenues
generated from the tenants at each respective development. We have guaranteed the shortfall, if any, of tax revenues
to the debt service requirements on the bonds. The total amount outstanding on these bonds is approximately $13.5
million at December 31, 2009 and 2008. At December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, no liability was recorded
for these guarantees.

As previously disclosed, we postponed most future development activities. Of these developments, the only
one that we currently expect to resume development on in 2010, is the first phase of the Colonial Promenade Nord
du Lac commercial development, located in Covington, Louisiana. During 2009, we evaluated various alternatives
for this development, including with respect to our existing contractual obligations to certain future tenants who had
previously committed to this development. Our intention is to develop a power center in phases over time, as
opposed to our original lifestyle center plan.

During 2009, we, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, CP Nord du Lac JV LLC, solicited for purchase all of
the outstanding Nord du Lac community development district (the “CDD”) special assessment bonds, in order to
remove or reduce the debt burdens on the land securing the CDD bonds. The proceeds from the CDD bonds were to
be used by the CDD to construct infrastructure for the benefit of the development. As a result of the solicitation,
during 2009, we purchased all of the $24.0 million of the outstanding CDD bonds for total consideration of $22.0
million, representing an 8.2% discount to the par amount. In December 2009, we unwound this CDD, which resulted
in the release of the remaining net cash proceeds of $17.4 million received from the bond issuance, which were
being held in escrow. In connection with this transaction, our “Other liabilities” were reduced by $24.0 million, of
which $1.6 million, representing the discount on the purchase of the bonds, net of interest and fees, was treated as a
non-cash transaction and a reduction to basis. In accordance with EITF 91-10, also known as ASC 970-470-05, we
recorded restricted cash and other liabilities for $24.0 million when the CDD bonds were issued. This issuance was
treated as a non-cash transaction in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2008.
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In connection with the office and retail joint venture transactions completed in 2007, we assumed certain
contingent obligations for a total of $15.7 million, of which $6.3 million remains outstanding as of December 31,
2009.

We are a party to various other legal proceedings incidental to our business. In the opinion of management,
after consultation with legal counsel, the ultimate liability, if any, with respect to those proceedings is not presently
expected to materially affect our financial position or results of operations or cash flows.

Guarantees and Other Arrangements
Active Guarantees

During April 2007, we and our joint venture partner each committed to guarantee up to $3.5 million, for an
aggregate of up to $7.0 million, of a $34.1 million construction loan obtained by the Colonial Grand at Traditions
joint venture. Construction at this site is complete as the project was placed into service during 2008. As of
December 31, 2009, the joint venture had drawn $33.4 million on the construction loan, which matures in March
2010. In September 2009, we determined it was probable that we would have to fund the $3.5 million partial loan
repayment guarantee provided on the original construction loan. Accordingly, at December 31, 2009, $3.5 million
was recorded for the guarantee (See Note 9 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and
CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional details).

During November 2006, we, along with our joint venture partner, each committed to guarantee up to $8.65
million, for an aggregate of up to $17.3 million, of 2 $34.6 million construction loan obtained by the Colonial
Promenade Smyma joint venture. We, along with our joint venture partner, each committed to provide 50% of the
$17.3 million guarantee, as each partner has a 50% ownership interest in the joint venture. Construction at this site is
complete as the project was placed into service during 2008. The guarantee provided, among other things, for a
reduction in the guarantee amount in the event the property achieves and maintains a 1.15 debt service charge.
Accordingly, during 2009, the guarantee was reduced to $4.3 million. As of December 31, 2009, the Colonial
Promenade Smyrna joint venture had $29.6 million outstanding on the construction loan, which matured in
December 2009. The joint venture is currently in negotiations with the lender on refinancing options. At December
31, 2009, no liability was recorded for the guarantee.

In connection with the formation of Highway 150 LLC in 2002, we executed a guarantee, pursuant to which
we serve as a guarantor of $1.0 million of the debt related to the joint venture, which is collateralized by the
Colonial Promenade Hoover retail property. Our maximum guarantee of $1.0 million may be requested by the
lender; only after all of the rights and remedies available under the associated note and security agreements have
been exercised and exhausted. At December 31, 2009, the total amount of debt of the joint venture was
approximately $16.1 million and the debt matures in December 2012. At December 31, 2009, no liability was
recorded for the guarantee.

In connection with the contribution of certain assets to CRLP, certain partners of CRLP have guaranteed
indebtedness of the Company totaling $21.2 million at December 31, 2009. The guarantees are held in order for the
contributing partners to maintain their tax deferred status on the contributed assets. These individuals have not been
indemnified by the Company.

As discussed above, in connection with certain retail developments, we have received funding from
municipalities for infrastructure costs. In most cases, the municipalities issue bonds that are repaid primarily from
sales tax revenues generated from the tenants at each respective development. We have guaranteed the shortfall, if
any, of tax revenues to the debt service requirements on the bonds.

The fair value of the above guarantees could change in the near term if the markets in Wthh these properties
are located deteriorate or if there are other negative indicators.

Terminated Guarantees

During February 2006, we committed to guarantee up to $4.0 million of a $27.4 million construction loan
obtained by the Colonial Grand at Canyon Creek Joint Venture. Construction at this site is complete as the project
was placed into service during 2007. This guarantee was terminated in connection with the refinancing of the
construction loan in September 2009 (see Note 9 — “Investments in Partially-Owned Entities and Other
Arrangements — Investments in Consolidated Partially-Owned Entities” in our Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K).
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During September 2005, in.connection with the acquisition of CRT with DRA, CRLP guaranteed
approximately $50.0 million of third-party financing obtained by the DRA/CRT JV with respect to 10 of the CRT
properties. This guarantee, which was set to mature in January 2010, had been reduced to $17.0 million as a result of
the pay down of associated collateralized debt from the sales of assets. In connection with the redemption of our
interests in this joint venture in November 2009, this guarantee was terminated.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2009, our pro-rata share of mortgage debt of unconsolidated joint ventures is $239.1
million. The aggregate maturities of this mortgage debt are as follows:

Of this debt, $5.9 million and $2.0 million for years 2011 and 2012, respectively, includes an option for at least a
one-year extension.

In July 2009, we agreed to provide an additional contribution to the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint
venture in connection with the refinancing of an existing $27.4 million construction loan which was secured by
Colonial Grand at Canyon Creek, a 336-unit multifamily apartment community located in Austin, Texas. On
September 14, 2009, the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture refinanced the existing construction loan with a
new $15.6 million, 10-year loan collateralized by the property with an interest rate of 5.64%. In connection with the
refinancing, we made a preferred equity contribution of $11.5 million, which was used by the joint venture to repay
the balance of the then outstanding construction loan and closing costs. The preferred equity has a cumulative
preferential return of 8.0%. As a result of the preferred equity contribution to the joint venture, we began
consolidating the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture in our financial statements beginning with the quarter
ended September 30, 2009.

As described above, in November 2009, we disposed of our 15% noncontrolling interest in the 17-asset
DRA/CRT office joint venture with DRA Advisors LLC. As a result of this transaction, we no longer have an
interest in this joint venture and we no longer have any responsibility with respect to the joint venture’s mortgage
debt, of which our pro rata share was $141.1 million on the 16 properties remaining in the joint venture. Of this
amount, approximately $117.8 million was scheduled to mature in 2010, and $7.0 million matured in 2009 and was
then in default.

In December 2009, as described above, we disposed of our 17.1% noncontrolling interest in the 11-asset
OZ/CLP Retail joint venture. As a result of this transaction, we no longer have an interest in this joint venture and
we no longer have any responsibility with respect to this joint venture’s mortgage debt, of which our pro rata share
was $50 million on the properties remaining in the joint venture.

With respect to Colonial Grand at Traditions joint venture, we and our joint venture partner each committed
to guarantee $3.5 million, for a total of $7.0 million, of a $34.1 million construction loan obtained by the joint
venture, which matures March 2010. The joint venture is currently in negotiations with the lender regarding
refinancing options for the construction loan.

As of December 31, 2009, the Colonial Promenade Smyrna joint venture had $29.6 million outstanding on
the construction loan, which matured in December 2009. We have guaranteed up to $8.65 million (currently $4.3
million) of this loan. The joint venture is currently in negotiations with the lender on refinancing options.

There can be no assurance that our joint ventures will be successful in refinancing and/or replacing existing
debt at maturity or otherwise. If the joint ventures are unable to obtain additional financing, payoff the existing loans
that are maturing, or renegotiate suitable terms with the existing lenders, the lenders generally would have the right
to foreclose on the properties in question and, accordingly, the joint ventures will lose their interests in the assets.
The failure to refinance and/or replace such debt and other factors with respect to our joint venture interests
discussed in “Item 1A: Risk Factors” of this Form 10-K may materially adversely impact the value of our joint
venture interests, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.
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Under these unconsolidated joint venture non-recourse mortgage loans, we could, under certain
circumstances, be responsible for portions of the mortgage indebtedness in connection with certain customary non-
recourse carve-out provisions, such as environmental conditions, misuse of funds, and material misrepresentations.
In addition, as more fully described above, we have made certain guarantees in connection with our investment in
unconsolidated joint ventures. We do not have any other off-balance sheet arrangements with any unconsolidated
investments or joint ventures that we believe have or are reasonably likely to have a material effect on our financial
condition, results of operations, liquidity or capital resources.

Summary of Critical Accounting Policies

We believe our accounting policies are in conformity with GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with GAAP requires management to use judgment in the application of accounting policies, including
making estimates and assumptions. These judgments affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. If our judgment or interpretation of the facts and circumstances
relating to various transactions had been different, it is possible that different accounting policies would have been
applied resulting in a different presentation of our financial statements. A comprehensive listing of our significant
accounting policies is discussed in Note 2 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP
contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. We consider the following accounting policies to be critical to our reported
operating results:

Principles of Consolidation— We consolidate entities in which we have a controlling interest or entities
where we are determined to be the primary beneficiary under ASC 810-20, Control of Partnerships and Similar
Entities. Variable interest entities (“VIEs”) are generally entities that lack sufficient equity to finance their activities
without additional financial support from other parties or whose equity holders lack adequate decision-making
ability. The primary beneficiary is required to consolidate the VIE for financial reporting purposes.

Revenue Recognition— Residential properties are leased under operating leases with terms of generally one
year or less. Rental revenues from residential leases are recognized on the straight-line method over the approximate
life of the leases, which is generally one year. The recognition of rental revenues from residential leases when
earned has historically not been materially different from rental revenues recognized on a straight-line basis.

Under the terms of residential leases, the residents of our residential communities are obligated to reimburse
us for certain utility usage, cable, water, electricity and trash, where we are the primary obligor to the public utility
entity. These utility reimbursements from residents are included as “Other property related revenue” in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss).

Rental income attributable to commercial leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
leases. Certain commercial leases contain provisions for additional rent based on a percentage of tenant sales.
Percentage rents are recognized in the period in which sales thresholds are met. Recoveries from tenants for taxes,
insurance, and other property operating expenses are recognized in the period the applicable costs are incurred in
accordance with the terms of the related lease.

Sales and the associated gains or losses on real estate assets, condominium conversion projects and for-sale
residential projects including developed condominiums are recognized in accordance with ASC 360-20, Real Estate
Sales. For condominium conversion and for-sale residential projects, sales and the associated gains for individual
condominium units are recognized upon the closing of the sale transactions, as all conditions for full profit
recognition have been met (“Completed Contract Method”). We use the relative sales value method to allocate costs
and recognize profits from condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales.

Real Estate Assets, Impairment and Depreciation— Land, buildings, and equipment is stated at the lower of
cost, less accumulated depreciation, or fair value. Undeveloped land and construction in progress is stated at cost
unless such assets are impaired in which case such assets are recorded at fair value. We review our long-lived assets
and certain intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a
comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset. If an asset is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the asset’s fair value. Assets classified as held for sale are reported at the
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lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. We determine fair value based on inputs management
believes are consistent with those other market participants would use. Estimates are significantly impacted by
estimates of sales price, selling velocity, sales incentives, construction costs and other factors. Due to uncertainties
in the estimation process, actual results could differ from such estimates. For those assets deemed to be impaired, the
impairment to be recognized is to be measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds
the fair value of the assets.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as
follows:

Furniture and fixtures 5 or 7 years
, whied W X

Eqmp e

%1?)%1’ 15 years
* Life of lease

Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to expense as incurred. Replacements and improvements are
capitalized and depreciated over the estimated remaining useful lives of the assets.

Cost Capitalization— Costs incurred during predevelopment are capitalized after we have identified a
development site, determined that a project is feasible and concluded that it is probable that the project will proceed.
While we believe we will recover this capital through the successful development of such projects, it is possible that
a write-off of unrecoverable amounts could occur. Once it is no longer probable that a development will be
successful, the predevelopment costs that have been previously capitalized are expensed.

The capitalization of costs during the development of assets (including interest, property taxes and other
direct costs) begins when an active development commences and ends when the asset, or a portion of an asset, is
delivered and is ready for its intended use. Cost capitalization during redevelopment of assets (including interest and
other direct costs) begins when the asset is taken out of service for redevelopment and ends when the asset
redevelopment is completed and the asset is placed in-service.

Acquisition of Real Estate Assets— We account for our acquisitions of investments in real estate in
accordance with ASC 805-10, Business Combinations, which requires the fair value of the real estate acquired to be
allocated to the acquired tangible assets, consisting of land, building and tenant improvements, and identified
intangible assets and liabilities, consisting of the value of above-market and below-market leases, other value of in-
place leases and value of other tenant relationships, based in each case on the fair values.

We allocate purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property (which includes the
land and building) determined by valuing the property as if it were vacant. The “as-if-vacant” value is allocated to
land and buildings based on management’s determination of the relative fair values of these assets. We also allocate
value to tenant improvements based on the estimated costs of similar tenants with similar terms.

We record acquired intangible assets (including above-market leases, customer relationships and in-place
leases) and acquired intangible liabilities (including below—market leases) at their estimated fair value separate and
apart from goodwill. We amortize identified intangible assets and liabilities that are determined to have finite lives
over the period the assets and liabilities are expected to contribute directly or indirectly to the future cash flows of
the property or business acquired. Intangible assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognized if the carrying amount of an intangible asset is not recoverable and its carrying amount exceeds its
estimated fair value.

Inflation

Leases at the multifamily properties generally provide for an initial term of six months to one year and allow
for rent adjustments at the time of renewal. Leases at the office properties typically provide for rent adjustments and
the pass-through of certain operating expenses during the term of the lease. Substantially all of the leases at the retail
properties provide for the pass-through to tenants of certain operating costs, including real estate taxes, common
area maintenance expenses, and insurance. All of these provisions permit us to increase rental rates or other charges
to tenants in response to rising prices and, therefore, serve to minimize our exposure to the adverse effects of
inflation.
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An increase in general price levels may immediately precede, or accompany, an increase in interest rates. At
December 31, 2009, our exposure to rising interest rates was mitigated by our high percentage of consolidated fixed
rate debt (80.9%). As it relates to the short-term, an increase in interest expense resulting from increasing inflation is
anticipated to be less than future increases in income before interest. B

Funds from Operations

Funds from Operations (“FFO™), as defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts
(NAREIT), means income (loss) before noncontrolling interest (determined in accordance with GAAP), excluding
sales of depreciated property, plus real estate depreciation and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and
joint ventures. FFO is presented to assist investors in analyzing our performance. We believe that FFO is useful to
investors because it provides an additional indicator of our financial and operating performance. This is because, by
excluding the effect of real estate depreciation and gains (or losses) from sales of properties (all of which are based
on historical costs which may be of limited relevance in evaluating current performance), FFO can facilitate
comparison of operating performance among equity REITs. FFO is a widely recognized measure in the company’s
industry. We believe that the line on our consolidated statements of operations entitled “net income available to
common sharcholders” is the most directly comparable GAAP measure to FFO. Historical cost accounting for real
estate assets implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate
values instead have historically risen or fallen with market conditions, many industry investors and analysts have
considered presentation of operating results for real estate companies that use historical cost accounting to be
insufficient by themselves. Thus, NAREIT created FFO as a supplemental measure of REIT operating performance
that excludes historical cost depreciation, among other items, from GAAP net income. Management believes that the
use of FFO, combined with the required primary GAAP presentations, has been fundamentally beneficial, improving
the understanding of operating results of REITs among the investing public and making comparisons of REIT
operating results more meaningful. In addition to company management evaluating the operating performance of our
reportable segments based on FFO results, management uses FFO and FFO per share, along with other measures, to
assess performance in connection with evaluating and granting incentive compensation to key employees. Our
method of calculating FFO may be different from methods used by other REITs and, accordingly, may not be
comparable to such other REITs. FFO should not be considered (1) as an alternative to net income (determined in
accordance with GAAP), (2) as an indicator of financial performance, (3) as cash flow from operating activities
(determined in accordance with GAAP) or (4) as a measure of liquidity nor is it indicative of sufficient cash flow to
fund all of the company’s needs, including our ability to make distributions. .

The following information is provided to reconcile net income available to common shareholders, the most
comparable GAAP financial measure, to FFO, and to show the items included in our FFO for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007,. 2006 and 2005.
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in thousands except per share and unit data)

oncontrolling interest i
Noncontrolling interest in gam on sale of
undepremated pro erty )
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ns from sales of undepr
income tax and minority interest 4,327

) Real eétate de reciation

4.958)  (18.943)
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Welghted average shares and units outstanqylggw ba&sw

Weighted average shares and units outstanding — diluted 61,785 56,904 57,200 56,605 49,189

(1)  Represents the weighted average of outstanding units of noncontrolling interest in CRLP.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Market Risk”.
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COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share data)

December 31, December 31,
2009 2008

Accumulated depreciat’
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Net real egtate assets

$ 3172632 § 3,155, 169
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71,704, 343* 1.762.019

Comrmtments and Contlngengles (see Note 19)
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8 1/% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares of Beneficial Interest,
liquidation preference $25 per depositary share, 4,004,735 and 4,011,250
dep051tary shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008,

'Cumulatlve distributions

v
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

For the Years Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2|

318,554

Other non-property related revenue
Tota] revenue

-
enses
i .

: cturing ¢
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fation LI DL

O er 1ncome (expense).
Inferest expensd and debt cost Amortizat
Gams (losses) on retirement of debt

(L6s868) gamision hedpindactiviies
Gains from sales of property, net-of i income taxes of $3,157, $1,546 and $6,548 for
2008 and 2007, respectlvely

fncome tax beneﬁt andsiher

E

‘Noncontrolling inferest of limited partners
Discontinued operations
No! ﬁmtmli;ng Tierest i CREP from disco
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. %‘*\‘\ Vel

Welghted average common shares outstandin|
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Weishted averasd comnion shares Sutstandi

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands, except per share data)
For the Years Ended D ber 31, 2009, 2008, 2007

Additional Accumulated Other Total Redeemable
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COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
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COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

As used 'herein, “the Company,” “Colonial” or the “Trust” means Colonial Properties Trust, an Alabama real
estate investment trust (“REIT”), together with its subsidiaries, including Colonial Realty Limited Partnership, a
Delaware limited partnership (“CRLP”), Colonial Properties Services, Inc. (“CPSI”), Colonial Properties Services
Limited Partnership (“CPSLP”) and CLNL Acquisition Sub, LLC (“CLNL”). The Company was originally formed
as a Maryland REIT on July 9, 1993 and reorganized as an Alabama REIT under a new Alabama REIT statute on
August 21,1995. The Company is a multifamily-focused self-administered and self-managed equity REIT, which
means that it is engaged in the acquisition, development, ownership, management and leasing of multifamily
apartment communities and other commercial real estate properties. The Company’s activities include full or partial
ownership and operation of a portfolio of 156 properties as of December 31, 2009, consisting of multifamily and
commercial properties located in Alabama, Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Nevada, North Carolina, South Carolina,
Tennessee, Texas and Virginia. As of December 31, 2009, including properties in lease-up, the Company owns
interests in 111 multifamily apartment communities (including 105 consolidated properties, of which 104 are
wholly-owned and one is partially-owned and six properties partially-owned through unconsolidated joint venture
entities), and 45 commercial properties, consisting of 30 office properties (including four wholly-owned
consolidated properties and 26 properties partially-owned through unconsolidated joint venture entities) and 15 retail
properties (including five wholly-owned consolidated properties and 10 properties partially-owned through
unconsolidated joint venture entities). ’ ' :

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation—The Company owns substantially all of its assets and conducts all of its operations
through CRLP. The Company is the sole general partner of CRLP and owned an approximate 89.1% and 84.6%
interest in CRLP at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Due to the Company’s ability as general partner to
control CRLP and various other subsidiaries, each such entity has been consolidated for financial reporting
purposes. CRLP, an SEC registrant, files separate financial statements under the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, as amended. The Company allocates income to the noncontrolling interest in CRLP based on the weighted
average noncontrolling ownership percentage for the periods presented in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Comprehensive Income (Loss). At the end of each period, the Company adjusts the Consolidated Balance Sheet
for CRLP’s noncontrolling interest balance based on the noncontrolling ownership percentage at the end of the
period. : : o ‘

The Company also consolidates other entities in which it has a controlling interest or entities where it is
determined to be the primary beneficiary under Accounting Standards Codification “ASC” 810-20, Control of
Partnerships and Similar Entities. Under ASC 810-20, variable interest entities (“VIEs”) are generally entities that
lack sufficient equity to finance their activities without additional financial support from other parties or whose
equity holders lack adequate decision-making ability. The primary beneficiary is required to consolidate the VIE for
financial reporting purposes. The application of ASC 810-20 requires management to make significant estimates and
Judgments about the Company’s-and its other partners’ rights, obligations and economic interests in such entities.
Where the Company has less than a controlling financial interest in an entity or the Company is not the primary
beneficiary of the entity, the entity is accounted for on the equity method of accounting. Accordingly, the
Company’s share of net earnings or losses of these entities is included in consolidated net income.. A description of
the Company’s investments accounted for using the equity method of accounting is included in Note 9. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company recognizes noncontrolling interest in its Consolidated Balance Sheets for partially-owned entities
that the Company consolidates. The noncontrolling partners’ share of current operations is reflected in
“Noncontrolling Interest of limited partners” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss). ' ' '
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In 2009, the Company corrected its presentation of proceeds and payments on revolving lines of credit in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of 2008 and 2007 to present these amounts gross. Previously, such terms
were reported on a net basis. L : ‘ :

Federal Income Tax Status—The Company, which is considered a corporation for federal income tax purposes,
qualifies as a REIT and generally will not be subject to federal income tax to the extent it distributes its REIT
taxable income to its shareholders. REITs are subject to a number of organizational and operational requirements. If
the Company. fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, the Company will be subject to federal income tax on its
taxable income at regular corporate rates. The Company may also be subject to certain federal, state and.local taxes
on its income and property and to federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed income even if it does qualify
as a REIT. For example, the Company will be subject to income tax to the extent it distributes less than 100% of its
REIT taxable income (including capital gains), and the Company has certain gains that, if recognized, will be
subject to corporate tax because it acquired the assets in tax-free acquisitions of non-REIT corporations.

The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the operations of a taxable REIT subsidiary, CPSI,
which is not entitled to a dividends paid deduction and is subject to federal, state and local income taxes. CPSI uses
the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities result from temporary
differenccs.‘Temporary_ differences are differences between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported

'

amounts ini the ﬁﬁa’néial statements that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in future periods. All
intercompany traﬁ'_sacti'ons are eliminated in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. CPSI has an’
income tax receivable of $17.8 million and $10.1 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which is
inctuded in “Accounts receivable, net” on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet. CPSI’s consolidated '
provision (benefit) for income taxes was ($7.9) miltion, $0.8 million and ($7.4) million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. CPSI’s effective income tax rate was 50.15%, -0.90% and 41.87%

for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

As of December 31, 2009 the Company did not have a deferred tax asset after the effect of the valuation
allowance. As of December 31, 2008, the Company had a net deferred tax asset of $9.3 million;, which resulted
primarily from the impairmert charge related to the Company’s for-sale residential properties. The portion of the net
deferred tax asset that the Company deemed recoverable approximated the amount of unutilized carryback potential
related to the 2007 tax year. - ' - ’ o B

On February 17, 2009; the- American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (the “Act”) was signed into law. .
Section 1231 of the Act allows some business taxpayers to elect to defer cancellation of indebtedness income when
the taxpayer repurchases applicable debt instruments after December .31, 2008 and before January 1, 2011. Under-
the Act, the cancellation of indebtedness income in 2009 could be deferred for five years (until 2014), and the - -
cancellation of indebtedness income in 2010 could be deferred for four years (until 2014), subject in both cases to
acceleration events. After the deferral period, 20% of the cancellation of indebtedness income would be included in
taxpayer’s gross income in each of the next five taxable years. The deferral is an irrevocable election made on the
taxpayer’s income tax return for the taxable year of the reacquisition. The Company anticipates making this election
with regard to a portion of the CRLP debt repurchased in 2009. - ' B i o o

On November 6, 2009, the Worker, Homeownership, and Business Assistance Act of 2009 was signed into law,
which expands the net operating loss (“NOL”) carryback rules to allow businesses to carryback NOLs incurred in
either 2008 or 2009 up to five years. As.a result of the new legislation, CPSI will carryback tax losses that occurred
in the year ending December 31, 2009, against income that was recognized in 2005 and 2006. During the fourth
quarter 2009, CPSI recorded an income tax benefit as a result of the new NOL carryback rules. Refunds are
anticipated to be collected in 2010..

Tax years 2003 thrbugh 2008 are s@bj ect to examination by the federal taxing authorities. Generally, tax years
2006 through 2008 are subject to examination by state tax authorities. There is one state tax examination currently in
process. C -

The Company may frbm {ime to time be assessed interest or penalties by major tax jurisdictions, although any
such assessments historically have been minimal and immaterial to our financial results. When the Company has
received an assessment for interest and/or penalties, it has been classified in the financial statements as income tax
expense.
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Real Estate Assets, Impairment and Depreciation—Land, buildings, and equipment is stated at the lower of
cost, less accumulated depreciation, or fair value. Undeveloped land and construction in progress is stated at cost
unless such assets are impaired in which case such assets are recorded at fair value. The Company reviews its long-
lived assets and certain intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by
a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset. Assets classified as held for sale are reported at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to
sell. The Company’s determination of fair value is based on inputs management believes are consistent with those
that market participants would use. Estimates are significantly impacted by estimates of sales price, selling velocity,
sales incentives, construction costs and other factors. Due to uncertainties in the estimation process, actual results
could differ from such estimates. For those assets deemed to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is to be
measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:
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Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Replacements and improvements are capitalized
and depreciated over the estimated remaining useful lives of the assets.

Acquisition of Real Estate Assets— The Company accounts for its acquisitions of investments in real estate in
accordance with ASC 805-10, Business Combinations, which requires the fair value of the real estate acquired to be
allocated to the acquired tangible assets, consisting of land, building and tenant improvements, and identified
intangible assets and liabilities, consisting of the value of above-market and below-market leases, other value of in-
place leases and value of other tenant relationships, based in each case on the fair values.

The Company allocates purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property (which
includes the land and building) determined by valuing the property as if it were vacant. The “as-if-vacant” value is
allocated to land and buildings based on management’s determination of the relative fair values of these assets. The
Company also allocates value to tenant improvements based on the estimated costs of similar tenants with similar
terms.

The Company records acquired intangible assets (including above-market leases, customer relationships and in-
place leases) and acquired intangible liabilities (including below-market leases) at their estimated fair value separate
and apart from goodwill. The Company amortizes identified intangible assets and liabilities that are determined to
have finite lives over the period the assets and liabilities are expected to contribute directly or indirectly to the future
cash flows of the property or business acquired. Intangible assets subject to amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an 1ntang1b1e asset is not recoverable and its
carrying amount exceeds its estimated fair value.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had $13.0 million, $2.0 million, and $12.4 million of unamortized in-
place lease intangible assets, net market lease intangibles and intangibles related to relationships with customers,
respectively. The aggregate amortization expense for in-place lease intangible assets recorded during 2009, 2008,
and 2007 was $0.2 million, $0.5 million, and $7.3 million, respectively.

Cost Capitalization—Costs incurred during predevelopment are capitalized after the Company has identified a
development site, determined that a project is feasible and concluded that it is probable that the project will proceed.
While the Company believes it will recover this capital through the successful development of such projects, it is
possible that a write-off of unrecoverable amounts could occur. Once it is no longer probable that a development
will be successful, the predevelopment costs that have been previously capitalized are expensed.
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The capitalization of costs during the development of assets (including interest, property taxes and other direct
costs) begins when an active development commences and ends when the asset, or a portion of an asset, is
completed and is ready for its intended use. Cost capitalization during redevelopment of assets (including interest
and other direct costs) begins when the asset is taken out-of-service for redevelopment and ends when the asset
redevelopment is completed and the asset is transferred back into service.

Cash and Equivalents—The Company includes highly liquid marketable securities and debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less in cash equivalents. The majority of the Company’s cash and
equivalents are held at major commercial banks.

The Company has included in accounts payable book overdrafts representing outstanding checks in excess of
funds on deposit of $3.9 million and $10.3 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Restricted Cash—Restricted cash is comprised of cash balances which are legally restricted as to use and
consists primarily of resident and tenant deposits, deposits on for-sale residential lots and units and cash in escrow
for self insurance retention.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had repurchased all of the outstanding community development district
(“CDD”) special assessment bonds at its Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac development and the CDD was
subsequently dissolved. The Company released $17.4 million of net cash proceeds from the bond issuance, which
had been held in escrow. At December 31, 2008, “Restricted cash” on the Company’s Balance Sheet included $20.2
million of CDD special assessment bonds (see Note 19).

Valuation of Receivables— Due to the short-term nature of the leases at the Company’s multifamily properties,
generally six months to one year, the Company’s exposure to tenant defaults and bankruptcies is minimized. The
Company’s policy is to record allowances for all outstanding receivables greater than 30 days past due at its
multifamily properties.

The Company is subject to tenant defaults and bankruptcies at its commercial properties that could affect the
collection of outstanding receivables. In order to mitigate these risks, the Company performs a credit review and
analysis on commercial tenants and significant leases before they are executed. The Company evaluates the
collectability of outstanding receivables and records allowances as appropriate. The Company’s policy is to record
allowances for all outstanding invoices greater than 60 days past due at its office and retail properties.

The Company had an allowance for doubtful accounts of $1.7 million and $1.0 million as of December 31, 2009
and 2008, respectively.

'Notes Receivable— Notes receivable consist primarily of promissory notes issued to third parties. The Company
records notes receivable at cost. The Company evaluates the collectability of both interest and principal for each of
its notes to determine whether it is impaired. A note is considered to be impaired when, based on current information
and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the existing
contractual terms. When a note is considered to be impaired, the amount of the allowance is calculated by
comparing the recorded investment to either the value determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at
the note’s effective interest rate or to the fair value of the collateral if the note is collateral dependent.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had notes receivable of $24.1 million, primarily consisting of the
following:

(1) In February 2009, the Company disposed of Colonial Promenade at Fultondale for $30.7 million, which
included $16.9 million of seller-financing for a term of five years at an interest rate of 5.6% (see Note 5).

(2) InNovember 2009, the Company disposed of a tract of land for $7.3 million, which included $5.0 million
of seller-financing for a term of six months at an interest rate of 7.5%. »

The Company had accrued interest related to its outstanding notes receivable of $0.1 million and $0.1 million as
of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had recorded a
reserve of $1.9 million and $1.5 million, respectively, against its outstanding notes receivable and accrued interest.
The weighted average interest rate on the notes receivable outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was
approximately 6.0% and 5.9%, respectively. Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.
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The Company received principal payments of $2.2 million and $1.7 million on these and other outstanding
subordinated loans during 2009 and 2008, respectively. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had
outstanding notes receivable balances of $22.2 million, net of a $1.9 million reserve, and $2.9 million, net of a $1.5
million reserve, respectively.

Deferred Debt and Lease Costs—Deferred debt costs consist of loan fees and related expenses which are
amortized on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective interest method, over the terms of the related
debt. Deferred lease costs include leasing charges, direct salaries and other costs incurred by the Company to
originate a lease, which are amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related leases.

Derivative Instruments—All derivative instruments are recognized on the balance sheet and measured at fair
value. Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge treatment must be recorded at fair value with gains or losses
recognized in earnings in the period of change. The Company enters into derivative financial instruments from time
to time, but does not use them for trading or speculative purposes. Interest rate cap agreements and interest rate swap
agreements are used to reduce the potential impact of increases in interest rates on variable-rate debt.

The Company formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as
its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge (see Note 12). This process includes specific
identification of the hedging instrument and the hedged transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness in hedging the exposure to the hedged transaction’s variability in cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk will be assessed. Both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the
Company assesses whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in cash flows or fair values of hedged items. The Company discontinues hedge accounting if a derivative is
not determined to be highly effective as a hedge or has ceased to be a highly effective hedge.

Share-Based Compensation—The Company currently sponsors share option plans and restricted share award
plans (see Note 15). The Company accounts for share based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, Stock
Compensation, which requires compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in
financial statements.

Revenue Recognition— Residential properties are leased under operating leases with terms of generally one
year or less. Rental revenues from residential leases are recognized on the straight-line method over the approximate
life of the leases, which is generally one year. The recognition of rental revenues from residential leases when
earned has historically not been materially different from rental revenues recognized on a straight-line basis.

Under the terms of residential leases, the residents of the Company’s residential communities are obligated to
reimburse the Company for certain utility usage, cable, water, electricity and trash, where the Company is the
primary obligor to the utility entity. These utility reimbursements from residents are included as “Other property
related revenue” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss).

Rental income attributable to commercial leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
leases. Certain commercial leases contain provisions for additional rent based on a percentage of tenant sales.
Percentage rents are recognized in the period in which sales thresholds are met. Recoveries from tenants for taxes,
insurance, and other property operating expenses are recognized in the period the applicable costs are incurred in
accordance with the terms of the related lease.

Sales and the associated gains or losses on real estate assets, condominium conversion projects and for-sale
residential projects including developed condominiums are recognized in accordance with ASC 360-20, Real Estate
Sales. For condominium conversion and for-sale residential projects, sales and the associated gains for individual
condominium units are recognized upon the closing of the sale transactions, as all conditions for full profit
recognition have been met (“Completed Contract Method”). The Company uses the relative sales value method to
allocate costs and recognize profits from condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales.

Estimated future warranty costs on condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales are charged to cost of
sales in the period when the revenues from such sales are recognized. Such estimated warranty costs are
approximately 0.5% of total revenue. As necessary, additional warranty costs are charged to costs of sales based on
management’s estimate of the costs to remediate existing claims.

83



Revenue from construction contracts is recognized on the percentage-of-completion method, measured by the
percentage of costs incurred to date to estimated total costs. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted
contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined. Adjustments to estimated profits on contracts
are recognized in the period in which such adjustments become known.

Other income received from long-term contracts signed.in the normal course of business, including property
management and development fee income, is recognized when earned for services provided to third parties,
including joint ventures in which the Company owns a noncontrolling interest.

Net Income Per Share— Basic net income per common share is computed under the “two class method” as
described in ASC 260, Earnings per Share. The two-class method is an earnings allocation formula that determines
earnings per share for each class of common stock and participating security according to dividends declared and
participation rights in undistributed earnings. According to the guidance, the Company has included share-based
payment awards that have non-forfeitable rights to dividends prior to vesting as participating securities. Diluted net
income per common share is computed by dividing the net income available to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period, the dilutive effect of restricted shares
issued, and the assumed conversion of all potentially dilutive outstanding share options. '

Self Insurance Accruals—The Company is self insured up to certain limits for general liability claims, workers’
compensation claims, property claims and health insurance claims. Amounts are accrued currently for the estimated
cost of claims incurred, both reported and unreported.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Segment Reporting—The Company reports on its segments in accordance with ASC 260, Segment Reporting,
which defines an operating segment as a component of an enterprise that engages in business activities that generate
revenues and incur expenses, which operating results are reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in the
determination of resource allocation and performance and for which discrete financial information is available. The
Company manages its business based on the performance of two separate operating segments: multifamily and
commercial.

Noncontrolling Interests and Redeemable Common Units— Amounts reported as limited partners’ interest in
consolidated partnerships on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets are presented as noncontrolling interests
within equity. Additionally, amounts reported as preferred units in CRLP are presented as noncontrolling interests
within equity. Noncontrolling interests in common units of CRLP are included in the temporary equity section
(between liabilities and equity) of the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets because of the redemption feature of
these units. These units are redeemable at the option of the holders for cash equal to the fair market value of a
common share at the time of redemption or, at the option of the Company, one common share. Based on the
requirements of ASC 480-10-S99, the measurement of noncontrolling interests is presented at
“redemption value” — i.e., the fair value of the units (or limited partners’ interests) as of the balance sheet date
(based on the Company’s share price multiplied by the number of outstanding units), or the aggregate value of the
individual partners’ capital balances, whichever is greater. See the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 for the presentation and related activity of the
noncontrolling interests and redeemable common units.

Investments in Joint Ventures — To the extent that the Company contributes assets to a joint venture, the
Company’s investment in the joint venture is recorded at the Company’s cost basis in the assets that were
contributed to the joint venture. To the extent that the Company’s cost basis is different from the basis reflected at
the joint venture level, the basis difference is amortized over the life of the related assets and included in the
Company’s share of equity in net income of the joint venture. In accordance ASC 323, Investments — Equity
Method and Joint Ventures, the Company recognizes gains on the contribution of real estate to joint ventures,
relating solely to the outside partner’s interest, to the extent the economic substance of the transaction is a sale. On a
periodic basis, management assesses whether there are any indicators that the value of the Company’s investments
in unconsolidated joint ventures may be impaired. An investment’s value is impaired only if management’s estimate
of the fair value of the investment is less than the carrying value of the investment and such difference is deemed to
be other than temporary. To the extent impairment has occurred, the loss shall be measured as the excess of the
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carrying amount of the investment over the estimated fair value of the investment. During 2009, the Company
determined that its 35% noncontrolling joint venture interest-in Colonial Grand Traditions was impaired and that this
impairment was other than temporary. As a result, the Company recognized a non-cash impairment charge of $0:2
million during 2009.:Other than Colonial:Grand at Traditions, the Company has determined that these investments
were not other than temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. :

Investment and Development Expenses — Tnvestment and development expenses consist prlmanly of costs
related to potent1a1 mergers, acquisitions, and abandoned development pursuits. Abandoned development costsare
costs incurred prior to land acquisition including contract deposits, as well as legal, engineering and other external
professional fees related to evaluating the feasibility of such developments. If the Company determines that it is
probable that it will not develop a particular project, any related pre-development costs prev1ous1y incurred are
immediately expensed. The Company recorded $2.0 m11hon $4.4 million and $1.5 million i in investment and
development expenses in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value — The Company applies ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements
and Disclosures, which defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in a transaction between willing market participants. Addltlonal disclosures focusing on the methods used to
determine fair value are also required using the following hlerarchy ’

* - Level'l — Quoted prlces in active markets for 1dentlca1 assets or-liabilities that are acce551ble at the
measurement date.

J Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are obs_ervablefor the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly. o

¢ Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.

The Company applies ASC 820 in relation to the valuation of real estate assets recorded at fair value, to its
impairment valuation analysis of real estate assets (see Note 4) and to its disclosure of the fair value of finaricial
instruments, principally indebtedness (see Note 11) and notes receivable (see above). The following table presents
the Company’s real estate assets, notes receivable and long-term indebtedness reported at fair market value and the
related level in the fair value hierarchy as defined by ASC 820 used to measure those assets, liabilities and
disclosures at December 31, 2009:

(in thousands) . __Fair value measurements as of December 31. 2009:
Assets (Liabilities) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Real estate assets, including land held for sale $51,965 $— $— $51,965

Real estate assets, including land held for sale were valued using-sales activity for similar assets, current
contracts and using inputs management believes are consistent with those that market participants would use.

At December 31, 2009, the estimated fair value of fixed-rate debt-was approxirately $1.35 billion (carrying
value of $1.38 b11110n) and the estimated fair value of the Company s variable rate debt, including the Company S
line of credit, is consistent with the carrying value of $323.9 m11110n '

At December 31, 2009, the estimated fair value of the Company’s notes receivable was approximately $22.2
million based on market rates and similar ﬁnancmg arrangements

Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted —In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 51, now-known as .
ASC 810-10-65, which establishes accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary
and for-the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is an ownership
interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements under-
certain circumstances. ASC 810-10-65 requires consolidated net income to be reported at amounts that include the
amounts attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest. ASC 810-10-65 also requires disclosure, on
the face of'the consolidated statements of operations, of the amounts of consolidated net income attributable to'the
parent and to the noncontrolling interest. The provisions of ASC 810-10-65 became effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008, including interim periods beginning January 1, 2009. Based on the Company’s
evaluation of ASC 810-10-65, the Company has concluded that it will continue to classify its noncontrolling interest
related to CRLP common units held by limited partners as “temporary equity” in its consolidated balance sheet. As
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discussed above, these common units are redeemable for either common shares of the Company or, at the option of
the. Company, cash equal to the fair market value of a common share at the time of redemption. The Company has
classified these common units of CRLP as temporary equity. This is primarily due to the fact that the Company has
provided registration rights to CRLP common unitholders, which effectively require the Company to provide the
ability to resell exchanged shares under a “resale” registration statement when presented by the exchanging
unitholders. As the ability to effectively issue marketable shares under the provision of the registration rights
agreements is outside of the exclusive control of the Company, the Company has concluded that it does not meet the
requirements for permanent equity classification under the prov1s1ons of ASC 815-40, Contracts in an Entity’s Own
Equity. All other noncontrolling interests are classified as equity in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Also effective with the adoption of ASC 810-10, previously reported noncontrolling interests have been re-
characterized on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations to noncontrolling 1nterests and placed
below “Net income (loss)” before arriving at “Net income (loss) attributable to parent company.”

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP EITF 03-6-1, Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based
Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities, now known as ASC 260-10-65-2, which addresses whether
instruments granted in share-based payment transactions are participating securities prior to vesting and, therefore,
need to be included in the earriings allocation in computing earnings per share under the two-class method as .
described in ASC 260, Earnings per Share. Under the guidance in ASC 260-10-65-2, unvested share-based payment
awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are
participating securities and shall be included in the computation of earnings per share pursuant to the two-class
method. ASC 260-10-65-2 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. All prior-period earnings per share data presented has been
adjusted retrospectively. The adoption of ASC 260-10-65-2 requires the Company to include participating securities
in the computation of earnings per share calculation (see Note 21). The application of this FSP did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, now known as ASC 825-10, Financial Instruments. ASC 825-10 amends SFAS No. 107 to
require disclosures about fair value of financial instruments for interim reporting periods of publicly traded '
companies in addition to the annual financial statements. ASC 825-10 also amends APB No. 28 to require those
disclosures in summarized financial information at interim reporting periods. ASC 825-10 is effective for interim
periods ending after June 15, 2009. Prior period presentation is not required for comparative purposes at initial
adoption. The adoption of ASC 825-10 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events, now known as ASC 855-10, Subsequent
Events. ASC 855-10 establishes the principles and requirements for recognizing and disclosing subsequent events
under GAAP. ASC 855-10 incorporates the principles and accounting guidance that originated as auditing standards
into the body of authoritative literature issued by the FASB, as well as prescribes disclosure regarding the date
through which subsequent events have been evaluated. Companies are required to evaluate subsequent events
through the date the financial statements are issued. ASC 855-10 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods
ending after June 15, 2009. The adoption of ASC 855-10 did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Effective- In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, Amendments to
FASB Interpretation No. FIN 46(R), now known as ASC 810-10-30, Initial Measurement. ASC 810-10-30 amends
the manner in which entities evaluate whether consolidation is required for variable interest entities (VIEs). A
company must first performa qualitative analysis in determining whether it must consolidate a VIE, and if the
qualitative analysis is not determinative, must perform a quantitative analysis. Further, ASC 810-10-30 requires that
companies continually evaluate VIEs for consolidation, rather than assessing based upon the occurrence.of
triggering events. ASC 810-10-30 also requires enhanced disclosures about how a company’s involvement with a
VIE affects its financial statements and exposure to risks. ASC 810-10-30 is effective for fiscal years and interim
periods beginning after November 15, 2009. The Company is currently assessing the impact of ASC 810-10-30.
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3. Restructuring Charges

During 2009, the Company reduced its workforce by 90 employees through the elimination of certain positions
resulting in the Company incurring an aggregate of $1.4 million in termination benefits and severance-related
charges. Of the $1.4 million in restructuring charges recorded in 2009, approximately $0.5 million was associated
with the Company’s multifamily segment, including $0.2 million associated with development personnel, $0.8
million was associated with the Company’s commercial segment, including $0.3 million associated with
development personnel and $0.1 million of these restructuring costs were non-divisional charges. Of the $1.4
million of restructuring charges in 2009,-$0.7 million is accrued in “Accrued expenses” on the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2009.

On December 30, 2008, Weston M. Andress resigned from the Company, including his positions as President
and Chief Financial Officer and as a member of the Board of Trustees of the Company. In connection with his
resignation, the Company and Mr. Andress entered into a severance agreement resulting in a cash payment of $1.3
million. In addition, all of Mr. Andress’ unvested restricted stock and non-qualified stock options granted on his
behalf were forfeited, and as a result, previously recognized stock based compensation expense of $1.8 million was
reversed. Therefore, due to the resignation of Mr. Andress, a net of ($0.5) million was recognized as “Restructuring
charges” on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) reducing the
Company’s overall expense.

Additionally, in 2008, the Company reevaluated its operating strategy as it related to certain aspects of its -
business and decided to postpone/phase future development activities in an effort to focus on maintaining efficient
operations of the current portfolio. As a result, the Company reduced its workforce by 87 employees through the
elimination of certain positions resulting in the Company incurring an aggregate of $1.5 million in termination
benefits and severance related charges. Of the $1.5 million in restructuring:charges, approximately $0.6 million was
associated with the Company’s multifamily segment, $0.5 million with the Company’s commercial segment and
$0.4 million of these restructuring costs were non-divisional charges.

As.a result of the actions noted above in 2008, the Company recognized $1.0 million of restructuring charges
during 2008, of which $0.5 million is accrued in “Accrued expenses”.on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet
at December 31, 2008.

During 2007, as a direct result of the strategic initiative to become a multifamily focused REIT, the Company
incurred $3.0 million in termination benefits and severance costs. Of the $3.0 million in restructuring charges,
approximately $0.5 million was associated with the Company’s multifamily segment and $1.0 million with the
Company’s commercial segment. The remainder of these restructuring costs was non-divisional charges.

4. Impairment

High unemployment and overall economic deterioration continued to adversely affect the condominium and
single family housing markets in 2009. The for-sale real estate markets remained unstable due to the limited
availability of lending and other types of mortgages, the tightening of credit standards and an oversupply of such
assets, resulting in reduced sales velocity and reduced pricing in the real estate market.

During 2009, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $12.4 million. Of the $10.4 million presented in
“Impairment and other losses” in continuing operations on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), $10.3 million relates to a reduction of the carrying value of certain of its
for-sale residential assets, a retail development and certain land parcels. The $2.0 million presented in “Income
(loss) from discontinued operations” on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) relates to the sell out of the remaining units at two of the Company’s condominium
conversion properties. The remaining amount in continuing operations, $0.1 million, was recorded as the result of
fire damage at one of the Company’s multifamily apartment communities. In addition to these impairment charges,
the Company determined that it is probable that it will have to fund the $3.5 million partial loan repayment
guarantee provided on the original construction loan for Colonial Grand at Traditions, a joint venture asset in which
the Company has a 35% noncontrolling interest, and recognized a charge to earnings. This charge is reflected in
“(Loss) income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities” on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss).
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During 2008, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $116.9 million. Of the $93.1 million presented in
“Impairment and other losses” in continuing operations on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), $35.9 million is attributable to certain of the Company’s completed for-
sale residential properties, $36.2 million is attributable to land held for future sale and for-sale residential and
mixed-use developments and $19.3 million is attributable to a retail development. The remaining amount in
continuing operations, $1.7 million, relates to casualty losses due to fire damage at four apartment communities. The
$25.5 million presented in “Income (loss) from discontinued operations” on the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) relates to condominium conversion properties.
The impairment charge was calculated as the difference between the estimated fair value of each property and the
Company’s current book value plus the estimated costs to complete. The Company also incurred $4.4 million of
abandoned pursuit costs as a result of the Company’s decision to postpone future development activities (including
previously identified future development projects).

During 2007, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $46.6 million. The $43.3 million presented in
“Impairment and other losses” in continuing operations on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) relates to a reduction of the carrying value of certain of its for-sale
residential developments and condominium conversions to their estimated fair value, due primarily to a softening in
the condominium market and certain units that were under contract did not close because buyers elected not to
consummate the purchase of the units. The $2.5 million presented in “Income (loss) from discontinued operations”
on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) relates to a
retail asset that was subsequently sold during 2007. The remaining amount in continuing operations, $0.8 million,
was recorded as the result of casualty losses due to fire damage at two apartment communities.

The Company will continue to monitor the specific facts and circumstances at the Company’s for-sale properties
and development projects. If market conditions do not improve or if there is further market deterioration, it may
impact the number of projects the Company can sell, the timing of the sales and/or the prices at which the Company
can sell them in future periods. If the Company is unable to sell projects, the Company may incur additional
impairment charges on projects previously impaired as well as on projects not currently impaired but for which
indicators of impairment may exist, which would decrease the value of the Company’s assets as reflected on the
balance sheet and adversely affect net income and shareholders’ equity. There can be no assurances of the amount or
pace of future for-sale residential sales and closings, particularly given current market conditions.

5. Property Acquisitions and Dispositions
Property Acquisitions

In September 2009, the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture refinanced the existing construction loan with
anew $15.6 million, 10-year loan collateralized by the property with an interest rate of 5.64%. In connection with
the refinancing, the Company made a preferred equity contribution of $11.5 million, which was used by the joint
venture to repay the balance of the then outstanding construction loan and closing costs. As a result of the preferred
equity contribution to the joint venture, the Company began consolidating the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint
venture in its financial statements beginning with the quarter ending September 30, 2009. In November 2009, the
Company disposed of its 15% ownership interest in the DRA/CRT office joint and acquired 100% ownership of one
of the joint venture’s properties, Three Ravinia. In connection with this transaction, the Company made aggregate
payments of $127.2 miltion ($102.5 million of which was used to repay existing indebtedness secured by Three
Ravinia). In December 2009, the Company disposed of its 17.1% ownership interest in the OZ/CLP Retail joint
venture-and made a cash payment of $45.1 million to the joint venture partner. As part of the transaction, the
Company received 100% ownership of one of the joint venture assets, Colonial Promenade Alabaster (see Note 9
and 11).

During 2008, the Company acquired the remaining 75% interest in one multifamily apartment community
containing 270 units for a total cost of $18.4 million, which consisted of the assumption of $14.7 million of existing
mortgage debt ($3.7 million of which was previously unconsolidated by the Company as a 25% partner) and $7.4
million of cash. During 2007, the Company acquired four multifamily apartment communities containing 1,084
units for an aggregate cost of approximately $138.2 million, which consisted of the assumption of $18.9 million of
existing mortgage debt ($6.6 million of which was previously unconsolidated by the Company as a 35% partner)
and $125.4 million of cash. Also, during 2007, the Company acquired a partnership interest in three multifamily
apartment communities containing 775 units for an aggregate cost of approximately $12.3 million, which consisted
of $9.5 million of newly issued mortgage debt and $2.8 million of cash.
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The consolidated operating properties acquired during 2009, 2008 and 2007 are listed below:

Effective
Location Acquisition Date Units/Square Feet (1)
(unaudited)

=
h

Jangq/rx‘?;l 4'2007
anuary 31,2007
March 1‘ 2007 300

Colonial Promenade Alab ster Bmmngham AL December 14, 2009 - 288,000

(1) Retail square footage excludes anchored-owned square footage.

Results of operations of these properties, subsequent to their respective acquisition dates, are included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company. The cash paid to acquire these properties is included in the
consolidated statements of cash flows. For properties acquired through acquisitions, assets were recorded at fair
value based on an independent third party appraisal and internal models using assumptions consistent with those
made by other market participants. The property acquisitions during 2009, 2008 and 2007 are comprised of the
following:

2009 2008 2007 _

Assefs purc
Land, bulldlngs and equipment

$ 22297 $144 229

(14 700)

Total consideration $236,189(2) § 7,369 $125,400

(1) Includes $13.0 million, $2.0 million and $12.4 million of unamortized in-place lease intangible assets, above
(below) market lease intangibles and intangibles related to relationships with customers, respectively.

(2) See Note 9 and Note 11 regarding details for these transactions.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and
2007, give effect to the above operating property acquisitions as if they had occurred at the beginning of the periods
presented. The information for the year ended December 31, 2009 includes pro forma results for the months during
the year prior tothe acquisition date and actual results from the date of acquisition through the end of the year. The
pro forma results are not intended to be indicative of the results of future operations.

*#k4% Pro Forma (Unaudited) ***%*
Year Ended December 31,
in thousands, except per share data 2009
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Property Dispositions — Continuing Operations

During 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company sold various consolidated parcels of land for an aggregate sales price
of $10.7 million, $16.6 million and $15.2 million, respectively, which were used to repay a portion of the
borrowings under the Company’s unsecured credit facility and for general corporate purposes.

During 2009, the Company sold its joint venture interest in six multifamily apartment communities, representing
1,906 units, its joint venture interest in an office park, representing 689,000 square feet, and its joint venture interest
in a retail center, representing 345,000 square feet, for an aggregate sales price of $26.4 million, of which §19.7
million was used to pay the Company’s pro-rata portion of the outstanding debt. The net gains from the sale of these
interests, of approximately $4.4 million, are included in “(Loss) income from partially-owned unconsolidated
entities” in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss). In addition to
the transactions described above, the Company exited two commercial joint ventures that owned an aggregate of 26
commercial assets (see Note 9).

During 2008, the Company sold its 10%-15% joint venture interest in seven multifamily apartment communities
representing approxxmately 1,751 units, its 15% joint venture interest in one office asset representing 0.2 million
square feet and its 10% joint venture interest in the GPT/Colonial Retail Joint Venture, which included six retail
malls totaling an aggregate 3.9 million square feet, including anchor-owned square footage. The Company’s
interests in these properties were sold for approximately $59.7 million. The gains from the sales of these interests
are included in “(Loss) income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities” in the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) (see Note 9).

During 2007, in addition to the joint venture transactions discussed in Note 10, the Company sold a majority
interest in three development properties representing a total of 786,500 square feet, including anchor-owned square
footage. The Company’s interests in these properties were sold for approximately $93.8 million (see Development’
Dispositions below). Also during 2007, the Company sold a wholly-owned retail asset containing 131,300 square
feet. The Company’s interest in this property was sold for approximately $20.6 million. Because the Company
retained management and leasing responsibilities for this property, the gain on the sale was included in continuing
operations.

Property Dispositions — Discontinued Operations

During 2009, the Company sold a wholly-owned commercial asset containing 286,000 square feet for a total
sales price of $20.7 million, and recognized a gain of approximately $1.8 million on the sale. The proceeds were
used to repay a portion of the borrowings under the Company’s unsecured credit facility.

During 2008, the Company sold six wholly-owned multifamily apartment communities representing 1,746 units
for a total cost of approximately $139.5 million. The Company also sold a wholly-owned office property containing
37,000 square feet for a total sales price of $3.1 million. The proceeds were used to repay a portion of the
borrowings under the Company’s unsecured credit facility and fund future investments and for general corporate
purposes.

During 2007, the Company disposed of 12 consolidated multifamily apartment communities representing 3,140
units and 15 consolidated retail assets representing 3.3 million square feet, including anchor-owned square footage.
The multifamily and retail assets were sold for a total sales price of $479.2 million, which was used to repay a
portion of the borrowings under the Company’s unsecured credit facility and fund future investments.

In some cases, the Company uses disposition proceeds to fund investment activities through tax-deferred
exchanges under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code. Certain of the proceeds described above were received
into temporary cash accounts pending the fulfillment of Section 1031 exchange requirements. Subsequently, a
portion of the funds were utilized to fund investment activities. The Company incurred an income tax indemnity
payment in 2008 of approximately $1.3 million with respect to the decision not to reinvest sales proceeds from a
previously tax deferred property exchange that was originally expected to occur in 2008. The payment was a
requirement under a contribution agreement between CRLP and existing holders of units in CRLP.
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In accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations, net income (loss) and gain (loss) on'disposition of
operating properties sold through December 31, 2009, in which the Company does not maintain continuing
involvement, are reflected in its Consolidated.Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) on a
comparative basis as “Income (Loss) from discontinued operations” for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008

and 2007. Following is a listing of the properties the Company disposed of in 2009, 2008 and 2007 that are
classified as discontinued operations:

R Units/Square
Property Location Date Feet

Orlando, F

‘June 2007
. June 2007

June 2007

June 2007

July 2007
July 2007

Greensboro ,

Vv age on the Parkway » ' B Dallas, TX B JUf}; 20/0%
onial Center at Mansell Overlo " Atlanta, GA - eptember 2007 18!

(1) Square footage for retail assets excludes anchor-owned square footage.
Development Dispositions

During 2009, the Company sold a commercial development, consisting of approximately 159,000 square-feet
(excluding anchor-owned square feet) of retail shopping space. The development was sold for approximately $30.7
million, which included $16.9 million of seller-financing for a term of five years at an interest rate of 5.6%. The gain
of approximately $4.4 million, net of income taxes, from the sale of this development is included in “Gains from
sales of property, net of income taxes” in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss).
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During 2008, the Company recorded gains on sales of commercial developments totaling $1.7 million; net of
income taxes. This amount relates to changes in development cost estimates, including stock-based compensation
costs, which were capitalized into certam of the Company’s commercral developments that were sold in previous
periods. : :

In addition, during 2008, the Company recorded a gain on sale of $2.8 million ($1.7 million net of income taxes)
from the Colonial Grand at Shelby Farms II multifamily expansion phase development as discussed in Property
Dispositions — Discontinued Operations.

During December 2007, the Company sold 95% of its mterest in Colonial Promenade Alabaster I and two build-
to-suit outparcels at Colonial Pinnacle Tutwiler II (hhgregg & Havertys) to a joint venture between the Company.
and Watson LLC (Watson). The retail assets include 418,500 square feet, including anchor-owned square-footage,
and are located in Birmingham, Alabama. The Company s interest was sold for approximately. $48.1 million. The
Company recognized a gain of approxrmately $8.3 million after tax and noncontrolling interest on the sale. The
Company’s remaining 5% investment in the partnership is comprised of $0.5 million in contributed property and
$2.0 million of newly issued mortgage debt. The proceeds from the sale were used to fund other developments and
for other general corporate purposes. Because the Company retained an interest in these properties and management
and leasing responsibilities for these properties, the gain on the sale was included in continuing operations.

During July 2007, the Company sold 85% of its interest in Colonial Pinnacle Craft Farms I located in Gulf
Shores, Alabama. The retail shopping center development includes 368,000 square feet, including anchor-owned
square-footage. The Company sold its 85% interest for approximately $45.7 million and recognized a gain of
approximately $4.2 million, after income tax, from the sale. The proceeds from the sale were used to. fund
developments and for other general corporate purposes. Because the Company retained an interest in this property,
the gain on the sale was included in continuing operatrons

Held for Sale

The Company classifies real estate assets as held for sale, only after the Company has recelved approval by its
" internal investment committee, has commenced an active program to sell the assets, and in the opinion of the
Company’s management it is probable the asset will sell within the next 12 months.

At December 31, 2009, the Company had classified seven for-sale developments as held for sale. These real
estate assets are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at $65.0 million at December 31, 2009,
which represents the lower of depreciated cost or fair value less costs to sell.

At December 31, 2008, the Company had classified two commercial assets, two condominium conversion
properties and six for-sale developments as held for sale. These real estate assets are reflected in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets at $37.2 million, $0.8 million and $64.7 million, respectively, at December 31, 2008
which represents the lower of depreciated cost or fair value less costs to sell.

In accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontiniied Operations, the operating results of properties (excluding
condominium conversioh properties not previously operated) designated as held for sale, ar¢ included in “Income
(Loss) from discontinued operations” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income
(Loss) for all periods presented. In addition, the reserves, if any, to write down the carrying value of the real estate
assets designated and classified as held for sale are also included in discontinued operations’ (excluding
condominium conversion properties not previously operated) Any impairment losses on assets held for contlnumg
use are included in continuing operations. :
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Below is a summary of the operations of the properties sold during 2009, 2008 and 2007 and properties
classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2009, that are classified as discontinued operations
Property reve

Base rent

e

1ecoverx

(in thousands)
Year Ended December 31
2009 2008
e
Depreciation

erest in CRLP from discontinued operatlons
. xwwa\iw ~
Income attributable to parent company

6. For-Sale Activities

$20,665
During 2009, the Company completed the following transactions

sold the remaining 17 units at the Regents Park for total sales proceeds of $16.3 nnlhon As discussed
in Note 4, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $0.3 million;
sales proceeds of $1.1 million

sold the remaining seven units at Azur at Metrowest and 20 units at Capri at Hunter’s Creek for total

sold the remaining condominium units at Murano at Delray Beach and Portofino at Jensen Beach, 93
units and 118 units, respectively, in two separate bulk transactions for total sales proceeds of $15.7
in the multifamily rental pool at time of sale

million. These assets were originally condominium conversion properties but the remaining units were

sold the remaining 14 units at The Grander for total sales proceeds of $3.3 million; and
sold the remaining 63 units at Regatta for total sales proceeds of $7.7 million

residential units and three lots for aggregate sales proceeds of $11.6 million

In addition to the units described above, during 2009, the Company sold 41 other units, including 38 for-sale
years ended 2009, 2008 and 2007 are as follows

The total number of units sold for condominium conversion properties, for-sale residential units and lots for the
CondomlmuijmKa Conversion

unsecured revolving credit facility

These dispositions eliminate the operating expenses and costs to carry the associated units. The Company’s

portion of the proceeds from the sales was used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings on the Company’s
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During 2009, 2008 and 2007, “Gains from sales of property” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss) included $1.0 million ($0.9 million net of income taxes), $1.7 million ($1.1 million
net of income taxes) and $13.2 million ($10.9 million net of income taxes and noncontrolling interest), respectively,
from these condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales. A summary of revenues and costs of
condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales for 2009, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

(in thousands)
Year Ended December 31,

Sgm

E

ta

Completed for-sale residential projects of approximately $65.0 million and $64.7 million are reflected in real
estate assets held for sale as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The net gains on condominium unit sales are classified in discontinued operations if the related condominium
property was previously operated by the Company as an apartment community. For 2009, 2008 and 2007, gains on
condominium unit sales, net of income taxes, of $0.2 million, $0.1 million and $9.3 million, respectively, are
included in discontinued operations. As of December 31, 2009, the Company had sold all remaining condominium
conversion properties.

For cash flow statement purposes, the Company classifies capital expenditures for newly developed for-sale
residential communities and for other condominium conversion communities in investing activities. Likewise, the
proceeds from the sales of condominium units and other residential sales are also included in investing activities.

7. Land, Buildings and Equipment
Land, buildings, and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2009 and 2008:

(in thousands)

- 118,8

S
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8. Undeveloped Land and Construction in Progress

During 2009, the Company completed the construction of three wholly-owned multifamily developments adding
1,042 apartment homes to the portfolio. The Company also completed the development of two commercial
developments, one of which the Company is a 50% partner, adding an aggregate of 250,000 square feet to the
commercial portfolio. These completed developments are:

Total Units/ Total
Square Feet (1) Cost

(/unaudttedz (in thousands)

TaoeaTy R e R e
e

Q‘é mmercic -
Colonial Promenade Tannehill 2)

R

(1) Square footage is presented in thousands and excludes anchor-owned square footage.

(2) Total cost and development costs for this completed development, including the portion of the project placed
into service during 2008, was 346.9 million, net of $4.5 million, which is expected to be received from local
municipalities as reimbursement for infrastructure costs.

In addition, the Company completed one unconsolidated commercial development, Colonial Pinnacle Turkey
Creek 111, a joint venture in which we own a 50% interest. This property is a 166,000 square feet development
located in Knoxville, Tennessee. The Company’s portion of the project development costs, including land
acquisition costs, was $12.4 million and was funded primarily through a secured construction loan.

The Company has one ongoing consolidated development project as of December 31, 2009, which consists of:

Total Costs
Square Estimated Capitalized
Feet (1) Estlmated Total Costs to Date
. d .

Colonial Proﬁléﬁade Craft Farms  Gulf Shores; AL 6

$ 6865
Construction in Progress for
Active Developments h 6,865

(1) Square footage is presented in thousands and excludes anchor-owned square footage.

Interest capitalized on construction in progress during 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $3.9 million, $25.0 million and
$27.1 million, respectively. :

The Company owns approximately $108.6 million of land parcels that are held for future developments. In 2009,
the Company elected to defer developments of land parcels held for future development (other than land parcels held
for future sale and for-sale residential and mixed-use developments, which the Company plans to sell, as further
discussed in Note 5) until the economy improves. These developments and undeveloped land include:
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Total Units/ Capitalized
Square Feet (1) to Date
Location udited (in thousands)

®
Sagaw
=

Colonial Grand at South End

YR

s

e
e

sl

N

. B

(1) Square footage is presented in thousands. Square footage for the retail assets excludes anchor-owned square
footage.

(2) This project is part of mixed-use development.

(3) Costs capitalized to date are net of a $6.5 million impairment charge recorded during 2009 and a $19.3
million impairment charge recorded during 2008.

(4)  These costs are presented net of a $23.2 million non-cash impairment charge recorded on one of the projects
in 2007.

Of these developments, in 2010, the Company expects to resume development on the first phase of the Colonial
Promenade Nord du Lac commercial development, located in Covington, Louisiana. During 2009, the Company
recorded a $6.5 million non-cash impairment charge on this development. The charge is a result of the Company’s
intention to develop a power center in phases over time, as opposed to its original lifestyle center plan.

9. Investment in Partially-Owned Entities and Other Arrangements
Investments in Consolidated Partially-Owned Entities

During 2009, the Company agreed to provide an additional contribution to the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek
joint venture in connection with the refinancing of an existing $27.4 million construction loan which was secured by
Colonial Grand at Canyon Creek, a 336-unit multifamily apartment community located in Austin, Texas. In
September 2009, the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture refinanced the existing construction loan with a
new $15.6 million, 10-year loan collateralized by the property with an interest rate of 5.64%. In connection with the
refinancing, the Company made a preferred equity contribution of $11.5 million, which was used by the joint
venture to repay the balance of the then outstanding construction loan and closing costs, and terminated the previous
$4.0 million guarantee with respect to the prior loan. The preferred equity has a cumulative preferential return of
8.0%. As a result of the preferred equity contribution to the joint venture, the Company began consolidating the
CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture, with a fair value of the property of $26.0 million recorded in its
financial statements beginning with the quarter ending September 30, 2009. The Company’s determination of fair
value was based on inputs management believed were consistent with those other market participants would use.
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During 2008, the Company converted its outstanding note receivable due from the Regents Park Joint Venture to
preferred equity after the Regents Park Joint Venture defaulted on this note receivable. The Company negotiated
amendments to the operating agreement for the joint venture such that the $29.5 million outstanding balance of the
note receivable, as well as all of the Company’s original equity of $3.0 million (plus a preferred return) will receive
priority distributions over the joint venture partner’s original equity of $4.5 million (plus a preferred return). The
Company also amended the joint venture operating agreement to expressly grant the Company control rights with
respect to the management and future funding of this project. As a result of the foregoing, the Company began
consolidating this joint venture in its financial statements as of September 30, 2008. During 2009, the Company sold
the remaining units in Phase I of the Regents Park Joint Venture.

Investments in Unconsolidated Partially-Owned Entities

Investments in unconsolidated partially-owned entities at December 31, 2009 and 2008 consisted of the
following:

(amounts in thousands)
Percent As of December 31,
2008

» @’/’ﬂw‘/«‘&\:\:@(
e
25. 00% (4)

,fng@armm;shxp, Birmingha
Cente; Mansell JV

] [?‘Poiar~BEK Managemerit Company, Bi
Heathrow, Orlando, FL

u@ $ 46221

Footnotes on following page
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(1) . These joint ventures consist of undeveloped land.

(2)  In September 2009, the Company recorded a $0.2 million impairment charge as a result of its
noncontrolling interest in this joint venture being other-than-temporarily impaired and a $3.5 million charge
to earnings for the probable payment of the partial loan repayment guarantee provided on the original
construction loan (see below).

(3)  InJuly 2009, the Company dzsposed of its noncontrolling interests in these Jjoint ventures (see below).

(4)  The Company began consolidating this joint venture-in its fi nanczal statements during the third quarter 2009
(as discussed above). ,

(5)  In October 2009, the Company disposed of its 10% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture (see below).

(6)  In August 2009, the DRA Cunningham joint venture sold Cunningham, a 280-unit multifamily apartment
community (see below).

(7)  In December 2009, the Company sold its 15% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture (see below).

(8)  In April 2009, the Company completed the transaction to transfer its remaining 15% noncontrolling joint
venture interest in Colonial Pinnacle Craft Farm (see below).

(9)  In November 2009, the Company disposed of its 15% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture and
 obtained 100% interest in one commercial property located in Atlanta, Georgia (see below). This joint
venture included 17 properties located in Ft. Lauderdale, Jacksonville and Orlando, Florida; Atlanta,
Georgia; Charlotte, North Carolina; Memphis, Tennessee and Houston, Texas. The Company sold its 1 5%
noncontrolling interest in Decoverly, located in Rockville, Maryland, during May 2008 (see below).

(10)  As of December 31, 2009, this joint venture included 16 office properties and 2 retail properties located in
Birmingham, Alabama; Orlando and Tampa, Florida; Atlanta, Georgia; Charlotte, North Carolina and
Austin, Texas. Amount includes the value of the Company’s investment of approximately 317.4 million, offset
by the excess basis difference on the June 2007 joint venture transaction of approximately $32.7 million,
which is being amortized over the life of the properties.

(11)  Equity investment includes the Company'’s investment of approximately $2.7 million, offset by the excess
basis difference on the transaction of approximately $7.3 million, which is being amortized over the life of
the properties.

(12)  In December 2009, the Company disposed of its 17.1% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture and
obtained 100% interest in one commercial property located in Birmingham, Alabama (see below). This joint
venture included 11 retail properties located in Birmingham, Alabama; Jacksonville, Orlando, Punta Gorda
and Tampa, Florida; Athens, Georgia and Houston, Texas.

“In April 2009, the Company transferred its remaining 15% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colonial
Pinnacle Craft Farms, a 220,000-square-foot (excluding anchor-owned square-footage) retail shopping center
located in Gulf Shores, Alabama, to the majority joint venture partner. The Company had previously sold 85% of its’
interest in this development for $45.7 million in July 2007 and recognized a gain of approximately $4.2 million,
after tax, from that sale. As a result of this agreement and the resulting valuation, the Company recorded an
impairment of approximately $0.7 million with respect to the Company’s remaining equity interest in the joint
venture. As part of its agreement to transfer the Company’s remaining interest in Colonial Pinnacle Craft Farms, the
Company commenced development of an additional 67,700-square foot phase of a retail shopping center (Colonial
Promenade Craft Farms) during 2009, which will be anchored by a 45,600-square-foot Publix. The development is
expected to be completed in the second quarter 2010, and costs are anticipated to be $9.9 million.

In July 2009, the Company closed on the transaction with its joint venture partner CMS in which CMS
purchased all of the Company’s noncontrolling interest in four single asset multifamily joint ventures, which
includes an aggregate of 1,212 apartment units. The properties included in the four joint ventures are Colonial Grand
at Brentwood, Colonial Grand at Mountain Brook, Colonial Village at Palma Sola and Colonial Village at Rocky :
Ridge. Of the $17.3 million in proceeds, the Company received a $2.0 million cash payment and the remammg
$15.3 million was used to repay the associated mortgage debt. The Company recognized a $1.8 m1111on gain on thlS
transaction.

In August 2009, the DRA Cunningham joint venture sold Cunningham, a 280-unit multifamily apartment
community located in Austin, Texas. The Company held a 20% noncontrolling interest in this asset and received
$3.6 million for its pro-rata share of the sales proceeds. Of the $3.6 million of proceeds, $2.8 million was used to
repay the Company’s pro-rata share of the associated debt on the asset. The Company did not recognize a gain on
this transaction.
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The Company owns a 35% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colonial Grand at Traditions, a 324-unit
apartment community located in Gulf Shores, Alabama. In September 2009, the Company determined that its 35%
noncontrolling joint venture interest is impaired and that this impairment is other than temporary. As a result, the
Company recognized a non-cash impairment charge of $0.2 million during the three months ended September 30,
2009 for this other than temporary impairment. The impairment charge was calculated as the difference between the
estimated fair value of our joint venture interest and the current book value of our joint venture interest. See
additional discussion below under “Unconsolidated Variable Interest Entities”.

In October 2009, the Company sold its 10% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colony Woods (DRA
Alabama), a 414-unit multifamily apartment community located in Birmingham, Alabama. The Company received
$2.5 million for its portion of the sales proceeds, of which $1.6 million was used to repay the associated mortgage
debt and the remaining proceeds were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings on the Company’s
unsecured revolving credit facility. The Company recognized a $0.2 million gain on this transaction.

In November 2009, the Company disposed of its 15% noncontrolling joint venture interest in DRA/CRT, a 17-
asset office joint venture. Pursuant to the transaction, the Company transferred its membership interest back to the
joint venture. As part of this transaction, the Company acquired 100% ownership of one of the Joint Venture’s
properties, Three Ravinia, an 813,000-square-foot, Class A office building located in Atlanta, Georgia and made a
cash payment of $24.7 million. In connection with the transaction, the existing indebtedness on Three Ravinia was
repaid, which consisted of $102.5 million of loans secured by the Three Ravinia property that were schedule to
mature in January 2010, and the corresponding $17.0 million loan guaranty provided by CRLP on Three Ravinia
was terminated. The total cash payment of $127.2 million made by the Company to acquire Three Ravinia and to
repay the outstanding indebtedness was made through borrowings under the Company’s unsecured credit facility.

In December 2009, the Company sold its 15% noncontrolling joint venture interest in the Mansell Joint Venture,
a suburban office park totaling 689,000 square feet located in Atlanta, Georgia, to the majority partner. The
Company received $16.9 million for its portion of the sales proceeds, of which $13.9 million was used to repay the
associated mortgage debt and the remaining proceeds, $3.0 million, were used to repay a portion of the outstanding
borrowings on the Company’s unsecured revolving credit facility. As a result of this transaction, the Company no
longer has an interest in the Mansell Joint Venture.

In December 2009, the Company disposed of its 17.1% noncontrolling joint venture interest in OZ/CLP Retail,
LLC (OZRE) to the OZRE’s majority partner, made a cash payment of $45.1 million that was due by OZRE to
repay $38.0 million of mortgage debt and related fees and expenses, and $7.1 million of which was used for the
discharge of deferred purchase price owed by OZRE to former unitholders who elected to redeem their units in June
2008. The total cash payment by the Company was made through borrowings under the Company’s unsecured line
of credit. In exchange, the Company received 100% ownership of one of the OZRE assets, Colonial Promenade
Alabaster, a 612,000-square-foot retail center located in Birmingham, Alabama. As a result of this transaction, the
Company no longer has an interest in OZRE.

During January and February 2008, the Company disposed of its noncontrolling joint venture interests in four
multifamily apartment communities, containing an aggregate of 884 units and an aggregate sales price of
approximately $11.2 million, which represents the Company’s share of the sales proceeds. The properties sold
include:

Units

Sales Price
dited in milli

11

Columbia, SC

The proceeds from these dispositions were used to fund future investment activities and for general corporate
purposes.

In February 2008, the Company disposed of its 10% noncontrolling joint venture interest in the GPT/Colonial
Retail Joint Venture, which included six retail malls totaling an aggregate of 3.9 million square feet (including
anchor-owned square footage). The Company’s interest in this asset was sold for a total sales price of approximately
$38.3 million. The proceeds from the sale were used to fund future investment activities and for general corporate

purposes.
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In May 2008, the DRA/CRT joint venture distributed Decoverly, a 156,000 square foot office asset located in
Rockville, Maryland, to its equity partners (85% to DRA and 15% to the Company). Subsequently, DRA purchased
the Company’s 15% noncontrolling joint venture interest in the asset for approximately $5.4 million, including the
assumption of $3.8 million of debt and $1.6 million in cash. The proceeds from the sale of this asset were used to
fund future investment activities and for general corporate purposes.

In June 2008, the Company disposed of its 10% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Stone Ridge, a 191-unit
multifamily apartment community located in Columbia, South Carolina. The Company’s interest in this asset was
sold for a total sales price of approximately $0.8 million. The proceeds were used to fund future investment
activities and for general corporate purposes.

In December 2008, the Company disposed of its 10% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Madison at Shoal
Run, a 276-unit multifamily apartment community, and Meadows of Brook Highland, a 400-unit multifamily
apartment community, both of which are located in Birmingham, Alabama. The Company’s interests in these assets
were sold for a total sales price of $4.1 million and the proceeds were used to fund future investment activities and
for general corporate purposes.

During 2008, the Company disposed of a portion of its noncontrolling interest in the Huntsville TIC through a
series of ten transactions. As a result of these transactions, the Company’s interest was effectively reduced from
40.0% to 10.0%. Proceeds from sales totaled $15.7 million. The proceeds from the sale of this interest were used to
repay a portion of the borrowings outstanding under the Company’s unsecured line of credit.

Combined financial information for the Company’s investments in unconsolidated partially-owned entities since
the date of the Company’s acquisitions is as follows:

As of December 31,
(in thousands) 2009 2008

Balance Sheet

2000 2008 , 2007

395,618%6”; 5 4570887( s 423115 ‘

Net (loss) income 2 $ (75,341 $ (48,327) $ 27,014

(1) The Company’s pro rata portion of indebtedness, as calculated based on ownership percentage, at December
31, 2009 and 2008 was $239.1 million and 3476.3 million, respectively.

(2) In addition to the Company’s pro-rata share of income (loss) from partially-owned unconsolidated entities,
“(Loss) income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities” of ($1.2) million and $12.5 million for the years
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, includes gains on the Company’s dispositions of joint-
venture interests and amortization of basis differences which are not reflected in the table above.
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Investments in Variable Interest Entities

The Company evaluates all transactions and relationships with variable interest entities (VIEs) to determine
whether the Company is the primary beneficiary.

Based on the Company’s evaluation, as of December 31, 2009, the Company does not have a controlling interest
in, nor is the Company the primary beneficiary of any VIEs for which there is a significant variable interest except
for, as discussed above “Investments in Consolidated Partially-Owned Entities”, CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek,
which the Company began consolidating in September 2009 (see Note 19).

Unconsolidated Variable Interest Entities

As of December 31, 2009, the Company has an interest in one VIE with significant variable interests for which
the Company is not the primary beneficiary.

At the Colonial Grand at Traditions joint venture, the Company and its joint venture partner each committed to
guarantee $3.5 million, for a total of $7.0 million, of a $34.1 million construction loan obtained by the joint venture.
The Company and its joint venture partner each committed to provide 50% of the guarantee, which is different from
the venture’s voting and economic interests. As a result, this investment qualifies as a VIE but the Company has
determined that it would not absorb a majority of the expected losses for this joint venture and, therefore, does not
consolidate this investment. In September 2009, CRLP determined that it was probable that the Company will have
to fund the $3.5 million partial loan repayment guarantee provided on the original construction loan for Colonial
Grand at Traditions and recognized a charge to earnings. In addition, the Company determined that its 35%
noncontrolling joint venture interest was impaired and that this impairment was other than temporary. As a result,
CRLP wrote-off its investment in the joint venture by recording a non-cash impairment charge of $0.2 million
during the quarter ended September 30, 2009.

In connection with the acquisition of CRT with DRA in September 2005, CRLP guaranteed approximately $50.0
million of third-party financing obtained by the DRA/CRT joint venture with respect to 10 of the CRT propetties. In
connection with the Company’s disposition of its 15% interest in the DRA/CRT joint venture in November 2009,
the above described guarantee was terminated (see Note 11).

10. Segment Information

Prior to December 31, 2008, the Company had four operating segments: multifamily, office, retail and for-sale
residential. Since January 1, 2009, the Company has managed its business based on the performance of two
operating segments: multifamily and commercial. The change in reporting segments is a result of the Company’s
strategic initiative to reorganize and streamline the Company’s business as a multifamily-focused REIT.

The multifamily and commercial segments have separate management teams that are responsible for acquiring,
developing, managing and leasing properties within each respective segment. The multifamily management team is
responsible for alt aspects of for-sale developments, including disposition activities, as well as the condominium
conversion propetties and related sales. The multifamily segment includes the operations and assets of the for-sale
developments due to the insignificance of these operations (which were previously reported as a separate operating
segment) in the periods presented. Commercial management is responsible for all aspects of our commercial
property operations, including the management and leasing services for our 45 commercial properties, as well as
third-party management services for commercial properties in which we do not have an ownership interest and for
brokerage services in other commercial property transactions.

The pro-rata portion of the revenues, net operating income (“NOI”), and assets of the partially-owned
unconsolidated entities that the Company has entered into are included in the applicable segment information.
Additionally, the revenues and NOI of properties sold that are classified as discontinued operations are also included
in the applicable segment information. In reconciling the segment information presented below to total revenues,
income from continuing operations, and total assets, investments in partially-owned unconsolidated entities are
eliminated as equity investments and their related activity are reflected in the consolidated financial statements as
investments accounted for under the equity method, and discontinued operations are reported separately.
Management evaluates the performance of its multifamily and commercial segments and allocates resources to them
based on segment NOI. Segment NOI is defined as total property revenues, including unconsolidated partnerships
and joint ventures, less total property operating expenses (such items as repairs and maintenance, payroll, utilities,
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property taxes, insurance and advertising). Management evaluates the performance of its for-sale residential
business based on net gains / losses. Presented below is segment information, for the multifamily and commercial
segments, including the reconciliation of total segment revenues to total revenues and total segment NOI to income
from continuing operations before noncontrolling interest for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007,
and total segment assets to total assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. Additionally, the Company’s net losses
on for-sale residential projects for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 are presented below:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007

sands) , — )

Segment Revenues

i o
Commercial ) 1,

- Clssose 182950
ercial . . . e e

Total Segment NOI 235,355 249,077 294, 184
Partially-owned unconsolidated ent Aultifamily 24y A D A963)
Partxally-owned unconsohdated entities — Commermal (39,558) (43 895) (37 214)
n-pr ted re e 3 gy 327 G

17,103
,wzlfzsgmgju,‘m
(93,100)

- i '
(8426) (12 178)
By s

(15,153) (15 665)
s 6019
(4, 358) (1,516)

00) ;;;(101342) ST08,771

Total other income (expeﬁé'e) net (2) o T ‘247,1'08
Income (loss) from cont § J64
December 31, December 31,

(in thousands) I 2009 2008

Segment Assets

g ia s e
. 402,914
298229%

— 172879

Footnotes on following page
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(1) See Note 4 — “Impairment” for details of these charges.

(2) For-sale residential activities including net gain on sales and income tax expense (benefit) are included in
other income. (See table below for additional details on for-sale residential activities and also Note 6 related
to for-sale activities).

(3) Includes the Company’s investment in partially-owned entities of $17,422 and $46,221 as of December 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively.

For-Sale Residential

As a result of the impairment charge recorded during the third quarter of 2007 and the fourth quarter of 2008
related to the Company’s for-sale residential projects, the Company’s for-sale residential operating segment met the
quantitative threshold to be considered a reportable segment. Prior to 2007, the results of operations and assets of the
for-sale residential activities were previously included in other income (expense) and in unallocated corporate assets,
respectively, due to the insignificance of these activities in prior periods.

For the Year Ended December 31,

(in ihousanq’s)

Gains on for-sal

$ (34837) $ (24765)

141)

11. Notes and Mortgages Payable
Notes and mortgages payable at December 31, 2009 and 2008 consist of the following:

(in thousands)
For the year ended December 31,

S 1704343 S 1.762.019

In the first quarter of 2009, the Company, through a wholly-owned special purpose subsidiary of CRLP, closed
on a $350 million collateralized credit facility (the “First FNM Facility”) originated by PNC ARCS LLC for
repurchase by Fannie Mae. Of the $350 million, $259 million bears interest at a fixed interest rate equal to 6.07%
and $91 million bears interest at a fixed interest rate of 5.96%. The weighted average interest rate for the First FNM
Facility is 6.04%. The First FNM Facility matures on March 1, 2019 and requires accrued interest to be paid
monthly with no scheduled principal payments required prior to the maturity date. The First FNM Facility is
collateralized by 19 of CRLP’s multifamily apartment communities totaling 6,565 units. The entire First FNM
Facility amount was drawn on February 27, 2009. The proceeds from the First FNM Facility were used to repay a
portion of the outstanding borrowings under the Company’s $675.0 million unsecured credit facility.

In the second quarter of 2009, the Company, through a wholly-owned special purpose subsidiary of CRLP,
closed on a $156.4 million collateralized credit facility (the “Second FNM Facility”) originated by Grandbridge Real
Estate Capital LLC for repurchase by Fannie Mae. Of the $156.4 million, $145.2 million bears interest at a fixed
interest rate equal to 5.27% and $11.2 million bears interest at a fixed interest rate of 5.57%. The weighted average
interest rate for the Second FNM Facility is 5.31%. The Second FNM Facility matures on June 1, 2019 and requires
accrued interest to be paid monthly with no scheduled principal payments required to the maturity date. The Second
FNM Facility is collateralized by eight multifamily properties totaling 2,816 units. The entire Second FNM Facility
amount was drawn on May 29, 2009. The proceeds from the Second FNM Facility were used to repay a portion of
the outstanding borrowings under the Company’s $675.0 million unsecured credit facility.

As of December 31, 2009, CRLP, with the Company as guarantor, had a $675.0 million unsecured credit facility
(the “Credit Facility””) with Wachovia Bank, National Association (“Wachovia”), as Agent for the lenders, Bank of
America, N.A. as Syndication Agent, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Citicorp North America, Inc. and
Regions Bank, as Co-Documentation Agents, and U.S. Bank National Association and PNC Bank, National
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Association, as Co-Senior Managing Agents and other lenders named therein. The Credit Facility has a maturity
date of June 15, 2012. In addition to the Credit Facility, the Company has a $35.0 million cash management line
provided by Wachovia that will expire on June 15, 2012. The cash management line had an outstanding balance of
$18.5 million as of December 31, 2009.

Base rate loans and revolving loans are available under the Credit Facility. The Credit Facility also includes a
competitive bid feature that allows the Company to convert up to $337.5 million under the Credit Facility to a fixed
rate and for a fixed term not to exceed 90 days. Generally, base rate loans bear interest at Wachovia’s designated
base rate, plus a base rate margin ranging up to 0.25% based on the Company’s unsecured debt ratings from time to
time. Revolving loans bear interest at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 0.325% to 1.05% based on the Company’s
unsecured debt ratings. Competitive bid loans bear interest at LIBOR plus a margin, as specified by the participating
lenders. Based on CRLP’s current unsecured debt rating, the revolving loans currently bear interest at a rate of
LIBOR plus 105 basis points.

The Credit Facility and the cash management line, which are primarily used by the Company to finance property
acquisitions and developments and more recently to also fund repurchases of CRLP senior notes and Series D
preferred depositary shares, had an outstanding balance at December 31, 2009 of $310.5 million. The interest rate of
the Credit Facility (including the cash management line) was 1.28% and 2.04% at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. '

The Credit Facility contains various restrictions, representations, covenants and events of default that could
preclude future borrowings (including future issuances of letters of credit) or trigger early repayment obligations,
including, but not limited to the following: nonpayment; violation or breach of certain covenants; failure to perform
certain covenants beyond a cure period; failure to satisfy certain financial ratios; a material adverse change in the
consolidated financial condition, results of operations, business or prospects of the Company; and generally not
paying the Company’s debts as they become due. At December 31, 2009, the Company was in compliance with
these covenants. Specific financial ratios with which the Company must comply pursuant to the Credit Facility
consist of the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio as well-as the Debt to Total Asset Value Ratio. Both of these ratios are
measured quarterly. The Fixed Charge ratio generally requires that the Company’s earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization be at least equal to 1.5 times the Company’s Fixed Charges. Fixed Charges generally
include interest payments (including capitalized interest) and preferred dividends. The Debt to Total Asset Value
ratio generally requires the Company’s debt to be less than 60% of its total asset value. As of December 31, 2009,
the Fixed Charge ratio was 1.69 times and the Debt to Total Asset Value ratio was 53.7%. The Company does not
anticipate any events of noncompliance with either of these ratios in 2010. However, given the ongoing recession
and continued uncertainty in the stock and credit markets, there can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain
compliance with these ratios and other debt covenants in the future, particularly if conditions worsen.

Many of the recent disruptions in the financial markets have been brought about in large part by failures in the
U.S. banking system. If Wachovia or any of the other financial institutions that have extended credit commitments
to the Company under the Credit Facility or otherwise are adversely affected by the conditions of the financial
markets, these financial institutions may become unable to fund borrowings under credit commitments to the
Company under the Credit Facility, the cash management line or otherwise. If these lenders become unable to fund
the Company’s borrowings pursuant to the financial institutions’ commitments, the Company may need to obtain
replacement financing, and such financing, if available, may not be available on commercially attractive terms.

At December 31, 2009, the Company had $323.9 million in unsecured indebtedness including balances
outstanding under its Credit Facility and certain other notes payable. The remainder of the Company’s notes and
mortgages payable are collateralized by the assignment of rents and leases of certain properties and assets with an
aggregate net book value of approximately $1.4 billion at December 31, 2009.

The aggregate maturities of notes and mortgages payable, including the Company’s Credit Facility at December
31, 2009, were as follows:

(in thousands)

Thereafter

(1) Year 2012 includes $310.5 million outstanding on the Company’s credit facility as of December 31, 2009, which
matures in June 2012,
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Based on borrowing rates available to the Company for notes and mortgages payable with similar terms, the
estimated fair value of the Company’s notes and mortgages payable at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was
approximately $1.4 billion and $1.5 billion, respectively.

In July 2009, the Company agreed to provide an additional contribution to the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint
venture in connection with the refinancing of an existing $27.4 million construction loan which was secured by
Colonial Grand at Canyon Creek, a 336-unit multifamily apartment community located in Austin, Texas. On
September 14, 2009, the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture refinanced the existing construction loan with a
new $15.6 million, 10-year loan collateralized by the property with an interest rate of 5.64%. In connection with the
refinancing, the Company made a preferred equity contribution of $11.5 million, which was used by the joint
venture to repay the balance of the then outstanding construction loan and closing costs. The preferred equity has a
cumulative preferential return of 8.0%. As a result of the preferred equity contribution to the joint venture, the
Company began consolidating the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture in its financial statements beginning
with the quarter ended September 30, 2009.

During March 2008, the Company refinanced mortgages associated with two of its multifamily apartment
communities, Colonial Grand at Trinity Commons, a 462-unit apartment community located in Raleigh, North
Carolina, and Colonial Grand at Wilmington, a 390-unit apartment community located in Wilmington, North
Carolina. The Company financed an aggregate of $57.6 million, at a weighted average interest rate of 5.4%. The
loan proceeds were used to repay the mortgages of $29.0 million and the balance was used to pay down the Credit
Facility.

During September 2008, the Company refinanced a mortgage associated with Colonial Village at Timber Crest,
a 282-unit apartment community located in Charlotte, North Carolina. Loan proceeds were $13.7 million, with a
floating interest rate of LIBOR plus 292 basis points, which was 3.2% at December 31, 2009. The proceeds, along
with additional borrowings of $0.6 million from the Company’s Credit Facility, were used to repay the $14.3 million
outstanding mortgage.

Unsecured Senior Notes Repurchases

In January 2008, the Company’s Board of Trustees authorized the repurchase up to $50.0 million of outstanding
unsecured senior notes of CLRP. In addition, during 2008, the Company’s Board of Trustees authorized the
repurchase of an additional $500.0 million of outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP under a senior note
repurchase program. On December 31, 2009, the Company’s unsecured notes repurchase program expired
(see Note 22).

Repurchases of unsecured senior notes during 2009 are as follows:

Average
Average Yield-to-
(in millions) Amount Discount Maturity Net Gain (1)
1st Quarter : $ 969 27.1% .. 12.64%. .. § 24.2
2nd Quarter (2) 315.5 , 5.9% 6.75% 16.2
3rd Quarter (3) L 166.8 10.0% 7.87% ~14.3
4th Quarter — — — —
Year-to-Date o o $°5719.2 10.6% 8.06% % "54.7

(1) Gains are presented net of the loss on hedging activities of $1.1 million recorded during the three months
ended March 31, 2009 and $0.6 million recorded during the three months ended September 30, 2009 as the
result of a reclassification of amounts in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss in connection with the
conclusion that it is probable that the Company will not make interest payments associated with previously
hedged debt as a result of the repurchases under the senior note repurchase program.

(2)  Repurchases include $250.0 million repurchased pursuant to the Company’s tender offer that closed on May 4,
2009, which was conducted outside of the senior note repurchase program.

(3) Repurchases include $148.2 million repurchased pursuant to the Company'’s tender offer that closed on August
31, 2009, which was conducted outside of the senior note repurchase program.
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Repurchases of unsecured senior notes during 2008 were as follows:

Average

Average Yield-to-
(in millions) Amount Discount Maturity Net Gain (1)
st Quarter $ 500 12.0% 8.18% =% 55
2nd Quarter 31.8 10.0% 7.80% 2.7
3rd Quarter 578 5:0% 7.40% 2.6
4th Quarter 55.4 9.8% 10.42% 4.8
Total $:195.0 9.1% 853% -8 15.6

(1) Gains are presented net of the loss on hedging activities of $0.4 million recorded during the three months
ended December 31, 2008 as the result of a reclassification of amounts in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Loss in connection with the conclusion that it is probable that the Company will not make interest payments
associated with previously hedged debt as a result of the repurchases under the senior note repurchase
program.

Unconsolidated Joint Venture Financing Activity

In November 2009, as part of the DRA/CRT disposition transaction described in Note 9 above, the existing
indebtedness on Three Ravinia was repaid, which consisted of $102.5 million of loans secured by the Three Ravinia
property that were schedule to mature in January 2010, and the corresponding $17.0 million loan guaranty provided
by the Company on Three Ravinia was terminated. The total cash payment of $127.2 million made by the Company
to acquire Three Ravinia and to repay the outstanding indebtedness was made through borrowings under the
Company’s unsecured credit facility. As a result of this transaction, the Company is no longer responsible for the
loans collateralized by Broward Financial Center, located in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida, which matured in March of
2009 and Charlotte University Center, located in Charlotte, North Carolina and Orlando University Center, located
in Orlando, Florida, which matures September 2010.

At the Colonial Grand at Traditions joint venture, the Company and its joint venture partner each committed to
guarantee $3.5 million, for a total of $7.0 million, of a $34.1 million construction loan obtained by the joint venture,
which matures in March 2010. The joint venture is currently in negotiations with the lender regarding refinancing
options (see Note 19).

As of December 31, 2009, the Colonial Promenade Smyrna joint venture had $29.6 million outstanding on the
construction loan, which matured in December 2009. The joint venture is currently in negotiations with the lender
regarding refinancing options.

There can be no assurance that the Company’s joint ventures will be successful in refinancing and/or replacing
existing debt at maturity or otherwise. If the joint ventures are unable to obtain additional financing, payoff the
existing loans that are maturing, or renegotiate suitable terms with the existing lenders, the lenders generally would
have the right to foreclose on the properties in question and, accordingly, the joint ventures will lose their interests in
the assets. The failure to refinance and/or replace such debt and other factors with respect to the Company’s joint
venture interests discussed in the “Item 1A: Risk Factors” on this Form 10-K, may materially adversely impact the
value of the Company’s joint venture interests, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

12. Derivative Instruments

The Company is exposed to certain risks arising from both its business operations and economic conditions. The
Company principally manages its exposures to a wide variety of business and operational risks through management
of its core business activities. The Company manages economic risks, including interest rate, liquidity, and credit
risk primarily by managing the amount, sources, and duration of its debt funding and the use of derivative financial
instruments. Specifically, the Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage exposures that arise
from business activities that result in the receipt or payment of future known and uncertain cash amounts, the value
of which is determined by interest rates. The Company’s derivative financial instruments are used to manage
differences in the amount, timing, and duration of the Company’s known or expected cash receipts and its known or
expected cash payments principally related to the Company’s investments and borrowings.
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The Company’s objectives in using interest rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense and to manage
its exposure to interest rate movements. To accomplish this objective, the Company primarily uses interest rate
swaps and caps as part of its interest rate risk management strategy. Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow
hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty in exchange for the Company making fixed-
rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying principal amount. Interest rate
caps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty if interest rates
rise above the strike rate on the contract in exchange for an upfront premium.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and that qualify as cash flow
hedges is recorded in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and is
subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period that the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings. The
Company did not have any active cash flow hedges during the three or twelve months ended December 31, 2009.

At December 31, 2009, the Company had $3.0 million in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” related to
settled or terminated derivatives. Amounts reported in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss™ related to
derivatives will be reclassified to “Interest expense and. debt cost amortization” as interest payments are made on the
Company’s variable-rate debt or to “(Losses) gains on hedging activities” at such time that the interest payments on
the hedged debt become probable of not occurring as a result of the repurchases of senior notes of CRLP. The
changes in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” for reclassifications to “Interest expense and debt cost
amortization” tied to interest payments on the hedged debt were $0.5 million for each of the twelve months ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the change in
“Accumulated other comprehensive loss” for reclassification to “(Losses) gains on hedging activities™ related to
interest payments on the hedged debt that have been deemed probable not to occur as a result of the repurchases of
senior notes of CRLP was $1.7 million and $0.4 million, respectively.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are not speculative and are used to manage the Company’s exposure to
interest rate movements and other identified risks but do not meet the strict hedge accounting requirements. As of
December 31, 2009, the Company had no derivatives that were not designated as a hedge in a qualifying hedging
relationship.

The tables below present the effect of the Company’s derivative financial instruments on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) as of December 31, 2009.

13. Capital Structure

Company ownership is maintained through common shares of beneficial interest (the “common shares”),
preferred shares of beneficial interest (the “preferred shares”) and noncontrolling interest in CRLP (the “units”).
Common shareholders represent public equity owners and common unitholders represent noncontrolling interest
owners. Each unit may be redeemed for either one common share or, at the option of the Company, cash equal to the
fair market value of a common share at the time of redemption. When a common unitholder redeems a unit for a
common share or cash, noncontrolling interest is reduced. In addition, the Company has acquired properties since its
formation by issuing distribution paying and non-distribution paying units. The non-distribution paying units
convert to distribution paying units at various dates subsequent to their original issuance. At December 31, 2009 and
2008, 8,162,845 and 8,860,971 units were outstanding, respectively, all of which were distribution paying units.

Other Capital Events

In February 1999, through CRLP, the Company issued 2.0 million units of $50 par value 8.875% Series B
Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Units (the “Preferred Units™), valued at $100.0 million in a private
placement, net of offering costs of $2.6 million. On February 18, 2004, CRLP modified the terms of the $100.0
million 8.875% Preferred Units. Under the modified terms, the Preferred Units bear a distribution rate of 7.25% and
are redeemable at the option of CRLP, in whole or in part, after February 24, 2009, at the cost of the original capital
contribution plus the cumulative priority return, whether or not declared. The terms of the Preferred Units were
further modified on March 14, 2005 to extend the redemption date from February 24, 2009 to August 24, 2009. The
Preferred Units are exchangeable for 7.25% Series B Preferred Shares of the Company, in whole or in part at
anytime on or after January 1, 2014, at the option of the holders.
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14. Equity Offerings
October 2009 Equity Offering

In October 2009, the Company completed an equity offering of 12,109,500 common shares, including shares
issued to cover over-allotments, at $9.50 per share. Total net proceeds from this offering were approximately $109.8
million after deducting the underwriting discount and other offering expenses payable by the Company. These
proceeds were used to pay down a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the Company’s unsecured credit
facility and for general corporate purposes. Pursuant to the CRLP partnership agreement, each time the Trust issues
common shares CRLP issues to the Trust an equal number of units for the same price at which the common shares
were sold. Accordingly, CRLP issued 12,109,500 common units to the Trust, at $9.50 per unit, for the common
shares issued by the Trust in the equity offering.

At-the-Market Continuous Equity Offering Program

In April 2009, the Trust’s Board of Trustees approved the issuance of up to $50.0 million of common shares
under an at-the-market continuous equity offering program.

During 2009, the Trust issued a total of 4,802,971 shares at a weighted average issue price of $9.07 per share
generating net proceeds of approximately $42.6 million, which includes $1.0 million of one-time administrative
costs. These proceeds were used to pay down a portion of the outstanding borrowings on the Company’s unsecured
credit facility. Following completion of the Company’s equity offering on October 6, 2009, the Company terminated
this program (see Note 22). Pursuant to the CRLP partnership agreement, CRLP issued 4,802,971 common units to
the Trust, at a weighted average issue price of $9.07 per share, in connection with the continuous equity issuance
program.

Repurchases of Series D Preferred Depositary Shares

In April 2003, the Trust issued $125.0 million or 5,000,000 depositary shares, each representing 1/10 of a share
of 8.125% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares of Beneficial Interest, par value $0.01 per share (the
“Series D Preferred Shares”). The depositary shares are currently callable by the Company and have a liquidation
preference of $25.00 per depositary share. The depositary shares have no stated maturity, sinking fund or mandatory
redemption and are not convertible into any other securities of the Company.

In January 2008, the Board of Trustees authorized the repurchase of up to $25.0 million of the Trust’s 8 1/8%
Series D preferred depositary shares (and a corresponding amount of Series D Preferred Units) in a limited number
of separate, privately negotiated transactions. In October 2008, the Board of Trustees authorized a repurchase
program which allows the repurchase of up to an additional $25.0 million of the Trust’s outstanding 8 1/8% Series D
preferred depositary shares (and a corresponding amount of Series D Preferred Units) over a 12 month period. This
repurchase program expired in October 2009.

During 2009, the Trust repurchased 6,515 of its outstanding 8 1/8% Series D preferred depositary shares in
privately negotiated transactions for an aggregate purchase price of $0.1 million, at an average price of $19.46 per
depositary share. The Trust received an approximate $36,000 discount to the liquidation preference price of $25.00
per depositary share on the repurchase and wrote-off an immaterial amount of issuance costs. In connection with the
repurchase of the Series D preferred depositary shares, CRLP also repurchased a corresponding amount of Series D
Preferred Units. ' '

During 2008, the Trust repurchased 988,750 of its outstanding 8 1/8% Series D preferred depositary shares in
privately negotiated transactions for an aggregate purchase price of $24.0 million, at an average price of $24.17 per
depositary share. The Trust received an approximate $0.8 million discount to the liquidation preference price of
$25.00 per depositary share on the repurchase and wrote-off approximately $0.9 million of issuance costs. In

connection with the repurchase of the Series D preferred depositary shares, CRLP also repurchased a corresponding
amount of Series D Preferred Units.

Other Transactions

In June 2007, the Company implemented its strategic initiative to become a multifamily focused REIT, which
included two significant joint venture transactions whereby the majority of the Company’s wholly-owned office and
retail properties were transferred into separate joint ventures (i.e., the DRA/CLP JV and the OZRE JV). In
connection with these transactions, all limited partners of CRLP were distributed units in the DRA/CLP JV and the
OZRE JV based on 85% of their ownership interest in CRLP. The Company recorded this distribution at book value,
which reduced common unit equity by approximately $41.0 million during 2007.
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In April 2005, in connection with the acquisition of Cornerstone Realty Income Trust, the Company issued
5,326,349 Series E preferred depositary shares each representing 1/100th of a 7.62% Series E Cumulative
Redeemable Preferred Share of Beneficial Interest, liquidation preference $2,500 per share, of the Company. In
February 2006, the Company announced the Board of Trustees’ authorization of the repurchase of up to $65.0
million of the Company’s Series E depositary shares. During 2006, the Company repurchased 1,135,935 million
Series E depositary shares for a total cost of approximately $28.5 million. The Company wrote off approximately
$0.3 million of issuance costs associated with this redemption. In April 2007, the Trust’s Board of Trustees
authorized the redemption of, and in May 2007 the Company redeemed all of, its remaining outstanding 4,190,414
Series E depositary shares (and a corresponding number of Series E Preferred Units of CRLP) for a total cost of
$104.8 million. In connection with this redemption, the Company wrote off $0.3 million of associated issuance
costs. The redemption price was $25.00 per Series E depositary share plus accrued and unpaid dividends for the
period from April 1, 2007 through and including the redemptlon date, for an aggregate redempt1on price per Series E
depositary share of $25.3175.

15. Share-based Compensation
Incentive Share Plans

On March 7, 2008, the Board of Trustees approved the 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “2008 Plan”). The
2008 Plan was approved by the Company’s shareholders on April 23, 2008. The Third Amended and Restated Share
Option and Restricted Share Plan (the “Prior Plan™) expired by its terms in April 2008. The 2008 Plan provides the
Company with the opportunity to grant long-term incentive awards to employees and non-employee directors, as
well independent contractors, as appropriate. The 2008 Plan authorizes the grant of seven types of share-based
awards — share options, restricted shares, unrestricted shares, share units, share appreciation rights, performance
shares and performance units. Five million common shares were reserved for issuance under the 2008 Plan. At
December 31, 2009, 4,083,944 shares were available for issuance under the 2008 Plan.

In connection with the grant of options under the 2008 Plan, the Executive Compensation Committee of the
Board of Trustees determines the option exercise period and any vesting requirements. All outstanding options
granted to date under the 2008 Plan and the Prior Plan have a term of ten years and vest over a periods ranging from
one to five years. Similarly, restricted shares vest over periods ranging from one to five years.

Compensation costs for share options have been valued on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
method. The weighted average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model were as follows:

December 31,
2009 2008

Expected opﬁon term (years) 6.5 7.1

For this calculation, the expected dividend yield reflects the Company’s current historical yield. Expected
volatility was based on the historical volatility of the Company’s common shares. The risk-free interest rate for the
expected life of the options was based on the implied yields on the U.S Treasury yield curve. The weighted average
expected option term was based on the Company’s historical data for prior period share option exercises and
forfeiture activity.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company granted share options to purchase 50,474 common
shares to the Company’s employees and trustees. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the
Company recognized compensation expense related to share options of $0.3 million, $0.3 million ($0.1 million of
compensation expense related to share options was reversed due to the Company’s restructuring) and $0.7 million,
respectively. Upon the exercise of share options, the Company issues common shares from authorized but unissued
common shares. There were no options exercised during 2009. Total cash proceeds from exercise of stock options
were $1.1 million and $2.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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The following table presents a summary of share option activity under all plans for the year ended December 31,
2009:

Options Qutstanding
Weighted Average
e e —Shares _  _ Exercise Price
Grante :
Exercised
Forfeited

Options oufstanding, end of peri e :

The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted in 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $1.89, $1.40 and
$5.13, respectively. There were no options exercised during 2009. The total intrinsic value of options exercised
during 2008 and 2007 was $0.5 million and $2.9 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had approximately 1.4 million share options outstanding with a
weighted average exercise price of $23.44 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.9 years. The
intrinsic value for the share options outstanding as of December 31, 2009 was $0.2 million. The total number of
exercisable options at December 31, 2009 was approximately 1.2 million. As of December 31, 2009, the weighted
average exercise price of exercisable options was $23.56 and the weighted average remaining contractual life was
3.2 years for these exercisable options. These exercisable options did not have an aggregate intrinsic value at
December 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2009, the total number of options expected to vest is approximately 0.2
million. The weighted average exercise price of options expected to vest is $22.69 and the weighted average
remaining contractual life is 8.1 years. The options expected to vest have an aggregate intrinsic value at December
31, 2009 of $0.2 million. At December 31, 2009, there was $0.3 million of unrecognized compensation cost related
to unvested share options, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.6 years.

The following table presents the change in nonvested restricted share awards:

Weighted Average
For the Year Ended Grant Date
_December 31,2009 Fair Value
Nonvested Restricted Shares, December 408837 5 o 3208

Granted , 7 31,870 . 56
sted. - 07442 o 2
ancelled/Forfeite (64,793)

The weighted average grant date fair value of restricted share awards issued during 2009, 2008 and 2007 was
$7.56, $21.38 and $40.44, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company
recognized compensation expense related to restricted share awards of $2.6 million, $3.3 million ($1.0 million of
compensation expense related to restricted share awards was reversed and $0.2 million was accelerated due to the
Company’s restructuring) and $3.9 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007,
the Company separately capitalized $0.1 million, $1.3 million and $5.4 million, respectively, for restricted share
awards granted in connection with certain real estate developments. The total intrinsic value for restricted share
awards that vested during 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $0.8 million, $2.6 million and $3.2 million, respectively. At
December 31, 2009, the unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted share awards is $3.6
million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.5 years.

Adoption of Incentive Program

On April 26, 2006, the Executive Compensation Committee of the Board of Trustees of the Company adopted a
new incentive program in which seven executive officers of the Company participate. The program provided for the
following awards:

«  the grant of a specified number of restricted shares, totaling approximately $6.3 million, which vest at
the end of the five-year service period beginning on April 26, 2006 (the “Vesting Period”), and/or

. an opportunity to earn a performance bonus, based on absolute and relative total shareholder return over
a three-year period beginning January 1, 2006 and ending December 31, 2008 (the “Performance
Period”).
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A participant’s restricted shares will be forfeited if the participant’s employment is terminated prior to the end of
the Vesting Period. The compensation expense and deferred compensation related to these restricted shares is
included in the restricted share disclosures above.

A participant would forfeit his right to receive a performance payment if the participant’s employment were
terminated prior to the end of the Performance Period, unless termination of employment resulted from the
participant’s death or disability, in which case the participant (or the participant’s beneficiary) would earn a pro-rata
portion of the applicable award. Performance payments, if earned, were payable in cash, common shares or a
combination of the two. Each performance award had a specified threshold, target and maximum payout amounts
ranging from $5,000 to $6,000,000 per participant. The performance awards were valued with a binomial model by
a third party valuation firm. The performance awards, which had a fair value on the grant date of $5.4 million ($4.9
million net of estimated forfeitures), were valued as equity awards tied to a market condition.

On January 29, 2009, the Executive Compensation Committee of the Board of Trustees confirmed the
calculation of the payouts under the performance awards as of the end of the Performance Period for each of the
remaining participants in the incentive program, and approved the form in which the performance awards are to be
made. An aggregate of $299,000 was paid to the four remaining participants in cash that was withheld to satisfy
applicable tax withholding, and the balance of the award was satisfied through the issuance of an aggregate of
69,055 common shares.

The Company used a third party valuation firm to assist in valuing these awards using a binomial model. The
significant assumptions used to measure the fair value of the performance awards are as follows:

. risk-free rate,

*  expected standard deviation of returns (i.e., volatility),
e expected dividend yield, and

¢ correlation in stock price movement.

The risk-free rate was set equal to the yield, for the term of the remaining duration of the performance period, on
treasury securities as of April 26, 2006 (the grant date). The data was obtained from the Federal Reserve for constant
maturity treasuries for 2-year and 3-year bonds. Standard deviations of stock price movement for the Company and
its peer companies (as defined by the Board of Trustees of the Company) were set equal to the annualized daily
volatility measured over the 3-year period ending on April 26, 2006. Annual stock price correlations over the ten-
year period from January 1, 1996 through December 31, 2005, for a total of 595 correlation measurements, were
examined. The average correlation was 0.54.

To calculate Total Shareholder Return for each company that was defined by the Trust’s Board of Trustees as a
peer, the Company compared the projected December 31, 2008 stock price plus the expected cumulative dividends
paid during the performance measurement period to the actual closing price on December 31, 2005. The last
(normalized) dividend payment made for each such company in 2005 was annualized and this annual dividend
amount was assumed to be paid in each year of the performance measurement period.

Due to the fact that the form of payout (cash, common shares, or a combination of the two) is determined solely
by the Trust’s Board of Trustees, and not the employee, the grant was valued as an equity award.

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company recognized $1.4 million, $1.9 million and
$1.3 million, respectively, of compensation expense attributable to the performance based share awards. As a result
of the departure of certain grantees of performance based share awards, the Company reduced compensation
expense by $1.0 million during 2008. As of December 31, 2008, these awards were fully expensed.

Employee Share Purchase Plan

The Company maintains an Employee Share Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan”). The Purchase Plan permits
eligible employees of the Company, through payroll deductions, to purchase common shares at market price. The
Purchase Plan has no limit on the number of common shares that may be issued under the plan. The Company issued
16,567, 9,405 and 3,725 common shares pursuant to the Purchase Plan during 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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16. Employee Benefits
Noncontributory Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Employees of the Company hired prior to January 1, 2002 participate in a noncontributory defined benefit
pension plan designed to cover substantially all employees. During 2007, the Trust’s Board of Trustees approved the
termination of its noncontributory defined benefit pension plan. Accordingly, during 2007, the Company expensed
$2.3 million in connection with this termination, including a one-time pension bonus of approximately $1.4 million.
As of December 31, 2007, the termination of the pension plan was substantially complete. In addition, the remaining
settlement payments of $0.5 million were paid in 2008 upon final determination from the IRS.

401(k) Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) plan covering all eligible employees. From January 1 — June 30, 2009, this
plan provided, with certain restrictions, that employees could contribute a portion of their earnings with the
Company matching 100% of such contributions up to 4% and 50% on contributions between 4% and 6%, solely at
its discretion. Effective July 1, 2009, the Company’s Executive Committee, as authorized by the Board of Trustees,
exercised its option to stop the matching contribution. Prior to December 31, 2007, this plan provided, with certain
restrictions, that employees may contribute a portion of their earnings with the Company matching one-half of such
contributions up to 6%, solely at its discretion. Contributions by the Company were approximately $0.8 million,
$2.0 million and $1.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

17. Income Taxes

The Company, which is considered a corporation for federal income tax purposes, has elected to be taxed and
qualifies to be taxed as a REIT and generally will not be subject to federal income tax to the extent it distributes its
REIT taxable income to its shareholders. REITs are subject to a number of organizational and operational
requirements. If the Company fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, the Company will be subject to federal
income tax on its taxable income at regular corporate rates and may not be able to qualify as a REIT for four
subsequent taxable years. The Company may also be subject to certain state and local taxes on its income and
property, and to federal income taxes and excise taxes on its undistributed taxable income.

In the preparation of income tax returns in federal and state jurisdictions, the Company and its taxable REIT
subsidiaries assert certain tax positions based on their understanding and interpretation of the income tax law. The
taxing authorities may challenge such positions, and the resolution of such matters could result in recognition of
additional income tax expense. Management believes it has used reasonable judgments and conclusions in the
preparation of its income tax returns.

Taxable REIT Subsidiary

The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the operations of its taxable REIT subsidiary, CPSI,
which is not entitled to a dividends paid deduction and is subject to federal, state and local income taxes. CPSI
provides property development, leasing and management services for third-party owned properties and
administrative services to the Company. In addition, the Company performs all of its for-sale residential and
condominium conversion activities through CPSI. The Company generally reimburses CPSI for payroll and other
costs incurred in providing services to the Company. All inter-company transactions are eliminated in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. The components of income tax expense, significant deferred tax
assets and liabilities ‘and a reconciliation of CPSI’s income tax expense to the statutory federal rate are reflected in
the tables below. , ‘

112



Income tax expense of CPSI for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 is comprised of the
following:

(in thousands)
2008

7,929

$ (10417) $ 7,929
i sl ldbE
(17.212) (10.361) 9.330

i

Income tax expense — discontinued oBerations
DR SRR peR s

In 2009, 2008 and 2007, income tax expense resulting from condominium conversion unit sales was allocated to
discontinued operations (see Note 6).

The components of CPSI’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2009 and 2008 were as
follows:

(in thousands)

e
e

e
o e

Real estate asset basis differences

o

$

$

Net deferred tax assets, included in other assets b — $ 9311

Reconciliations of the 2009 and 2008 effective tax rates of CPSI to the federal statutory rate are detailed below.
As shown above, a portion of the 2009 and 2008 income tax expense was allocated to discontinued operations.

e g
e

=0.02%

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, other expenses include estimated state franchise and other
taxes, including franchise taxes in North Carolina and Tennessee and the margin-based tax in Texas.
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18. Leasing Operations

The Company’s business includes leasing and management of multifamily and commercial properties. For
commercial properties owned by the Company, minimum rentals due in future periods under noncancelable
operating leases extending beyond one year at December 31, 2009 are as follows:

The noncancelable leases are with tenants engaged in commercial operations in Alabama, Florida, Georgia and
North Carolina. Performance in accordance with the lease terms is in part dependent upon the economic conditions
of the respective areas. No additional credit risk exposure relating to the leasing arrangements exists beyond the
accounts receivable amounts shown in the December 31, 2009 balance sheet. However, financial difficulties of
tenants could impact their ability to make lease payments on a timely basis which could result in actual lease
payments being less than amounts shown above. Leases with residents in multifamily properties are generally for
one year or less and are thus excluded from the above table.

Substantially all of the Company’s land, buildings, and equipment represent property leased under the above and
other short-term leasing arrangements.

Rental income from continuing operations for 2009, 2008 and 2007 includes percentage rent of $0.2 million,
$0.4 million and $0.9 million, respectively. This rental income was earned when certain retail tenants attained sales
volumes specified in their respective lease agreements.

19. Commitments, Contingencies, Guarantees and Other Arrangements
Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in a contract dispute with a general contractor in connection with construction costs
and cost overruns with respect to certain of its for-sale projects, which are being developed in a joint venture in
which the Company is a majority owner. The contractor is affiliated with the Company’s joint venture partner.

¢ In connection with the dispute, in January 2008, the contractor filed a lawsuit against the Company
alleging, among other things, breach of contract, enforcement of a lien against real property,
misrepresentation, conversion, declaratory judgment and an accounting of costs, and is seeking $10.3
million in damages, plus consequential and punitive damages.

* Certain of the subcontractors, vendors and other parties, involved in the projects, including purchasers of
units, have also made claims in the form of lien claims, general claims or lawsuits. The Company has
been sued by purchasers of certain condominium units alleging breach of contract, fraud, construction
deficiencies and misleading sales practices. Both compensatory and punitive damages are sought in these
actions. Some of these claims have been resolved by negotiations and mediations, and others may also be
similarly resolved. Some of these claims will likely be arbitrated or litigated to conclusion.

The Company is continuing to evaluate its options and investigate certain of these claims, including possible
claims against the contractor and other parties. The Company intends to vigorously defend itself against these
claims. However, no prediction of the likelihood, or amount, of any resulting loss or recovery can be made at this
time and no assurance can be given that the matter will be resolved favorably.

In connection with certain retail developments, the Company has received funding from municipalities for
infrastructure costs. In most cases, the municipalities issue bonds that are repaid primarily from sales tax revenues
generated from the tenants at each respective development. The Company has guaranteed the shortfall, if any, of tax
revenues to the debt service requirements on the bonds. The total amount outstanding on these bonds is
approximately $13.5 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008. At December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, no
liability was recorded for these guarantees.
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During 2009, the Company postponed most future development activities. Of these developments, the only one
that the Company currently expects to resume development on in 2010 is the first phase of the Nor du Lac
commercial development, located in Covington, Louisiana. During 2009, the Company evaluated various
alternatives for this development, including with respect to its existing contractual obligations to certain future
tenants who had previously committed to this development. The Company’s intention is to develop a power center
in phases over time, as opposed to our original lifestyle center plan. In July 2009, the Company decided to hold this
project for investment purposes. If the Company is unable to reach alternative agreements with these future tenants,
the tenants may choose not to participate in this development or seek damages from the Company as a result of the
postponement of the development, or both.

During 2009, the Company, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, CP Nord du Lac JV LLC, solicited for purchase
all of the outstanding Nord du Lac community development district (the “CDD”) special assessment bonds, in order
to remove or reduce the debt burdens on the land securing the CDD bonds. As a result of the solicitation, during
2009, the Company purchased all $24.0 million of the outstanding CDD bonds for total consideration of $22.0
million, representing an 8.2% discount to the par amount. In December 2009, the CDD was dissolved, which
resulted in the release of the remaining net cash proceeds of $17.4 million received from the bond issuance, which
were then being held in escrow. In connection with this transaction, the Company’s “other liabilities” were reduced
by $24.0 million, of which $1.6 million, representing the discount on the purchase of the bonds, net of interest and
fees, was treated as a non-cash transaction and a reduction to basis. In accordance with EITF 91-10, now known as
ASC 970-470-05, the Company recorded restricted cash and other liabilities for $24.0 million when the CDD bonds
were issued. This issuance was treated as a non-cash transaction in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows for the twelve months ended December 31, 2008.

In connection with the commercial joint venture transactions completed in 2007, the Company assumed certain
contingent obligations for a total of $15.7 million, of which $6.3 million remains outstanding as of December 31,
2009.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company is self insured up to $0.8 million, $1.0 million and $1.8 million for
general liability, workers’ compensation and property insurance, respectively. The Company is also self insured for
health insurance and responsible for amounts up to $135,000 per claim and up to $1.0 million per person.

The Company is a party to various other legal proceedings incidental to its business. In the opinion of
management, after consultation with legal counsel, the ultimate liability, if any, with respect to those proceedings is
not presently expected to materially affect the financial position or results of operations or cash flows of the
Company.

Guarantees and Other Arrangements
Active Guarantees

During April 2007, the Company and its joint venture partner each committed to guarantee up to $3.5 million,
for an aggregate of up to $7.0 million, of a $34.1 million construction loan obtained by the Colonial Grand at
Traditions joint venture. The Company and its joint venture partner each committed to provide 50% of the
guarantee. Construction at this site is complete as the project was placed into service during 2008. As of December
31, 2009, the joint venture had drawn $33.4 million on the construction loan, which matures in March 2010. On
September 25, 2009, the Company determined it was probable that it would have to fund the $3.5 million partial
loan repayment guarantee provided on the original construction loan. Accordingly, at December 31, 2009, $3.5
million was recorded for the guarantee (see Note 9).

During November 2006, the Company and its joint venture partner each committed to guarantee up to $8.65
million, for an aggregate of up to $17.3 million, of a $34.6 million construction loan obtained by the Colonial
Promenade Smyrna joint venture. The Company and its joint venture partner each committed to provide 50% of the
$17.3 million guarantee, as each partner has a 50% ownership interest in the joint venture. Construction at this site is
complete as the project was placed into service during 2008. The guarantee provided, among other things, for a
reduction in the guarantee amount in the event the property achieves and maintains a 1.15 debt service charge.
Accordingly, the guarantee has been reduced to $4.3 million. As of December 31, 2009, the Colonial Promenade
Smyrna joint venture had $29.6 million outstanding on the construction loan, which matured in December 2009. The
joint venture is currently in negotiations with the lender with respect to refinancing options. At December 31, 2009,
no liability was recorded for the guarantee.
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In connection with the formation of Highway 150 LLC in 2002, the Company executed a guarantee, pursuant to
which the Company serves as a guarantor of $1.0 million of the debt related to the joint venture, which is
collateralized by the Colonial Promenade Hoover retail property. The Company’s maximum guarantee of $1.0
million may be requested by the lender only after all of the rights and remedies available under the associated note
and security agreements have been exercised and exhausted. At December 31, 2009, the total amount of debt of the
joint venture was approximately $16.1 million and the debt matures in December 2012. At December 31, 2009, no
liability was recorded for the guarantee.

In connection with the contribution of certain assets to CRLP, certain partners of CRLP have guaranteed
indebtedness of the Company totaling $21.2 million at December 31, 2009. The guarantees are held in order for the
contributing partners to maintain their tax deferred status on the contributed assets. These individuals have not been
indemnified by the. Company:

As discussed above, in connection with certain retail developments, the Company has received funding from
municipalities for infrastructure costs. In most cases, the municipalities issue bonds that are repaid primarily from
sales tax reventes generated from the tenants at each respective development. The Company has guaranteed the
shortfall, if any, of tax revenues to the debt service requirements on the bonds.

The fair value of the above guarantees could change in the near term if the markets in which these properties are
located deteriorate or if there are other negative indicators.

Terminated Guarantees

During February 2006, the Company committed to guarantee up to $4.0 million of a $27.4 million construction
loan obtained by the Colonial Grand at Canyon Creek Joint Venture. Construction at this site is complete as the
project was placed into service during 2007. In July 2009, the Company agreed to certain amendments to the
partnership agreement with CMS with respect to the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture, pursuant to which
the Company agreed to provide an additional contribution in connection with the refinancing of the existing
construction loan to a permanent loan secured by Colonial Grand at Canyon Creek, a 336-unit apartment community
located in Austin, Texas. In connection with the refinancing, the Company made a preferred equity contribution of
$11.5 million, which was used by the joint venture to repay the balance of the then outstanding construction loan
and closing costs. The preferred equity has a cumulative preferential return of 8.0%. As a result of the preferred
equity contribution to the joint venture, the Company began consolidating the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint
venture, with a fair value of the property of $26.0 million recorded in its financial statements beginning with the
quarter ending September 30, 2009. '

During September 2005, in connection with the acquisition of CRT with DRA, CRLP guaranteed approximately
$50.0 million of third-party financing obtained by the DRA/CRT joint venture with respect to 10 of the CRT
properties. During 2006, seven of the ten properties were sold. The DRA/CRT joint venture is obligated to
reimburse CRLP for any payments made under the guaranty before making distributions of cash flows or capital
proceeds to the DRA/CRT joint venture partners. This guarantee, which was set to mature in January 2010, had been
reduced to $17.0 million as a result of the pay down of associated collateralized debt from the sales of assets. As part
of the November 2009 transaction to unwind the joint venture, this guarantee was terminated.

20. Related Party Transactions

The Company has implemented a specific procedure for reviewing and approving related party construction
activities. The Company historically has used Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC, a commercial construction company
controlled by Mr. M. Miller Gorrie (a trustee of the Company), to manage and oversee certain of its development,
re-development and expansion projects. This construction company is headquartered in Alabama and has completed
numerous projects within the Sunbelt region of the United States. Through the use of market survey data and in-
house development expertise, the Company negotiates the fees and contract prices of each development, re-
development or expansion project with this company in compliance with the Company’s “Policy on Hiring
Architects, Contractors, Engineers, and Consultants”, which policy was developed to allow the selection of certain
preferred vendors who have demonstrated an ability-to consistently deliver a quality product at a fair price and in a
timely manner. Additionally, this company outsources all significant subcontractor work through a competitive bid
process. Upon approval by the Management Committee, the Management Committee (a non-board level committee
composed of various members of management of the Company) presents each project to the independent members
of the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees for final approval.
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The Company paid $11.4 million, $50.6 million and $77.0 million for property construction and tenant
improvement costs to Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Of these amounts, $6.9 million, $38.4 million and $67.0 million was then paid to unaffiliated
subcontractors for the construction of these development projects during 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The
Company had $2.3 million, $0.6 million, and $6.5 million in outstanding construction invoices or retainage payable
to this construction company at December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Mr. Gorrie has a 3.8% economic
interest in Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC. These transactions were unanimously approved by the independent members of
the Executive Committee consistent with the procedure described above.

The Company also leases space to Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC, pursuant to a lease originally entered into.in 2003.
The original lease, which ran through October 31, 2008, was amended in 2007 to extend the term of the lease
through October 31, 2013. The amended lease provides for aggregate remaining lease payments of approximately
$2.6 million from 2010 through the end of the extended lease term. The amended lease also provides the tenant with
a right of first refusal to lease additional vacant space in the same building in certain circumstances. The underlying
property was contributed to a joint venture during 2007 in which the Company retained a 15% interest. The
Company continues to manage the underlying property. The aggregate amount of rent paid under the lease was
approximately $0.4 million during 2009 and $0.5 million during 2008.

Since 1993, Colonial Insurance Agency, a corporation wholly-owned by The Colonial Company (indirectly
owned and controlled equally by Thomas H. Lowder and James K. Lowder and trusts under their control), has
provrded insurance risk management, administration and brokerage services for the Company. As part of this
service, the Company placed insurance coverage with unaffiliated insurance brokers and agents, including Willis of
Alabama, McGriff Siebels & Williams, Colonial Insurance Agency, and Marsh, USA, through a competitive brddmg
process. The premiums paid to these unaffiliated insurance brokers and agents (as they deducted their commissions
prior to paying the carriers) totaled $5.7 million, $5.0 million, and $7.8 million for 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The aggregate amounts paid by the Company to Colonial Insurance Agency, Inc. for these services
during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $0.6 million, $0.5 million, and $0.6 million,
respectively. Neither Mr. T. Lowder nor Mr. J. Lowder has an interest in these premiums.

In October 2009, the Trust completed an equity offering of 12,109,500 common shares, including shares issued
to cover over-allotments, at $9.50 per share. Certain members of the Board of Trustees of the Trust, including Miller
Gorrie (10,526 shares), Thomas Lowder (50,000 shares) and Harold Ripps (100,000 shares), purchased shares in this
offering. These common shares, which were all purchased at the public offering price of $9.50 per share, were equal
in value to the following amounts on the date of purchase: Mr. Gorrie, $100,000; Mr. T. Lowder, $475,000 and Mr.
Ripps, $950,000.

In December 2009, the Trust transferred its entire noncontrolling joint venture interest in its retail joint venture,
OZ/CLP Retail, LLC, to the retail joint venture’s majority member in a transaction that resulted in the Trust’s exit
from the retail joint venture and the receipt of a 100% ownership interest in one of the retail joint venture’s
properties, Colonial Promenade Alabaster. As part of this transaction, the Trust made a cash payment of $45.1
million. Approximately $38.0 million of the Trust’s cash payment was used to repay mortgage debt and related fees
and expenses associated with the Colonial Promenade Alabaster property, and the remaining approximately $7.1
million was used for the discharge of deferred purchase price owed by the retail joint venture to former unitholders
who elected to redeem their units in the retail joint venture in June 2008. The transaction was conditioned on, among
other things, former retail joint venture unitholders agreeing to sell to the Trust their respective rights to receive
payment of deferred purchase price from the retail joint venture. All of the former retail joint venture unitholders
elected to sell their payment interests to the Trust for a discounted cash amount (i.e., 90% of the deferred purchase
price amount). The aggregate amount paid by the Trust to former retail joint Venture unitholders included amounts
paid to certain of the Trust’s trustees in the their capacities as former retail joint venture unitholders, including: Mr.
Gorrie, $228,330; Mr. J. Lowder, $620,797; Mr. T. Lowder, $620,796; The Colonial Company (in which Messrs. T.
and J. Lowder have interests, as described above), $1,462,437; and Mr. Ripps, $1,649,987.

Other than a specific procedure for reviewing and approving related party construction activities, the Company
has not adopted a formal policy for the review and approval of related persons’ transactions generally. Pursuant to
its charter, our audit committee reviews and discusses with management and our independent registered public
accounting firm any such transaction if deemed material and relevant to an understanding of the Company’s
financial statements. Our policies and practices may not be successful in eliminating the influence of conflicts.
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21. Net Income (Loss) Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

2007

T S

" Net (loés) income attributable to parén/t company ) s ,7 608 § (46 629) $ 355 901 |

- (13.439)

(Loss) income from contmulng operatlons avallable to common
shareholders

$ (76,810) §$ 255,540

cor

n sh.
- Effect of dilutive securities i
Denominator for diluted net income per share

djusted v&;el ghted
average common shares 53,266 47,231 46,833

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company reported a net loss from continuing operations
(after preferred dividends), and as such, calculated dilutive share equivalents have been excluded from per share
computations because including such shares would be anti-dilutive. There were no dilutive share equivalents for the
year ended December 31, 2009 and 56,587 share equivalents were excluded for the year ended December 31, 2008.
For the year ended December 31, 2007 there were 285,800 outstanding share options excluded from the computation
of diluted net income per share for 2007 because the grant date prices were greater than the average market price of
the common shares and, therefore, the effect would be anti-dilutive. In connection with the special distribution paid
by the Company during the year ended December 31, 2007 (see Note 2), the exercise price of all of the Company’s
then outstanding options had been reduced by $10.63 per share for all periods presented as required under the terms
of the Company’s option plans.

22. Subsequent Events
Unsecured Notes and Preferred Securities Repurchase Programs

On January 27, 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized a new unsecured notes repurchase program which
allows the Company to repurchase up to $100 million of outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP. This new
repurchase program runs through December 31, 2010. Under the new repurchase program, senior notes may be
repurchased from time to time in open market transactions or privately negotiated transactions, subject to applicable
legal requirements, market conditions and other factors. The repurchase program does not obligate the repurchase of
any specific amounts of senior notes, and repurchases pursuant to the program may be suspended or resumed at any
time from time to time without further notice or announcement. The Company will continue to monitor the debt
markets and repurchase certain senior notes that meet the Company’s required criteria, as funds are available. The
Company anticipates funding potential repurchases from borrowings under its existing credit facility, proceeds from
property sales and/or other available funds. In February 2010, the Company repurchased $8.7 million in unsecured
senior notes, at a minimal discount to par value, which represents a 6.51% yield to maturity and resulted in the
recognition of immaterial net gains.

Additionally, on January 27, 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized a new preferred securities
repurchase program which allows the Trust to repurchase up to $25 million of outstanding 8 1/8 percent Series D
preferred depositary shares. The preferred shares may be repurchased from time to time over the next 12 months in
open market purchases or privately negotiated transactions, subject to applicable legal requirements, market
conditions and other factors. This repurchase program does not obligate the Trust to repurchase any specific
amounts of preferred shares, and repurchases pursuant to the program may be suspended or resumed at any time
from time to time without further notice or announcement. The Trust will continue to monitor the equity markets
and repurchase certain preferred shares that meet the Trust’s required criteria, as funds are available.
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Continuous Equity Offering Program

On February 22, 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees approved the issuance of up to $50.0 million of common
shares of the Trust under an at-the-market continuous equity offering program.

Distribution

During January 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees declared a cash distribution on the common shares of the
Company and on the partnership units of CRLP in the amount of $0.15 per share and per partnership unit, totaling
an aggregate of approximately $11.2 million. The distribution was made to shareholders and partners of record as of
February 8, 2010, and was paid on February 16, 2010. The Trust’s Board of Trustees reviews the dividend quarterly
and there can be no assurance as to the manner in which future dividends will be paid or that the current dividend
level will be maintained in future periods.

Management of the Company has evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after December 31 , 2009 up
through February 26, 2010, the date these financial statements were issued. During this period, there were no
material subsequent events other that those disclosed above.

23. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008. The information provided herein has been reclassified in accordance with ASC 205-20,
Discontinued Operations, and adjusted to reflect ASC 260, Earnings per Share, for all periods presented.

2009
(in thousands, except per share data)

First Second Third
8esR
] 1,147
@ﬁ@ﬁﬁ
136

s

$ (0 05) $ (0.15)

$ (0.04)

2008
(in thousands, except per share data)

First Second Third Fourth

.
canan

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations

Net income (loss) attributable to parent company
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Trustees and Shareholders of Colonial Properties Trust:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Colonial Properties Trust and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income (loss), shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2009. Our audit also included
the finaneial statement schedules as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009, listed in the Index at Item 15.
These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatément. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Colonial Properties Trust and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the year ended Decembeér 31, 2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to
the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein.

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for
noncontrolling interests and retrospectively adjusted all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated February 26, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Birmingham, Alabama
February 26, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Trustees and Shareholders of Colonial Properties Trust:

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2008 and the related consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss), of shareholders’ equity and of cash flows for each of two years in the
period ended December 31, 2008 present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Colonial Properties
Trust and its subsidiaries (the “Company”’) at December 31, 2008, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedules for
each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2008 present fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 10, beginning January 1, 2009, the Company changed the manner in which it manages its
business, which changed the disclosure surrounding its reportable segments. As discussed in Note 2, the Company
changed the manner in which it accounts for and presents its noncontrolling interests effective January 1, 2009. As
discussed in Note 2, the Company changed the manner in which it computes earnings per share effective January 1,
2009. As discussed in Note 5, the Company has reflected the impact of properties sold subsequent to January 1,
2009 in discontinued operations.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Birmingham, Alabama

February 27, 2009, except for the effects of the changes in disclosure for reportable segments discussed in Note 10,
the changes in noncontrolling interest discussed in Note 2, and changes in earnings per share discussed in Note 2,
collectively as to which the date is May 21, 2009 and except for changes in items reflected in discontinued
operations discussed in Note 5, as to which the date is February 26, 2010 '
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COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(amounts in thousands, except per unit data)

December 31, December 31,
2008

Less Afc{cumulated deprematlon

Net reél( estate/ assets \

}/Mééfﬁééi

ed cash

$ 3171960  § 3.154.501

Redeemable units, at redemption value — 8,162,845 and 8,860,971 units
outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively 133,537 124,848

L1m1ted paﬂners preferred equity ($100,000 liquidation preference)
: nsolidated partnership

Total liabilities and equity $ 3,171,960 $ 3,154,501

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in thousands, except share and per unit data)
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
(amounts in thousands)

Limited Limited Accumulated
General Partner Partners’ Partners’ Other Redeemable
Common  Preferred - Preferred Noncontrolling Comprehensive Common
d dDecember 31 2009 2008 and 2007 Equi Equi Equi Interest Income (Loss) Total Units
i b38 0822498618 97406 8. 7406 & 6). 51,380,750 18496361

45,540 13,439

7 250

5,324

Adjustment for amouﬁts included
in net income

) Adjﬁsﬁﬁent for amounts included
m net 1ncome

e
TR Km.smam\‘\\‘

Dlstnbutlons to preferred unitholders
f ange in iiterest of himited pdrtaers
Contributions from partners and the
Company related to employee stock
_purchase and dividend reinvestment plans

(8773)  (7.251)

L9 - ~
$ 963,509 3 96,707 S 97,406 $

1043 S (5005) $1154360 [5124.848

809 sil

Adjustment for amounts 1ncluded
in net income

Contributions from partners and the
Company related to employee employee
stock purchase, dividend reinvestment plans

d equity offermgs
demption of

985,,, ,$ .

51066300 5 96550 5 97406 %

ng: nable noncor | 969231 196
Balance, December 31, 2009 (2 957) $1 258,374 1$133,537

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(amounts in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2009 . 2008 2007

O
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

Colonial Realty Limited Partnership (“CRLP”), a Delaware limited partnership, is the operating partnership of
Colonial Properties Trust (the “Trust”), an Alabama real estate investment trust (“REIT”) whose shares are listed on
the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”). As used herein, the “Company” refers to the Trust and its subsidiaries,
including CRLP. The Trust owns substantially all of its assets and conducts all of its operations through CRLP. The
Trust is the sole general partner of CRLP and owned approximately 89.1% and 84.6% interest in CRLP at December
31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The Trust was originally formed as a Maryland REIT on July 9, 1993 and
reorganized as an Alabama REIT under a new Alabama REIT statute on August 21, 1995. The Trust is a
multifamily-focused self-administered and self-managed equity REIT, which means that it is engaged in the
acquisition, development, ownership, management and leasing of multifamily apartment communities and other
commercial real estate properties. The Trust’s activities include full or partial ownership and operation of a portfolio
of 156 properties as of December 31, 2009, consisting of multifamily and commercial properties located in
Alabama, Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Nevada, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas and Virginia. As of
December 31, 2009, including properties in lease-up, the Trust, through its subsidiaries, including CRLP, owns
interests in 111 multifamily apartment communities (including 105 consolidated properties, of which 104 are
wholly-owned and one is partially-owned), and 45 commercial properties, consisting of 30 office properties
(including four wholly-owned consolidated properties and 26 properties partially-owned through unconsolidated
Joint venture entities) and 15 retail properties (including five wholly-owned consolidated properties and 10
properties partially-owned through unconsolidated joint venture entities).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation—The consolidated financial statements include CRLP, and its subsidiaries including
Colonial Properties Services Inc. (“CPSI”), Colonial Properties Services Limited Partnership (“CPSLP”), and CLNL
Acquisition Sub, LLC (“CLNL”). CPSI is a taxable REIT subsidiary of the Trust that is not entitled to a dividend
paid deduction and is subject to federal, state and local income taxes. CPSI provides property development, leasing
and management for third-party owned properties and administrative services to CRLP. CRLP generally reimburses
CPSI for payroll and other costs incurred in providing services to CRLP.

CRLP consolidates entities in which it has a controlling interest or entities where it is determined to be the
primary beneficiary under Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46R (“FIN 46R"),
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Under FIN 46R, variable interest entities (“VIEs”) are generally
entities that lack sufficient equity to finance their activities without additional financial support from other parties or
whose equity holders lack adequate decision making ability. The primary beneficiary is required to consolidate the
VIE for financial reporting purposes. Additionally, Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 04-5,
“Determining Whether a General Partner, or the General Partner as a Group, Controls a Limited Partnership or
Similar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights” provides guidance in determining whether a general
partner controls and therefore should consolidate a limited partnership. The application of FIN 46R and EITF No.
04-5, requires management to make significant estimates and judgments about CRLP’s and its other partners’ rights,
obligations and economic interests in such entities. For entities in which CRLP has less than a controlling financial
interest or entities where it is not the primary beneficiary under FIN 46R, the entities are accounted for on the equity
method of accounting. Accordingly, CRLP’s share of the net earnings or losses of these entities is included in
consolidated net income. A description of CRLP’s investments accounted for on the equity method of accounting is
included in Note 9. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

CRLP recognizes noncontrolling interest in its Consolidated Balance Sheets for partially-owned entities that
CRLP consolidates. The noncontrolling partners” share of current operations is reflected in “Noncontrolling interest
of limited partners” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss).

In 2009, CRLP corrected its presentation of proceeds and payments on revolving lines of credit in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of 2008 and 2007 to present these amounts gross. Previously, such terms
were reported on a net basis.
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Federal Income Tax Status—CRLP is a partnership for federal income tax purposes. As a partnership CRLP is
not subject to federal income tax on its income. Instead, each of CRLP’s partners, including the Trust, is required to
pay tax on such partner’s allocable share of income. The Trust, which is considered a corporation for federal income
tax purposes, qualifies as a REIT for federal income tax purposes and generally will not be subject to federal income
tax to the extent it distributes its REIT taxable income to its shareholders. REITs are subject to a number of
organizational and operational requirements. If the Trust fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, the Trust will
be subject to federal income tax on its taxable income at regular corporate rates. The Trust may be subject to certain
state and local taxes on its income and property.

In addition, CRLP’s financial statements include the operations of a taxable REIT subsidiary, CPSI, which is not
entitled to a dividends paid deduction and is subject to federal, state and local income taxes. CPSI provides property
development, leasing and management services for third-party owned properties and administrative services to
CRLP. CRLP generally reimburses CPSI for payroll and other costs incurred in providing services to CRLP.

CPSI uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities result
from temporary differences. Temporary differences are differences between tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their reported amounts in the financial statements that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in future periods.
All inter-company transactions are eliminated in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. CPSI has an
income tax receivable of $17.8 million and $10.1 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which is
included in “Accounts receivable, net” on CRLP’s Consolidated Balance Sheet. CPSI’s consolidated provision
(benefit) for income taxes was ($7.9) million, $0.8 million and ($7.4) million for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. CPSI’s effective income tax rate was 50.15%, -0.90% and 41.87% for the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

As of December 31, 2009, CRLP did not have a deferred tax asset after the effect of the valuation allowance. As
of December 31, 2008, CRLP had a net deferred tax asset of $9.3 million, which resulted primarily from the
impairment charge related to the Trust’s for-sale residential properties. The portion of the net deferred tax asset that
CRLP deemed recoverable approximated the amount of unutilized carryback potential related to the 2007 tax year.

On February 17, 2009, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (the “Act™) was signed into law.
Section 1231 of the Act allows some business taxpayers to elect to defer cancellation of indebtedness income when
the taxpayer repurchases applicable debt instruments after December 31, 2008 and before January 1, 2011. Under
the Act, the cancellation of indebtedness income in 2009 could be deferred for five years (until 2014), and the
cancellation of indebtedness income in 2010 could be deferred for four years (until 2014), subject in both cases to
acceleration events. After the deferral period, 20% of the cancellation of indebtedness income would be included in
taxpayer’s gross income in each of the next five taxable years. The deferral is an irrevocable election made on the
taxpayer’s income tax return for the taxable year of the reacquisition. CRLP anticipates making this election with
regard to a portion of the CRLP debt repurchased in 2009.

On November 6, 2009, the Worker, Homeownership, and Business Assistance Act of 2009 was signed into law,
which expands the net operating loss (“NOL”) carryback rules to allow businesses to carryback NOLs incurred in
either 2008 or 2009 up to five years. As a result of the new legislation, CPSI will carry back tax losses that occurred
in the year ending December 31, 2009, against income that was recognized in 2005 and 2006. During the fourth
quarter 2009, CPSI recorded an income tax benefit as a result of the new NOL carryback rules. Refunds are
anticipated to be collected in 2010.

Tax years 2003 through 2008 are subject to examination by the federal taxing authoritics. Generally, tax years
2006 through 2008 are subject to examination by state tax authorities. There is one state tax examination currently in
process.

CRLP may from time to time be assessed interest or penalties by major tax jurisdictions, although any such
assessments historically have been minimal and immaterial to our financial results. When CRLP has received an
assessment for interest and/or penalties, it has been classified in the financial statements as income tax expense.

Real Estate Assets, Impairment and Depreciation—Land, buildings, and equipment is. stated at the lower of
cost, less accumulated depreciation, or fair value. Undeveloped land and construction in progress is stated at cost
unless such assets are impaired in which case such assets are recorded at fair value. CRLP reviews its long-lived
assets and certain intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a
comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset. Assets classified as held for sale are reported at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to
sell.
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CRLP’s determination of fair value is based on inputs management believes are consistent with those that market
participants would use. Estimates are significantly impacted by estimates of sales price, selling velocity, sales
incentives, construction costs and other factors. Due to uncertainties in the estimation process, actual results could
differ from such estimates. For those assets deemed to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is to be
measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:
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Furniture and fixtures 5 or 7 years
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Land improvements years
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Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Replacements and improvements are capitalized
and depreciated over the estimated remaining useful lives of the assets.

Acquisition of Real Estate Assets— CRLP accounts for its acquisitions of investments in real estate in
accordance with ASC 805-10, Business Combinations, which requires the fair value of the real estate acquired to be
allocated to the acquired tangible assets, consisting of land, building and tenant improvements, and identified
intangible assets and liabilities, consisting of the value of above-market and below-market leases, other value of in-
place leases and value of other tenant relationships, based in each case on the fair values.

CRLP allocates purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property (which includes the
land and building) determined by valuing the property as if it were vacant. The “as-if-vacant” value is allocated to
land and buildings based on management’s determination of the relative fair values of these assets. CRLP also
allocates value to tenant improvements based on the estimated costs of similar tenants with similar terms.

CRLP records acquired intangible assets (including above-market leases, customer relationships and in-place
leases) and acquired intangible liabilities (including below-market leases) at their estimated fair value separate and
apart from goodwill. CRLP amortizes identified intangible assets and liabilities that are determined to have finite
lives over the period the assets and liabilities are expected to contribute directly or indirectly to the future cash flows
of the property or business acquired. Intangible assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognized if the carrying amount of an intangible asset is not recoverable and its carrying amount exceeds its
estimated fair value.

As of December 31, 2009, CRLP had $13.0 million, $2.0 million, and $12.4 million of unamortized in-place
lease intangible assets, net market lease intangibles, and intangibles related to relationships with customers,
respectively. The aggregate amortization expense for in-place lease intangible assets recorded during 2009, 2008,
and 2007 was $0.2 million, $0.5 million, and $7.3 million, respectively.

Cost Capitalization—Costs incurred during predevelopment are capitalized after CRLP has identified a
development site, determined that a project is feasible and concluded that it is probable that the project will proceed.
While CRLP believes it will recover this capital through the successful development of such projects, it is possible
that a write-off of unrecoverable amounts could occur. Once it is no longer probable that a development will be
successful, the predevelopment costs that have been previously capitalized are expensed.

The capitalization of costs during the developmenit of assets (including interest, property taxes and other direct
costs) begins when an active development commences and ends when the asset, or a portion of an asset, is
completed and is ready for its intended use. Cost capitalization during redevelopment of assets (including interest
and other direct costs) begins when the asset is taken out-of-service for redevelopment and ends when the asset
redevelopment is completed and the asset is transferred back: into service.

Cash and EquivalentS—CRLP includes highly liquid marketable securities and debt instruments purchased with
a maturity of three.months or less in cash equivalents. The majority of CRLP’s cash and equivalents are held at
major commercial banks.
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CRLP has included in accounts payable book overdrafts representing outstanding checks in excess of funds on
deposit of $3.9 million and $10.3 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Restricted Cash—NRestricted cash is comprised of cash balances which are legally restricted as to use and
consists primarily of resident and tenant deposits, deposits on for-sale residential lots and units and cash in escrow
for self insurance retention.

As of December 31, 2009, CRLP had repurchased all of the outstanding community development district
(“CDD”) special assessment bonds at its Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac development and the CDD was
subsequently dissolved. CRLP released $17.4 million of net cash proceeds from the bond issuance, which had been
held in escrow. At December 31, 2008, “Restricted cash” on CRLP’s Balance Sheet included $20.2 million of CDD
special assessment bonds (see Note 19).

Valuation of Receivables— Due to the short-term nature of the leases at its multifamily properties, generally six
months to one year, CRLP’s exposure to tenant defaults and bankruptcies is minimized. CRLP’s policy is to record
allowances for all outstanding receivables greater than 30 days past due at its multifamily properties.

CRLP is subject to tenant defaults and bankruptcies at its commercial properties that could affect the collection
of outstanding receivables. In order to mitigate these risks, CRLP performs a credit review and analysis on
commercial tenants and significant leases before they are executed. CRLP evaluates the collectability of outstanding
receivables and records allowances as appropriate. CRLP’s policy is to record allowances for all outstanding
invoices greater than 60 days past due at its office and retail properties.

CRLP had an allowance for doubtful accounts of $1.7 million and $1.0 million as of December 31, 2009 and
2008, respectively.

Notes Receivable— Notes receivable consist primarily of promissory notes issued to third parties. CRLP records
notes receivable at cost. CRLP evaluates the collectability of both interest and principal for each of its notes to
determine whether it is impaired. A note is considered to be impaired when, based on current information and
events, it is probable that CRLP will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the existing contractual terms.
When a note is considered to be impaired, the amount of the allowance is calculated by comparing the recorded
investment to either the value determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at the note’s effective
interest rate or to the fair value of the collateral if the note is collateral dependent.

As of December 31, 2009, CRLP had notes receivable of $24.1 million, primarily consisting of the following:

(1) In February 2009, CRLP disposed of Colonial Promenade at Fultondale for $30.7 million, which included
$16.9 million of seller-financing for a term of five years at an interest rate of 5.6% (see Note 5).

(2) In November 2009, CRLP disposed of a tract of land for $7.3 million, which included $5.0 million of
seller-financing for a term of six months at an interest rate of 7.5%.

CRLP had accrued interest related to its outstanding notes receivable of $0.1 million and $0.1 million as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, CRLP had recorded a reserve of
$1.9 million and $1.5 million, respectively, against its outstanding notes receivable and accrued interest. The
weighted average interest rate on the notes receivable outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was
approximately 6.0% and 5.9%, respectively. Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

CRLP received principal payments of $2.2 million and $1.7 million on these and other outstanding subordinated
loans during 2009 and 2008, respectively. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, CRLP had outstanding notes
receivable balances of $22.2 million, net of a $1.9 million reserve, and $2.9 million, net of a $1.5 million reserve,
respectively.

Deferred Debt and Lease Costs—Deferred debt costs consist of loan fees and related expenses which are
amortized on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective interest method, over the terms of the related
debt. Deferred lease costs include leasing charges, direct salaries and other costs incurred by CRLP to originate a
lease, which are amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related leases.

Derivative Instruments—All derivative instruments are recognized on the balance sheet and measured at fair
value. Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge treatment must be recorded at fair value with gains or losses
recognized in earnings in the period of change. CRLP enters into derivative financial instruments from time to time,
but does not use them for trading or speculative purposes. Interest rate cap agreements and interest rate swap
agreements are used to reduce the potential impact of increases in interest rates on variable-rate debt.
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CRLP formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge (see Note 12). This process includes specific
identification of the hedging instrument and the hedged transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness in hedging the exposure to the hedged transaction’s variability in cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk will be assessed. Both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, CRLP
assesses whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in
cash flows or fair values of hedged items. CRLP discontinues hedge accounting if a derivative is not determined to
be highly effective as a hedge or has ceased to be a highly effective hedge.

Share-Based Compensation—The Trust currently sponsors share option plans and restricted share award plans
(see Note 15). The Trust accounts for share based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, Stock Compensation,
which requires compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in financial
statements.

Revenue Recognition— Residential properties are leased under operating leases with terms of generally one
year or less. Rental revenues from residential leases are recognized on the straight-line method over the approximate
life of the leases, which is generally one year. The recognition of rental revenues from residential leases when
earned has historically not been materially different from rental revenues recognized on a straight-line basis.

Under the terms of residential leases, the residents of CRLP’s residential communities are obligated to reimburse
CRLP for certain utility usage, cable, water, electricity and trash, where CRLP is the primary obligor to the utility
entity. These utility reimbursements from residents are included as “Other property related revenue” in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss).

Rental income attributable to commercial leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
leases. Certain commercial leases contain provisions for additional rent based on a percentage of tenant sales.
Percentage rents are recognized in the period in which sales thresholds are met. Recoveries from tenants for taxes,
insurance, and other property operating expenses are recognized in the period the applicable costs are incurred in
accordance with the terms of the related lease.

Sales and the associated gains or losses on real estate assets, condominium conversion projects and for-sale
residential projects including developed condominiums are recognized in accordance with ASC 360-20, Real Estate
Sales. For condominium conversion and for-sale residential projects, sales and the associated gains for individual
condominium units are recognized upon the closing of the sale transactions, as all conditions for full profit
recognition have been met (“Completed Contract Method™). CRLP uses the relative sales value method to allocate
costs and recognize profits from condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales.

Estimated future warranty costs on condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales are charged to cost of
sales in the period when the revenues from such sales are recognized. Such estimated warranty costs are
approximately 0.5% of total revenue. As necessary, additional warranty costs are charged to costs of sales based on
management’s estimate of the costs to remediate existing claims.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognized on the percentage-of-completion method, measured by the
percentage of costs incurred to date to estimated total costs. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted
contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined. Adjustments to estimated profits on contracts
are recognized in the period in which such adjustments become known.

Other income received from long-term contracts signed in the normal course of business, including property
management and development fee income, is recognized when earned for services provided to third parties,
including joint ventures in which CRLP owns a noncontrolling interest.

Net Income Per Unit— Basic net income per common unit is computed under the “two class method” as
described in ASC 260, Earnings per Share. The two-class method is an earnings allocation formula that determines
earnings per unit for each class of unit and participating security according to dividends declared and participation
rights in undistributed earnings. According to the guidance, CRLP has included share-based payment awards that
have non-forfeitable rights to dividends prior to vesting as participating securities. Diluted net income per common
unit is computed by dividing the net income available to common unitholders by the weighted average number of
common units outstanding during the period, the dilutive effect of restricted shares issued, and the assumed
conversion of all potentially dilutive outstanding share options.
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Self Insurance Accruals—CRLP is self insured up to certain limits for general liability claims, workers’
compensation claims, property claims and health insurance claims. Amounts are accrued currently for the estimated cost
of claims incurred, both reported and unreported.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Segment Reporting—CRLP reports on its segments in accordance with ASC 260, Segment Reporting, which defines
an operating segment as a component of an enterprise that engages in business activities that generate revenues and incur
expenses, which operating results are reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in the determination of resource
allocation and performance and for which discrete financial information is available. CRLP manages its business based on
the performance of two separate operating segments: multifamily and commercial.

Noncontrolling Interests and Redeemable Common Units — Amounts reported as limited partners’ interest in
consolidated partnerships on CRLP’s Consolidated Balance Sheets are presented as noncontrolling interests within equity.
Additionally, amounts reported as preferred units in CRLP are presented as noncontrolling interests within equity.
Noncontrolling interests in common units of CRLP are included in the temporary equity section (between liabilities and
equity) of CRLP’s Consolidated Balance Sheets because of the redemption feature of these units. These units are
redeemable at the option of the holders for cash equal to the fair market value of a common share of the Trust at the time
of redemption or, at the option of the Trust, one common share. Based on the requirements of ASC 480-10-S99, the
measurement of noncontrolling interests is presented at “redemption value” — i.e., the fair value of the units (or limited
partners’ interests) as of the balance sheet date (based on the Trust’s share price multiplied by the number of outstanding
units), or the aggregate value of the individual partners’ capital balances, whichever is greater. See the Consolidated
Statements of Equity for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 for the presentation and related activity of
the noncontrolling interests and redeemable common units.

Investments in Joint Ventures — To the extent that CRLP contributes assets to a joint venture, CRLP’s investment in
the joint venture is recorded at CRLP’s cost basis in the assets that were contributed to the joint venture. To the extent that
CRLP’s cost basis is different from the basis reflected at the joint venture level, the basis difference is amortized over the
life of the related assets and included in CRLP’s share of equity in net income of the joint venture. In accordance ASC
323, Investments — Equity Method and Joint Ventures, CRLP recognizes gains on the contribution of real estate to joint
ventures, relating solely to the outside partner’s interest, to the extent the economic substance of the transaction is a sale.
On a periodic basis, management assesses whether there are any indicators that the value of CRLP’s investments in
unconsolidated joint ventures may be impaired. An investment’s value is impaired only if management’s estimate of the
fair value of the investment is less than the carrying value of the investment and such difference is deemed to be other than
temporary. To the extent impairment has occurred, the loss shall be measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the
investment over the estimated fair value of the investment. During 2009, CRLP determined that its 35% noncontrolling
joint venture interest in Colonial Grand Traditions was impaired and that this impairment was other than temporary. As a
result, CRLP recognized a non-cash impairment charge of $0.2 million during 2009. Other than Colonial Grand at
Traditions, CRLP has determined that these investments were not other than temporarily impaired as of December 31,
2009 and 2008. ‘

Investinent and Development Expenses — Investment and development expenses consist primarily of costs related to
potential mergers, acquisitions, and abandoned development pursuits. Abandoned development costs are costs incurred
prior to land acquisition, including contract deposits, as well as legal, engineering and other external professional fees
related to evaluating the feasibility of such developments. If CRLP determines that it is probable that it will not develop a
particular project, any related pre-development costs previously incurred are immediately expensed. CRLP recorded $2.0
million, $4.4 million and $1.5 million in investment and development expenses in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value — CRLP applies ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures, which defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a
transaction between willing market participants. Additional disclosures focusing on the methods used to determine fair
value are also required using the following hierarchy:

¢ Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the
measurement date.
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e Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

e Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.

CRLP applies ASC 820 in relation to the valuation of real estate assets recorded at fair value, to its impairment
valuation analysis of real estate assets (see Note 4) and to its disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments,
principally indebtedness (see Note 11) and notes receivable (see above). The following table presents CRLP’s real
estate assets, notes receivable and long-term indebtedness reported at fair market value and the related level in the
fair value hierarchy as defined by ASC 820 used to measure those assets, liabilities and disclosures at December 31,
2009: ‘ ,

(in thousands) Fair value measurements as of December 31, 2009
Assets (Liabilities) . Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Real estate assets, including land held for sale $51,965 $— $— $51,965

Real estate assets, including land held for sale were valued using sales activity for similar assets, current
contracts and using inputs management believes are consistent with those that market participants would use.

At December 31, 2009, the estimated fair value of fixed-rate debt was approximately $1.35 billion (carrying
value of $1.38 billion) and the estimated fair value of CRLP’s variable rate debt, including CRLP’s line of credit, is
consistent with the carrying value of $323.9 million.

At December 31, 2009, the estimated fair value of CRLP’s notes receivable was approximately $22.2 million
based on market rates and similar financing arrangements.

Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted — In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160,
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 51, now known as
ASC 810-10-65, which establishes accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary
and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is an ownership
interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements under
certain circumstances. ASC 810-10-65 requires consolidated net income to be reported at amounts that include the
amounts attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest. ASC 810-10-65 also requires disclosure, on
the face of the consolidated statement of operations, of the amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the
parent and to the noncontrolling interest. The provisions of ASC 810-10-65 became effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008, including interim periods beginning January 1, 2009. Based on CRLP’s
evaluation of ASC 810-10-65, CRLP has concluded that it will continue to classify its noncontrolling interest related
to CRLP common units held by limited partners as “temporary equity” in its consolidated balance sheet. As
discussed above, these common units are redeemable for either common shares of the Trust or, at the option of the
Trust, cash equal to the fair market value of a common share at the time of redemption. CRLP has classified these
common units of CRLP as temporary equity. This is primarily due to the fact that the Trust has provided registration
rights to CRLP common unitholders, which effectively require the Trust to provide the ability to resell exchanged
shares under a “resale” registration statement when presented by the exchanging unitholders. As the ability to
effectively issue marketable shares under the provision of the registration rights agreements is outside of the
exclusive control of the Trust, CRLP has concluded that it does not meet the requirements for permanent equity
classification under the provisions of ASC 815-40, Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity. All other noncontrolling
interests are classified as equity in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Also effective with the adoption
of ASC 810-10, previously reported noncontrolling interests have been re-characterized on the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations to noncontrolling interests and placed below “Net income (loss)” before
arriving at “Net income (loss) attributable to common unitholders.”

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP EITF 03-6-1, Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based
Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities, now known as ASC 260-10-65-2, which addresses whether
instruments granted in share-based payment transactions are participating securities prior to vesting and, therefore,
need to be included in the earnings allocation in computing earnings per unit under the two-class method as
described in ASC 260, Earnings per Share. Under the guidance in ASC 260-10-65-2, unvested share-based payment
awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are
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participating securities and shall be included in the computation of earnings per unit pursuant to the two-class
method. ASC 260-10-65-2 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. All prior-period earnings per unit data presented has been
adjusted retrospectively. The adoption of ASC 260-10-65-2 requires CRLP to include participating securities in the
computation of earnings per unit calculation (see Note 21). The application of this FSP did not have a material -
impact on CRLP’s consolidated financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, now known as ASC 825-10, Financial Instruments. ASC 825-10 amends SFAS No. 107 to
require disclosures about fair value of financial instruments for interim reporting periods of publicly traded
companies in addition to the annual financial statements. ASC 825-10 also amends APB No. 28 to require those
disclosures in summarized financial information at interim reporting periods. ASC825-10 is effective for interim
periods ending after June 15, 2009. Prior period presentation is not required for comparative purposes at initial
adoption. The adoption of ASC 825-10 did not have a material impact on CRLP’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events, now known as ASC 855-10, Subsequent
Events. ASC 855-10 establishes the principles and requirements for recognizing and disclosing subsequent events
under GAAP. ASC 855-10 incorporates the principles and accounting guidance that originated as auditing standards
into the body of authoritative literature issued by the FASB, as well as prescribes disclosure regarding the date
through which subsequent events have been evaluated. Companies are required to evaluate subsequent events
through the date the financial statements are issued. ASC 855-10 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods
ending after June 15, 2009. The adoption of ASC 855-10 did not have a material impact on CRLP’s consolidated
financial statements.

Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Effective- In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, Amendments to
FASB Interpretation No. FIN 46(R), now known as ASC 810-10-30, Initial Measurement. ASC 810-10-30 amends
the manner in which entities evaluate whether consolidation is required for variable interest entities (VIEs). A
company must first perform a qualitative analysis in determining whether it must consolidate a VIE, and if the
qualitative analysis is not determinative, must perform a quantitative analysis. Further, ASC 810-10-30 requires that
companies continually evaluate VIEs for consolidation, rather than assessing based upon the occurrence of
triggering events. ASC 810-10-30 also requires enhanced disclosures about how a company’s involvement with a
VIE affects its financial statements and exposure to risks. ASC 810-10-30 is effective for fiscal years and interim
periods beginning after November 15, 2009. CRLP is currently assessing the impact of ASC 810-10-30.

3. Restructuring Charges

During 2009, CRLP reduced its workforce by 90 employees through the elimination of certain positions
resulting in CRLP incurring an aggregate of $1.4 million in termination benefits and severance-related charges. Of
the $1.4 million in restructuring charges recorded in 2009, approximately $0.5 million was associated with CRLP’s
multifamily segment, including $0.2 million associated with development personnel, $0.8 million was associated
with CRLP’s commercial segment, including $0.3 million associated with development personnel and $0.1 million
of these restructuring costs were non-divisional charges. Of the $1.4 million of restructuring charges in 2009, $0.7
million is accrued in “Accrued expenses” on CRLP’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 3 1, 2009.

On December 30, 2008, Weston M. Andress resigned from the Trust, including his positions as President and .
Chief Financial Officer and as a member of the Trust’s Board of Trustees. In connection with his resignation, the
Trust and Mr. Andress entered into a severance agreement resulting in a cash payment of $1.3 million. In addition,
all of Mr. Andress’ unvested restricted stock and non-qualified stock options granted on his behalf were forfeited,
and as a result, previously recognized stock based compensation expense of $1.8 million was reversed. Therefore,
due to the resignation of Mr. Andress, a net of ($0.5) million was recognized as “Restructuring charges” on CRLP’s
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) reducing CRLP’s overall expense.

Additionally, in 2008, CRLP reevaluated its operating strategy as it related to certain aspects of its business and
decided to postpone/phase future development activities in an effort to focus on maintaining efficient operations of
the current portfolio. As a result, CRLP reduced its workforce by 87 employees through the elimination of certain
positions resulting in CRLP incurring an aggregate of $1.5 million in termination benefits and severance related
charges. Of the $1.5 million in restructuring charges, approximately $0.6 million was associated with CRLP’s
multifamily segment, $0.5 million with CRLP’s commercial segment and $0.4 million of these restructuring costs
were non-divisional charges.
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As a result of the actions noted above in 2008, CRLP recognized $1.0 million of restructuring charges during
2008, of which $0.5 million is accrued in “Adccrued expenses” on CRLP’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December
31, 2008. ‘

During 2007, as a direct result of the strategic initiative to become a multifamily focused REIT, CRLP incurred
$3.0 million in termination benefits and severance costs. Of the $3.0 million in restructuring charges, approximately
$0.5 million was associated with CRLP’s multifamily segment and $1.0 million with CRLP’s commercial segment.
The remainder of these restructuring costs was non-divisional charges.

4. Impairment

High unemployment and overall economic deterioration continued to adversely affect the condominium and
single family housing markets in 2009. The for-sale real estate markets remained unstable due to the limited
availability of lending and other types of mortgages, the tightening of credit standards and an oversupply of such
assets, resulting in reduced sales velocity and reduced pricing in the real estate market.

During 2009, CRLP recorded an impairment charge of $12.4 million. Of the $10.4 million presented in
“Impairment and other losses” in continuing operations on CRLP’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), $10.3 million relates to a reduction of the carrying value of certain of its for-
sale residential assets, a retail development and certain land parcels. The $2.0 million presented in “Income (loss)
from discontinued operations” on CRLP’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss) relates to the sell out of the remaining units at two of CRLP’s condominium conversion properties.
The remaining amount in continuing operations, $0.1 million, was recorded as the result of fire damage at one of
CRLP’s multifamily apartment communities. In addition to these impairment charges, CRLP determined that it is
probable that it will have to fund the $3.5 million partial loan repayment guarantee provided on the original
construction loan for Colonial Grand at Traditions, a joint venture asset in which CRLP has a 35% noncontrolling
interest, and recognized a charge to earnings. This charge is reflected in “(Loss) income from partially-owned
unconsolidated entities” on CRLP’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Other Comprehensive Income
(Loss).

During 2008, CRLP recorded an impairment charge of $116.9 million. Of the $93.1 million presented in
“Impairment and other losses” in continuing operations on CRLP’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), $35.9 million is attributable to certain of CRLP’s completed for-sale
residential properties, $36.2 million is attributable to land held for future sale and for-sale residential and mixed-use
developments and $19.3 million is attributable to a retail development. The remaining amount in continuing
operations, $1.7 million, relates to casualty losses due to fire damage at four apartment communities. The $25.5
million presented in “Income (loss) from discontinued operations” on CRLP’s Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) relates to condominium conversion properties. The impairment
charge was calculated as the difference between the estimated fair value of each property and CRLP’s current book
value plus the estimated costs to complete. CRLP also incurred $4.4 million of abandoned pursuit costs as a result of
CRLP’s decision to postpone future development activities (including previously identified future development
projects). '

During 2007, CRLP recorded an impairment charge of $46.6 million. The $43.3 million presented in
“Impairment and other losses” in continuing operations on CRLP’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) relates to a reduction of the carrying value of certain of its for-sale residential
developments and condominium conversions to their estimated fair value, due primarily to a softening in the
condominium market and certain units that were under contract did not close because buyers elected not to
consummate the purchase of the units. The $2.5 million presented in “Income (loss) from discontinued operations”
on CRLP’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) relates to a retail asset
that was subsequently sold during 2007. The remaining amount in continuing operations, $0.8 million, was recorded
as the result of casualty losses due to fire damage at two apartment communities.

CRLP will continue to monitor the specific facts and circumstances at CRLP’s for-sale properties and
development projects. If market conditions do not improve or if there is further market deterioration, it may impact
the number of projects CRLP can sell, the timing of the sales and/or the prices at which CRLP can sell them in
future periods. If CRLP is unable to sell projects, CRLP may incur additional impairment charges on projects
previously impaired as well as on projects not currently impaired but for which indicators of impairment may exist,
which would decrease the value of CRLP’s assets as reflected on the balance sheet and adversely affect net income
and shareholders’ equity. There can be no assurances of the amount or pace of future for-sale residential sales and
closings, particularly given current market conditions.
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S. Property Acquisitions and Dispositions
Property Acquisitions

In September 2009, the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture refinanced the existing construction loan with a
new $15.6 million, 10-year loan collateralized by the property with an interest rate of 5.64%. In connection with the
refinancing, CRLP made a preferred equity contribution of $11.5 million, which was used by the joint venture to repay the
balance of the then outstanding construction loan and closing costs. As a result of the preferred equity contribution to the
joint venture, CRLP began consolidating the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture in its financial statements
beginning with the quarter ending September 30, 2009. In November 2009, CRLP disposed of its 15% ownership interest
in the DRA/CRT office joint and acquired 100% ownership of one of the joint venture’s properties, Three Ravinia. In
connection with this transaction, CRLP made aggregate payments of $127.2 million ($102.5 million of which was used to
repay existing indebtedness secured by Three Ravinia). In December 2009, CRLP disposed of its 17.1% ownership
interest in the OZ/CLP Retail joint venture and made a cash payment of $45.1 million to the joint venture partner. As part
of the transaction, CRLP received 100% ownership of one of the Joint venture assets, Colonial Promenade Alabaster (see
Note 9 and 11).

During 2008, CRLP acquired the remaining 75% interest in one multifamily apartment community containing 270
units for a total cost of $18.4 million, which consisted of the assumption of $14.7 million of existing mortgage debt ($3.7
million of which was previously unconsolidated by CRLP as a 25% partner) and $7.4 million of cash. During 2007, CRLP
acquired four multifamily apartment communities containing 1,084 units for an aggregate cost of approximately $138.2
million, which consisted of the assumption of $18.9 million of existing mortgage debt ($6.6 million of which was
previously unconsolidated by CRLP as a 35% partner) and $125.4 million of cash. Also, during 2007, CRLP acquired a
partnership interest in three multifamily apartment communities containing 775 units for an aggregate cost of
approximately $12.3 million, which consisted of $9.5 million of newly issued mortgage debt and $2.8 million of cash.

The consolidated operating properties acquired during 2009, 2008 and 2007 are listed below:
Effective

Location Acquisition Date Units/Square Feet,
M, (unaudied)

Multifamily Properties: '
Colonial Grand at Canyon Creek

Colonial Village at Matthews =
Colonial Grand at Old Town Scottsd:
Colonial Grand at Old Town Scottsda
Colonial Grand at Inverness Commons

ittat Godley Station =~

Commercial Properties:
ThreeRavima = .
Colonial Promenade Alabaster

lovember 25,2009 71 'R13,000
December 14, 2009 288,000

(1) Retail square-footage excludes anchored owned-square footage.

Results of operations of these properties, subsequent to their respective acquisition dates, are included in the
consolidated financial statements of CRLP. The cash paid to acquire these properties is included in the consolidated
statements of cash flows. For properties acquired through acquisitions, assets were recorded at fair value based on an
independent third party appraisal and internal models using assumptions consistent with those made by other market
participants. The property acquisitions during 2009, 2008 and 2007 are comprised of the following:

2009 2008 2007

Assetspurchaseds 7 T T
Land, buildings, and equipment

Ttangibles (1) 1

Other assets \
d mortgages assumed .(14700) (18,944)

Other liabilities assumed ot recorded . vy e

Total consideration $ 236,1892) $ 7369 $ 125,400

(1) Includes 31 3.0 million, 82.0 million and $12.4 million of unamortized in-place lease intangible assets, above (below)
market lease intangibles and intangibles related to relationships with customers, respectively.

(2)  See Note 9 and Note 11 regarding details for these transactions.
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The following unaudited pro forma financial information for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and
2007, give effect to the above operating property acquisitions as if they had occurred at the beginning of the periods
presented. The information for the year ended December 31, 2009 inciudes pro forma results for the months during
the year prior to the acquisition date and actual results from the date of acquisition through the end of the year. The
pro forma results are not intended to be indicative of the results of future operations.

sk Pro Forma (Unaudited) **++*
Year Ended December 31,

in thousands, except per unit data
Total reventis .

Net income (loss) available to common unitholders

Property Dispositions — Continuing Operations

During 2009, 2008 and 2007, CRLP sold various consolidated parcels of land for an aggregate sales price of
$10.7 million, $16.6 million and $15.2 million, respectively, which were used to repay a portion of the borrowings
under CRLP’s unsecured credit facility and for general corporate purposes.

During 2009, CRLP sold its joint venture interest in six multifamily apartment communities, representing 1,906
units, its joint venture interest in an office park, representing 689,000 square feet, and its joint venture interest in a
retail center, representing 345,000 square feet, for an aggregate sales price of $26.4 million, of which $19.7 million
was used to pay CRLP’s pro-rata portion of the outstanding debt. The net gains from the sale of these interests, of
approximately $4.4 million, are included in “(Loss) income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities” in
CRLP’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss). In addition to the transactions
described above, CRLP exited two commercial joint ventures that owned an aggregate of 26 commercial assets (see
Note 9).

During 2008, CRLP sold its 10%-15% joint venture interest in seven multifamily apartment communities
representing approximately 1,751 units, its 15% joint venture interest in one office asset representing 0.2 million
square feet and its 10% joint venture interest in the GPT/Colonial Retail Joint Venture, which included six retail
malls totaling an aggregate 3.9 million square feet, including anchor-owned square footage. CRLP’s interests in
these properties were sold for approximately $59.7 million. The gains from the sales of these interests are included
in “(Loss) income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities” in CRLP’s Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Comprehensive Income (Loss) (see Note 9).

During 2007, in addition to the joint venture transactions discussed in Note 10, CRLP sold a majority interest in
three development properties representing a total of 786,500 square feet, including anchor-owned square footage.
CRLP’s interests in these properties were sold for approximately $93.8 million (see Development Dispositions
below). Also during 2007, CRLP sold a wholly-owned retail asset containing 131,300 square feet. CRLP’s interest
in this property was sold for approximately $20.6 million. Because CRLP retained management and leasing
responsibilities for this property, the gain on the sale was included in continuing operations.

Property Dispositions — Discontinued Operations

During 2009, CRLP sold a wholly-owned commercial asset containing 286,000 square feet for a total sales price
of $20.7 million, and recognized a gain of approximately $1.8 million on the sale. The proceeds were used to repay
a portion of the borrowings under CRLP’s unsecured credit facility.

During 2008, CRLP sold six wholly-owned multifamily apartment communities representing 1,746 units for a
total cost of approximately $139.5 million. CRLP also sold a wholly-owned office property containing 37,000
square feet for a total sales price of $3.1 million. The proceeds were used to repay a portion of the borrowings under
CRLP’s unsecured credit facility and fund future investments and for general corporate purposes.

During 2007, CRLP disposed of 12 consolidated multifamily apartment communities representing 3,140 units
and 15 consolidated retail assets representing 3.3 million square feet, including anchor-owned square footage: The
multifamily and retail assets were sold for a total sales price of $479.2 million, which was used to repay a portion of
the borrowings under CRLP’s unsecured credit facility and fund future investments.

In some cases, CRLP uses disposition proceeds to fund investment activities through tax-deferred exchanges
under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code. Certain of the proceeds described above were received into
temporary cash accounts pending the fuifillment of Section 1031 exchange requirements. Subsequently, a portion of
the funds were utilized to fund investment activities. CRLP incurred an income tax indemnity payment in 2008 of
approximately $1.3 million with respect to the decision not to reinvest sales proceeds from a previously tax deferred
property exchange that was originally expected to occur in 2008. The payment was a requirement under a
contribution agreement between CRLP and existing holders of units in CRLP.
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In accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations, net income (loss) and gain (loss) on disposition of
operating properties sold through December 31, 2009, in which CRLP does not maintain continuing involvement,
are reflected in its Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) on a comparative basis
as “Income (Loss) from discontinued operations” for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. Following
is a listing of the properties CRLP disposed of in 2009, 2008 and 2007 that are classified as discontinued operations:

Units/Square
Property Location Date Feet
(unaudited)

i
S

Ri
rd
i

%: e ;t; £
Beacon Hill

/Clarior
_ Colonial m_Gzand at Enclave Jan&a%
% L % 2 *‘3 .

e 2
Colonial Village at Regency Pl:
onial Village at Spring Lak

mial Gran:
Stonebrook

ermont Shopping Center ebruary 2007

 Huntsville, AL
_._Staunton, VA
m»«m% 3 {
Montgomery
- menade M nigomi g :
Colonial Shoppes Bellwood
L ( | ' .Bgﬁ

o

Dallas, TX 381,166
Alla (12001 September 200° 8.478

(1) Square footage for retail assets excludes anchor-owned square footage.
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Development Dispositions

During 2009, CRLP sold a commercial development, consisting of approximately 159,000 square-feet
(excluding anchor-owned square feet) of retail shopping space. The development was sold for approximately $30.7
million, which included $16.9 million of seller-financing for a term of five years at an intetest rate of 5.6%. The gain
of approximately $4.4 million, net of income taxes, from the sale of this development is included in “Gains from
sales of property, net of income taxes” in CRLP’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss).

During 2008, CRLP recorded gains on sales of commercial developments totaling $1.7 million, net of income
taxes. This amount relates to changes in development cost estimates, including stock-based compensation costs,
which were capitalized into certain of CRLP’s commercial developments that were sold in previous periods.

In addition, during 2008, CRLP recorded a gain on sale of $2.8 million ($1.7 million net of income taxes) from
the Colonial Grand at Shelby Farms II multifamily expansion phase development as discussed in Property
Dispositions — Discontinued Operations.

During December 2007, CRLP sold 95% of its interest in Colonial Promenade Alabaster IT and two build-to-suit
outparcels at Colonial Pinnacle Tutwiler II (hhgregg & Havertys) to a joint venture between CRLP and Watson LLC
(Watson). The retail assets include 418,500 square feet, including anchor-owned square-footage, and are located in
Birmingham, Alabama. CRLP’s interest was sold for approximately $48.1 million. CRLP recognized a gain of
approximately $8.3 million after tax and noncontrolling interest on the sale. CRLP’s remaining 5% investment in the
partnership is comprised of $0.5 million in contributed property and $2.0 million of newly issued mortgage debt.
The proceeds from the sale were used to fund other developments and for other general corporate purposes. Because
CRLP retained an interest in these properties and management and leasing responsibilities for these properties, the
gain on the sale was included in continuing operations.

During July 2007, CRLP sold 85% of its interest in Colonial Pinnacle Craft Farms I located in Gulf Shores,
Alabama. The retail shopping center development includes 368,000 square feet, including anchor-owned square-
footage. CRLP sold its 85% interest for approximately $45.7 million and recognized a gain of approximately $4.2
million, after income tax, from the sale. The proceeds from the sale were used to fund developments and for other
general corporate purposes. Because CRLP retained an interest in this property, the gain on the sale was included in
continuing operations.

Held for Sale

CRLP classifies real estate assets as held for sale, only after CRLP has received approval by its internal
investment committee, has commenced an active program to sell the assets, and in the opinion of CRLP’s
management it is probable the asset will sell within the next 12 months.

At December 31, 2009, CRLP had classified seven for-sale developments as held for sale. These real estate
assets are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at $65.0 million at December 31, 2009, which
represents the lower of depreciated cost or fair value less costs to sell.

At December 31, 2008, CRLP had classified two commercial assets, two condominium conversion properties
and six for-sale developments as held for sale. These real estate assets are reflected in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets at $37.2 million, $0.8 million and $64.7 million, respectively, at December 31, 2008,
which represents the lower of depreciated cost or fair value less costs to sell.

In accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations, the operating results of properties (excluding
condominium conversion properties not previously operated) designated as held for sale, are included in “Income
(Loss) from discontinued operations” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income
(Loss) for all periods presented. In addition, the reserves, if any, to write down the carrying value of the real estate
assets designated and classified as held for sale are also included in discontinued operations (excluding
condominium conversion properties not previously operated). Any impairment losses on assets held for continuing
use are included in continuing operations.
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Below is a summary of the operations of the properties sold during 2009, 2008 and 2007 and properties
classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2009, that are classified as discontinued operations:

(amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Property revenues:

Base rent $ 3,526 $ 12,806 $ 34,879

Tenant recoveries 202 169 3,640

Other revenue 827 2,169 4,327
Total revenues 4,555 15,144 42,846

Property operating and maintenance expense 1,952 6,772 18,299

Impairment 2,051 25,475 2,500

Depreciation 130 1,694 5,276

Amortization 1 21 184
Total operating expenses ' 4,134 33,962 26,259
Interest expense e 183 (3,416)
Interest income — — 7
Other — — (2,160)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before net gain on disposition

of discontinued operations 421 (18,635) 11,018

Net gain on disposition of discontinued operations 1,729 43,062 91,144
Noncontrolling interest to limited partners 597 449 (3,239)
Income attributable to parent company $ 2,747 $ 24,876 < $ 98,923

6. For-Sale Activities
During 2009, CRLP completed the following transactions:

e sold the remaining 17 units at the Regents Park for total sales proceeds of $16.3 million. As discussed
in Note 4, CRLP recorded an impairment charge of $0.3 million;

e sold the remaining seven units at Azur at Metrowest and 20 units at Capri at Hunter’s Creek for total
sales proceeds of $1.1 million;

e sold the remaining condominium units at Murano at Delray Beach and Portofino at Jensen Beach, 93
units and 118 units, respectively, in two separate bulk transactions for total sales proceeds of $15.7
million. These assets were originally condominium conversion properties but the remaining units were
in the multifamily rental pool at time of sale;

»  sold the remaining 14 units at The Grander for total sales proceeds of $3.3 million; and
*  sold the remaining 63 units at Regatta for total sales proceeds of $7.7 million.

The total number of units sold for condominium conversion properties, for-sale residential units and lots for the
years ended 2009, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

2009 2008 2007
For-Sale Residential 132 76 101
Condominium Conversion 238 3 262
Residential Lot 3 1 14

These dispositions eliminate the operating expenses and costs to carry the associated units. CRLP’s portion of
the proceeds from the sales was used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings on CRLP’s unsecured
revolving credit facility.
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During 2009, 2008 and 2007, “Gains from sales of property” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss) included $1.0 million ($0.9 million net of income taxes), $1.7 million ($1.1 million
net of income taxes) and $13.2 million ($10.9 million net of income taxes and noncontrolling interest), respectively,
from these condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales. A summary of revenues and costs of
condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales for 2009, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31
2009 __2008 2007

Condominium conversion revenues $ 16851 § 448 '$ 51,073
Condominium conversion costs (16.592) (401) (40,972)
Gains on condominium convers;on sales, before noncontrolling mterest

and income taxes ' it 59 . 47 110,101
For-sale residential revenues ) 38,839 17,851 26,153
For-sale residential costs L (i s (38.161) M?* (23,016
Gains on for-sale residential sales before noncontrolhng mterest and

income taxes 678 1,625 3,137
Noncontrollingmtgmst . . Lo it L 250

Provision for income taxes (71D ( 552) ( 2.630)
Gains on condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales, net of : : . e
noncontrolling interest and income taxes L

Completed for-sale residential projects of approximately $65.0 million and $64.7 million are reflected in real
estate assets held for sale as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The net gains on condominium unit sales are classified in discontinued operations if the related condominium
property was previously operated by CRLP as an apartment community. For 2009, 2008 and 2007, gains on
condominium unit sales, net of income taxes, of $0.2 million, $0.1 million and $9.3 million, respectively, are
included in discontinued operations.

As of December 31, 2009, CRLP had sold all remaining condominium conversion properties.

For cash flow statement purposes, CRLP classifies capital expenditures for newly developed for-sale residential
communities and for other condominium conversion communities in investing activities. Likewise, the proceeds
from the sales of condominium units and other residential sales are also included in investing activities.

7. Land, Buildings and Equipment
Land, buildings, and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2009 and 2008:

(in thousands)
Useful Lives 2009 2008

Buildings 20 to 40 years 8§ 2,369,034 $ 2,183,060
Furniture and fixtures 5 or 7 years 118,857 102,501
Equipment JorSyears = 36029 32057
Land improvements 10 or 15 years 222,231 181,944
Tenant improvements: el Life of lease = 59,853 42,076
2,806,004 2 541 638
Accumulated depreciation - 4 S 9 Yy 4 L
2,286,276 2,137,780
Real estate assets held for sale iR e 85022 196,284
Land 404,345 331,634
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8. Undeveloped Land and Construction in Progress

During 2009, CRLP completed the construction of three wholly-owned multifamily developments adding 1,042
apartment homes to the portfolio. CRLP also completed the development of two commercial developments, one of
which CRLP is a 50% partner, adding an aggregate of 250,000 square feet to the commercial portfolio. These

completed developments are:

Completed Developments:

Multifamily Properties

Colonial Grand at Onion Creek
Colonial Grand at Ashton Oaks
Colonial Grand at Desert Vista

Commercial Development
Colonial Promenade Tannehill (2)

~Total Completed Developments

Total Units/ Total
Square Feet (1) Cost
Location (unauditecjz (in thousands)

Austin, TX 300 8 32210
Austin, TX / 362 N 34,254
Las Vegas, NV 380 . 51918
1,042 $ 118,382
Birmingham, AL 84 _ 2964

(1) Square footage is presented in thousands and excludes anchor-owned square footage.

(2) Total cost and development costs for this completed development, including the portion of the project placed
into service during 2008, was $46.9 million, net of $4.5 million, which is expected to be received from local
municipalities as reimbursement for infrastructure costs.

In addition, CRLP completed one unconsolidated commercial development, Colonial Pinnacle Turkey Creek III,
a joint venture in which we own a 50% interest. This property is a 166,000 square feet development located in
Knoxville, Tennessee. CRLP’s portion of the project development costs, including land acquisition costs, was $12.4
million and was funded primarily through a secured construction loan.

CRLP has one ongoing consolidated development project as of December 31, 2009, which consists of:

Total Costs
Square Estimated Capitalized
Feet (1) Estimated Total Costs to Date
Location (unaudited) Completion (in thousands)  (in thousands)
Commercial Project: , B et g N
Colonial Promenade Craft Farms _ Gulf Shores, AL 68 2010 9900 $ 6865
Construction in Progress for Active o e L na e LI e
Developments ‘ 86865

(1) Square footage is presented in thousands and excludes anchor-owned square footage.

Interest capitalized on construction in progress during 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $3.9 million, $25.0 million and

$27.1 million, respectively.
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CRLP owns approximately $108.6 million of land parcels that are held for future developments. In 2009, CRLP
elected to defer developments of land parcels held for future development (other than land parcels held for future
sale and for-sale residential and mixed-use developments, which CRLP plans to sell, as further discussed in Note 5)
until the economy improves. These developments and undeveloped land include:

Total Units/ Capitalized
Square Feet (1) to Date

Location (unaudited) (in thousarzdsz

ily
Commercial

lidated Construction in Progress

(1) Square footage is presented in thousands. Square footage for the retail assets excludes anchor-owned square
footage.

(2) This project is part of mixed-use development.

(3) Costs capitalized to date are net of a $6.5 million impairment charge recorded during 2009 and a $19.3 million
impairment charge recorded during 2008.

(4) These costs are presented net of a $23.2 million non-cash impairment charge recorded on one of the projects in
2007.

Of these developments, in 2010, CRLP expects to resume development on the first phase of the Colonial
Promenade Nord du Lac commercial development, located in Covington, Louisiana. During 2009, CRLP recorded a
$6.5 million non-cash impairment charge on this development. The charge is a result of CRLP’s intention to develop
a power center in phases over time, as opposed to its original lifestyle center plan.

9. Investment in Partially-Owned Entities and Other Arrangements
Investments in Consolidated Partially-Owned Entities

During 2009, CRLP agreed to provide an additional contribution to the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint
venture in connection with the refinancing of an existing $27.4 million construction loan which was secured by
Colonial Grand at Canyon Creek, a 336-unit multifamily apartment community located in Austin, Texas. In
September 2009, the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture refinanced the existing construction loan with a
new $15.6 million, 10-year loan collateralized by the property with an interest rate of 5.64%. In connection with the
refinancing, CRLP made a preferred equity contribution of $11.5 million, which was used by the joint venture to
repay the balance of the then outstanding construction loan and closing costs, and terminated the previous $4.0
million guaranty with respect to the prior loan. The preferred equity has a cumulative preferential return of 8.0%. As
a result of the preferred equity contribution to the joint venture, CRLP began consolidating the CMS/Colonial
Canyon Creek joint venture, with a fair value of the property of $26.0 million recorded in its financial statements
beginning with the quarter ending September 30, 2009. CRLP’s determination of fair value was based on inputs
management believed were consistent with those other market participants would use.
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During 2008, CRLP converted its outstanding note receivable due from the Regents Park Joint Venture to

preferred equity after the Regents Park Joint Venture defaulted on this note receivable. CRLP negotiated

amendments to the operating agreement for the joint venture such that the $29.5 million outstanding balance of the
note receivable, as well as all of CRLP’s original equity of $3.0 million (plus a preferred return) will receive priority
distributions over the joint venture partner’s original equity of $4.5 million (plus a preferred return). CRLP also

amended the joint venture operating agreement to expressly grant CRLP control rights with respect to the

management and future funding of this project. As a result of the foregoing, CRLP began consolidating this joint
venture in its financial statements as of September 30, 2008. During 2009, CRLP sold the remaining units in Phase I

of the Regents Park Joint Venture.

Investments in Unconsolidated Partially-Owned Entities

Investments in unconsolidated partially-owned entities at December 31, 2009 and 2008 consisted of the

following:

Multifamily: SRR pa Ca s e

Belterra, Ft. Worth, TX

Regents Park (Phase II); Atlanta, GA 0

CG at Huntcliff, Atlanta, GA

CG at McKinney, Dallas, TX

CG at Research Park, Raleigh, NC

CG at Traditions, Gulf Shores, AL

CMS / Colonial Joint Venture 1

CMS /-Colonial Joint Venture

CMS Florida

CMS Tennessee

CMS V/CG at Canyon Creek, Austm X

DRA Alabama

DRA CV at Cary, Raleigh, NC

DRA Cunningham, Austin, TX

DRA The Grove at Riverchase, Blrmlngham AL
Total Multifamily

Commercial

600 Building Partnership, Birmingham, AL

Colonial Center Mansell JV

Colonial Promenade Alabaster Il/Tutwiler I, Birmingham, AL
Colonial Pinnacle Craft Farms, Gulf Shores, AL

Colonial Promenade Madison; Huntsville, AL -+~
Colonial Promenade Smyrna, Smyrna, N 4
DRA/CRTIV- . : o .
DRA / CLP JV o

Highway 150, LLC, Birmingham, AL =

Huntville TIC, Huntsv111e AL

OZRE IV

Parkside Drive LLC 1, Knoxv111e, TN

Parkside Drive LLC 11, Knoxville, TN

Parkway Place Limited Partnership, Huntsv111e AL o
Total Commiercial : S

Other:

Colonial / Polar-BEK Management Company, Birmingham, AL

Heathrow, Orlando, FL.

Footnotes on following page
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Percent
Owned

10.00%

- 40.00% (1)
20.00%

25.00% (1)
20.00%
35.00%(2)

25.00% (4)
={5)

20.00%
—(6)

20.00%

33.33%

15.00% (10)

10.00%

10.00% (11)

—(12)"
50.00%
50.00%
50.00%

:50.00%
50.00% (1)

(in thousands)

As of December 31,
2009 2008
$ 525 $ 616
3,387 3,424
1,646 1,894
1,721 1,521
914 1,053
s 570
e 289
— (461)
— (561)
— 114
— 638
— 921
1,440 1,752
e 896
1,133 1,291
$ 10,766 $ 13,957
$ 154 $ 118
— 727
(190) (173)
— 823
2,119 2,187
2,174 2,378
iy 24,091
(15,321) (10,976)
59 67
4,617) (3,746)
oe (7,579)
3,073 4,673
7,210 6,842
10,168 10,690
$ 4829 $30,122
$.00 35 $ 33
1,792 2,109
$. . 1.827 $..2.142
$ 17422  $ 46221



(1) These joint ventures consist of undeveloped land.

(2) In September 2009, CRLP recorded a 30.2 million impairment charge as a result of its noncontrolling interest
in this joint venture being other-than-temporarily impaired and a $3.5 million charge to earnings for the
probable payment of the partial loan repayment guarantee provided on the original construction loan (see
below).

(3) InJuly 2009, CRLP disposed of its noncontrolling interests in these joint ventures (see below).

(4) CRLP began consolidating this joint venture in its financial statements during the third quarter 2009 (as
discussed above).

(5) In October 2009, CRLP disposed of its 10% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture (see below).

(6) In August 2009, the DRA Cunningham joint venture sold Cunningham, a 280-unit multifamily apartment
community (see below).

(7) In December 2009, CRLP sold its 15% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture (see below).

(8) In April 2009, CRLP completed the transaction to transfer its remaining 15% noncontrolling joint venture
interest in Colonial Pinnacle Craft Farm (see below).

(9) In November 2009, CRLP disposed of its 15% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture and obtained 100%
interest in one commercial property located in Atlanta, Georgia (see below). This joint venture included 17
properties located in Ft. Lauderdale, Jacksonville and Orlando, Florida; Atlanta, Georgia; Charlotte, North
Carolina; Memphis, Tennessee and Houston, Texas. CRLP sold its 15% noncontrolling interest in Decoverly,
located in Rockville, Maryland, during May 2008 (see below).

(10) As of December 31, 2009, this joint venture included 16 office properties and 2 retail properties located in
Birmingham, Alabama,; Orlando and Tampa, Florida; Atlanta, Georgia; Charlotte, North Carolina and
Austin, Texas. Amount includes the value of CRLP’s investment of approximately $17.4 million, offset by the
excess basis difference on the June 2007 joint venture transaction of approximately $32.7 million, which is
being amortized over the life of the properties.

(11) Equity investment includes CRLP’s investment of approximately 32.7 million, offset by the excess basis
difference on the transaction of approximately $7.3 million, which is being amortized over the life of the
properties.

(12) In December 2009, CRLP disposed of its 17.1% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture and obtained
100% interest in one commercial property located in Birmingham, Alabama (see below). This joint venture
included 11 retail properties located in Birmingham, Alabama; Jacksonville, Orlando, Punta Gorda and
Tampa, Florida; Athens, Georgia and Houston, Texas.

In April 2009, CRLP transferred its remaining 15% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colonial Pinnacle
Craft Farms, a 220,000-square-foot (excluding anchor-owned square-footage) retail shopping center located in Gulf
Shores, Alabama, to the majority joint venture partner. CRLP had previously sold 85% of its interest in this
development for $45.7 million in July 2007 and recognized a gain of approximately $4.2 million, after tax, from that
sale. As a result of this agreement and the resulting valuation, CRLP recorded an impairment of approximately $0.7
million with respect to CRLP’s remaining equity interest in the joint venture. As part of its agreement to transfer
CRLP’s remaining interest in Colonial Pinnacle Craft Farms, CRLP commenced development of an additional
67,700-square foot phase of a retail shopping center (Colonial Promenade Craft Farms) during 2009, which will be
anchored by a 45,600-square-foot Publix. The development is expected to be completed in the second quarter 2010,
and costs are anticipated to be $9.9 million.

In July 2009, CRLP closed on the transaction with its joint venture partner CMS in which CMS purchased all of
CRLP’s noncontrolling interest in four single asset multifamily joint ventures, which includes an aggregate of 1,212
apartment units. The properties included in the four joint ventures are Colonial Grand at Brentwood, Colonial Grand
at Mountain Brook, Colonial Village at Palma Sola and Colonial Village at Rocky Ridge. CRLP received a cash
payment and no longer has an interest in these joint ventures. Of the $17.3 million in proceeds, CRLP received a
$2.0 million cash payment and the remaining $15.3 million was used to repay the associated mortgage debt. CRLP
recognized a $1.8 million gain on this transaction.
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In August 2009, the DRA Cunningham joint venture sold Cunningham, a 280-unit multifamily apartment
community located in Austin, Texas. CRLP held a 20% noncontrolling interest in this asset and received $3.6
million for its pro-rata share of the sales proceeds. Of the $3.6 million of proceeds, $2.8 million was used to repay
CRLP’s pro-rata share of the associated debt on the asset. CRLP did not recognize a gain on this transaction.

CRLP owns a 35% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colonial Grand at Traditions, a 324-unit apartment
community located in Gulf Shores, Alabama. In September 2009, CRLP determined that its 35% noncontrolling
joint venture interest is impaired and that this impairment is other than temporary. As aresult, CRLP recognized a
non-cash impairment charge of $0.2 million during the three months ended September 30, 2009 for this other than
temporary impairment. The impairment charge was calculated as the difference between the estimated fair value of
our joint venture interest and the current book value of our joint venture interest. See additional discussion below
under “Unconsolidated Variable Interest Entities”.

In October 2009, CRLP sold its 10% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colony Woods (DRA Alabama), a
414-unit multifamily apartment community located in Birmingham, Alabama. CRLP received $2.5 million for its
portion of the sales proceeds, of which $1.6 million was used to repay the associated mortgage debt and the
remaining proceeds were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings on CRLP’s unsecured revolving
credit facility. CRLP recognized a $0.2 million gain on this transaction. ‘

In November 2009, CRLP disposed of its 15% noncontrolling joint venture interest in DRA/CRT, a 17-asset
office joint venture. Pursuant to the transaction, CRLP transferred its membership interest back to the joint venture.
As part of this transaction, CRLP acquired 100% ownership of one of the Joint Venture’s properties, Three Ravinia,
an 813,000-square-foot, Class A office building located in Atlanta, Georgia-and made a cash payment of $24.7
million. In connection with the transaction, the existing indebtedness on Three Ravinia was repaid, which consisted
of $102.5 million of loans secured by the Three Ravinia property that were schedule to mature in January 2010, and
the corresponding $17.0 million loan guaranty provided by CRLP on Three Ravinia was terminated. The total cash
payment of $127.2 million made by CRLP to acquire Three Ravinia and to repay the outstanding indebtedness was
made through borrowings under CRLP’s unsecured credit facility.

In December 2009, CRLP sold its 15% noncontrolling joint venture interest in the Mansell Joint Venture, a
suburban office park totaling 689,000 square feet located in Atlanta, Georgia, to the majority partner. CRLP
received $16.9 million for its portion of the sales proceeds, of which $13.9 million was used to repay the associated
mortgage debt and the remaining proceeds, $3.0 million, were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings
on CRLP’s unsecured revolving credit facility. As a result of this transaction, CRLP no longer has an interest in the
Mansell Joint Venture.

In December 2009, CRLP disposed of its 17.1% noncontrolling joint venture interest in OZ/CLP Retail, LLC
(OZRE) to the OZRE’s majority partner, made a cash payment of $45.1 million that was due by OZRE to repay
$38.0 million of mortgage debt and related fees and expenses, and $7.1 million of which was used for the discharge
of deferred purchase price owed by OZRE to former unitholders who elected to redeem their units in June 2008. The
total cash payment by CRLP was made through borrowings under CRLP’s unsecured line of credit. In exchange,
CRLP received 100% ownership of one of the OZRE assets, Colonial Promenade Alabaster, a 612,000-square-foot
retail center located in Birmingham, Alabama. As a result of this transaction, CRLP no longer has an interest in
OZRE.

During January and February 2008, CRLP disposed of its noncontrolling joint venture interests in four
multifamily apartment communities, containing an aggregate of 884 units and an aggregate sales price of
approximately $11.2 million, which represents CRLP’s share of the sales proceeds. The properties sold include:

Units Sales Price

(in millions)

( unauditeq )

S

umbia, SC

The proceeds from these dispositions were used to fund future investment activities and for general corporate
purposes.
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In February 2008, CRLP disposed of its 10% noncontrolling joint venture interest in the GPT/Colonial Retail
Joint Venture, which included six retail malls totaling an aggregate of 3.9 million square feet (including anchor-
owned square footage). CRLP’s interest in this asset was sold for a total sales price of approximately $38.3 million.
The proceeds from the sale were used to fund future investment activities and for general corporate purposes.

In May 2008, the DRA/CRT joint venture distributed Decoverly, a 156,000 square foot office asset located in
Rockville, Maryland, to its equity partners (85% to DRA and 15% to CRLP). Subsequently, DRA purchased
CRLP’s 15% noncontrolling joint venture interest in the asset for approximately $5.4 million, including the
assumption of $3.8 million of debt and $1.6 million in cash. The proceeds from the sale of this asset were used to
fund future investment activities and for general corporate purposes.

In June 2008, CRLP disposed of its 10% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Stone Ridge, a 191-unit
multifamily apartment community located in Columbia, South Carolina. CRLP’s interest in this asset was sold for a
total sales price of approximately $0.8 million. The proceeds were used to fund future investment activities and for
general corporate purposes.

In December 2008, CRLP disposed of its 10% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Madison at Shoal Run, a
276-unit multifamily apartment community, and Meadows of Brook Highland, a 400-unit multifamily apartment
community, both of which are located in Birmingham, Alabama. CRLP’s interests in these assets were sold for a
total sales price of $4.1 million and the proceeds were used to fund future investment activities and for general
corporate purposes.

During 2008, CRLP disposed of a portion of its noncontrolling interest in the Huntsville TIC through a series of
ten transactions. As a result of these transactions, CRLP’s interest was effectively reduced from 40.0% to 10.0%.
Proceeds from sales totaled $15.7 million. The proceeds from the sale of this interest were used to repay a portion of
the borrowings outstanding under CRLP’s unsecured line of credit.

Combined financial information for CRLP’s investments in unconsolidated partially-owned entities since the
date of CRLP’s acquisitions is as follows:

As of December 31,
2009

$2,711,059

156,700
637,333

05.092

Operating

Interest exp o !

Deptéciation, amortization and ot ‘ (a58,013) :
Net (loss) income (2) $ (75341 $ ¢4

(1) CRLP’s pro rata portion of indebtedness, as calculated based on ownership percentage, at December 31, 2009
and 2008 was $239.1 million and $476.3 million, respectively.

(2) In addition to CRLP’s pro-rata share of income (loss) from partially-owned unconsolidated entities, “(Loss)
income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities” of ($1.2) million and $12.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, includes gains on CRLP’s dispositions of joint-venture interests and
amortization of basis differences which are not reflected in the table above.
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Investments in Variable Interest Entities

CRLP evaluates all transactions and relationships with variable interest entities (VIEs) to determine whether
CRLP is the primary beneficiary.

Based on CRLP’s evaluation, as of December 31, 2009, CRLP does not have a controlling interest in, nor is
CRLP the primary beneficiary of any VIEs for which there is a significant variable interest except for, as discussed
above “Investments in Consolidated Partially-Owned Entities”, CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek, which CRLP began
consolidating in September 2009 (see Note 19).

Unconsolidated Variable Interest Entities

As of December 31, 2009, CRLP has an interest in one VIE with significant variable interests for which CRLP is
not the primary beneficiary.

At the Colonial Grand at Traditions joint venture, CRLP and its Joint venture partner each committed to
guarantee $3.5 million, for a total of $7.0 million, of a $34.1 million construction loan obtained by the joint venture.
CRLP and its joint venture partner each committed to provide 50% of the guarantee, which is different from the
venture’s voting and economic interests. As a result, this investment qualifies as a VIE but CRLP has determined
that it would not absorb a majority of the expected losses for this joint venture and, therefore, does not consolidate
this investment. In September 2009, CRLP determined that it was probable that CRLP will have to fund the $3.5
million partial loan repayment guarantee provided on the original construction loan for Colonial Grand at Traditions
and recognized a charge to earnings. In addition, CRLP determined that its 35% noncontrolling joint venture interest
was impaired and that this impairment was other than temporary. As a result, CRLP wrote-off its investment in the
joint venture by recording a non-cash impairment charge of $0.2 million during the quarter ended September 30,
2009.

In connection with the acquisition of CRT with DRA in September 2005, CRLP guaranteed approximately $50.0
million of third-party financing obtained by the DRA/CRT joint venture with respect to 10 of the CRT properties. In
connection with CRLP’s disposition of its 15% interest in the DRA/CRT joint venture in November 2009, the above
described guarantee was terminated (see Note 11).

10. Segment Information

Prior to December 31, 2008, CRLP had four operating segments: multifamily, office, retail and for-sale
residential. Since January 1, 2009, CRLP has managed its business based on the performance of two operating
segments: multifamily and commercial. The change in reporting segments is a result of CRLP’s strategic initiative to
reorganize and streamline CRLP’s business as a multifamily-focused REIT.

The multifamily and commercial segments have separate management teams that are responsible for acquiring,
developing, managing and leasing properties within each respective segment. The multifamily management team is
responsible for all aspects of for-sale developments, including disposition activities, as well as the condominium
conversion properties and related sales. The multifamily segment includes the operations and assets of the for-sale
developments due to the insignificance of these operations (which were previously reported as a separate operating
segment) in the periods presented. Commercial management is responsible for all aspects of our commercial
property operations, including the management and leasing services for our 45 commercial properties, as well as
third-party management services for commercial properties in which we do not have an ownership interest and for
brokerage services in other commercial property transactions.

The pro-rata portion of the revenues, net operating income (“NOI”), and assets of the partially-owned
unconsolidated entities that CRLP has entered into are included in the applicable segment information. Additionally,
the revenues and NOI of properties sold that are classified as discontinued operations are also included in the
applicable segment information. In reconciling the segment information presented below to total revenues, income
from continuing operations, and total assets, investments in partially-owned unconsolidated entities are eliminated as
equity investments and their related activity are reflected in the consolidated financial statements as investments
accounted for under the equity method, and discontinued operations are reported separately. Management evaluates
the performance of its multifamily and commercial segments and allocates resources to them based on segment NOI.
Segment NOI is defined as total property revenues, including unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures, less
total property operating expenses (such items as repairs and maintenance, payroll, utilities, property taxes, insurance
and advertising). Management evaluates the performance of its for-sale residential business based on net gains /
losses. Presented below is segment information, for the multifamily and commercial segments, including the
reconciliation of total segment revenues to total revenues and total segment NOI to income from continuing
operations before noncontrolling interest for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, and total segment
assets to total assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. Additionally, CRLP’s net losses on for-sale residential
projects for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 are presented below:
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For the Year Ended December 31,

Discontinued operations §ro<pe

Gt

Total Segment NOI

qally-owned unconselidat ultifan
Partially-owned unconsolidated entltles — Commercial

'%OFM&YQEM@@X,W% ]

Impalrments — contlnumg ops

tion NOI

(21,104)

December 31, December 31,
(zn thousands) y 20 2008

Unallocated corporate assets (3)

(1) See Note 4— “Impairment” for details of these charges.

(2) For-sale residential activities including net gain on sales and income tax expense (benefit) are included in
other income. (See table below for additional details on for-sale residential activities and also Note 6 related
to for-sale activities).

(3) Includes CRLP’s investment in partially-owned entities of $17,422 and $46,221 as of December 31, 2009 and
2008, respectively.
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For-Sale Residential

As aresult of the impairment charge recorded during the third quarter of 2007 and the fourth quarter of 2008
related to CRLP’s for-sale residential projects, CRLP’s for-sale residential operating segment met the quantitative
threshold to be considered a reportable segment. Prior to 2007, the results of operations and assets of the for-sale
residential activities were previously included in other income (expense) and in unallocated corporate assets,
respectively, due to the insignificance of these activities in prior periods.

For the Year Ended December 31,
. 2007

§__(41) S (34837 Q g24,765)~

11. Notes and Mortgages Payable
Notes and mortgages payable at December 31, 2009 and 2008 consist of the following:

(in thousands)
For the year ended December 31,

6.01% t0 6.88%
gﬁ

s 1704343 $ 1762019

In the first quarter of 2009, CRLP, together with the Trust, closed on a $350 million collateralized credit facility
(the “First FNM Facility”) originated by PNC ARCS LLC for repurchase by Fannie Mae. Of the $350 million, $259
million bears interest at a fixed interest rate equal to 6.07% and $91 million bears interest at a fixed interest rate of
5.96%. The weighted average interest rate for the First FNM Facility is 6.04%. The First FNM Facility matures on
March 1, 2019 and requires accrued interest to be paid monthly with no scheduled principal payments required prior
to the maturity date. The First FNM Facility is collateralized by 19 of CRLP’s multifamily apartment communities
totaling 6,565 units. The entire First FNM Facility amount was drawn on February 27, 2009. The proceeds from the
First FNM Facility were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under CRLP’s $675.0 million
unsecured credit facility.

In the second quarter of 2009, CRLP, together with the Trust, closed on a $156.4 million collateralized credit
facility (the “Second FNM Facility”) originated by Grandbridge Real Estate Capital LLC for repurchase by Fannie
Mae. Of the $156.4 million, $145.2 million bears interest at a fixed interest rate equal to 5.27% and $11.2 million
bears interest at a fixed interest rate of 5.57%. The weighted average interest rate for the Second FNM Facility is
5.31%. The Second FNM Facility matures on June 1, 2019 and requires accrued interest to be paid monthly with no
scheduled principal payments required to the maturity date. The Second FNM Facility is collateralized by eight
multifamily properties totaling 2,816 units. The entire Second FNM Facility amount was drawn on May 29, 2009.
The proceeds from the Second FNM Facility were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under
CRLP’s $675.0 million unsecured credit facility.

As of December 31, 2009, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, had a $675.0 million unsecured credit facility (the
“Credit Facility”) with Wachovia Bank, National Association (“Wachovia™), as Agent for the lenders, Bank of
America, N.A. as Syndication Agent, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Citicorp North America, Inc. and
Regions Bank, as Co-Documentation Agents, and U.S. Bank National Association and PNC Bank, National
Association, as Co-Senior Managing Agents and other lenders named therein. The Credit Facility has a maturity
date of June 15, 2012. In addition to the Credit Facility, CRLP has a $35.0 million cash management line provided
by Wachovia that will expire on June 15, 2012. The cash management line had an outstanding balance of $18.5
million as of December 31, 2009.

149



Base rate loans and revolving loans are available under the Credit Facility. The Credit Facility also includes a
competitive bid feature that allows CRLP to convert up to $337.5 million under the Credit Facility to a fixed rate
and for a fixed term not to exceed 90 days. Generally, base rate loans bear interest at Wachovia’s designated base
rate, plus a base rate margin ranging up to 0.25% based on CRLP’s unsecured debt ratings from time to time.
Revolving loans bear interest at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 0.325% to 1.05% based on CRLP’s unsecured
debt ratings. Competitive bid loans bear interest at LIBOR plus a margin, as specified by the participating lenders.
Based on CRLP’s current unsecured debt rating, the revolving loans currently bear interest at a rate of LIBOR plus
105 basis points.

The Credit Facility and the cash management line, which are primarily used by CRLP to finance property
acquisitions and developments and more recently to also fund repurchases of CRLP senior notes and Series D
preferred depositary shares, had an outstanding balance at December 31, 2009 of $310.5 million. The interest rate of
the Credit Facility (including the cash management line) was 1.28% and 2.04% at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. :

The Credit Facility contains various restrictions, representations, covenants and events of default that could
preclude future borrowings (including future issuances of letters of credit) or trigger early repayment obligations,
including, but not limited to the following: nonpayment; violation or breach of certain covenants; failure to perform
certain covenants beyond a cure period; failure to satisfy certain financial ratios; a material adverse change in the
consolidated financial condition, results of operations, business or prospects of CRLP; and generally not paying
CRLP’s debts as they become due. At December 31, 2009, CRLP was in compliance with these covenants. Specific
financial ratios with which CRLP must comply pursuant to the Credit Facility consist of the Fixed Charge Coverage
Ratio as well as the Debt to Total Asset Value Ratio. Both of these ratios are measured quarterly. The Fixed Charge
ratio generally requires that CRLP’s earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization be at least equal
to 1.5 times CRLP’s Fixed Charges. Fixed Charges generally include interest payments (including capitalized
interest) and preferred dividends. The Debt to Total Asset Value ratio generally requires CRLP’s debt to be less than
60% of its total asset value. As of December 31, 2009, the Fixed Charge ratio was 1.69 times and the Debt to Total
Asset Value ratio was 53.7%. CRLP does not anticipate any events of noncompliance with either of these ratios in
2010. However, given the ongoing recession and continued uncertainty in the stock and credit markets, there can be
no assurance that we will be able to maintain compliance with these ratios and other debt covenants in the future,
particularly if conditions worsen.

Many of the recent disruptions in the financial markets have been brought about in large part by failures in the
U.S. banking system. If Wachovia or any of the other financial institutions that have extended credit commitments
to CRLP under the Credit Facility or otherwise are adversely affected by the conditions of the financial markets,
these financial institutions may become unable to fund borrowings under credit commitments to CRLP under the
Credit Facility, the cash management line or otherwise. If these lenders become unable to fund CRLP’s borrowings
pursuant to the financial institutions” commitments, CRLP may need to obtain replacement financing, and such
financing, if available, may not be available on commercially attractive terms.

At December 31, 2009, CRLP had $323.9 million in unsecured indebtedness including balances outstanding
under its Credit Facility and certain other notes payable. The remainder of CRLP’s notes and mortgages payable are
collateralized by the assignment of rents and leases of certain properties and assets with an aggregate net book value
of approximately $1.4 billion at December 31, 2009.

The aggregate maturities of notes and mortgages payable, including CRLP’s Credit Facility at December 31,
2009, were as follows:

13,118

fhereafteg N

3T

(1) Year 2012 includes $310.5 million outstanding on CRLP'’s credit facility as of December 31, 2009, which
matures in June 2012.
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Based on borrowing rates available to CRLP for notes and mortgages payable with similar terms, the estimated
fair value of CRLP’s notes and mortgages payable at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was approximately $1.4 billion
and $1.5 billion, respectively.

In July 2009, CRLP agreed to provide an additional contribution to the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint
venture in connection with the refinancing of an existing $27.4 million construction loan which was secured by
Colonial Grand at Canyon Creek, a 336-unit multifamily apartment community located in Austin, Texas. On
September 14, 2009, the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture refinanced the existing construction loan with a
new $15.6 million, 10-year loan collateralized by the property with an interest rate of 5.64%. In connection with the
refinancing, CRLP made a preferred equity contribution of $11.5 million, which was used by the joint venture to
repay the balance of the then outstanding construction loan and closing costs. The preferred equity has a cumulative
preferential return of 8.0%. As a result of the preferred equity contribution to the joint venture, CRLP began
consolidating the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture in its financial statements beginning with the quarter
ended September 30, 2009.

During March 2008, CRLP refinanced mortgages associated with two of its multifamily apartment communities,
Colonial Grand at Trinity Commons, a 462-unit apartment community located in Raleigh, North Carolina, and
Colonial Grand at Wilmington, a 390-unit apartment community located in Wilmington, North Carolina. CRLP
financed an aggregate of $57.6 million, at a weighted average interest rate of 5.4%. The loan proceeds were used to
repay the mortgages of $29.0 million and the balance was used to pay down the Credit Facility.

During September 2008, CRLP refinanced a mortgage associated with Colonial Village at Timber Crest, a 282-
unit apartment community located in Charlotte, North Carolina. Loan proceeds were $13.7 million, with a floating
interest rate of LIBOR plus 292 basis points, which was 3.2% at December 31, 2009. The proceeds, along with
additional borrowings of $0.6 million from CRLP’s Credit Facility, were used to repay the $14.3 million outstanding
mortgage.

Unsecured Senior Notes Repurchases

In January 2008, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized the repurchase up to $50.0 million of outstanding
unsecured senior notes of CLRP. In addition, during 2008, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized the repurchase
of an additional $500.0 million of outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP under a senior note repurchase
program. On December 31, 2009, unsecured notes repurchase program expired (see Note 22).

Repurchases of unsecured senior notes during 2009 are as follows:

Average
Yield-to-
Maturity_

(1) Gains are presented net of the loss on hedging activities of $1.1 million recorded during the three months ended
March 31, 2009 and $0.6 million recorded during the three months ended September 30, 2009 as the result ofa
reclassification of amounts in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss in connection with the conclusion that it
is probable that CRLP will not make interest payments associated with previously hedged debt as a result of the
repurchases under the senior note repurchase program.

(2) Repurchases include $250.0 million repurchased pursuant to a tender offer that closed on May 4, 2009, which
was conducted outside of the senior note repurchase program.

(3) Repurchases include $148.2 million repurchased pursuant to a tender offer that closed on August 31, 2009,
which was conducted outside of the senior note repurchase program.
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Repurchases of unsecured senior notes during 2008 were as follows:

Average
Average Yield-to-
Discount

(in millions)
2nd Quarter

Amount
E

A ;MSQ

(1) Gains are presented net of the loss on hedging activities of $0.4 million recorded during the three months ended
December 31, 2008 as the result of a reclassification of amounts in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss in
connection with the conclusion that it is probable that the Company will not make interest payments associated
with previously hedged debt as a result of the repurchases under the senior note repurchase program.

Unconsolidated Joint Venture Financing Activity

In November 2009, as part of the DRA/CRT disposition transaction described in Note 9 above, the existing
indebtedness on Three Ravinia was repaid, which consisted of $102.5 million of loans secured by the Three Ravinia
property that were schedule to mature in January 2010, and the corresponding $17.0 million loan guaranty provided
by CRLP on Three Ravinia was terminated. The total cash payment of $127.2 million made by CRLP to acquire
Three Ravinia and to repay the outstanding indebtedness was made through borrowings under CRLP’s unsecured
credit facility. As a result of this transaction, CRLP is no longer responsible for the loans collateralized by Broward
Financial Center, located in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida, which matured in March of 2009 and Charlotte University
Center, located in Charlotte, North Carolina and Orlando University Center, located in Orlando, Florida, which
matures September 2010.

At the Colonial Grand at Traditions joint venture, CRLP and its joint venture partner each committed to
guarantee $3.5 million, for a total of $7.0 million, of a $34.1 million construction loan obtained by. the joint venture,
which matures in March 2010. The joint venture is currently in negotiations with the lender regarding refinancing
options (see Note 19).

As of December 31, 2009, the Colonial Promenade Smyrna joint venture had $29.6 million outstanding on the
construction loan, which matured in December 2009. The joint venture is currently in negotiations with the lender
regarding refinancing options.

There can be no assurance that CRLP’s joint ventures will be successful in refinancing and/or replacing existing
debt at maturity or otherwise. If the joint ventures are unable to obtain additional financing, payoff the existing loans
that are maturing, or renegotiate suitable terms with the existing lenders, the lenders generally would have the right
to foreclose on the properties in question and, accordingly, the joint ventures will lose their interests in the assets.
The failure to refinance and/or replace such debt and other factors with respect to CRLP’s joint venture interests
discussed in the “Item 1A: Risk Factors” on this Form 10-K, may materially adversely impact the value of CRLP’s
joint venture interests, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on CRLP’s financial condition and results
of operations.

12. Derivative Instruments

CRLP is exposed to certain risks arising from both its business operations and economic conditions. CRLP
principally manages its exposures to a wide variety of business and operational risks through management of its core
business activities. CRLP manages economic risks, including interest rate, liquidity, and credit risk primarily by
managing the amount, sources, and duration of its debt funding and the use of derivative financial instruments.
Specifically, CRLP enters into derivative financial instruments to manage exposures that arise from business
activities that result in the receipt or payment of future known and uncertain cash amounts, the value of which is
determined by interest rates. CRLP’s derivative financial instruments are used to manage differences in the amount,
timing, and duration of CRLP’s known or expected cash receipts and its known or expected cash payments
principally related to CRLP’s investments and borrowings.
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CRLP’s objectives in using interest rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense and to manage its
exposure to interest rate movements. To accomplish this objective, CRLP primarily uses interest rate swaps and caps
as part of its interest rate risk management strategy. Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the
receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty in exchange for CRLP making fixed-rate payments over the life
of the agreements without exchange of the underlying principal amount. Interest rate caps designated as cash flow
hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty if i interest rates rise above the strike rate on
the contract in exchange for an upfront premium. .

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and that qualify as cash flow
hedges is recorded in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and is
subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period that the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings. CRLP
did not have any active cash flow hedges during the three or twelve months ended December 31, 2009.

At December 31, 2009, CRLP had $3.0 million in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss™ related to settled or
terminated derivatives. Amounts reported in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” related to derivatives will be
reclassified to “Interest expense and debt cost amortization” as interest payments are made on CRLP’s variable-rate
debt or to “(Losses) gains on hedging activities” at such time that the interest payments on the hedged debt become
probable of not occurring as a result of the repurchases of senior notes of CRLP. The changes in “Accumulated other
comprehensive loss” for reclassifications to “Interest expense and debt cost amortization” tied to interest payments
on the hedged debt were $0.5 million for each of the twelve months ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. For the
twelve months ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the change in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” for
reclassification to “(Losses) gains on hedging activities” related to interest payments on the hedged debt that have
been deemed probable not to occur as a result of the repurchases of senior notes of CRLP was $1.7 million and $0.4
million, respectively.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are not speculative and are used to manage CRLP’s exposure to interest
rate movements and other identified risks but do not meet the strict hedge accounting requirements. As of December
31,2009, CRLP had no derivatives that were not designated as a hedge in a quahfymg hedging relationship.

The tables below present the effect of CRLP’s derivative ﬁnanmal mstmments on the Consohdated Statements
of Operations as of December 31, 2009.

13. Capital Structure

Company ownership is maintained through common shares of beneficial interest (the “common shares™),
preferred shares of beneficial interest (the “preferred shares) and noncontrolling interest in CRLP (the “units”).
Common shareholders represent public equity owners and common unitholders represent noncontrolling interest
owners. Each unit may be redeemed for either one common share or, at the option of the Company, cash equal to the
fair market value of a common share at the time of redemption. When a common unitholder redeems a unit for a
common share or cash, noncontrolling interest is reduced. In addition, CRLP has acquired properties since its
formation by issuing distribution paying and non-distribution paying units. The non-distribution paying units
convert to distribution paying units at various dates subsequent to their original issuance. At December 31, 2009 and
2008, 8,162,845 and 8,860,971 units were outstanding, respectively, all of which were distribution paying units.

Other Capital Events

In February 1999, CRLP issued 2.0 million units of $50 par value 8.875% Series B Cumulative Redeemable
Perpetual Preferred Units (the “Preferred Units™), valued at $100.0 million in a private placement, net of offering
costs of $2.6 million. On February 18, 2004, CRLP modified the terms of the $100.0 million 8.875% Preferred
Units. Under the modified terms, the Preferred Units bear a distribution rate of 7.25% and are redeemable at the
option of CRLP, in whole or in part, after February 24, 2009, at the cost of the original capital contribution plus the
cumulative priority return, whether or not declared. The terms of the Preferred Units were further modified on
March 14, 2005 to extend the redemption date from February 24, 2009 to August 24, 2009. The Preferred Units are
exchangeable for 7.25% Series B Preferred Shares of the Trust, in whole or in part at anytime on or after January 1,
2014, at the option of the holders.
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14. Cash Contributions
October 2009 Equity Offering

In October 2009, the Trust completed an equity offering of 12,109,500 common shares, including shares issued
to cover over-allotments, at $9.50 per share. Total net proceeds from this offering were approximately $109.8
million after deducting the underwriting discount and other offering expenses payable by the Trust. These proceeds
were used to pay down a portion of the outstanding borrowings under CRLP’s unsecured credit facility and for
general corporate purposes. Pursuant to the CRLP partnership agreement, each time the Trust issues common shares
CRLP issues to the Trust an equal number of units for the same price at which the common shares were sold.
Accordingly, CRLP issued 12,109,500 common units to the Trust, at $9.50 per unit, for the common shares issued
by the Trust in the equity offering.

At-the-Market Continuous Equity Offering Program

In April 2009, the Trust’s Board of Trustees approved the issuance of up to $50.0 million of common shares
under an at-the-market continuous equity offering program.

During 2009, the Trust issued a total of 4,802,971 shares at a weighted average issue price of $9.07 per share
generating net proceeds of approximately $42.6 million, which includes $1.0 million of one-time administrative
costs. These proceeds were used to pay down a portion of the outstanding borrowings on CRLP’s unsecured credit
facility. Following completion of the Trust’s equity offering on October 6, 2009, the Trust terminated this program
(see Note 22). Pursuant to the CRLP partnership agreement, CRLP issued 4,802,971 common units to the Trust, ata
weighted average issue price of $9.07 per share, in connection with the continuous equity issuance program.

Repurchases of Series D Preferred Depositary Shares/Units

In April 2003, the Trust issued $125.0 million or 5,000,000 depositary shares, each representing 1/10 of a share
of 8.125% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares of Beneficial Interest, par value $0.01 per share (the
“Series D Preferred Shares™). The depositary shares are currently callable by the Trust and have a liquidation
preference of $25.00 per depositary share. The depositary shares have no stated maturity, sinking fund or mandatory
redemption and are not convertible into any other securities of the Trust.

In January 2008, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized the repurchase of up to $25.0 million of the Trust’s 8
1/8% Series D preferred depositary shares (and a corresponding amount of Series D Preferred Units) in a limited
number of separate, privately negotiated transactions. In October 2008, the Board of Trustees authorized a
repurchase program which allows the repurchase of up to an additional $25.0 million of the Trust’s outstanding 8
1/8% Series D preferred depositary shares (and a corresponding amount of Series D Preferred Units) over a 12
month period. This repurchase program expired in October 2009.

During 2009, the Trust repurchased 6,515 of its outstanding 8 1/8% Series D preferred depositary shares in
privately negotiated transactions for an aggregate purchase price of $0.1 million, at an average price of $19.46 per
depositary share. The Trust received an approximate $36,000 discount to the liquidation preference price of $25.00
per depositary share on the repurchase and wrote-off an immaterial amount of issuance costs. In connection with the
repurchase of the Series D preferred depositary shares, CRLP also repurchased a corresponding amount of Series D
Preferred Units.

During 2008, the Trust repurchased 988,750 of its outstanding 8 1/8% Series D preferred depositary shares in
privately negotiated transactions for an aggregate purchase price of $24.0 million, at an average price of $24.17 per
depositary share. The Trust received an approximate $0.8 million discount to the liquidation preference price of
$25.00 per depositary share on the repurchase and wrote-off approximately $0.9 million of issuance costs. In
connection with the repurchase of the Series D preferred depositary shares, CRLP also repurchased a corresponding
amount of Series D Preferred Units.

Other Transactions

In June 2007, In June 2007, the Company implemented its strategic initiative to become a multifamily focused
REIT, which included two significant joint venture transactions whereby the majority of the Company’s wholly-
owned office and retail properties were transferred into separate joint ventures (i.e., the DRA/CLP JV and the OZRE
JV). In connection with these transactions, all limited partners of CRLP were distributed units in the DRA/CLP JV
and the OZRE JV based on 85% of their ownership interest in CRLP. CRLP recorded this distribution at book value,
which reduced common unit equity by approximately $229.4 million during 2007. Additionally, in connection with
these transactions, all common equity partners received a special cash distribution of $0.21 per unit, or $12.0 million
in the aggregate.
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In April 2005, in connection with the acquisition of Cornerstone Realty Income Trust, the Trust issued 5,326,349
Series E preferred depositary shares each representing 1/100th of a 7.62% Series E Cumulative Redeemable
Preferred Share of Beneficial Interest, liquidation preference $2,500 per share, of the Trust. In connection with the
issuance of the Series E preferred depositary shares, the Board of Trustees of the Trust authorized the issuance of a
corresponding number of Series E Preferred Units of CRLP. In February 2006, the Board of Trustees of the Trust
announced authorization of the repurchase of up to $65.0 million of the Trust’s Series E depositary shares (and a
corresponding number of Series E Preferred Units of CRLP). During 2006, the Trust repurchased 1,135,935 million
Series E depositary shares for a total cost of approximately $28.5 million. CRLP wrote off approximately $0.3
million of issuance costs associated with this redemption. In April 2007, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized
the redemption of, and in May 2007 the Trust redeemed all of, its remaining outstanding 4,190,414 Series E
depositary shares (and a corresponding number of Series E Preferred Units of CRLP) for a total cost of $104.8
million. In connection with this redemption, CRLP wrote off $0.3 million of associated issuance costs. The
redemption price was $25.00 per Series E depositary share plus accrued and unpaid dividends for the period from
April 1, 2007 through and including the redemption date, for an aggregate redemption price per Series E depositary
share of $25.3175.

15. Share-based Compensation
Incentive Share Plans

On March 7, 2008, the Board of Trustees of the Trust approved the 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “2008
Plan”). The 2008 Plan was approved by the Trust’s shareholders on April 23, 2008. The Third Amended and
Restated Share Option and Restricted Share Plan (the “Prior Plan”) expired by its terms in April 2008. The 2008
Plan provides the Trust with the opportunity to grant long-term incentive awards to employees and non-employee
directors, as well independent contractors, as appropriate. The 2008 Plan authorizes the grant of seven types of
share-based awards — share options, restricted shares, unrestricted shares, share units, share appreciation rights,
performance shares and performance units. Five million common shares were reserved for issuance under the 2008
Plan. At December 31, 2009, 4,083,944 shares were available for issuance under the 2008 Plan. Pursuant to CRLP’s
partnership agreement, whenever common shares are issued by the Trust, a corresponding number of common units
of CRLP are issued by CRLP to the Trust.

In connection with the grant of options under the 2008 Plan, the Executive Compensation Committee of the
Board of Trustees of the Trust determines the option exercise period and any vesting requirements. All outstanding
options granted to date under the 2008 Plan and the Prior Plan have a term of ten years and vest over a periods
ranging from one to five years. Similarly, Trust restricted shares vest over periods ranging from one to five years.

Compensation costs for share options have been valued on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
method. The weighted average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model were as follows:

December 31,
2008

Dividend yield
Expected volatility
Risk-free interes ~ i
Expected option term (years) 6.5 7.1 7.2

wwwww

For this calculation, the expected dividend yield reflects the Trust’s current historical yield. Expected volatility
was based on the historical volatility of the Trust’s common shares. The risk-free interest rate for the expected life of
the options was based on the implied yields on the U.S Treasury yield curve. The weighted average expected option
term was based on the Trust’s historical data for prior period share option exercises and forfeiture activity.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Trust granted share options to purchase 50,474 common shares to
the Trust’s employees and trustees. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, CRLP recognized
compensation expense related to share options of $0.3 million, $0.3 million ($0.1 million of compensation expense
related to share options was reversed due to CRLP’s restructuring) and $0.7 million, respectively. Upon the exercise
of share options, the Trust issues common shares from authorized but unissued common shares. There were no
options exercised during 2009. Total cash proceeds from exercise of stock options were $1.1 million and $2.4
million for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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The following table presents a summary of share option activity under all plans for the year ended December 31,
2009:

Options Outstanding
Weighted Average

ercise Price
e 2 "o

Forfeited ...
Options outstanding, end of perio / :
The weighted average grant date fair Vaiue,of options granted in 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $1.89, $1.40 and

$5.13, respectively. There were no options exercised during 2009. The total intrinsic value of options exercised
during 2008 and 2007 was $0.5 million and $2.9 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2009, the Trust had approximately 1.4 million share options outstanding with a weighted
average exercise price of $23.44 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.9 years. The intrinsic value
for the share options outstanding as of December 31, 2009 was $0.2 million. The total number of exercisable options
at December 31, 2009 was approximately 1.2 million. As of December 31, 2009, the weighted average exercise
price of exercisable options was $23.56 and the weighted average remaining contractual life was 3.2 years for these
exercisable options. These exercisable options did not have an aggregate intrinsic value at December 31, 2009. As of
December 31, 2009, the total number of options expected to vest is approximately 0.2 million. The weighted average
exercise price of options expected to vestis $22.69 and the weighted average remaining contractual life is 8.1 years.
The options expected to vest have an aggregate intrinsic value at December 31, 2009 of $0.2 million. At December
31, 2009, there was $0.3 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to.unvested share options, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.6 years.

The following table presents the change in nonvested restricted share awards:

Weighted

Average
For the Year Ended Grant Date
Fair Value

Nonvested Restricted Shares, December 31,2008

Nonvested Restricted Shares, Decem

e

The weighted average grant date fair value of restricted share awards issued during 2009, 2008 and 2007 was
$7.56, $21.38 and $40.44, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, CRLP recognized
compensation expense related to restricted share awards of $2.6 million, $3.3 million ($1.0 million of compensation
expense related to restricted share awards was reversed and $0.2 million was accelerated due to CRLP’s
restructuring) and $3.9 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, CRLP
separately capitalized $0.1 million, $1.3 million and $5.4 million, respectively, for restricted share awards granted in
connection with certain real estate developments. The total intrinsic value for restricted share awards that vested
during 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $0.8 million, $2.6 million and $3.2 million, respectively. At December 31, 2009,
the unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted share awards is $3.6 million, which is expected
to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.5 years.

Adoption of Incentive Program

On April 26, 2006, the Executive Compensation Committee of the Board of Trustees of the Trust adopted a new
incentive program in which seven executive officers of the Trust participate. The program provided for the
following awards: '

o the grant of a specified number of restricted shares, totaling approximately $6.3 million, which vest at
the end of the five-year service period beginning on April 26, 2006 (the “Vesting Period”), and/or
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*  an opportunity to earn a performance bonus, based on absolute and relative total shareholder return over
a three-year period beginning January 1, 2006 and ending December 31, 2008 (the “Performance
Period”).

A participant’s restricted shares will be forfeited if the participant’s employment is terminated prior to the end of
the Vesting Period. The compensation expense and deferred compensation related to these restricted shares is
included in the restricted share disclosures above.

A participant would forfeit his right to receive a performance payment if the participant’s employment were
terminated prior to the end of the Performance Period, unless termination of employment resulted from the
participant’s death or disability, in which case the participant (or the participant’s beneficiary) would earn a pro-rata
portion of the applicable award. Performance payments, if earned, were payable in cash, common shares or a
combination of the two. Each performance award had a specified threshold, target and maximum payout amounts
ranging from $5,000 to $6,000,000 per participant. The performance awards were valued with a binomial model by
a third party valuation firm. The performance awards, which had a fair value on the grant date of $5.4 million ($4 9
million net of estimated forfeitures), were valued as equity awards tied to a market condition.

On January 29, 2009, the Executive Compensation Committee of the Board of Trustees confirmed the
calculation of the payouts under the performance awards as of the end of the Performance Period for each of the
remaining participants in the incentive program, and approved the form in which the performance awards are to be
made. An aggregate of $299,000 was paid to the four remaining participants in cash that was withheld to satisfy
applicable tax withholding, and the balance of the award was satisfied through the issuance of an aggregate of
69,055 common shares.

The Trust used a third party valuation firm to assist in valuing these awards using a binomial model. The
significant assumptions used to measure the fair value of the performance awards are as follows:

. risk-free rate,

»  expected standard deviation of returns (i.e., volatility),
*  expected dividend yield, and

¢ correlation in stock price movement.

The risk-free rate was set equal to the yield, for the term of the remaining duration of the performance period, on
treasury securities as of April 26, 2006 (the grant date). The data was obtained from the Federal Reserve for constant
maturity treasuries for 2-year and 3-year bonds. Standard deviations of stock price movement for the Trust and its
peer companies (as defined by the Board of Trustees of the Trust) were set equal to the annualized daily volatility
measured over the 3-year period ending on April 26, 2006. Annual stock price correlations over the ten-year period
from January 1, 1996 through December 31, 2005, for a total of 595 correlation measurements, were examined. The
average correlation was 0.54.

To calculate Total Shareholder Return for each company that was defined by the Trust’s Board of Trustees as a.
peer, the Trust compared the projected December 31, 2008 stock price plus the expected cumulative dividends paid
during the performance measurement period to the actual closing price on December 31, 2005. The last (normalized)
dividend payment made for each such company in 2005 was annualized and this annual dividend amount was
assumed to be paid in each year of the performance measurement period.

Due to the fact that the form of payout (cash, common shares, or a combination of the two) is determined solely
by the Trust’s Board of Trustees, and not the employee, the grant was valued as an equity award.

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, CRLP recognized $1.4 million, $1.9 million and $1.3
million, respectively, of compensation expense attributable to the performance based share awards. As a result of the
departure of certain grantees of performance based share awards, CRLP reduced compensation expense by $1.0
million during 2008. As of December 31, 2008, these awards were fully expensed.
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Employee Share Purchase Plan

The Trust maintains an Employee Share Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan”). The Purchase Plan permits eligible
employees of Trust, through payroll deductions, to purchase common shares at market price. The Purchase Plan has
no limit on the number of common shares that may be issued under the plan. The Trust issued 16,567, 9,405 and
3,725 common shares pursuant to the Purchase Plan during 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

16. Employee Benefits
Noncontributory Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Employees of CRLP hired prior to January 1, 2002 participate in a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan
designed to cover substantially all employees. During 2007, the Trust’s Board of Trustees approved the termination
of its noncontributory defined benefit pension plan. Accordingly, during 2007, CRLP expensed $2.3 million in
connection with this termination, including a one-time pension bonus of approximately $1.4 million. As of
December 31, 2007, the termination of the pension plan was substantially complete. In addition, the remaining
settlement payments of $0.5 million were paid in 2008 upon final determination from the IRS.

401(k) Plan

CRLP maintains a 401(k) plan covering all eligible employees. From January 1 — June 30, 2009, this plan
provided, with certain restrictions, that employees could contribute a portion of their earnings with CRLP matching
100% of such contributions up to 4% and 50% on contributions between 4% and 6%, solely at its discretion.
Effective July 1, 2009, the Trust’s Executive Committee, as authorized by the Board of Trustees of the Trust,
exercised its option to stop the matching contribution. Prior to December 31, 2007, this plan provided, with certain
restrictions, that employees may contribute a portion of their earnings with CRLP matching one-half of such
contributions up to 6%, solely at its discretion. Contributions by CRLP were approximately $0.8 million, $2.0
million and $1.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

17. Income Taxes

CRLP’s consolidated financial statements include the operations of its taxable REIT subsidiary, CPSI, which is
subject to federal, state and local income taxes. CPSI provides property development, leasing and management
services for third-party owned properties and administrative services to CRLP. In addition, CRLP performs all of its
for-sale residential and condominium conversion activities through CPSI. CRLP generally reimburses CPSI for
payroll and other costs incurred in providing services to CRLP. All inter-company transactions are eliminated in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. The components of income tax expense, significant deferred tax
assets and liabilities and a reconciliation of CPSI’s income tax expense to the statutory federal rate are reflected in
the tables below.

Income tax expense of CPSI for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 is comprised of the
following:

(in thousands)
2008

Current fax expense (benefit):
Federal

(17.212) (10 361) 9.330

. 2 2 )
9311 11,135 (16 774)
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In 2009, 2008 and 2007, income tax expense resulting from condominium conversion unit sales was allocated to
discontinued operations (see Note 6).

The components of CPSI’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2009 and 2008 were as
follows:

(in thousands)

Net deferred tax assets, included in other assets $ — $ 9,311

Reconciliations of the 2009 and 2008 effective tax rates of CPSI to the federal statutory rate are detailed below.
As shown above, a portion of the 2009 and 2008 income tax expense was allocated to discontinued operations.

Federal tax rate

Valuation reserve

Other - _-0.02%
CPSI provision for income
taxes _50.15% -0.90%

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, other expenses include estimated state franchise and other
taxes, including franchise taxes in North Carolina and Tennessee and the margin-based tax in Texas.

18. Leasing Operations

CRLP’s business includes leasing and management of multifamily and commercial properties. For commercial .
properties owned by CRLP, minimum rentals due in future periods under noncancelable operating leases extending
beyond one year at December 31, 2009 are as follows:

(amounts in thousands)

The noncancelable leases are with tenants engaged in commercial operations in Alabama, Florida Georgia and
North Carolina. Performance in accordance with the lease terms is in part dependent upon the economic conditions
of the respective areas. No additional credit risk exposure relating to the leasing arrangements exists beyond the
accounts receivable amounts shown in the December 31, 2009 balance sheet. However, financial difficulties of
tenants could impact their ability to make lease payments on a timely basis which could result in actual lease
payments being less than amounts shown above. Leases with residents in multifamily properties are generally for
one year or less and are thus excluded from the above table. Substantially all of CRLP’s land, buildings, and
equipment represent property leased under the above and other short-term leasing arrangements.
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Rental income from continuing operations for 2009, 2008 and 2007 includes percentage rent of $0.2 million,
$0.4 million and $0.9 million, respectively. This rental income was earned when certain retail tenants attained sales
volumes specified in their respective lease agreements.

19. Commitments, Contingencies, Guarantees and Other Arrangements
Commitments and Contingencies

CRLP is involved in a contract dispute with a general contractor in connection with construction costs and cost
overruns with respect to certain of its for-sale projects, which are being developed in a joint venture in which CRLP
is a majority owner. The contractor is affiliated with CRLP’s joint venture partner.

e In connection with the dispute, in January 2008, the contractor filed a lawsuit against CRLP alleging,
among other things, breach of contract, enforcement of a lien against real property, misrepresentation,
conversion, declaratory judgment and an accounting of costs, and is seeking $10.3 million in damages,
plus consequential and punitive damages.

e Certain of the subcontractors, vendors and other parties, involved in the projects, including purchasers
of units, have also made claims in the form of lien claims, general claims or lawsuits. CRLP has been
sued by purchasers of certain condominium units alleging breach of contract, fraud, construction
deficiencies and misleading sales practices. Both compensatory and punitive damages are sought in
these actions. Some of these claims have been resolved by negotiations and mediations, and others may
also be similarly resolved. Some of these claims will likely be arbitrated or litigated to conclusion.

CRLP is continuing to evaluate its options and investigate certain of these claims, including possible claims
against the contractor and other parties. CRLP intends to vigorously defend itself against these claims. However, no
prediction of the likelihood, or amount, of any resulting loss or recovery can be made at this time and no assurance
can be given that the matter will be resolved favorably.

In connection with certain retail developments, CRLP has received funding from municipalities for infrastructure
costs. In most cases, the municipalities issue bonds that are repaid primarily from sales tax revenues generated from
the tenants at each respective development. CRLP has guaranteed the shortfall, if any, of tax revenues to the debt
service requirements on the bonds. The total amount outstanding on these bonds is approximately $13.5 million at
December 31, 2009 and 2008. At December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, no liability was recorded for these

guarantees.

During 2009, CRLP postponed most future development activities. Of these developments, the only one that
CRLP currently expects to resume development on in 2010 is the first phase of the Nor du Lac commercial
development, located in Covington, Louisiana. During 2009, CRLP evaluated various alternatives for this
development, including with respect to its existing contractual obligations to certain future tenants who had
previously committed to this development. CRLP’s intention is to develop a power center in phases over time, as
opposed to our original lifestyle center plan. In July 2009, CRLP decided to hold this project for investment
purposes. If CRLP is unable to reach alternative agreements with these future tenants, the tenants may choose not to
participate in this development or seek damages from CRLP as a result of the postponement of the development, or
both.-

During 2009, CRLP, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, CP Nord du Lac JV LLC, solicited for purchase all of
the outstanding Nord du Lac community development district (the “CDD”) special assessment bonds, in order to
remove or reduce the debt burdens on the land securing the CDD bonds. As a result of the solicitation, during 2009,
CRLP purchased all $24.0 million of the outstanding CDD bonds for total consideration of $22.0 million,
representing an 8.2% discount to the par amount. In December 2009, this CDD was dissolved, which resulted in the
release of the remaining net cash proceeds of $17.4 million received from the bond issuance, which were then being
held in escrow. In connection with this transaction, CRLP’s “Other liabilities” were reduced by $24.0 million, of
which $1.6 million, representing the discount on the purchase of the bonds, net of interest and fees, was treated as a
non-cash transaction and a reduction to basis. In accordance with EITF 91-10, now known as ASC 970-470-05,
CRLP recorded restricted cash and other liabilities for $24.0 million when the CDD bonds were issued. This
issuance was treated as a non-cash transaction in CRLP’s Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2008.
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In connection with the commercial joint venture transactions completed in 2007, CRLP assumed certain
contingent obligations for a total of $15.7 million, of which $6.3 million remains outstanding as of December 31,
20009.

As of December 31, 2009, CRLP is self insured up to $0.8 million, $1.0 million and $1.8 million for general
liability, workers’ compensation and property insurance, respectively. CRLP is also self insured for health insurance
and responsible for amounts up to $135,000 per claim and up to $1.0 million per person.

CRLP is a party to various other legal proceedings incidental to its business. In the opinion of management, after
consultation with legal counsel, the ultimate liability, if any, with respect to those proceedings is not presently
expected to materially affect the financial position or results of operations or cash flows of CRLP.

Guarantees and Other Arrangements
Active Guarantees

During April 2007, CRLP and its joint venture partner each committed to guarantee up to $3.5 million, for an
aggregate of up to $7.0 million, of a $34.1 million construction loan obtained by the Colonial Grand at Traditions
joint venture. CRLP and its joint venture partner each committed to provide 50% of the guarantee. Construction at
this site is complete as the project was placed into service during 2008. As of December 31, 2009, the joint venture:
had drawn $33.4 million on the construction loan, which matures in March 2010. On September 25, 2009, CRLP
determined it was probable that it would have to fund the $3.5 million partial loan repayment guarantee provided on
the original construction loan. Accordingly, at December 31, 2009, $3.5 million was recorded for the guarantee (see
Note 9). :

During November 2006, CRLP and its joint venture partner each committed to guarantee up to $8.65 million, for
an aggregate of up to $17.3 million, of a $34.6 million construction loan obtained by the Colonial Promenade .
Smyrna joint venture. CRLP and its joint venture partner each committed to prov1de 50% of the $17.3 million
guarantee, as each partner has a 50% ownership interest in the joint venture. Construction at this site is complete as
the project was placed into service during 2008. The guarantee provided, among other things, for a reduction in the
guarantee amount in the event the property achieves and maintains a 1.15 debt service charge. Accordingly, during
2009, the guarantee was reduced to $4.3 million. As of December 31, 2009, the Colonial Promenade Smyrna joint
venture had $29.6 million outstanding on the construction loan, which matured in December 2009. The joint venture
is currently in negotiations with the lender on refinancing options. At December 31, 2009, no liability was recorded
for the guarantee.

In connection with the formation of Highway 150 LLC in 2002, CRLP executed a guarantee, pursuant to which
CRLP serves as a guarantor of $1.0 million of the debt related to the joint venture, which is collateralized by the
Colonial Promenade Hoover retail property. CRLP’s maximum guarantee of $1.0 million may be requested by the
lender only after all of the rights and remedies available under the associated note and security agreements have
been exercised and exhausted. At December 31, 2009, the total amount of debt of the joint venture was
approximately $16.1 million and the debt matures in December 2012. At December 31, 2009, no liability was
recorded for the guarantee.

In connection with the contribution of certain assets to CRLP, certain partners of CRLP have guaranteed
indebtedness of CRLP totaling $21.2 million at December 31, 2009. The guarantees are held in order for the
contributing partners to maintain their tax deferred status on the contributed assets These individuals have not been
indemnified by CRLP.

As discussed above, in connection with certain retail developments, CRLP has received funding from
municipalities for infrastructure costs. In most cases, the municipalities issue bonds that are repaid primarily from
sales tax revenues generated from the tenants at each respective development. CRLP has guaranteed the shortfall, if
any, of tax revenues to the debt service requirements on the bonds.

The fair value of the above guarantees could change in the near term if the markets in which these properties are
located deteriorate or if there are other negative indicators. : :
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Terminated Guarantees

During February 2006, CRLP committed to guarantee up to $4.0 million of a $27.4 million construction loan
obtained by the Colonial Grand at Canyon Creek Joint Venture. Construction at this site is complete as the project
was placed into service during 2007. In July 2009, CRLP agreed to certain amendments to the partnership agreement
with CMS with respect to the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture, pursuant to which CRLP agreed to
provide an additional contribution in connection with the refinancing of the existing construction loan to a
permanent loan secured by Colonial Grand at Canyon Creek, a 336-unit apartment community located in Austin,
Texas. In connection with the refinancing, CRLP made a preferred equity contribution of $11.5 million, which was
used by the joint venture to repay the balance of the then outstanding construction loan and closing costs. The
preferred equity has a cumulative preferential return of 8.0%. As a result of the preferred equity contribution to the
joint venture, CRLP began consolidating the CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek joint venture, with a fair value of the
property of $26.0 million recorded in its financial statements beginning with the quarter ending September 30, 2009.

During September 2005, in connection with the acquisition of CRT with DRA, CRLP guaranteed approximately
$50.0 million of third-party financing obtained by the DRA/CRT joint venture with respect to 10 of the CRT
properties. During 2006, seven of the ten properties were sold. The DRA/CRT joint venture is obligated to
reimburse CRLP for any payments made under the guaranty before making distributions of cash flows or capital
proceeds to the DRA/CRT joint venture partners. This guarantee, which was set to mature in January 2010, had been
reduced to $17.0 million as a result of the pay down of associated collateralized debt from the sales of assets. As part
of the November 2009 transaction to unwind the joint venture, this guarantee was terminated.

20. Related Party Transactions

The Trust has implemented a specific procedure for reviewing and approving related party construction
activities. CRLP historically has used Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC, a commercial construction company controlled by
Mr. M. Miller Gorrie (a trustee of the Trust), to manage and oversee certain of its development, re-development and
expansion projects. This construction company is headquartered in Alabama and has completed numerous projects
within the Sunbelt region of the United States. Through the use of market survey data and in-house development
expertise, CRLP negotiates the fees and contract prices of each development, re-development or expansion project
with this company in compliance with Trust’s “Policy on Hiring Architects, Contractors, Engineers, and
Consultants”, which policy was developed to allow the selection of certain preferred vendors who have
demonstrated an ability to consistently deliver a quality product at a fair price and in a timely manner. Additionally,
this company outsources all significant subcontractor work through a competitive bid process. Upon approval by the
Management Committee, the Management Committee (a non-board level committee composed of various members
of management of the Trust) presents each project to the independent members of the Executive Committee of the
Board of Trustees of the Trust for final approval.

CRLP paid $11.4 million, $50.6 million and $77.0 million for property construction and tenant improvement
costs to Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Of these
amounts, $6.9 million, $38.4 million and $67.0 million was then paid to unaffiliated subcontractors for the
construction of these development projects during 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. CRLP had $2.3 million, $0.6
million, and $6.5 million in outstanding construction invoices or retainage payable to this construction company at
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Mr, Gorrie has a 3.8% economic interest in Brasfield & Gorrie,
LLC. These transactions were unanimously approved by the independent members of the Trust’s Executive
Committee consistent with the procedure described above.

CRLP also leases space to Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC, pursuant to a lease originally entered into in 2003. The
original lease, which ran through October 31, 2008, was amended in 2007 to extend the term of the lease through
October 31, 2013. The amended lease provides for aggregate remaining lease payments of approximately $2.6
million from 2010 through the end of the extended lease term. The amended lease also provides the tenant with a
right of first refusal to lease additional vacant space in the same building in certain circumstances. The underlying
property was contributed to a joint venture during 2007 in which CRLP retained a 15% interest. CRLP continues to
manage the underlying property. The aggregate amount of rent paid under the lease was approximately $0.4 million
during 2009 and $0.5 million, during 2008.
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Since 1993, Colonial Insurance Agency, a corporation wholly-owned by The Colonial Company (indirectly
owned and controlled equally by Thomas H. Lowder and James K. Lowder and trusts under their control), has
provided insurance risk management, administration and brokerage services for CRLP. As part of this service,
CRLP placed insurance coverage with unaffiliated insurance brokers and agents, including Willis of Alabama,
McGriff Siebels & Williams, Colonial Insurance Agency, and Marsh, USA, through a competitive bidding process.
The premiums paid to these unaffiliated insurance brokers and agents (as they deducted their commissions prior to
paying the carriers) totaled $5.7 million, $5.0 million, and $7.8 million for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The
aggregate amounts paid by CRLP to Colonial Insurance Agency, Inc. for these services during the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $0.6 million, $0.5 miilion, and $0.6 million, respectively. Neither Mr. T.
Lowder nor Mr. J. Lowder has an interest in these premiums.

In October 2009, the Trust completed an equity offering of 12,109,500 common shares, including shares issued
to cover over-allotments, at $9.50 per share. Certain members of the Board of Trustees of the Trust, including Miller
Gorrie (10,526 shares), Thomas Lowder (50,000 shares) and Harold Ripps (100,000 shares), purchased shares in this
offering. These common shares, which were all purchased at the public offering price of $9.50 per share, were equal
in value to the following amounts on the date of purchase: Mr. Gorrie, $100,000; Mr. T. Lowder, $475,000 and Mr.
Ripps, $950,000.

In December 2009, CRLP transferred its entire noncontrolling joint venture interest in its retail joint venture,
OZ/CLP Retail, LLC, to the retail joint venture’s majority member in a transaction that resulted in CRLP’s exit from
the retail joint venture and the receipt of a 100% ownership interest in one of the retail joint venture’s properties,
Colonial Promenade Alabaster. As part of this transaction, the Trust made a cash payment of $45.1 million.
Approximately $38.0 million of CRLP’s cash payment was used to repay mortgage debt and related fees and
expenses associated with the Colonial Promenade Alabaster property, and the remaining approximately $7.1 million
was used for the discharge of deferred purchase price owed by the retail joint venture to former unitholders who
elected to redeem their units in the retail joint venture in June 2008. The transaction was conditioned on, among
other things, former retail joint venture unitholders agreeing to sell to CRLP their respective rights to receive
payment of deferred purchase price from the retail joint venture. All of the former retail joint venture unitholders
elected to sell their payment interests to CRLP for a discounted cash amount (i.e., 90% of the deferred purchase
price amount). The aggregate amount paid by CRLP to former retail joint venture unitholders included amounts paid
to certain of the Trust’s trustees in the their capacities as former retail joint venture unitholders, including: Mr.
Gorrie, $228,330; Mr. J. Lowder, $620,797; Mr. T. Lowder, $620,796; The Colonial Company (in which Messrs. T.
and J. Lowder have interests, as described above), $1,462,437; and Mr. Ripps, $1,649,987.

Other than a specific procedure for reviewing and approving related party construction activities, the Trust has
not adopted a formal policy for the review and approval of related persons’ transactions generally. Pursuant to its
charter, our audit committee reviews and discusses with management and our independent registered public
accounting firm any such transaction if deemed material and relevant to an understanding of CRLP’s financial
statements: Our policies and practices may not be successful in eliminating the influence of conflicts.

21. Net Income (Loss) Per Unit

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

s in thousands)
. .

Income (loés) frem contmulng operatlons ' o $ 13,028 $ (74,948)

g5
loncontrolling interest of limited partners — continuing operations
istributions to 11m1ted partner preferred unltholders
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For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, CRLP reported a net loss from continuing operations (after
preferred dividends), and as such, calculated dilutive unit equivalents have been excluded from per unit
computations because including such units would be anti-dilutive. There were no dilutive unit equivalents for the
year ended December 31, 2009 and 56,587 unit equivalents were excluded for the year ended December 31, 2008.
For the year ended December 31, 2007, there were 285,800 outstanding share options (and a corresponding number
of units) excluded from the computation of diluted net income per unit for 2007 because the grant date prices were
greater than the average market price of the common shares/units and, therefore, the effect would be anti-dilutive. In
connection with the special distribution paid by CRLP during the year ended December 31, 2007 (see Note 2), the
exercise price of all of the Trust’s then outstanding options had been reduced by $10.63 per share for all periods
presented as required under the terms of the Trust’s option plans.

22. Subsequent Events
Unsecured Notes and Preferred Securities Repurchase Programs

On January 27, 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized a new unsecured notes repurchase program which
allows for the repurchase up to $100 million of outstanding unsecured senior notes of CRLP. This new repurchase
program runs through December 31, 2010. Under the new repurchase program, senior notes may be repurchased
from time to time in open market transactions or privately negotiated transactions, subject to applicable legal
requirements, market conditions and other factors. The repurchase program does not obligate the repurchase of any
specific amounts of senior notes, and repurchases pursuant to the program may be suspended or resumed at any time
from time to time without further notice or announcement. CRLP will continue to monitor the debt markets and
repurchase certain senior notes that meet the CRLP’s required criteria, as funds are available. CRLP anticipates
funding potential repurchases from borrowings under its existing credit facility, proceeds from property sales and/or
other available funds. In February 2010, CRLP repurchased $8.7 million in unsecured senior notes, at a minimal
discount to par value, which represents a 6.51% yield to maturity and resulted in the recognition of immaterial net
gains.

Additionally, on January 27, 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees authorized a new preferred securities
repurchase program which allows the Trust to repurchase up to $25 million of outstanding 8 1/8 percent Series D
preferred depositary shares (and a corresponding number of Series D Preferred Units). The preferred shares may be
repurchased from time to time over the next 12 months in open market purchases or privately negotiated
transactions, subject to applicable legal requirements, market conditions and other factors. This repurchase program
does not obligate the Trust to repurchase any specific amounts of preferred shares, and repurchases pursuant to the
program may be suspended or resumed at any time from time to time without further notice or announcement. The
Trust will continue to monitor the equity markets and repurchase certain preferred shares that meet the Trust’s
required criteria, as funds are available.

Continuous Equity Offering Program

On February 22, 2010, the Trust’s Board of Trustees approved the issuance of up to $50.0 million of common
shares of the Trust under an at-the-market continuous equity offering program.

Distribution

During January 2010, the Board of Trustees of the Trust declared a cash distribution on the common shares of
the Trust and on the partnership units of CRLP in the amount of $0.15 per share and per partnership unit, totaling an
aggregate of approximately $11.2 million. The distribution was made to shareholders and partners of record as of
February 8, 2010, and was paid on February 16, 2010. The Trust’s Board of Trustees reviews the dividend quarterly
and there can be no assurance as to the manner in which future dividends will be paid or that the current dividend
level will be maintained in future periods.

Management of CRLP has evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after December 31, 2009 up
through February 26, 2010, the date these financial statements were issued. During this period, there were no
material subsequent events other that those disclosed above.
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23. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008. The information provided herein has been reclassified in accordance with ASC 205-20,
Discontinued Operations, and adjusted to reflect ASC 260, Earnings per Unit, for all periods presented.

2009
(in thousands, except per unit data)

First Second

57,062 57,378
‘“@@%W%ﬁﬁ%ﬂg

2008
(in thousands, except per unit data)

First * Second

( Qruatter
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Trustees of Colonial Properties Trust and Partners of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss), equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2009. Our audit also included
the financial statement schedules as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009, listed in the Index at Item 15.
These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Colonial Realty Limited Partnership and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for
noncontrolling interests and retrospectively adjusted all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated February 26, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Birmingham, Alabama
February 26, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Trustees of Colonial Properties Trust and Partners of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership:

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2008 and the related consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss), of equity and of cash flows for each of two years in the period ended
December 31, 2008 present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Colonial Realty Limited
Partnership and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) at December 31, 2008, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement
schedules for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2008 present fairly, in all material respects,
the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These
financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 10, beginning January 1, 2009, the Company changed the manner in which it manages its
business, which changed the disclosure surrounding its reportable segments. As discussed in Note 2, the Company
changed the manner in which it accounts for and presents its noncontrolling interests effective January 1, 2009. As
discussed in Note 2, the Company changed the manner in which it computes earnings per unit effective January 1,
2009. As discussed in Note 5, the Company has reflected the impact of properties sold subsequent to January 1,
2009 in discontinued operations.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Birmingham, Alabama

February 27, 2009, except for the effects of the changes in disclosure for reportable segments discussed in Note 10,
the changes in noncontrolling interest discussed in Note 2, and changes in earnings per unit discussed in Note 2,
collectively as to which the date is May 21, 2009 and except for changes in items reflected in discontinued
operations discussed in Note 5, as to which the date is February 26, 2010
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure

As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with
the participation of our management, including the Trust’s Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer,
of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15
of the rules promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based on this evaluation, the
Trust’s Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that the design and operation of these
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15)
that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2009 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. ’

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Colonial Properties Trust and CRLP is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In connection with the preparation of the Trust’s and CRLP’s annual financial statements, management has
undertaken an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2009. The assessment was based upon the framework described in “Integrated Control-Integrated
Framework™ issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”).
Management’s assessment included an evaluation of the design of internal control over financial reporting and
testing of the operational effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. We have reviewed the results of
the assessment with the Audit Committee of the Trust’s Board of Trustees.

Based on our assessment under the criteria set forth in COSO, management has concluded that, as of December
31, 2009, the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting.

~ The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 has been
audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports
which appear herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Trustees and Shareholders of Colonial Properties Trust:

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Colonial Properties Trust and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating' effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected
by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dlsposmon of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis: Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2009, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by -
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. :

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2009 of the Company and our report dated February 26, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules and included an explanatory paragraph
related to the change in method of accounting for noncontrolling interests. :

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Birmingham, Alabama
February 26, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Trustees of Colonial Properties Trust and Partners of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership:

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership and subsidiaries
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected
by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2009, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2009 of the Company and our report dated February 26, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules and included an explanatory paragraph
related to the change in method of accounting for noncontrolling interests.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Birmingham, Alabama
February 26, 2010

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART II1

Item 10. Trustees, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this item with respect to trustees, compliance with the Section 16(a) reporting
requirements, procedures relating to trustee nominations, the audit committee and the audit committee financial
expert is hereby incorporated by reference from the material appearing in our definitive proxy statement for the
annual meeting of shareholders to be held in 2010 (the “Proxy Statement”) under the captions “Election of Trustees
— Nominees for Election”, “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Information
Regarding Trustees and Corporate Governance — Committees of the Board of Trustees — Audit Committee”,
“Information Regarding Trustees and Corporate Governance -Committee Membership”, respectively. Information
required by this item with respect to executive officers is provided in Item 1 of this Form 10-K. See “Executive
Officers of the Company.” Information required by this item with respect to the availability of our code of ethics is
provided in Item 1 of this Form 10-K. See “Item 1-Available Information.”

We intend to disclose any amendment to, or waiver from, our code of ethics on our website within four business
days following the date of the amendment or waiver.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the material appearing in the
Proxy Statement under the captions “Compensation Discussion and Analysis”, “Compensation of Trustees and
Executive Officers”, “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Compensation
Committee Report”.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information with respect to the Trust pertaining to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and
management required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the material appearing in the Proxy
Statement under the caption “Voting Securities Held by Principal Shareholders and Management.”

The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of CRLP units as of February 8, 2010
for:

(1) each person known by CRLP to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent of CRLP’s outstanding
units;

(2) each trustee of the Trust and each named executive officer of the Trust; and

(3) the trustees and executive officers of the Trust as a group.

Each person named in the table has sole voting and investment power with respect to all units shown as
beneficially owned by such person, except as otherwise set forth in the notes to the table. References in the table to
“units” are to units of limited partnership interest in CRLP. Unless otherwise provided in the table, the address of
each beneficial owner is Colonial Plaza, Suite 750, 2101 Sixth Avenue North, Birmingham, Alabama 35203.

Name and Business Address Number of Percent of
Units

¢B.
W. Ripps
W. Spiegel .
nolds Thompson, III
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*  Less than 1%
(1) The number of units outstanding as of February 8, 2010 was 74,923,019.

(2) Includes 89,415 units owned by Thomas H. Lowder Investments, LLC, 695,175 units owned by Colonial
Commercial Investments, Inc. (“CCI”), and 635,350 units directly owned by Thomas H. Lowder. Units owned
by CCI are reported twice in this table, once as beneficially owned by Thomas H. Lowder and again as
beneficially. owned by James K. Lowder.

(3) Includes 89,285 units owned by James K. Lowder Investments, LLC, 695,175 units owned by CCI, 195 units
held in trust for the benefit of James K. Lowder’s children and 635,351 units directly owned by James K.
Lowder.

(4) Includes 157,140 units owned by MJE, LLC, and 109,383 units directly owned by Mr. Gorrie.

(5) Includes 526,934 units owned by Meisler Partnership, LP, a limited partnership of which Mr. Meisler and his
wife are partners, and 17,595 units directly owned by Mr. Meisler.

(6) Includes 17,595 units owned directly by Mr. Rigrish, which are pledged to a bank loan.
(7) Units held by CCI have been counted only once for this pufpose.

The following table summarizes information, as of Decembér 31, 2009, relating to the Trust’s equity
compensation plans pursuant to which options to purchase common shares and restricted common shares may be
granted from time to time.

Number of securities
remaining available for future

Number of securities to be Weighted-average issuance under equity
issued upon exercise of exercise price of compensation plans
outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities reflected

Plan Catego . _warran gl wart apd.

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders — — _

(1) These plans include the Trust 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, Third Amended and Restated Employee Share
Option and Restricted Share Plan, as amended in 1998 and 2006, Non-Employee Trustee Share Plan, as
amended in 1997, and Trustee Share Option Plan, as amended in 1997.

(2) Includes 268,172 restricted shares that had not vested as of December 31, 2009.

(3) Weighted-average exercise price of outstanding options has been adjusted for the special distribution paid in
June 2007. In connection with the special distribution, the exercise price of all of the then outstanding options
was reduced by $10.63 per share as required under the terms of the option plans. Weighted-average exercise
price of outstanding options also excludes value of outstanding restricted shares.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the material appearing in the
Proxy Statement under the captions “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions™ and “Information Regarding
Trustees and Corporate Governance — Board of Trustees Assessment of Independence”.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the material appearing in the
Proxy Statement under the captions “Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm — Summary of Audit Fees” and “Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm — Pre-Approval Policy for Services by Auditor”. :
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Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

15(a)(1) Financial Statements

The following financial statements of Trust are included in Part II, Item 7 of this report:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders” Equity for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008.and 2007
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms

The following financial statements of CRLP are included in Part II, Item 7 of this report:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007 '

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms

15(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules for the Trust and CRLP are listed on the financial statement schedule index at the

end of this report.

All other schedules have been omitted because the required information of such other schedules is not present in

amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule or because the required information is included in the
consolidated financial statements.

15(a)(3) Exhibits
Exhibit No. Exhibit Reference
3.1 Declaration of Trust of the Trust, as amended Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 2008
32 Bylaws of the Trust, as amended ~ Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on February 1, 2010
4.1 Indenture dated as of July 22, 1996, by and Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
between CRLP and Deutsche Bank Trust Company CRLP’s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed with
Americas (formerly Bankers Trust Company) the SEC on October 10, 2003
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Exhibit No.
42

4.5

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

Exhibit

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of Decemiber

31, 1998, by and between CRLP and Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas (formerly Bankers
Trust Company)

Deposit Agreement for Series D depository shares
by and among the Trust and Equiserve Trust
Company, N.A. and Equiserve, Inc.

Third Amended and Restated Agreement of
Limited Partnership of CRLP, as amended

Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated
September 29, 1993, among the Trust and the
persons named therein

Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated
March 25, 1997, among the Trust and the persons
named therein

Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated
November 4, 1994, among the Trust and the
persons named therein

Supplemental Registration Rights and Lock-Up
Agreement dated August 20, 1997, among the
Trust and the persons named therein

Supplemental Registration Rights and Lock-Up
Agreement dated November 1, 1997, among the
Trust, CRLP and B&G Properties Company LLP
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Reference

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13.1 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1998 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 2003

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2007

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Trust’s Registration Statement on Form S-11/A,
No. 33-65954, filed with the SEC on September
21,1993

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.2 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1997 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.3 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1997 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C.20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

’ Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.4 to the

Trust’s Annual Report onForm 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1997 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.5 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1997 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)



Exhibit No.

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14.1

Exhibit

Supplemental Registration Rights and Lock-Up
Agreement dated July 1, 1997, among the Trust,
CRLP and Colonial Commercial Investments, Inc.

Supplemental Registration Rights and Lock-Up
Agreement dated July 1, 1996, among the Trust
and the persons named therein

Registration Rights Agreement dated February 23,
1999, among the Trust, Belcrest Realty
Corporation, and Belair Real Estate Corporation

Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated
July 1, 1998, among the Trust and the persons
named therein

Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated
July 31, 1997, among the Trust and the persons
named therein :

Supplemental Registration Rights and Lock-Up
Agreement dated November 18, 1998, among the
Trust, CRLP and Colonial Commercial
Investments, Inc.

Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated
April 30, 1999, among the Trust, CRLP and MJE,
L.L.C

Form of Employee Share Option and Restricted
Share Plan Agreement — 2 Year Vesting
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Reference
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.6 to th
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1997 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by referenceto Exhibit 10.2.7 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1997 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.8 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1998 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.9 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1998 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.10 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1998 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.11 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1998 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.13 to the
Trust’s Annual Report onForm 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1999 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.1 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ending September 30, 2004



Exhibit No.
10.14.2

10.14.3

10.14.4

10.14.5

10.14.6

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.17.1

10.18

Exhibit
Form of Employee Share Option and Restricted
Shares Plan Agreement — 3 Year Vesting

Form of Employee Share Option and Restricted
Shares Plan Agreement — 5 Year Vesting

Form of Employee Share Option and Restricted
Shares Plan Agreement — 8 Year Vesting

Amended and Restated Trustee Restricted Share
Agreement — 1 Year Vesting ¥

Amended and Restated Trustee Non-Incentive

- Share Option Agreement

Non-employee Trustee Share Option Plan ¥

Non-employee Trustee Share Plan

Employee Share Purchase Plan ¥

Amendment to Employee Share Purchase Plan

Annual Incentive Plan ¥
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Reference

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.2 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ending September 30, 2004

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.3 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ending September 30, 2004

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.4 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ending September 30, 2004

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.5 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ending September 30, 2004

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.6 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ending September 30, 2004

Incorporated by reference to the Trust’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, No. 333-
27203, filed with the SEC on May 15, 1997 (which
document may be found and reviewed in the SEC’s
Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room
1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to the Trust’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, No. 333-
27205, filed with the SEC on May 15, 1997 (which
document may be found and reviewed in the SEC’s
Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room
1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 2003

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21.1 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 2006

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the
Trust’s Registration Statement on Form S-11/A,
No. 33-65954, filed with the SEC on September 3,
1993 (which document may be found and reviewed
in the SEC’s Public Reference Roomat 100 F
Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549,
in the files thereinrelating to the Trust, whose file
number is 1-12358)



Exhibit No.
10.19

10.20

10.21.1
10.22

10.23

10.24

10.24.1

10.25

10.26

Exhibit
Executive Unit Purchase Program — Program
Summary ¥

Non-employee Trustee Option Agreement +

Non-Competition Agreement, dated May 4, 2007,
among Colonial Realty Limited Partnership,
Colonial Properties Trust and Thomas H. Lowder 1

Retirement Agreement between the Trust and
Howard B. Nelson, Jr. f

Officers and Trustees Indemnification Agreement +

Partnership Agreement of CPSLP

First Amendment to Partnership Agreement of
CPSLP

Articles of Incorporation of Colonial Real Estate
Services, Inc., predecessor of CPSI, as amended

Bylaws of predecessor of Colonial Real Estate
Services, Inc., predecessor of CPSI
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Reference

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1999 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Trust’s Registration Statement on Form S-11/A,
No. 33-65954, filed with the SEC on September 3,
1993 '

Incorporated by reference'fo Exhibit 10.1 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2007 :

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit.10.26 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 2003

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the
Trust’s Registration Statement on Form S-11/A,
No. 33-65954, filed with the SEC on September
21,1993 (which document may be found and
reviewed in the SEC’s: Public Reference Room at
100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C.
20549, in the files thereinrelating to the Trust,
whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the
Trust’s Registration Statement on Form S-11/A,
No.33-65954, filed September 21, 1993 (which
document may be found andreviewed in the SEC’s
Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room
1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28.1 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ended December 31, 2005

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1994 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the
Trust’s Registration Statement on Form S-11/A,
No. 33-65954, filed September 3, 1993 (which
document may be found and reviewed in the SEC’s
Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room
1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)



Exhibit No.
10.27

10.27.1

10.27.2

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

Exhibit

Credit Agreement dated as of March 22, 2005, by
and among CRLP, as Borrower, Colonial Properties
Trust, as Guarantor, Wachovia Bank, as Agent for
the Lenders, and the Lenders named therein

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated June
2,2006, among CRLP, the Trust, Wachovia Bank,
National Association as Agent for the Lenders and
the Lenders named therein

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated
June 21,2007, among CRLP, the Trust, Wachovia
Bank, National Association as Agent for the
Lenders and the Lenders named therein

Bridge Credit Agreement dated October 28, 2004,
by and among CRLP, as Borrower, and the Trust,
as Guarantor, SouthTrust Bank, as Agent for
Lenders, and the Lenders names therein

Facility and Guaranty Agreement among the Trust,
CRLP, Bank One, N.A. and the Lenders named
therein dated as of December 17,1999

Form of Promissory Note under Facility and
Guarantee Agreement dated as of December 17,
1999 among the Trust, CRLP, Bank One, N.A. and
certain lenders

Form of Restricted Share Agreement (20% per year

vesting)

Form of Restricted Share Agreement
(50%/25%/25% vesting) T

Form of Restricted Share Agreement (33 1/3% per
year vesting)

Form of Restricted Share Agreement (60%/40%
vesting) T

Form of Restricted Share Agreement (eighth
anniversary vesting) t

Form of Share Option Agreement (20% per year
vesting)
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Reference

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on March 25, 2005

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2007

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on July 24, 2007

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on November 3, 2004

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 2003

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 1999 (which document may
be found and reviewed in the SEC’s Public
Reference Roomat 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein
relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on May 3, 2005

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on May 3, 2005

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on May 3, 2005

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on May 3, 2005

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on May 3, 2005

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on May 3, 2005



Exhibit No.
10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.44.1

10.44.2

10.44.3

10.44.4

10.44.5

10.45

Exhibit

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company
Agreement of CRTP OP LLC, dated as of
September 27,2005, between DRA CRT
Acquisition Corp and Colonial Office JV LLC

Colonial Properties Trust Third Amended and
Restated Employee Share Option and Restricted
Share Plan, as amended ¥

Form of Colonial Properties Trust Third Amended
and Restated Employee Share Option and
Restricted Share Plan Restricted Share Agreement
T

Form of Colonial Properties Trust Third Amended
and Restated Employee Share Option and
Restricted Share Plan Performance Share
Agreement f

Form of Colonial Properties Trust Third Amended
and Restated Employee Share Option and

Restricted Share Plan Restricted Share Agreement
-i.

Form of Colonial Properties Trust Third Amended
and Restated Employee Share Option and
Restricted Share Plan Share Option Agreement

Summary of Incentive Program +

2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan

Summary of 2009 Annual Incentive Plan %

Form of Colonial Properties Trust Non-Qualified
Share Option Agreement (Employee Form) +

Form of Colonial Properties Trust Non-Qualified
Share Option Agreement (Trustee Form) +

Form of Colonial Properties Trust Restricted Share
Agreement (Employee Form) ¥

Form of Colonial Properties Trust Restricted Share
Agreement (Trustee Form) ¥

Consulting Agreement, dated as of December 30,
2008, among the Trust, CPSI and Weston
Andress t
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Reference

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended September 30, 2005

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended June 30, 2006

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended June 30, 2006

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended June 30, 2006

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended June 30, 2006

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended June 30, 2006

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended June 30, 2006

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Trust’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended June 30, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on Aprii 29, 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on April 29, 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SECon April 29, 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on April 29, 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 2008



Exhibit No.
10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

10.53

10.54

10.55

10.56

10.57

Exhibit
Severance Agreement, dated as of December 30,

- 2008, among the Trust, CPSI and Weston

Andress t

Settlement Agreement and General Release, dated
as of March 31, 2008 between the Trust and
Charles McGehee

Master Credit Facility Agreement by and between

"CMF 15 Portfolio LLC, as Borrower, CRLP, as

Guarantor, and PNC ARCSLLC, as Lender

Fixed Facility Note (Standard Maturity) dated
February 27, 2009, in the original principal amount
of $259 million made by CMF 15 Portfolio LLC to
the order of PNC ARCS LLC

Fixed Facility Note (Standard Maturity) dated
February 27, 2009, in the original principal amount
of $91 million made by CMF 15 Portfolio LLC to
the order of PNC ARCS LLC

Master Credit Facility Agreement by and between
CMTF 7 Portfolio LLC, as Borrower, CRLP, as

' Guarantor; and Grandbridge Real Estate Capital

LLC, as Lender.

Fixed Facility Note (Standard Maturity) dated May
29, 2009, in the original principal amount of $145.2
million made by CMF 7 Portfolio LLC to the order
of Grandbridge Real Estate Capital LLC.

Fixed Facility Note (Standard Maturity) dated May
29, 2009, in the original principal amount of $11.2
million made by CMF 7 Portfolio LLC to the order
of Grandbridge Real Estate Capital LLC.

Equity Distribution Agreement, dated May 22,
2009, by and among the Trust, CRLP and
Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC, as Agent

Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 30,
2009, by and among the Trust, the CRLP, and
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and
UBS Securities LLC, asrepresentatives of the
several underwriters

Agreement for Purchase of Membership Interests,

- dated November 25, 2009, by and among CRTP

OP, LLC, ACP Fitness Center LLC, Colonial
Office JV LLC and Colonial Properties Services,
Inc. ' '

Redemption of Membership Interests Agreement,

dated November 25, 2009, by and among Colonial
Office JVLLC, CRTP OP LLC and DRACRT
Acquisition Corp.
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Reference

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.47 to the
Trust’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending December 31, 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on March 5, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on March 5, 2009 '

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on March 5, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on June 1, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on June 1, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on June 1, 2009

Incorporated by referenceto Exhibit 1.1 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on May 22, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the
Trust’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on October 2, 2009

Filed herewith*®

Filed herewith*



Exhibit No. Exhibit ~ Reference

12.1 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratio of Filed herewith*
Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred :
‘Share Distributions
12.2 Ration of Earnings to Fixed Charges for CRLP Filed herewith*
21.1 List of Subsidiaries Filed herewith*
23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP Filed herewith*
232 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Filed herewith*
233 Consent of Weiser LLP Filed herewith*
234 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP _ Filed herewith*
31.1 Trust CEO Certification pursuant to Section 302 of Filed herewith

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002

31.2 Trust CFO Certification pursuant to Section 302 of Filed herewith
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002 ' C

31.3 CRLP CEO Certification pursuant to Section302  Filed herewith
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

314 CRLP CFO Certification pursuant to Section302  Filed herewith ,
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Trust CEO Certification pursuant to Section 906 of Filed herewith
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002

322 Trust CFO Certification pursuant to Section 906 of Filed herewith
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0of2002

323 CRLP CEO Certification pursuant to Section906  Filed herewith
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

324 CRLP CFO Certification pursuant to Section906  Filed herewith
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

T Denotes a management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.
*  Exhibits available at www.sec.gov or can be provided upon request.

15(b)  Exhibits

The list of Exhibits filed with this report is set forth in response to Item 15(2)(3). The required exhibit
index has been filed with the exhibits.

15(c) Financial Statements

The Trust and CRLP file as part of this report the financial statement schedules listed on the financial
statement schedule index at the end of this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on
February 26, 2010.

Colonial Properties Trust

By: /s/ Thomas H. Lowder

Thomas H. Lowder
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on February 26, 2010.

Signature
/s/ Thomas H. Lowder Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Thomas H. Lowder (Principal Executive Officer) '
/s/ C. Reynolds Thompson, IIT President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal
C. Reynolds Thompson, III Financial Officer)
/s/ Bradley P. Sandidge Executive Vice President — Accounting (Principal
Bradley P. Sandidge Accounting Officer)

/s/ Carl F. Bailey
Carl F. Bailey Trustee

/s/ M. Miller Gorrie
M. Miller Gorrie Trustee

/s/ William M. Johnson
William M. Johnson Trustee

/s/ Glade M. Knight
Glade M. Knight Trustee

/s/ James K. Lowder
James K. Lowder Trustee

/s/ Herbert A. Meisler
Herbert A. Meisler Trustee

/s/ Claude B. Nielsen
Claude B. Nielsen Trustee

/s/ Harold W. Ripps
Harold W. Ripps Trustee

/s/ John W. Spiegel
John W. Spiegel Trustee
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on

February 26, 2010.

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
a Delaware limited partnership
By: Colonial Properties Trust, its general partner

By: /s/ Thomas H. Lowder

Thomas H. Lowder
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities with Colonial Properties Trust
indicated on February 26, 2010.

Signature

/s/ Thomas H. Lowder
Thomas H. Lowder

/s/ C. Reynolds Thompson, I11

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal

C. Reynolds Thompson, 111 Financial Officer)

/s/ Bradley P. Sandidge Executive Vice President —Accounting (Principal

Bradley P. Sandidge Accounting Officer)
/s/ Carl F. Bailey
Carl F. Bailey Trustee
/s/ M. Miller Gorrie
M. Miller Gorrie Trustee
/s/ William M. Johnson
William M. Johnson Trustee
/s/ Glade M. Knight
Glade M. Knight Trustee
/s/ James K. Lowder
James K. Lowder Trustee
/s/ Herbert A. Meisler
Herbert A. Meisler Trustee
/s/ Claude B. Nielsen
Claude B. Nielsen Trustee
/s/ Harold W. Ripps
Harold W. Ripps Trustee
/s/ John W. Spiegel
John W. Spiegel Trustee
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION REQUIRED BY
RULE 13a-14(2) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Thomas H. Lowder, certify that:

1. 1bave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Colonial Properties Trust;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have: :

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 26, 2010 By: /s/ Thomas H. Lowder

Thomas H. Lowder
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION REQUIRED BY
RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, C. Reynolds Thompson, III, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Colonial Properties Trust;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; :

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1 5(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

-¢)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
- report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
~d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 26, 2010 By: /s/ C. Reynolds Thompson, III

C. Reynolds Thompson, III
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATION REQUIRED BY
RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Thomas H. Lowder, certify that:
1. 1have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and ‘

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 26, 2010 By: /s/ Thomas H. Lowder
' Thomas H. Lowder
Chief Executive Officer of Colonial Properties
Trust, the general partner of Colonial
Realty Limited Partnership



Exhibit 31.4

CERTIFICATION REQUIRED BY
RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, C. Reynolds Thompson, III, certify that:
1. T'have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 26, 2010 By: /s/ C. Reynolds Thompson, III
C. Reynolds Thompson, III
Chief Financial Officer of Colonial Properties
Trust, the general partner of Colonial
Realty Limited Partnership




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

The undersigned, the Chief Executive Officer of Colonial Properties Trust (the “Company”), hereby certifies that,
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to his knowledge on the date hereof:

(a) The Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2009 filed on the date hereof with
' the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(b) Information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
" results of operations of the Company. '

Date: February 26, 2010 By: /s/ Thomas H. Lowder
Thomas H. Lowder
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

The undersigned, the Chief Financial Officer of Colonial Properties Trust (the “Company”), hereby certifies that,
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to his knowledge on the date hereof: S

(@) The Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2009 filed on the date hereof with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(b) Information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 26, 2010 By: /s/ C. Reynolds Thompson, III
- " C. Reynolds Thompson, ITI
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

The undersigned, Chief Executive Officer of Colonial Properties Trust, the general partner of Colonial Realty
Limited Partnership, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to his knowledge on the date hereof:

(@) The Form 10-K of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership for the period ended December 31, 2009 filed
on the date hereof with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(b) Information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership.

By: /s/ Thomas H. Lowder
Thomas H. Lowder
Chief Executive Officer of Colonial Properties
Trust, the general partner of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership
February 26, 2010




Exhibit 32.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

The undersigned, Chief Financial Officer of Colonial Properties Trust, the general partner of Colonial Realty
Limited Partnership, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to his knowledge on the date hereof:

(@) The Form 10-K of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership for the period ended December 31, 2009 filed
on the date hereof with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(b) Information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership.

By: /s/ C. Reynolds Thompson, III
C. Reynolds Thompson, I
Chief Financial Officer of Colonial Properties Trust, the general
partner of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership
February 26, 2010




Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

Beginning Balance Charged to Charged to Other Balance End of
of Period Accounts Deductions Period

G

“)
)

Uncollectible accounts written off, and payments received on previously written-off accounts

Of the $0.4 million, $0.1 million was netted against Gains from sales of property on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) and $0.3 million was added back to Undeveloped Land and Construction in

Progress on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Amounts netted against other non-property related revenue in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Amounts netted against minimum rent in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Amounts reversed upon sale of property or property deferred rent equals zero
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE 111
December 31, 2009
(1) See description of mortgage notes payable in Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(2) The aggregate cost for Federal Income Tax purposes was approximately $2.4 billion at December 31, 2009.
(3) Amounts include real estate assets classified as held for sale at December 31, 2009.
(4) These projects are net of an impairment charge of approximately $12.3 million which was recorded during 2009.

(5) These projects are net of an impairtnent charge of approximately $116.9 million which was recorded during
2008.

(6) These projects are net of an impairment charge of approximately $43.3 million which was recorded during 2007.

(7) The following is a reconciliation of real estate to balances reported at the beginning of the year:

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST
Reconciliation of Real Estate

4,492,418,562
i

3,253,753,317

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Reconciliation of Real Estate

2009 2008 2007

Balance at end of year $ 3512458103 § ‘ S 3253753317

Reconciliation of Accumulated Depreciation

12
4627

(a) This amount is net of an impairment charge of approximately $12.3 million which was recorded during 2009.
(b) This amount is net of an impairment charge of approximately $116.9 million which was recorded during 2008.

(c) This amount is net of an impairment charge of approximately $43.3 million which was recorded during 2007.









Thank you for your interest and investment in Colonial Properties Trust.
In last year’s letter, | outlined a bold agenda for 2009. These initiatives
included: strengthening the balance sheet, improving liquidity, addressing
near-term maturities, reducing overhead, and postponing/phasing
developments. We delivered significant progress on each one of these
goals in 2009 with the desired result of becoming stronger, leaner, and
more focused.

We continued the improvement of our balance sheet through raising
$152 million of common equity and generating $107 million of proceeds
from the sale of commercial assets and condominiums. We placed
$506 million of 10-year secured financings with Fannie Mae at an average
interest rate of 5.8% and repurchased $579 million of unsecured senior
notes at a discount of $55 million which lengthened our debt maturity
schedule. The unwinding of 7 joint ventures comprised of 37 properties
eliminated $231 million of our pro rata share of property-specific debt,
reduced the associated overhead, and allowed us to further simplify our
business. All together, these actions reduced corporate G&A by over 20%
and improved our leverage ratio by 500 basis points to 53.8% at year end.

I'm pleased with the success of our team during the year to meet ~ and in
several cases exceed — our objectives and timetable.

Building on the success of our 2009 priorities, | have
established four directives for 2010: simplify the business; improve our
margins; strengthen the balance sheet; and grow the Company.

Interms of simplifying the business, we will continue to focus on multifamily
operations with the long-term target of increasing the percentage of net
operating income from our multifamily portfolio to greater than go% of
our total net operating income. Internally, we will continue to streamline
our processes and structure to create greater shareholder value. We were
successful in exiting certain commercial joint ventures in 2009, and we will
continue to look for opportunities to reduce our joint venture exposure in
2010, but only when it is beneficial for our shareholders.

The second initiative is to improve our margins. This is a priority at the
corporate level as well as the property level. We recognize this will be a
difficult task in this economic environment, but we want to shine a light




Debt Maturities

(S inmillions)

£
3 14 157 thereafter

Debt maturities as of 12/31/09 (consolidated debt only)
ahd excludes. the Company’s unsecured line-of credit
that matures in June 2612

on our margins to gain a commitment at all levels of the Company. We
will enhance our processes and productivity to leverage the significant
reductions in overhead from the last two years. As a leaner organization,
we will be more aggressive in managing, marketing, and leasing our
properties as well as creating new ways to execute more efficiently.
We will look to dispose of non-revenue producing assets and will
begin development on land we currently own when market conditions
prove favorable.

We also will continue to improve our balance sheet. With only $44 million
of consolidated debt maturing in 2010 and $57 million of consolidated
debt maturing in 201, we have manageable near-term refinancing.
Our goal is to continue de-levering the balance sheet. To help us in this
effort, the Board recently authorized a new $50 million At-The-Market
(ATM) Equity Program and a $100 million unsecured note repurchase
program for 2010. Building on our success in 200g, we continue to
have an opportunity to lengthen our debt maturity schedule and lock
in attractive long-term rates through secured financings through the
Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs) and repurchase our unsecured
debt inthe open market. When the economy recovers, we expect interest
rates to be higher than they are today, so we want to take full advantage
of the opportunity at hand.

Lastly, ourlargestopportunity forgrowthis throughthe operatingrecovery
of our existing portfolio to its 2007 operating levels. This achievement
alone would add over $22 million to FFO on an annualized basis. Also, we
are actively exploring new acquisition and development opportunities. |
noted a year ago that transforming to a much simpler corporate structure
with improved liquidity and few immediate debt pressures should enable
us to take advantage of select opportunities in a disciplined fashion. Our
intent is to find newer assets that are attractively priced in markets that
have recently experienced significant revenue declines and where we

believe we can benefit from an economic recovery.

We are mindful of growing the portfolio through developments and
acquisitions when de-levering is a top goal of the Company. To alleviate
these concerns, we expect to match-fund this growth with additional
equity. In doing so, we will be able to acquire assets that will grow in



the future. It’s important to take advantage of what we believe will be
attractive growth opportunities in this point of the economic cycle.

Based on the long-term demographics of Echo
Boomers accounting for a larger percentage of the renting population
and the long-term relative outperformance of our Sunbelt markets to the
nation as a whole, we remain bullish on our apartment business.

Many of our major markets have worked through much of the single-
family home inventories created by layoffs and foreclosures to the
point that unsold housing supplies have moderated to early 2006 levels.
However, the single-family housing supply is still above normal levels in
markets such as Atlanta, Charlotte, and Phoenix. As a result, we expect
continued pressure on revenue through most of 2010 with new lease rates
declining and occupancy stabilizing; all of which will lead to a second year
of net operating income declines.

Given the projected moderation of job losses and the typical trailing
patternin multifamily revenues, we could potentially see revenue declines
moderating in the second half of 2010. That should set us up for growth in
2011 and 2012. As always, the key driver in our ability to increase NOl is job
growth. The improving economic outlook to date has come without the
benefit of job creation, which makes the recovery from this recession a bit
unusual from previous cycles. When that job growth inevitably happens,
we believe the hard work in 2009 and 2010 to become leaner, stronger,
and more focused will reap significant returns for our shareholders.

Thank you for your continued investment
with us. We look forward to reporting
our progress to you during the year.

Sincerely

Mv@wv@w% w/

Thomas H. Lowder

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except per share data)

ASSETS
Land, buildings and equipment
Undeveloped land and construction in progress
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Real estate assets held for sale
Net real estate assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net
Notes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Deferred debt and lease costs
Investment in partially-owned unconsolidated entities
Deferred tax asset :
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES, NONCONTROLLING INTEREST AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Notes and mortgages payable
Unsecured credit facility
Total long-term liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Accrued expenses
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest:
Common Units

Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 19)

Preferred shares of beneficial interest, $.01 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized:

8 1/8% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares of
Beneficial Interest, liquidation preference $25 per depositary share,
4,004,735 and 4,0m,250 depositary shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively

Common shares of beneficial interest, $.01 par value, 125,000,000 shares
authorized; 71,989,227 and 54,169,418 shares issued at

December 31,2009 and 2008, respectively

Additional paid-in capital
Cumulative earnings
Cumulative distributions
Noncontrolling Interest
Treasury shares, at cost; 5,623,150 shares at December 31,2009 and 2008
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities, noncontrolling interest and shareholders’ equity

December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
$ 3,210,350 $ 2,873,274
237,100 309,010
(519,728) (403,858)
65,022 196,284
2,992,744 2,974,710
4,590 9,185
7952 29,766
33,934 23,102
22,208 2,946
16,503 5,332
22,560 16,783
17,422 46,221
- 9,31
54,719 37,813
$ 3172,632 $ 3,155,169
$ 1,393,797 $ 1,450,389
310,546 311,630
1,704,343 1,762,019
28,299 53,565
13,133 20,717
26,142 7,521
15,054 38,890
1,786,971 1,882,712
133,537 124,848
4 4
720 542
1,760,362 1,619,897
1,296,188 1,281,330
(1,753,015) (1,700,739)
100,985 101,943
(150,163) (150,163)
(2,957) (5,205)
1,252,124 1,147,609
$ 3172,632 $ 3,155,169




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Revenue:

Rentals

Rentals from affiliates

Percentage rent

Tenant recoveries

Other property related revenue

Construction revenues

Other non-property related revenue
Total revenue

Operating expenses:
Property operating expenses
Taxes, licenses, and insurance
Construction expenses
Property management expenses
General and administrative expenses
Management fee and other expenses
Restructuring charges
investment and development expenses
Depreciation
Amortization
Impairment and other losses
Total operating expenses
Income (loss) from operations

Other income (expense):
Interest expense and debt cost amortization
Gains (losses) on retirement of debt
Interest income
(Loss) income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities
(Losses) gains on hedging activities
Gains from sales of property, net of income taxes of
$3,157, $1,546 and $6,548 for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively
Income tax benefit and other
Total other income (expense)
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income {loss) from discontinued operations
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of income taxes of
$70, $1,064 and $1,839 for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively
Income from discontinued operations
Net income (loss)

Continuing operations
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP - common unitholders
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP - preferred unitholders
Noncontrolling interest of limited partners
Discontinued operations
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP from discontinued operations
Noncontrolling interest of limited partners in discontinued operations
Income attributable to noncontrolling interest
Net income (loss) attributable to parent company
Dividends to preferred shareholders
Preferred share issuance costs write-off
Net (loss) income available to common shareholders

Net (loss) income per common share - basic:
(Loss) income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
Net (loss) income per common share - basic

Net (loss) income per common share - diluted:
(Loss) income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
Net (loss) income per common share - diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic
Weighted average common shares outstanding - diluted

Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive income {loss):
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedging activities
Adjust for amounts included in Net income (loss)
Change related to pension plan termination

Comprehensive income (loss)

For The Years Ended

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2009 2008 2007
$ 279,217 $ 275874 $ 318,554
77 96 1153
219 418 917
4,353 4,249 11,484
41,447 34,466 31,671
36 10,137 38,448
15,003 18,327 19,344
340,352 343,567 421,571
95,395 84,134 92,433
39,948 38,383 43,886
35 9,530 34,546
7,749 8,426 12,178
17,940 23,185 25,650
14,184 15,153 15,665
1,400 1,028 3,019
1,989 4,358 1,516
113,100 101,342 108,771
4,090 3,371 10,475
10,390 93,100 44,129
306,220 382,010 392,268
34,132 (38,443) 29,303
(91,986) (75153) {92,475)
56,427 15,951 (10,363)
1,446 2,776 8,359
(1,243) 12,516 1,207
(1.709) (385) 345
5,875 6,776 314,292
10,086 1,014 15,743
(21,104) (36,505) 247108
13,028 (74,948) 276,41
421 (18,635) 11,018
1,729 43,062 91,144
2,150 24,427 102,162
15,178 {50,521) 378,573
463 15,436 7.856
{7.250) (7.251) (7.250)
(999) (531) (2,085)
(381) (4,211) (17.954)
597 449 (3,239)
{7.570) 3,892 (22,672)
7,608 {46,629) 355,901
(8.142) 8773) (13,439)
25 (27) (360)
S (509) S (55,429) S 342,102
$  (o06) $ (1.63) $ 5.51
0.05 0.44 1.75
$  (o01) S (1.19) S 726
$  (0.06) $  (163) $ 546
0.05 0.44 1.73
S {oo) $ (119) 5 719
53,266 47231 46,356
53,266 47.231 46,833
$ 15178 $ (50521 $ 378573
- (100) (535)
2,248 - -
- - 2,615
S 17426 S (50,621) $ 380,653




Trustees & Senior Officers

Trustees

Carl F. Bailey '3
Chairman, TekQuest
Industries, Inc.; Board

of Trustees, Birmingham
Southern College;
Co-Chairman (Ret.),
BellSouth
Telecommunications, Inc;
Chairman and CEO (Ret.),
South Central Bell Telephone
Company

M. Miller Gorrie3
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer,
Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC;
Director, American Cast
Iron Pipe Co.

Senior Officers

Thomas H. Lowder
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

C. Reynolds Thompson, ll|
President and Chief Financial

Officer

William M. Johnson >4
President and Chief
Executive Officer, Johnson
Development Company

Glade M. Knight
Chairman of the Board and
CEO, Apple REIT Companies

James K. Lowder3
Chairman, The Colonial
Company; Director,
Alabama Power Company

Thomas H. Lowder3
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer,
Colonial Properties Trust

Paul F. Earle
Chief Operating Officer

John P. Rigrish
Chief Administrative Officer,
Corporate Secretary

Herbert A. Meisler »4
President, The Rime
Companies; Director,
Mobile Airport Authority

Claude B. Nielsen >4
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief
Executive Officer,

Coca-Cola Bottling Company
United, Inc.; Director,
Regions Financial
Corporation

Harold W. Ripps3
Chief Executive Officer,
The Rime Companies

lerry A. Brewer
Executive Vice President,
Finance

Robert A. Jackson
Executive Vice President,
Commercial Division

John W. Spiegel "4

Vice Chairman and Chief
Financial Officer (Ret.),
SunTrust Banks, Inc.; Director,
RockTenn Company, Inc.;
Director, CPEX
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; and
Director, 51 Corporation

*Indicates committee chair

1Audit Committee

2 Corporate Governance Committee

3 Executive Committee

4 Executive Compensation
Committee

Bradley P. Sandidge
Executive Vice President,
Accounting

Edward T. Wright
Executive Vice President,
Development and
Construction



Corporate Shareholder Information

Corporate Headquarters

2101 Sixth Avenue North, Suite 750
Birmingham, AL 35203

(205) 250-8700
www.colonialprop.com

Independent Accountants
Deloitte & Touche LLP
Birmingham, AL

Corporate Counsel
Hogan & Harston LLP
Washington, DC

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Computershare Investor Services
P.O. Box 43078

Providence, Rl 02940-3078
www.computershare.com

Shares Listed
New York Stock Exchange (NYSE),
symbol: CLP

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of
Colonial Properties Trust is scheduled
for Wednesday, April 28, 2010, at

10:30 a.m. CDT, 1st floor conference
room of Colonial Brookwood Center,
569 Brookwood Village, Suite 131,
Homewood, AL 35209.

Form10-K

A copy of the company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2009, which has been
filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, accompanies this annual
report. Address inquiries to Investor
Relations at the company’s corporate
headquarters.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return®
Among Colonial Properties Trust, The S&P Index and the FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs Index
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Share Ownership

As of February 19, 2010, the company
had an estimated 3,747 shareholders of
record and 41,700 beneficial owners.

Direct Investment Program

Colonial Properties Trust offers a
Direct Investment Program that allows
shareholders to make initial purchases
of shares directly from the company
and automatically invest dividends, as
well as make voluntary cash payments
for the purchase of additional shares.
To receive more information, contact
the company’s Transfer Agent,
Computershare Investor Services, at
(866) 897-1807 or the Investor Relations
department at (800) 645-3917.

e Colonial Properties Trust
e S&Ps00
o FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs

*$100 invested on 12/31/04 in stock or index,
including reinvestment of dividiends. Fiscal
year ending December 31.



Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this annual report may constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995 and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the company’s actual results, performance, achievements
or transactions to be materially different from the results, performance, achievements or transactions expressed or implied by the forward looking
statements. Factors that impact such forward looking statements include, among others, economic, business and real estate conditions and markets,
including recent deterioration in the economy and high unemployment in the U.S., together with the downturn in the overall U.S. housing market resuiting
in weakness in the multifamily market and the extent, strength and duration of the current recession or recovery; exposure, as a multifamily focused REIT,
torisks inherent in investments in a single industry; ability to obtain financing on reasonable rates, if at all; performance of affiliates or companies in which
we have made investments; changes in operating costs; higher than expected construction costs; uncertainties associated with the timing and amount
of real estate disposition and the resuiting gains/losses associated with such dispositions; legislative or regulatory decisions; our ability to continue to
maintain our status as a REIT for federal income tax purposes; price volatility, dislocations and liquidity disruptions in the financial markets and the resulting
impact on availability of financing; the effect of any rating agency actions on the cost and availability of new debt financings; level and volatility of interest
or capitalization rates or capital market conditions; effect of any terrorist activity or other heightened geopolitical crisis; or other factors affecting the real
estate industry generally. Except as otherwise required by the federal securities laws, the company assumes no responsibility to update the information
in this annual report. The company refers you to the documents filed by the company from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
specifically the section titled “Risk Factors” in the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, as may be updated or
supplemented in the company’s Form 10-Q filings, which discuss these and other factors that could adversely affect the company’s results.

COLSZNIA

PROPERTIES TRUST

www.colonialprop.com



